
651 Commerce Drive 

PUBLIC AGENCY 
Roseville, CA 95678 

CPA phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Commission Minutes 

Date: April 28, 2022 

To: NCPA Commission 

From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission 

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting 

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions 

Chair David Hagele called the meeting to order at 9:36 am at NCPA, 651 Commerce Drive, 
Roseville, CA. Introductions and roll call were made. Those in attendance are shown on the 
attached attendance list. 

2. Approve Minutes of the March 24, 2022, Regular Commission Meeting. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Jerry Serventi, and seconded by Pauline Roccucci approve the 
Minutes of the March 24, 2022, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried by a majority on a roll 
call vote of those members present as follows: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Vote 
y 

y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 
y 

Abstained Absent 

X 

X 

Chair Hagele opened the public comment period. No members from the public addressed the 
Commission. Chair Hagele closed the public comment period. 



REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES 

3. General Manager's Business Progress Report and Update 

No report from the General Manager was provided. 

Acting Assistant General Manager of Generation Services Michael DeBortoli announced that Jake 
Eymann accepted NCPA's offer to become the new Plant Manager at the hydroelectric facilities effective 
April 24th . Jake brings a wealth of experience to the position, as demonstrated through his many 
accomplishments during the last six years at NCPA's hydro facilities. As the Hydroelectric Engineer V, 
Jake's responsibilities included successfully managing capital improvement projeots, building strong 
relationships with numerous regulatory compliance agencies, maintaining regulatory compliance, and 
overseeing improvements and maintenance for all dams. 

4. Executive Committee 

Committee Chair Hagele reported the Executive Committee met once since the last Cemmission 
meeting. The Committee heard a report from General Counsel and met in closed session. No 
reportable action was taken in closed session. The Committee was provided a presentation by staff 
regarding an amendment to the Agency's telecommute program. The Committee discussed and agreed 
due to hiring and retention challenges and remote work findings, to allow an additional job classification 
to work remote part-time. 

5. Facilities Committee 

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met once since the last 
Commission meeting. The Committee discussed Items 13-20, 23-26. on the Consent Calendar, and 
item 28 under Discussion/Action on today's agenda.. A quorum of the Committee was established, 
and recommended Commission approval of all items. The next Committee meeting is scheduled for 
May 4. 

6. Finance Committee 

Committee Chair Catalina reported the Finance Committee did not meet since the last Commission 
meeting. The next Finance Committee meeting will be held on May 10. 

7. Legal Committee 

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported the Committee met once since the last Commission 
meeting. The Committee discussed Items 21 and 22 on the Consent Calendar and recommended 
Commission approval of both items. The Committee met in closed and discussed items 29 A, B, and 
C on today's agenda. No reportable action was taken in closed session. The Committee also heard 
reports on the TO18 rate case and an Agency update from General Counsel. The next Committee 
meeting is scheduled on May 5. 

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee 

Committee Chair Mark Chandler reported the Committee did not meet since the last Commission 
meeting. The Commission was provided an overview from the Federal Policy Conference that was held 
in Washington, D.C., earlier in the month. Next year's Conference will be held on April 30-May 4, 2023. 
The American Public Power Association's National Conference will be held on June 12-15 in Nashville, 
TN. The next Committee meeting is scheduled on August 24. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

2 



9. Members' Announcements & Meeting Reporting 

No Member announcements or reporting. 

Commissioner Eric Filseth joined the meeting at 9:50 am. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine 
if any Member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. 

Item 24 was pulled from Consent and moved to Discussion/ Action. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mark Chandler, and seconded by Suds J$ln to approve the Consent 
Calendar consisting of Items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 25, and 26. The 
motion carried by a majority of those members present on a roH call vote as follows:-

Vote Abstained Absent 
Alameda y 
San Francisco BART X 
Biggs y 
Gridley y 
Healdsburg y 
Lodi y 
Lompoc y 
Palo Alto y 
Port of Oakland y 
Redding y 
Roseville y 
Santa Clara y 
Shasta Lake y 
Truckee Donner y 
Ukiah y 
Plumas-Sierra y 

10. NCPA's Financials for the Month Ended March 31, 2022- approval by all members. 

11. Treasurer's Report for the Month Ended March 31, 2022- accept by all members. 

12. Disposal of Northern California Power Agency Surplus Property- note and file the report by all 
members for the disposal of the following: Scrap metal from the Lodi Energy Center. 

13. Resolution 22-37, RADCO Communications, LLC - Five Year Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement for microwave tower and communication system maintenance; Applicable to the 
following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by 
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement with RADCO Communications, LLC for microwave tower and communication 
system maintenance, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA 
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000 over five 
years. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

3 



14. Resolution 22-38, DRS Marine, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for 
underwater maintenance and inspection services; Applicable to the following: All Northern 
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power 
Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the 
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with DRS 
Marine, Inc. for underwater maintenance and inspection services, with any non-substantial changes 
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over 
five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000 over five 
years. 

15. Resolution 22-39, TCB Industrial, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for 
mechanical systems maintenance; Applicable to the following: All Northern California Power 
Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General 
Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TCB Industrial, 
Inc. for mechanical systems maintenance, with any non-substantial changesreoommended and 
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000 over 
five years. 

16. Resolution 22-40, Global Diving and Salvage, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement for underwater maintenance and inspection services; Applicable to the following: 
All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California 
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members 
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with Global Diving and Salvage, Inc. for underwater maintenance and inspection 
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000 over five 
years. 

17. Resolution 22-41, RESA Service, LLC - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for 
transformer maintenance, switchgear and engineering services; Applicable to the following: 
All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California 
Public Power Authority (SCPPAJ, and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members 
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services 
Agreement with RESA Service, LLC for transformer maintenance, switchgear and engineering 
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000 over five 
years. 

18. Resolution 22-42, HDR Engineering, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services 
Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the following: All Northern California 
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General 
Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with HDR 
Engineering, Inc. for engineering services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and 
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five 
years. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

4 



19. Resolution 22-43, Power Engineers, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services 
Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the following: All Northern California 
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General 
Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Power 
Engineers, Inc. for engineering services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and 
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five 
years. 

20. Resolution 22-44, Knights' Electric, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement 
for Electrical Maintenance Services; Applicable to the following: All Northern California Power 
Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General 
Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Knights' 
Electric, Inc. for electrical maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended 
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $750,000 over five 
years. 

21. Resolution 22-48, Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC - Three Year Legal Services 
Agreement for Assistant General Counsel Services with Option to Extend for Up to Two 
Additional Years - adopt resolution by au members authorizing the General Manager or his 
designee to enter into a three-year Legal Services Agreement with Colantuno, Highsmith & Whatley, 
PC (CHW) for outside Assistant General Counsel services to be provided primarily by David J. 
Ruderman, with a not to exceed amount of $500,000. The agreement includes the possibility for 
amendment to extend the term for up to two additional years for a maximum contract length of five 
years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over three 
years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued 
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. The dollar amount is not a guarantee that 
NCPA will pay the full amount, but is merely a limit of potential expenditures under the Agreement. 

22. Resolution 22-49, Law Offices of Susie Berlin - Three Year Legal Services Agreement for 
State Regulatory Specialized S·ervices with Option to Extend for Up To Two Additional Years -
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a 
three ... year Legal Services Agreement with the Law Offices of Susie Berlin for specialized State 
Regulatory Counsel services, with a not to exceed amount of $380,000 per year and not to exceed 
$1,140,000 over the three year term. The agreement includes the possibility for amendment to 
extend the term for up to two additional years for a maximum contract length of five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $380,000 per year 
and not to exceed $1,140,000 over the three-year term of the agreement. Purchase orders 
referencing the terms. and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement 
policies and procedures. The dollar amount is not a guarantee that NCPA will pay the full amount, but 
is merely a limit of potential expenditures under the Agreement. NCPA's approved FY22 legal budget 
includes $225,000 for legislative and regulatory services, plus funds in other subject matter line items 
should services be required. The approved FY23 budget increased the legislative and regulatory 
services amount to $260,000. 

23. Resolution 22-50, Archer Energy Solutions, LLC - Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services 
Agreement for NERC Cyber Security Supply Chain Management Services and other NERC CIP 
or Operations and Planning Standards related tasks; Applicable to the following: All Northern 
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power 
Authority (SCPPAJ, and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution by all members authorizing the 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

5 



General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with 
Archer Energy Solutions, LLC for NERC Cyber Security Supply Chain Management Services and 
other NERC CIP or Operations and Planning Standards related tasks, with any non-substantial 
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed 
$500,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five 
years. 

24. ITEM WAS MOVED TO DISCUSSION I ACTION -- Resolution 22-52, Approval of First 
Amendment to Antelope Expansion 1 B, LLC Power Purchase Agreement - adopt resolution by 
all members approving the First Amendment to the Power Purchase Agreement between NCPA and 
Antelope Expansion 1 B, LLC, and to authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute the First 
Amendment to the PPA, including any non-substantive modifications to First Amendment to the PPA 
approved by NCPA's General Counsel. 
Fiscal Impact: Work associated with developing the Amendment was undertaken pursuant to 
approved Power Management budget categories, and costs associated with thjs effort are allocated 
in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget. 

25. Resolution 22-53, Stearns, Conrad and Schmidt, Consulting Engineers, Inc. dba &CS 
Engineers - Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Sen,ices Agreement for Low Carboa Fuel 
Standard Fuel Pathway Application, Validation, and Verification Consulting Services; 
Applicable to the following: Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, 
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution 
by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task 
Consulting Services Agreement with Steams, Conrad and Schmidt, Consulting Engineers, Inc. dba 
SCS Engineers ("SCS Engineers") for Low Carbon Fuel Standard fuet pathway application, 
validation, and verification consulting services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and 
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, wh1oh shalt not exceed $350,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $350,000 over five 
years 

26. Resolution 22-54, Tetra Tech, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement for 
Low Carbon Fuel Standard Fuel Pathway Validation and Verification Consulting Services; 
Applicable to the following: Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, 
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPAJ, and SCPPA Members - adopt resolution 
by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task 
Consulting Services Agreement with Tetra Tech, Inc. for Low Carbon Fuel Standard fuel pathway 
validation and verification consulting services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and 
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $250,000 over five years. 
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $250,000 over five 
years. 

DISCUSSION / ACnON ITEMS 

ITEM 24 -- Resolution 22-52, Approval of First Amendment to Antelope Expansion 1 B, LLC 
Power Purchase Agreement- adopt resolution by all members approving the First Amendment to 
the Power Purchase Agreement between NCPA and Antelope Expansion 1 B, LLC, and to authorize 
the General Manager of NCPA to execute the First Amendment to the PPA, including any non
substantive modifications to First Amendment to the PPA approved by NCPA's General Counsel. 
Fiscal Impact: Work associated with developing the Amendment was undertaken pursuant to 
approved Power Management budget categories, and costs associated with this effort are allocated 
in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

6 



At the request of Vice-Chair Jerry Serventi, item 24 was pulled from Consent and moved to Discussion / 
Action for further explanation of who are the project participants, and to provide a background on the 
project. The project participants include Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, and the Port of Oakland. 
General Counsel Jane Luckhardt explained that a project participant can choose to call for a project vote 
if asked. It was requested that the project participants be listed on future Staff Reports. Assistant 
General Manager of Power Management Tony Zimmer provided an overview of the project agreement. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mark Chandler, and seconded by Jerry Serventi to adopt resolution by 
all members approving the First Amendment to the Power Purchase Agreement between NCPA and 
Antelope Expansion 1 B, LLC, and to authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute the First 
Amendment to the PPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Fi:rst'Am~dment to the PPA 
approved by NCPA's General Counsel. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those 
members present as follows: 

Vote Abstained Absent 
Alameda y 
San Francisco BART X 
Biggs y 
Gridley y 
Healdsburg y 
Lodi y 
Lompoc y 
Palo Alto y 
Port of Oakland y 
Redding y 
Roseville X 
Santa Clara y 
Shasta Lake y 
Truckee Donner X 
Ukiah X 
Plumas-Sierra y 

27. Resolution 22-45, Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 Annual Budget - adopt resolution by all 
members approving the FY2023 Annual Budget and Working Capital and Funding Requirement as 
outlined in Resolution 22-45 and as detailed in the attached budgetary support and Annual Budget 
document. 
Fiscal Impact: The Executive Summary section of the budget document contains an analysis of the 
overall budget. The total proposed net annual budget cost for FY2023 is approximately $562.6 
million, which represents an increase of 25.9% or a $115.6 million dollar increase over the FY2021 
budget as summarized in the attached schedule. Allocation of the FY2023 Annual Budget between 
members and LEC participants is based on participation levels in NCPA programs and projects and 
the approved cost allocations. Final funding allocation for each member is attached to this staff 
report and shown in Section 13 of the budget document. The total calculated FY2023 Working 
Capital Deposit and Funding Requirements for the Annual Budget has increased $21 Bk or 2.2%. The 
attached schedule shows each participant's additional Requirement Charge or (Refund). The 
Additional Requirement Charge will be billed on the next ARB following Commission approval, and 
Refunds of credit amounts will likewise be deposited into the applicable participant's individual GOR 
account. 

Assistant General Manager/ CFO Monty Hanks opened the discussion regarding the progress and steps 
taken to vet the budget through the Members and designated committees. 

Treasurer-Controller Sondra Ainsworth gave a presentation and provided an overview of the FY 2023 
proposed budget. The budget was vetted through each NCPA Committee and was recommended for 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

7 



Commission approval. The Commission discussed and asked questions. A copy of the complete budget 
can be found on NCPA Connect and NCPA's Website. 

MOTION: A motion was made by Mark Chandler, and seconded by Suds Jain to adopt resolution by all 
members approving the FY2023 Annual Budget and Working Capital and Funding Requirement as 
outlined in Resolution 22-45 and as detailed in the attached budgetary support and Annual Budget 
document. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present as follows: 

Vote Abstained Absent 
Alameda y 
San Francisco BART X 
Biggs y 
Gridley y 
Healdsburg y 
Lodi y 
Lompoc y 
Palo Alto y 
Port of Oakland y 
Redding y 
Roseville y 
Santa Clara y 
Shasta Lake y 
Truckee Donner y 
Ukiah y 
Plumas-Sierra y 

28. Resolution 22-51, Approval of Exhibit C, Revision 24-1 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 (Western 
Area Power Administration (WAPA O&M Funding Commitment) - adopt resolution by all 
members approving ExhibitC, Revision 24-1 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorizing the General 
Manager of NCPA to execute Exhibit C, Revision 24-1 to Contact 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of 
NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Exhibit C, Revision 24-1 to Contract 96-SNR-
00110 approved by NCPA's General Counsel. 
Fiscal Impact: WAPA will invoice and collect funds according to a monthly schedule. Approximately 
one (1) month following payment, WAPA will return funds to NCPA through a bill credit on the 
monthly WAPApower bill. Therefore, the net fiscal impact is approximately zero dollars ($0.00). 
Costs associated with this commitment will be allocated to the Assigning Members based on Western 
Allocation percentages. NCPA's authority to ~ct on behalf of the Assigning Members is provided 
through the Assignment Administration Agreement (AAA Agreement), which requires an affirmative 
vote of an Assigning Members. Execution of Exhibit C, Revision 24-1 to Contract 96-SNR-0011 O 
would establish a commitment by NCPA, specifically the Assigning Members, to provide funds 
associated wi;th federal Fiscal, Year 2024 in the amount of $11,918,438.68. The obligation to provide 
funds survives termination of the O&M Agreement, but any and all future obligations would be 
absolved coincident with the termination of the Base Resource contract. 

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer provided a presentation on the funding agreement. Every fiscal 
year, each customer commits to certain funding levels based on projected needs. The NCPA Pool share 
is $11,918,438.68 for the federal FY2024 funding. The net fiscal impact is zero dollars ($0.00). The 
amounts initially funded are subsequently refunded by Western using bill credits. NCPA's authority to act 
on behalf of Pool Members is provided through the Assignment Administration Agreement (aka AAA 
Agreement}, which requires an affirmative vote of all assigning Members at the Commission meeting. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

8 



MOTION: A motion was made by Jerry Serventi, and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt resolution by 
all members approving Exhibit C, Revision 24-1 to Contract 96-SNR-00110, and authorizing the General 
Manager of NCPA to execute Exhibit C, Revision 24-1 to Contact 96-SNR-00110, on behalf of NCPA, 
including any non-substantive modifications to Exhibit C, Revision 24-1 to Contract 96-SNR-00110 
approved by NCPA's General Counsel. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those 
members present as follows: 

Vote Abstained Absent 
Alameda y 
San Francisco BART X 
Biggs y 
Gridley y 
Healdsburg y 
Lodi y 
Lompoc y 
Palo Alto y 
Port of Oakland y 
Redding X 
Roseville X 
Santa Clara X 
Shasta Lake X 
Truckee Donner y 
Ukiah y 
Plumas-Sierra y 

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for closed session items 29-32. 

CLOSED SESSION 

Chair Hagele asked General Counsel to move the CoA"lmission into closed session at 10:36 am. General 
Counsel Jane Luckhardt took the Commission into ctosed session. 

29. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) - Existing Litigation, three (3) cases: 

A. Case Name: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville, and City of 
Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C. 

B. Case Name: In Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and Electric Company, Debtors; United 
States Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of California, Case Nos. 19-30088 (Lead Case) and 
19-30089 DM. 

C. Case Name: City of Santa Clara dba Silicon Valley Power and Northern California Power 
Agency, Claimants, v. California Department of Water Resources, Respondent, American 
Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-22-0001-3527. 

30. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)
Anticipated Litigation - one (1) case. 

31. THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES-Threat to public services or facilities pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54957: 

Consultation with Chief Financial Officer/ Assistant General Manager Administrative Services, 
Monty Hanks, Assistant Manager, Information Services, Christopher Carnesi, and Energy 
Resource Analyst 11 - Risk Management, Randall Kramer. 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

9 



32. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS - Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.8: 

Property: 5034 Sunrise Blvd, Fair Oaks, California. 
Agency negotiator: Randy Howard, General Manager; Monty Hanks, CFO I Assistant 
General Manager of Administrative Services; and Jonathan Ashcraft, Facilities Manager 
Negotiating parties: Ethan Conrad 
Under negotiation: Offer Price and Terms of Payment 

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION 

All meeting attendees rejoined the public meeting at 12: 18 pm. 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported there was no reportable action 
taken in closed session on items 29 A, B & C, 30, and 31. Action was taken on item 32 giving direction 
to the real property negotiators. 

NEW BUSINESS 

No new business was discussed. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The April 28, 2022, Commission meeting was adjourned at 12: 19 pm by Chair Hagele. 

Respectfully submitted, 
II 
DAVID HAGELE 
Commission Chair 

Attachments 

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 28, 2022 

Prepared by, 
II 
CARY A. PADGETT 
Assistant Secretary to the Commission 

10 



Northern California Power Agency 
Commission Meeting 

April 28, 2022 

COMMISSIONERS 
Attendance List 

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary. 

MEMBER NAME 

1-ALAMEDA 
Vice Chair Jerry Serventi 

2 - BIGGS 
Bo Sheppard 

3 - GRIDLEY 
Catalina Sanchez 

4 - HEALDSBURG 
Chair David Hagele 

5 - LODI 
Mark Chandler 

6-LOMPOC 
Jenelle Osborne 

7- PALO ALTO 
Eric Filseth 

8 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC 
Larry Price 

9 - PORT OF OAKLAND 
Jared Carpenter 

10- REDDING 
Julie Winter 

11 - ROSEVILLE 
Pauline Roccucci 

12- SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID Absent 
TRANSIT DISTRICT 

13 - SANTA CLARA 
Suds Jain 

14 - SHASTA LAKE 
James Takehara 

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER 
Steven Poncelet 

16- UKIAH 
Cindy Sauers 



Northern California Power Agency 
Commission Meeting 

April 28, 2022 
Attendance List 

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the 
public is voluntary. 

NAME AFFILIATION 

Nico Procos Alameda Municipal Power 

Mark Sorensen City of Biggs 

Terry Crowley City of Healdsburg 

Jon Abendschein City of Palo Alto 

Mike Brozo Plumas-Sierra 

Dan Beans Roseville Electric 

Kathy Watanabe City of Santa Clara 

Kathleen Hughes Silicon Valley Power 

Basil Wong Silicon Valley Power 

Jane Luckhardt NCPA 

Jane Cirrincione NCPA 

Monty Hanks NCPA 

Tony Zimmer NCPA 

Sondra Ainsworth NCPA 

Mike DeBortoli NCPA 

Cary Padgett NCPA 

Randall Kramer NCPA 



SUPPORT SERVICES PROO.RAM STATUS REPORT 

May26,2022 

Member Name Designated Representatives Confirmation Date 
NTEAmount Approved 

Alameda - AMP General Manager & AMP General Counsel $ 75,000 06/08/16 

BART 

Biggs Utility Director & City Attorney $125,000 08/09/16 

Gridley City Administrator & City Attorney $125,000 02/07/22 

Healdsburg City Manager & City Attorney $ 50,000 05/06/19 

Lodi Utility Director & City Attorney NTE $15,000; $ 20,000 09/07/16 
City Manager & City Attorney NTE $20,000 

Lompoc Utility Director & City Attorney $125,000 11/15/16 

Palo Alto City Manager & City Attorney $ 85,000 06/05/17 

Plumas-Sierra REC 

Port of Oakland Executive Director & Deputy Port Attorney $150,000 04/14/16 

Redding Utility Director & City Attorney 04/19/16; 

Procurement Authority Increased $200,000 08/20/20 

Roseville Electric Utility Director & City Attorney $ 74,999 10/05/15; 

05/05/21 

Santa Clara City Manager & City Attorney $150,000 05/24/16 

Shasta Lake City Manager & General Counsel $ 75,000 07/02/19 

Truckee Donner General Manager & General Counsel NTE $15,000; $250,000 11/02/16 
PUD General Manager, General Counsel & Board 

President NTE $250,000 

Ukiah Utility Director & City Attorney $ 20,000 01/19/22 

1 

5/26/2022 las 



SSPA CONFIRMATIONS EXECUTED/WORK IN PROGRESS 

No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0251 City of Santa Clara 5/3/22 $42,720.00 Cameron-Cole LLC; perform verification 
services for Calendar years 2021-2023 CARB 
Greenhouse Gas emissions and Electric 
Power Entity reports for compliance with 
mandatory reporting. 

0246 Port of Oakland 2/3/22 $76,726.00 Aspen Environmental; perform a Utilities 
Rate Study to provide analysis of the 
current rate input information and what 
level of full rate study could be needed. 

0245 City of Palo Alto 3/23/22 $44,825.00 Cool The Earth; Energy efficiency services 
including 12 online Electric Vehicle (EV) 101 
or 102 workshops and two group Buy EV 
Discount campaigns. 

0244 City of Palo Alto 2/24/22 $71,800.00 Acterra; host 19 energy efficiency events to 
raise awareness of electric vehicles and EV 
adoption. 

0243 City of Lompoc 1/24/22 $62,500.00 Utility Financial Solutions; cost of service 
financial projection and rate design study 
for the City's utility department. 

0242 City of Redding 12/10/21 $ 26,645.00 Cameron-Cole LLC; verification services for 
REU power plant GHG emissions for 
compliance with the Regulation for 
mandatory CARB reporting. Services for 
emission years 2021 and 2022. 

0241 City of Roseville 3/22/22 $32,500.00 DNV Energy Services USA Inc.; energy 
efficiency services in CY22 including EMV, 
verification services, and technical advisory 
services as requested. 

0240 Alameda Municipal 2/23/22 $198,025.00 Frontier Energy, Inc.; Energy efficiency 
Power services including electrification and clean 

transportation courses, induction cooking 
demonstrations, commercial food service 
site audits, and work force education and 
training courses. 

0239 City of Roseville 11/5/21 $74,961.00 D+R International; provide building and 
electrification technologies including Home 
Energy Estimator when considering HVAC 
systems with heat pump technology and 
QMerit EV services. 

2 

5/26/2022 las 



No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0238 City of Roseville 10/21/21 $18,945.00 Dudek; Wildfire Mitigation Plan review for 
2021. 

0237 City of Santa Clara 9/14/21 $132,058.00 Central Coast Energy Services, Inc.; income 
eligibility and processing of applications for 
Financial Rate Assistance Program, both 
new and renewal for existing customers. 

0236 City of Santa Clara 3/1/22 $422,368.00 CLEAResult; EV charging structure technical 
assistance, electrification education, and 
electrification assessment services. 

0234 City of Santa Clara 10/29/21 $26,769.00 Dudek; Independent Evaluator review, 
report, and presentation to Council re SVP's 
Wildfire Mitigation Plan. 

0231 City of Santa Clara 12/20/21 $18,854.00 D+R International; EE services including EV 
Digital Toolkit configuration and integration 
for SVP through January 2024. 

0230 City of Santa Clara 8/30/21 $87,715.00 Frontier Energy, Inc.; Electrification and 
education services including Induction 
Cooking demonstration, online trainings, 
commercial food services site audits, and 
Guest Chef cooking classes. 

0229 City of Lompoc 8/2/21 $71,470.00 MFP Connect, LLC; Services re electric line 
extensions including conceptual framework, 
interviews with staff, reporting, policies, 
and development of rules and regulations. 

0228 City of Palo Alto 7 /14/21 $11,950.00 Frontier Energy, Inc.; kitchen energy 
efficiency services for up to five restaurants 
to support electrification efforts. 

0225 City of Roseville 8/2/21 $167,716.00 Plug In America; provide EV education in-
person and virtual events and EV advocate 
trainings; provide Dealer Incentive Program 
including training, engagement, certificate 
pricing, license fees, incentive funds, and 
program management. 

0224 City of Healdsburg 7/1/21 $ 9,394.00 HOT/SHOT Infrared Inspections Inc.; 
infrared inspections of one substation and 
overhead 12kv distribution system. 

0221 City of Lompoc 6/7/21 $57,500.00 Hometown Connections, Inc.; services to 
facilitate the development of a Strategic 
Plan through HCI planning process and 
preparation of final plan document. 

3 

5/26/2022 las 



No. Member Name Date AmountNTE Vendor Name & Short Description 

0219 City of Redding 6/29/21 $312,820.00 Quest Media & Supplies, Inc.; for design 
services for Fiber Optic Infrastructure 
Project including site walks, baseline 
drawings, update every pole drawing, full 
permit package for project compliant with 
public works requirements. 

0218 City of Redding 6/15/21 $200,785.00 Bell Burnett & Associates; consulting 
services to prepare Mitigation 
Implementation Plan and conduct review of 
REU's Capital Program and make 
recommendations about most efficient 
means of implementation. 

0216 Port of Oakland 5/12/21 $ 7,973.00 TRC Solutions, Inc.; for independent third-
party evaluation of Physical Security Plan 
per CPUC Decision 19-01-018. 

0209 City of Redding 6/15/21 $303,129.00 Quantum Spatial, Inc.; LiDAR remote 
sensing data services for REU's Tier 1 and 
Tier 2 regions to assist with vegetation 
management. 

0204 City of Lorn poc 3/30/21 $125,000.00 MFP Connect, Inc.; provide personnel 
services to lead special project-onboard 
energy consultant with extensive T&D 
experience to assess system health, 
recommend/prioritize critical path 
maintenance, develop comprehensive CIP 
and additional duties as requested by UD. 

0186 Alameda Municipal 9/21/20 $75,000.00 Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.; Continued 

Amd. Power 7/23/21 $200,000.00 services related to electric transmission 
issues, grid planning, load levels, regulatory 
matters, litigation support, and other 
services as requested in FY21. 

0179 Alameda Municipal 7/28/20 $67,500.00 Cooperative Response Center; Overflow 
Power telephone solution during after-hours or 

outage situations FY21 and FY22. 

0166 City of Palo Alto 7/1/20 $ 73,325.00 DNV, formerly Energy & Research Solutions; 
energy efficiency consulting services 
including energy savings calculation review, 
rebate application review, business energy 
audits and technical advice. 

0157 City of Lodi 4/28/20 $154,480.00 Cooperative Response Center; Overflow 
telephone solution during after-hours or 
outage situations 24-month period. 

4 

5/26/2022 las 



No. NCPAMember Date Amount Vendor Name & Short Description 

0117 City of Lodi 8/22/19 $275,811.00 Burns & McDonnell; engineering design and 

Amd. 1/20/21 environmental analysis for the PG&E 
Northern San Joaquin 230 kV Transmission 
Project to be incorporated into PG&E's PEA. 

0080 City of Roseville 7/11/18 $148, 084.00 Siemens Energy, Inc.; Year 3 of 5-year 
T-3000 Maintenance Program 

0079 City of Redding 7//10/18 $ 64,223.09 Siemens Energy, Inc.; Year 3 of 5-year 
T-3000 Maintenance Program. 

SSA CONFIRMATIONS EXECUTED AND IN PROGRESS (SCPPA CONTRACTS) 

No. NCPAMember Date Amount Vendor Name & Short Description 

0232 City of Roseville 3/3/22 $74,500.00 Synergy Companies; provide audits and 
direct install program of energy saving 
measures to elibigle small business 
customers at no cost to customers through 
Program manaqed by the City of Roseville 

0223 Alameda Municipal 8/30/21 $270,000.00 The Energy Federation, Inc.; eCommerce 
Power markektplace platform and fulfillment for 

AMP's customers; downstream rebate 
processing. 

0222 City of Santa Clara 11/15/21 $150,000.00 The Energy Federation, Inc.; create, host 
and maintain a secure eCommerce site 
{marketplace) for SVP customers to support 
current and future version of the major 
Web brouwser on common operating 
systems and mobile devices. 

0196 City of Santa Clara 10/13/21 $32,675.00 Tinker, LLC; science-based curriculum 
energy education program to teach 
students about energy and how to use it 
wisely. 

5 

5/26/20221as 



651 Commerce Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5 

Date: May 26, 2022 

To: NCPA Commission 

Subject: May 4, 2022 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral 
Committee report. 



651 Commerce Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

phone (916) 781-3636 
fax (916) 783-7693 
web www.ncpa.com 

Minutes - Draft 
Date: May 11, 2022 

To: NCPA Facilities Committee 

From: Carrie Pollo 

Subject: May 4, 2022 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

1. Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Jiayo 
Chiang, (Lodi) at 9:05 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference 
and/or on-line presentation were Alan Harbottle (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Cliff Wagner 
(Gridley), Melissa Price (Lodi), Shiva Swaminathan (Palo Alto), Mike Brozo (Plumas-Sierra), Khaly 
Nguyen (Port of Oakland), Nick Rossow (Redding), Ryley Kelly (Roseville), Basil Wong and Steve 
Hance (Santa Clara), and Willie Manuel and Owen Goldstrom {TIO). Those attending in person 
are listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART, 
Healdsburg, Lompoc, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was established. 

PUBLIC FORUM 
No public comment. 

2. Approval of Minutes from the April 6, 2022 Facilities Committee meeting. 

Motion: A motion was made by Cliff Wagner and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending 
approval of the April 6, 2022 Facilities Committee meeting minutes. A vote was taken by roll call: 
YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Redding, 
Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed. 

3. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA- Kinectrics AES, Inc. MTPSA- Staff presented 
background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five
year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Kinectrics AES, Inc. for generator testing 
and assessment services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000, for use at all facilities 
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All 
purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

NCPA currently has an agreement in place with Kinectrics, Inc., which is expiring. NCPA has 
utilized this vendor in the past for services such as quality control testing on stator bars used in the 
Hydro generator rewind project. NCPA has a good working relationship with the vendor and 
wishes to continue that relationship. This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any 
expenditure of funds. At the time services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work 
consistent with NCPA procurement policies and procedures. NCPA desires to enter into this 
agreement so established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful 



bidder on future projects. NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with Ethos Energy, 
Andritz Hydro, and Sulzer Turbo Services. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft 
agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission 
Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task 
Professional Services Agreement with Kinectrics, Inc. for generator testing and assessment 
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or 
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll 
call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Roseville, 
and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN= Redding. The motion passed. 

4. NCPA Geothermal Facility - GeothermEx, Inc. First Amendment to CSA - Staff presented 
background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a First 
Amendment to the five-year Consulting Services Agreement with GeothermEx, Inc., increasing the 
not to exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000, with no other changes to the contract terms 
and conditions, for continued use NCPA's Geothermal facility. All purchase orders will be issued 
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

NCPA entered into a five-year Consulting Services Agreement with GeothermEx, Inc. effective 
February 24, 2020, for an amount not to exceed $225,000, for use at the Geothermal Facility. 
NCPA will be working with GeothermEx, Inc. to upgrade to a new software platform. GeothermEx, 
Inc. will also continue to provide NCPA with ongoing modeling support which provides staff with 
critical geothermal reservoir data used in operational decision making. There are not enough 
funds remaining on the agreement for this and future work. NCPA now desires to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement to increase the not-to-exceed amount from 
$225,000 to $1,000,000 to ensure there are sufficient funds for the work detailed above, as well as 
through the remaining contract term. This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any 
expenditure of funds. At the time services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work 
consistent with NCPA procurement policies and procedures. NCPA does not have any 
agreements in place for similar services with additional vendors at this time. A draft Commission 
Staff Report and the draft agreement were available for review. It is recommended to place this 
item on the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Mark Sorensen recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement with GeothermEx, Inc. for geothermal reservoir 
numerical simulations, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the 
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not-to-exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000, for 
continued use at the Geothermal Facility. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, 
Gridley, Lodi, Port of Oakland, Roseville and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN= Palo Alto and Redding. The 
motion passed. 

5. NCPA Geothermal Facility - Steam Field Operations Forecast Report - Staff was seeking a 
recommendation for Commission approval of the 2022 Steam Field Operations Forecast Report, 
including approval regarding the market power price at which to curtail the load at the NCPA 
Geothermal facilities, as the Geothermal Operating Protocol effective July 1, 2022, and remaining 
in effect until replaced by the Commission. 

**No action was taken on this item. After discussion regarding the operating protocol it was 
decided to update the protocol information and bring this item back next month to seek a 
recommendation for Commission approval.** 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 4, 2022 

2 



6. NCPA 2022 Wildfire Mitigation Plan - Staff presented background information and was seeking 
a recommendation for Commission approval of the NCPA 2022 Wildfire Mitigation Plan, with 
updated revisions based on the qualified independent evaluator's recommendations. 

Public Utilities Code, Division 4.1, Chapter 6 Wildfire Mitigation, Code 8387 requires electric 
utilities to assess the risk of catastrophic wildfire posed by a utility's overhead electrical lines and 
equipment. In response to this requirement, NCPA created its Wildfire Mitigation Plan, to reduce 
the risk of NCPA facilities igniting wildfire, including identifying preventative maintenance 
procedures and practices. The NCPA Wildfire Mitigation Plan was approved in the December 5, 
2019 Commission Meeting. 

NCPA contracted with Dudek, a qualified independent evaluator with experience in assessing the 
safe operation of electrical infrastructure, to complete the annual review and assess the 
comprehensiveness of the Wildfire Mitigation Plan. The independent evaluator issued a report 
stating that NCPA's Wildfire Mitigation Plan appropriately addressed all elements required under 
CPUC Section 8387 (b) (2). The independent evaluation and report were completed April 14 2022. 

Work associated with this Project is categorically exempt under Class 1, 3, 4, and 11 Exemptions 
under CEQA guidelines 15301(b), 15303, 15304, and 15311 and is therefore categorically exempt 
from CEQA. Class 1 is the "existing facilities" exemption, which includes the repair, maintenance, 
or minor alteration of existing public structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, involving 
negligible or no expansion of use. Class 3 is installation of small new equipment and facilities in 
small structures; Class 4 is minor alterations in the condition of the land; and, Class 11 is 
construction or placement of minor structures accessory to existing facilities. All necessary 
Federal, State and County notifications will be made before commencing the work. 

A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, for this 
class of work and was filed in Lake and Sonoma Counties, and in Alpine, Calaveras, San Joaquin, 
and Tuolumne Counties. 

Motion: A motion was made by Mike Brozo and seconded by Mark Sorensen recommending 
Commission approval of the NCPA 2022 Wildfire Mitigation Plan, with updated revisions based on 
the qualified independent evaluator's recommendations. A vote was taken by roll call: YES= 
Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, 
Santa Clara, and TIO. The motion passed. 

7. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA- Parker Landscape Development, Inc. First 
Amendment to MTGSA - Staff presented background information and was seeking a 
recommendation for Commission approval of a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement with Parker Landscape Development, Inc. for professional commercial 
landscape services, tree care, and special projects increasing the not to exceed amount to 
$300,000 for continued use at NCPA all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. 

Parker Landscape Development, Inc. is a commercial landscape company with over 40 years of 
experience in landscaping design, construction, and maintenance. Parker Landscaping is 
responsive and works well with the Agency in providing landscape services, maintenance 
recommendations, resolving issues, and water-saving recommendations. 

On April 3, 2018, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with 
Parker Landscape Development, for an amount not to exceed $200,000. During the agreement 
term, there were several unforeseen maintenance events, including; a break in the main irrigation 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 4, 2022 

3 



line, irrigation repairs from the fence project, tree and curb removal for the electric vehicle 
charging stations, and irrigation line repair from the fiber cable installation. Due to these 
unplanned events, an increase to the contract is required for continued services through the term 
of the agreement. This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. A 
draft Commission Staff Report, draft First Amendment, and the original agreement were available 
for review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Parker Landscape Development, 
Inc. for professional commercial landscape services, tree care, and special projects increasing the 
not to exceed amount to $300,000 for continued use at NCPA all facilities owned and/or operated 
by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES 
= Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Roseville, 
Santa Clara, and TIO. ABSTAIN= Redding. The motion passed. 

8. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - TPR Enterprises, LLC dba EcoEngineers MTCSA
Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission 
approval of a five-year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with TPR Enterprises, LLC dba 
EcoEngineers for Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) fuel pathway application, verification, and 
validation consulting services, with a not to exceed amount of $350,000, for use by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued following NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. 

NCPA and 12 NCPA Members are currently registered reporting entities for the California Air 
Resources Board's (CARB's) Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) program. The LCFS program is 
designed to decrease the carbon intensity of California's transportation fuel pool and incentivize 
low-carbon and renewable fuel alternatives, including electricity. NCPA and participating Members 
are able to generate LCFS credits by reporting the use of alternative fuels, including electric 
vehicle (EV) charging at owned EV chargers, and NCPA Members with residential customers 
generate LCFS credits associated with an estimate of residential EV charging. LCFS credits can 
then be sold and the proceeds used to fund programs and projects that support transportation 
electrification. 

Participants in the LCFS program can increase the number of LCFS credits generated by creating 
fuel pathways with a lower carbon-intensity (Cl) than average grid power in California, or by using 
a liquid fuel cleaner than gasoline or diesel. NCPA and Members have created, or are considering 
creating, fuel pathways for fuels such as compressed natural gas (CNG), renewable natural gas 
(RNG), and large hydroelectric power. CARB requires applications for certain types of fuel 
pathways to include a life-cycle analysis and modeling of carbon-intensity. For approved fuel 
pathways, CARB requires certain fuel types to undergo independent validation and verification 
processes. 

NCPA issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) LR 2105 on December 17, 2021 to solicit proposals 
from qualified consultants providing LCFS fuel pathway application, validation, and verification 
consulting services. NCPA created a revie~ group for the RFP consisting of staff from NCPA and 
NCPA Member entities, and this review group evaluated and scored timely proposals submitted to 
the RFP. Seven vendors responded to the RFP by the deadline of January 18, 2022. Based on 
the scoring review group's evaluation, two vendors were selected to provide fuel pathway 
application, validation, and verification consulting services, and one additional vendor was 
selected to provide only fuel pathway validation and verification consulting services. The review 
group selected EcoEngineers based on its experience, work plan, and costs. This enabling 
agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. Purchase orders referencing the 
terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 4, 2022 

4 



procedures. NCPA is also entering into agreements with SCS Engineers and Tetra Tech, Inc. for 
similar services. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement were available for 
review. It is recommended to place this item on the Commission Consent Calendar. 

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Khaly Nguyen recommending 
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task 
Consulting Services Agreement with TPR Enterprises, LLC, dba EcoEngineers ("EcoEngineers") 
for Low Carbon Fuel Standard fuel pathway application, validation, and verification consulting 
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $350,000 over five years, for use by NCPA, NCPA Members, 
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, 
Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN= 
TID. The motion passed. 

9. Approval of Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 - Staff presented background information and 
was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 
(WAPA 2022 REC Program) between Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) and Northern 
California Power Agency (NCPA). 

Certain resources in the CVP Project are RPS eligible. Western utilizes a voluntary REC program 
to distribute RECs to Base Resource customers. This Letter of Agreement (LOA) sets forth rules 
and requirements for the program. The LOA is renewed each year. 

By June 1, 2022, Base Resource customers will have to elect to participate in the CY 2022 WAPA 
REC Program. NCPA has participated in the program on behalf of the Pool Members. Palo Alto 
has elected to participate in the program separately. The cost for participation is limited to REC 
transfer costs, and other administrative costs passed-through by Western which is historically less 
than $10,000 each year. 

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Sorensen and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending 
Commission approval of the 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement, and to authorize the 
General Manager of NCPA to execute the 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement on behalf of 
NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 
approved by NCPA's General Counsel. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, 
Gridley, Lodi, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, and Port of Oakland. ABSTAIN= Redding, Roseville, 
Santa Clara, and TID. The motion passed. 

10. Approval of San Jose Clean Energy Services Agreement - Staff will present and seek a 
recommendation for approval of a Services Agreement between San Jose Clean Energy and 
Northern California Power Agency for wholesale energy services. 

**This item was pulled from the agenda. Negotiations are still in progress for this agreement. This 
item will be brought back at a later time to seek a recommendation for Commission approval.** 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

11. New Business Opportunities - Staff will provide an update regarding new business 
opportunities. 

SJCE RFP for Wholesale Energy Services - NCPA currently provides a variety of wholesale 
energy services to SJCE. The SJCE Power Management Services Agreement terminates on 
August 31, 2022. SJCE issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) seeking wholesale energy services 
from third party suppliers. NCPA responded to SJCE's RFP by submitting a proposal to continue 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 4, 2022 

5 



its supply of certain wholesale energy services, including CAISO Scheduling Agency services. 
NCPA has been short listed in SJCE's RFP process. 

NCPA's Proposal summary for the RFP includes the services listed below: 

• SC Agent services for scheduling 
• Load forecasting 
• Compliance reporting (Resource Adequacy) 
• Performance reporting and deal capture 
• Dispatch and operations 
• Settlement validation 
• Management of CRRs 
• Development of risk management reports 

Other key terms in the proposal include an initial term of three years with an option to extend the 
term for an additional three two-year terms, and compensation. The draft proposal for the services 
provided is for a $733,466 annual fee, with a 3% per year escalation, which would be $2.26 million 
during the initial term. NCPA has been initially awarded an offer subject to further negotiation. 

Staff is working on a draft agreement focusing on key terms such as indemnification and 
insurance, scope of services, and environmental requirements. This agreement will be discussed 
and reviewed between both parties. The final draft of the agreement will be presented to the 
Facilities Committee seeking a recommendation for Commission approval. 

NCPA Renewables RFP Update 

Recent Proposals 

• 

• 

• 

Calpine Geothermal Offer (Geysers) 
- Term: 1 O years commencing 1/1/2025 
- Volume: 50 MW base 7x24; potentially up to an additional 50 MW 

Price: To Be Discussed 
- All other terms per the term sheet 

Clearway Renew LLC (Victory Pass/ Arica PV + BESS) 
- Term: 20 years 

Product: 69.5 MW PV plus 15 MW RA only BESS 
Price: Detail provided on NCPA Connect 

- Estimated COD: June 2024 
Calpine BESS Offer 

Project: Bear Canyon and West Ford Flat BESS 
- Size: 13 MW/ 52 MWh and 25 MW/ 100 MWh 
- Term: 15 Years 
- Product: Full Toll or RA Only 

Price: Detail provided on NCPA Connect 

12. NCPA Geothermal Unit 3 Battery Energy Storage System (BESS)- Staff presented 
background information regarding the development of a proposed battery energy storage system 
at the NCPA Geo Plant 2. 

NCPA's geothermal facilities are not exporting at full line capacity due to declining steam 
pressures in the geothermal steam reservoir. NCPA staff is assessing a battery energy storage 
system that could utilize available capacity on the NCPA Geo 230kV transmission line. The Geo 
Plant 2 contains Units 3 and 4. Plant 2's original total capacity is ~110 MW. NCPA retired Unit 3 in 
2010, due to resource changes. Unit 4 now exports ~40 MW. NCPA has approximately 70 MW of 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 4, 2022 

6 



available capacity on the Fulton transmission line. The development of a proposed battery energy 
storage system at the NCPA Geo Plant 2 will be broken into three phases. 

Project Phases 
• Phase 1 - Assessment/Feasibility 

• Phase 1.1 - Technical Feasibility/Preliminary Project Cost Estimate 
• Phase 1.2 - Market Analysis/Modeling 

• Phase 2 - Detailed Engineering/Permitting 
• Phase 3 - Construction/Commissioning 

Power Engineers was hired to perform preliminary engineering and budgeting for the proposed 
BESS at the NCPA Geo Plant 2 in Phase 1.1. Project deliverables included MCE Level 5 
complete project cost estimate by Phase, a proposed 1 line diagram, and site map showing the 
proposed project. 

Geo Plant 2 BESS Assumptions 
• 20 MWh/80 MW Size ( 4 Hour Batteries) 

• Largest size based on available area inside existing Plant Yard. 
• Tesla Megapack (LFP- Lithium-ion Phosphate) 

• The LFP batteries have a higher energy density but release significantly less heat 
(approximately 50% less) than the metal-based batteries 

The proposed project cost estimate is approximately $32,708,286 which includes all phases of the 
project including commissioning. Proposed economic scenarios for Phase 1.2 were provided and 
discussed. Potential benefits of BESS at the Geo Plant 2 are listed below: 

Potential Benefits of BESS at Geo Plant 2 
• Flexibility to meet market demands 
• Reduced RA cost to Members 
• Capitalizing on available transmission capacity 
• Cheaper alternative to Calpine Geysers BESS 
• Enhanced renewable energy integration 
• Positive public image for the Agency 

Staff, unless otherwise directed, plans on moving onto Phase 1.2 and retaining the appropriate 
market model analysis consultant to further develop the economics of the Geo BESS. 

13. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates - Plant Staff provided an informational update on 
current plant activities and conditions. 

Hydro - Collierville (CV) Power House was 100% available during the month of April, and New 
Spicer Meadows Power House was at 100% availability as well. New Spicer Meadows storage 
increased by 22,000 acre feet at 24% month over month from 91,000 acre feet to 113,000 acre 
feet. Last year's peak was at 94,600 acre feet. The California snow water content is 34% of 
average for this time of year in Central California. Current regulatory and resource agency 
activities included working through USGS annual review comments, revising all NCPA EAPs for 
CAOES, held USFS Annual Meeting, and held USFS McKays Soil Relocation Project meeting. 
Current operations and maintenance activities during the month included 230 kV ROW line patrol, 
and completion of the FM Global site inspections of CV and McKays. 

CTs -April was a fairly quiet month for the CTs. CT1 had 11 actual starts, bringing the FYTD total 
to 200, of O forecasted. CT2 had 1 start this month of 1 forecasted, bringing the FYTD total to 48 
starts. Alameda Unit 1 is still in a forced outage due to an oil system leak. Alameda Unit 2 had a 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 4, 2022 

7 



planned outage for AMPS work. CT1 Lodi has used 25.4 ( 13%) hours of 200 allowed based on a 
calendar year. CT1 Alameda Diesel Unit 1 has used 12.8 hours of 20, and Unit 2, 10.8 hours of 
20, based on a rolling year. Staff reviewed the CAISO Commitment Runs for April 2022. 

Geo - There were no safety incidents to report for the month of April. Vegetation for the month 
included maintaining fire breaks around transmission towers, and clearing brush around the Bear 
Canyon pump stations. The average estimated net generation level for the month was 93.8 MW. 
Total estimated net generation was 67.6 GWh. Actual FY 2022 net generation is 672.9 GWh YTD. 
The FY 2022 Net Generation Forecast has been updated to 800.8 GWh. Maintenance activities 
continue for the November 2022 Plant 2 overhaul. Routine plant and Steam Field maintenance 
continued during the month. The Plant 1 Fire System Modification Project continued with repairing 
underground piping and began commissioning testing. 

14. Planning and Operations Update -

• Resource Integrations In Progress 
Camp Far West (SVP) - Integration Completed 

- Antelope Solar (NCPA)-TBD 
Deer Creek - June/July 2022 

- Tulare Solar - Commercial Operations Achieved 
- Sandborne Storage - 04 2022 

• Summer 2022 Readiness 
Capacity Scarcity 
Hydrology 

- Strong Forward Curves 
Reliability 
Credit I Cash Flow 

14. Next Meeting - The next Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for June 1, 2022. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:07 pm by the Committee Chair. 

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 4, 2022 

8 



Northern California Power Agency 
May 4, 2022 Facilities Committee Meeting 

Attendance List 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary. 

MEMBER NAME 

ALAMEDA / 
BART 

BIGGS ✓ 
GRIDLEY ✓ 

HEALDSBURG 

LODI / 
LOMPOC 

PALO ALTO / 
PLUMAS-SIERRA REC / 
PORT OF OAKLAND / 

REDDING ✓ 
ROSEVILLE / 

SANTA CLARA / 
TID ✓ 

UKIAH 



Northern California Power Agency 
May 4, 2022 Facilities Committee Meeting 

Attendance List 

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by 
members of the public is voluntary. 

NAME AFFILIATION 

<Jr 
11 

I t 

II 

I t 

( \ 

l r 

SkC-vvvl ~ ivt,7tve- \ \ 

I l 

I I 

I l 



Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26 2022 

SUBJECT: April 30, 2022 Financial Report (unaudited} 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth ~ETHOD OF SELECTION: 

Treasurer-Controller N/A 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members lgJ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 168:22 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



April 30, 2022 Financial Report (unaudited) 
May 26, 2022 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Financial Report for month ending April 30, 2022. 

NOTICE: 

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported 
herein, will be approved at the May 26, 2022 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following 
page is a summary of those disbursements. 

Prior to the Chairman's call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon 
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements. 

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited April 30, 2022 financial reports are also 
included. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

i~;ARD rh 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
- April 30, 2022 Financial Report 

SR: 168:22 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

Schedule of Disbursements 
(Unaudited) 

For the Month of April 2022 

Operations: 

Geothermal $ 
Hydroelectric 

CT#1 Combustion Turbines 

CT#2 STIG 

Lodi Energy Center 

NCPA Operating 

Total $ 

1,351,818 

3,371,445 

97,217 

446,282 

2,385,684 

39,079,932 

46,732,378 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 83% 

This Actual Year FY2022 
Month To-Date Budget %Used 

GENERATION RESOURCES 
NCPA Plants 

Hydroelectric 
Other Plant Cost $ 1,637,785 $ 17,264,108 $ 20,659,536 84% 
Debt Service (Net) 2,785,136 27,851,364 33,421,637 83% 

Annual Budget Cost 4,422,921 45,115,472 54,081,173 83% 

Geothermal 
Other Plant Cost 3,359,197 29,500,138 35,708,919 83% 
Debt Service (Net) 412,788 4,127,878 4,953,453 83% 

Annual Budget Cost 3,771,985 33,628,016 40,662,372 83% 

Combustion Turbine No. 1 
Fuel 201,831 2,054,249 791,613 260% (a) 
Other Plant Cost (1,866,998) 4,491,776 6,263,071 72% (b) 

Annual Budget Cost p ,665,167) 6,546,025 7,054,684 93% 

Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig) 
Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 57,706 1,562,046 1,265,369 123% (c) 
Other Plant Cost 164,777 1,705,504 2,649,010 64% 
Debt Service (Net) 420,667 4,206,667 5,048,000 83% 

Annual Budget Cost 643,150 7,474,217 8,962,379 83% 

Lodi Energy Center 
Fuel 160,888 52,904,717 31,029,301 170% (c) 
Other Plant Cost 2,194,039 41,799,308 31,775,721 132% (c) 
Debt Service (Net) 2,197,050 21,970,497 26,008,267 84% 

Annual Budget Cost 4,551,977 116,674,522 88,813,289 131% 

Member Resources - Energy 5,801,084 67,553,378 67,416,504 100% (d) 
Member Resources - Natural Gas 4,880,753 2,981,422 164% (c) 
Western Resources 2,708,725 19,037,926 27,302,082 70% 
Market Power Purchases 1,868,712 39,111,668 17,224,803 227% (d} 
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 47,455,153 803,505,604 282,244,061 285% (e) 
Net GHG Obligations 2,354,800 1,276,784 N/A 

69,558,540 1,145,882,381 598,019,553 192% 

TRANSMISSION 
Independent System Operator 

Grid Management Charge 269,347 4,651,134 2,417,506 192% (f) 
Wheeling Access Charge 14,154,636 114,262,393 119,362,830 96% (g) 
Ancillary Services 747,414 9,620,997 3,846,319 250% (h) 
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) (778,354) p 8,303,036) 946,016 -1935% (i) 

14,393,043 110,231,488 126,572,671 87% 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Legislative & Regulatory 

Legislative Representation 165,493 1,413,405 2,101,373 67% 
Regulatory Representation 60,691 526,398 633,940 83% 
Western Representation 46,789 459,749 693,937 66% 
Customer Programs 37,637 389,265 481,257 81% 
Judicial Action 904,702 300,000 302% U) 

Power Management 
System Control & Load Dispatch 604,133 5,716,819 7,427,479 77% 
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 175,585 2,233,371 2,810,687 79% 
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 36,978 332,471 423,181 79% 
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 79,516 797,924 974,600 82% 
Gas Purchase Program 3,795 45,441 80,779 56% 
Market Purchase Project 4,715 73,744 115,897 64% 

Management Services continued on next page 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF 
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2022 

This Actual Year FY 2022 
Month To-Date Budget 

Energy Risk Management 10,834 159,816 198,417 
Settlements 45,673 650,412 975,283 
Integrated Systems Support 2,959 234,727 307,165 
Participant Pass Through Costs 234,436 1,270,340 1,717,765 
Support Services 10,532 1,733,121 

1,519,766 16,941,705 19,241,760 

TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 85,471,349 1,273,055,574 743,833,984 

LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE 
Plant ISO Energy Sales 10,798,928 153,014,724 101,639,828 
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 5,943,277 46,768,407 34,352,521 
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 13,535,783 111,788,992 83,030,430 
Revenue from Customers 851,603 86,365,662 
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,592,010 33,171,687 12,614,852 
Western Resource Energy Sales 1,214,864 16,579,701 19,296,646 
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 7,239,788 383,817,928 
Ancillary Services Sales 404,762 8,074,121 4,317,168 
Transmission Sales 9,198 91,980 110,376 
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 2,652,069 50,634,664 41,468,679 

44,242,282 890,307,866 296,830,500 

NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 41,229,067 $ 382,747,708 $ 447,003,484 

(a) Increases in costs are driven by greater than budgeted generation at CT1 (169% as of 4/30/22), higher prices per mmBtu, 
and higher fuel transportation charges. 

{b) CT1 completed a planned maintenance outage in December 2021 and was billed in January 2022 for those costs. Those costs were 
funded from Maintenance Reserve per the approved FY 2022 Budget. The entry to reclass expenses for the amount covered 
by Maintenance Reserve was made during April, resulting in a net negative monthly expense for CT1. 

(c) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 131% of budgeted MWhs and 
LEC is at 129% of budgeted MWhs at 4/30/22. Fuel costs, CA ISO charges, GHG allowance costs, and variable costs 
have increased as a result of increased generation. 

(d} Increase due to higher than anticipated volume of market purchases and price per MWh for those purchases. 

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted energy purchases and energy sales related to CCAs (East Bay Community Energy, San Jose Clean 
Energy, and Sonoma Clean Power) and participants. 

(f) Increase due to unbudgeted grid management costs, net neutrality charges and other costs related to CCAs 
(which is offset by revenue from customers) and participants. 

(g) Wheeling Access Charge (WAC) rates increased approximately 20% over budgeted amounts. 

(h} Increase due to unbudgeted ancillary services costs related to CCAs, which is offset by revenue from customers, as well 
as greater than expected spinning, non-spinning, reg up and down obligation settlements for the NCPA pool. 

(i) Net credit due to revenue from unbudgeted congestion revenue rights and unbudgeted real-time settlement credits. 

U) Budgeted costs are partially offset by available encumbrances from the prior years. Additional increases relate to unbudgeted costs 
for privileged and confidential legal matters related to a multiyear litigation. 

(k) Higher plant revenues due to higher generation. 

(I) Higher revenues due to higher energy prices and higher than budgeted contract energy. 

(m) Higher revenue from CCA results from increased charges for energy purchases, grid management, and ancillary services 
that are billed and settled with customers monthly. 

(n) Increase primarily due to greater than expected spinning and reg up capacity settlements revenue from Hydro plant. 

(o) Increase due primarily to higher than anticipated GHG credits and natural gas transfer credits from LEC participants. 
Increases are due to higher than budgeted LEC generation. 

83% 

% Used 
81% 
67% 
76% 
74% 
NIA 

88% 

171% 

151% (k) 
136% (I) 
135% (I} 
N/A (m) 

263% (I) 
86% 
N/A (e) 

187% (n) 
83% 
122% (o) 

300% 

86% 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Participants 
Other 

Interest receivable 
Inventory and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 
Investment in associated company 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 
Asset retirement obligations 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

$ 

$ 

April 30, 
2022 2021 

(in thousands) 

30,603 $ 13,596 
35,164 45,838 

1,052 
1,164 2,322 

210 285 
8,661 6,056 
4,694 5,018 

80,496 74,167 

56,576 54,800 
192,734 202,048 

546 639 

249,856 257,487 

1,500,092 1,495,177 
(1,073,267) (1,043,124) 

426,825 452,053 

193,927 214,212 
265 265 

951,369 998,184 

871 13,847 
18,099 16,936 
61,784 61,901 

80,754 92,684 

1,032,123 $ 1,090,868 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Member advances 
Operating reserves 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accrued interest payable 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 
Operating reserves and other deposits 
Interest rate swap liability 
Asset retirement obligations 
Long-term debt, net 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION 

$ 

$ 

April 30, 
2022 2021 

(in thousands) 

42,513 $ 34,095 
993 993 

25,846 23,675 
45,450 43,035 

8,662 9,916 
123,464 111,714 

62,959 63,003 
148,564 142,364 

16,510 
69,420 67,885 

515,501 567,235 
796,444 856,997 

919,908 968,711 

87,411 86,587 
2,187 4,737 

89,598 91,324 

(30,722) (31,864) 
43,473 47,598 

9,866 15,099 

22,617 30,833 

1,032,123 $ 1,090,868 



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

UNAUDITED 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Participants 

Other Third-Party 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 
Operations 
Transmission 
Depreciation 
Maintenance 
Administrative and general 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

NET OPERATING REVENUES 

NON OPERA TING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Other 

TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, Beginning of year 

NET POSITION, Period ended 

$ 

$ 

For the Ten Months Ended April 30, 
2022 2021 

(in thousands) 

424,381 $ 325,990 

297,498 290,018 

721,879 616,008 

336,815 296,931 
117,121 68,482 
172,769 155,033 
25,191 25,080 
21,696 20,236 
24,319 18,856 

697,911 584,618 

23,968 31,390 

(20,075) (24,958) 
977 (947) 

10,022 5,257 
(9,076) (20,648) 

(16,058) (11,664) 

(3,845) (8,637) 

(5,011) (9,559) 

27,628 40,392 

22,617 $ 30,833 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 

Other 
Interest receivable 
Inventory and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 
Due from Agency and other programs* 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 
Interest receivable 

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 

ELECTRIC PLANT 
Electric plant in service 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 

OTHER ASSETS 
Regulatory assets 
Investment in associated company 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Excess cost on refunding of debt 
Pension and OPEB deferrals 
Asset retirement obligations 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

• Eliminated in Combination 

Geothermal 

$ - $ 

1,514 
558 

16,247 
18,319 

854 
32,454 

123 
33,431 

577,124 
(549,207) 

27,917 

(1,707) 

77,960 

604 

61,424 
62,028 

$ 139,988 $ 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple 
Capital CT 

H~droelectric Facilities No. One 

- $ I $ I $ 

1,572 332 284 
825 68 99 

6,564 2,850 5,295 
8_,961 3,251 5,679 

9,715 1 

37,224 3,477 
62 

_j7,001 3,478 

395,575 64,865 37,224 
(298,548} {56,8292 (35,317) 

__JJ__,027 8,036 1,907 

112,565 2,434 

265,554 17,199 7,586 

(434) (210) 

168 
(434) (42) 

265,120 $ 17,157 $ 7,586 $ 

April 30, 2022 

Purchased Associated 
Lodi Transmission Power& Member Other 

Eneri:;x Center No. One Transmission Services A~enc;i: Combined 

461 $ $ - $ 962 $ 29,178 $ 30,603 
35,164 35,164 

805 359 1,164 
70 140 210 

4,959 8,661 
697 80 2,367 4,694 

6,334 7,076 7,070 (51,436) 

12,451 7,951 8,112 15,772 80,496 

4,975 19,801 21,230 56,576 
37,621 19,787 62,171 192,734 

72 289 546 
42,668 39,588 83,690 249,856 

410,254 7,736 1,024 6,290 1,500,092 
(120,810} (7,736} (680) (4,140} (1 ,073,267} 
289,444 344 2,150 426,825 

29,330 51,305 193,927 
265 265 

373,893 47,539 8,456 153,182 951,369 

911 871 
18,099 18,099 

192 61,784 
1,103 18,099 80,754 

374,996 $ $ 47,539 $ 8,456 $ 171,281 $ 1,032,123 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 
April 30, 2022 

GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal Hl droelectric Facilities No. One Ener!!:Y Center Transmission Transmission Services A11encl Combined 
LIABD.,ITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 291 $ 246 $ - $ I $ I $ $ 28,916 $ $ 13,058 $ 42,513 

Member advances 791 202 993 

Operating reseives 4,553 250 617 2,869 17,557 25,846 
Current portion oflong-tenn debt 4,030 24,175 4,365 12,880 45,450 
Accrued interest payable 60 3,013 137 5,452 8,662 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 9,725 27,684 5,119 2,870 35,890 28,916 202 13,058 123,464 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Net pension and OPEB liability 62,959 62,959 

Operating reseives and other deposits 1,500 20,930 475 39,659 2,315 83,685 148,564 

Interest rate swap liability 
Asset retirement obligations 69,060 168 192 69,420 

Long-term debt, net 6,785 204,636 10,426 293,654 515,501 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABD.,ITIES 77,345 225,566 10,594 294,321 39,659 2,315 146,644 796,444 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 87,070 253,250 15,713 2,870 330,211 68,575 2,517 159,702 919,908 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Regulatory credits 38,332 3,845 787 2,132 38,865 368 3,082 87,411 

Pension and OPEB deferrals 2,187 2,187 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 38,332 3,845 787 2 132 38,865 368 5,269 89,598 

NETPOSIDON 
Net investment in capital assets 3,861 (25,317) (4,917) (4,349) (30,722) 
Restricted 3,125 15,304 3,341 12,703 9,000 43,473 
Unrestricted 7,600 18,038 2,233 2,584 (2,434~ po,036) 5,571 6,310 9,866 

TOTAL NET POSITION 14,586 8,025 657 2,584 5,920 (21,036) 5,571 6,310 22,617 
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 139,988 $ 265,120 $ 17,157 $ 7,586 $ 374,996 $ - $ 47,539 $ 8,456 $ 171,281 $ 1,032,123 



OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 

(000's omitted) 

For the Ten Months Ended April 30, 2022 

GENERA TING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES 

Multiple Purchased Associated 
Capital CT Lodi Power& Member Other 

Geothermal H~droelectric Facilities No. One Enert,',l Center Transmission Transmission Services A~enc~ Combined 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Participants $ (1,207) $ 23,997 $ 3,435 $ 3,172 $ 13,717 $ $ 361,314 $ 18,387 $ 1,566 $ 424,381 

Other Third-Party 42,623 28,188 1,848 4,604 84,147 134,044 2,044 297,498 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 41,416 52,185 5,283 7,776 97,864 495,358 20,431 1,566 721,879 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased power 491 3,839 145 622 2,747 328,971 336,815 
Operations 14,744 3,663 2,035 2,776 79,701 3,955 10,247 117,121 
Transmission 308 302 10 20 521 171,604 4 172,769 
Depreciation 3,120 7,990 1,849 249 11,792 45 146 25,191 
Maintenance 8,726 5,043 457 2,082 5,312 76 21,696 
Administrative and general S,549 6,598 626 979 4,733 7,203 (1,369) 24,319 
Intercompany (sales) purchases, net• !686) 231 49 81 333 {8 

TOTAL OPERA TING EXPENSES 32,252 27,666 5,171 6,809 105,139 504,530 17,567 p,223} 697,911 

NET OPERATING REVENUES 9,164 24,519 112 967 (7,275) (9,172) 2,864 2,789 23,968 

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 
Interest expense (380) (8,448) (57) (11,190) (20,075) 

Interest income 162 170 20 30 232 479 38 (154) 977 
Other 800 1 2,000 7,705 (926) 172 270 10,022 

TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES 582 !8,277) 1,963 30 (3,253) !447} 210 116 (9,076} 

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (1,996) (11,225) (2,365) (472) (16,058) 

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 378 (490} 484 (172~ 459 (875! (3,308~ (321! (3,845) 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 8,128 4,527 194 825 (10,541) (10,494) (234) 2,584 (5,011) 

NET PO SIDON, Beginning of year 6,458 3,498 463 1,759 16,461 {10,542) 5,805 3,726 27,628 

NET POSITION, Period ended $ 14,586 $ 8,025 $ 657 $ 2,584 $ 5,920 $ - $ \21,036) $ 5,571 $ 6,310 $ 22,617 

* Eliminated in Combination 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS 
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Status 

CURRENT 

PAST DUE: 

1 -30 

31 -60 

61 -90 

91 -120 

Over 120 Days 

April 30, 2022 

Participant / Customer Description 

Merced Irrigation District April 2022 ARB 

Calpine Geysers Effluent Adj (Mar'18 - Dec'19) 

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) 

** Denotes items paid/applied after April 30, 2022. 

* Billed in July 2020. 

AR FY 2022.xlsxApr Rpt 2022 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

835,247 

36,174 tt 

292,665 * 

1,164,086 



PUBLIC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended April 30, 2022 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth ~.e:.::_.. ~ 0 .. METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Treasurer-Controller NIA 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 169:22 

\\ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended April 30, 2022 
May 26, 2022 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve the 
Treasurer's Report for April 30, 2022. 

BACKGROUND: 

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California 
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for 
your information and acceptance. 

Cash - At month end cash totaled $8,163,385 of which approximately $53,853 was applicable to 
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $4,502 to Debt Service and $8,105,030 to Operations and 
other. 

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This 
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase 
agreement. 

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $296,420,958 at month 
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $285,813,532. 

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 0.967% with a bond 
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 0.981 %. Investments with a maturity greater than one year 
totaled $150,821,000. April maturities totaled $14 million and monthly receipts totaled 
$208 million. During the month $10 million was invested. 

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they 
occur. 

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills increased 33 basis points from 0.52% 
to 0.85% and rates on one-year T-Bills increased 48 basis points from 1.55% to 2.03%. 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of April 30, 2022 are in 
compliance with NCPA's investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment 
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

R~H~WA~~ 
General Manager 

Attachment: Treasurer's Report April 30, 2022 

SR: 169:22 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

APRIL 30, 2022 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 

CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 

INTEREST RA TENIELD ANALYSIS 

INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS 

PAGE 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

APPENDIX 



NCPAFUNDS 
Operating $ 
Special Deposits 
Construction 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

$ 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

Cash & Investment Balance 
April 30, 2022 

CASH INVESTMENTS 

8,090,812 $ 86,659,465 
12,967 99,723 

1,251 5,150,497 
4,502 43,024,065 

53,853 161,487,208 
8,163,385 $ 296,420,958 

$ 

$ 

Portfolio Investments at Market Value $ 

NOTE A - Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

1 

TOTAL PERCENT 

94,750,277 31.11% 
112,690 0.04% 

5,151,748 1.69% 
43,028,567 14.13% 

161,541,061 53.03% 
304,584,343 100.00% 

285,813,532 



OPS/CONS TR 

NCPAFUNDS 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

RECEIPTS 
INTEREST 
(NOTE B) 

Cash Activity Summary 
April 30, 2022 

INVESTMENTS 
(NOTE A) OPS/CONSTR 

EXPENDITURES 
INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ 

(NOTE B) FUND TRANSFERS 

CASH 
INCREASE/ 
(DECREASE) 

Operating $ 40,746,374 $ 111,570 $ 11,743,380 $ (22,581,059) $ (725,472) $ (24,529,651) $ 4,765,142 

Special Deposits 525,170 (20,233,881) (99,723) 19,807,651 (783) 

Construction 
Debt Service 166,336,387 655 (176,305,850) (4,145,104) 4,041,147 (10,072,764) 

Special & Reserve 114,952 2,011,018 ~3,392,843~ ~4,660, 787~ 680,853 {5,246,807~ 
$ 207,607,931 $ 226,523 $ 13,755,053 $ (222,513,633) $ (9,631,086) $ $ (10,555,212) 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments. 

2 



NCPAFUNDS 
Operating 
Special Deposits 
Construction 
Debt Service 
Special & Reserve 

Less Non- Cash Activity 

Northern California Power Agency 
Treasurer's Report 

Investment Activity Summary 
April 30, 2022 

(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) 
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) 

PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE 

$ 725,472 $ (11,743,380) $ 3,194 $ 184 

99,723 
751 

4,145,104 (655) 7,202 

4,660,787 (2,011,018} (15,273) (95} 
$ 9,631,086 $ (13,755,053) $ (4,126) $ 89 

Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale 

Net Change in Investment--Before Non-Cash Activity 

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value. 

3 

INVESTMENTS 
INCREASE/ 

TRANSFERS {DECREASE) 

$ $ (11,014,530) 
99,723 

751 
4,151,651 
2,634,401 

$ $ (4,128,004} 

4,037 

$ (4,123,967) 



OVERALL COMBINED 

OPERATING FUNDS: 

PROJECTS: 

Geothermal 
Capital Facilities 
Hydroelectric 
Lodi Energy Center 

KEY INTEREST RATES 

Fed Fds (Overnight) 
T-Bills (90da.) 
Agency Disc (90da.) 
T-Bills (lyr.) 
Agency Disc (lyr.) 
T-Notes (3yr.) 

Northern California Power Agency 
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis 

April 30, 2022 

WEIGHTED 

AVERAGE 

INTEREST 

RATE 

0.967% 

1.134% 

1.437% 

0.363% 

0.654% 

0.625% 

BOND 

EQUIVALENT 

YIELD 

0.981% 

1.096% 

1.331% 

0.369% 

0.715% 

0.567% 

INTEREST RATES 

3.00 
2.75 
2.50 
2.25 
2.00 

PRIOR 
1.75 
1.50 

CURRENT YEAR 1.25 
1.00 
0.75 

0.33% 0.07% 
0.50 
0.25 

0.85% 0.01% 0.00 
Jan Nov Dec Mar Apr 

1.00% 0.05% 
2.03% 0.05% 
2.18% 0.07% 
2.79% 0.35% --+-T-Bills (90 days) - FED FUNDS 

--6-T-Bills(1 yr) ~ T-Notes (3 yr) 

4 



0-7 

Trl!e Days 

US Government Agencies $ $ 
Corporate Bonds (MTN) 
Municipal Bonds 
US Bank Trust Money Market 24 
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 62,551 
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 1 
U.S.Treasury Market Acct.* 8,950 
U.S.Treasury BilVNote 
Certificates of Deposit 
Total Dollars $ 71,526 
Total Percents 23.51% 

Northern California Power Agency 
Total Portfolio 

Investment Maturities Analysis 
April 30, 2022 

8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 

Da~s Days Da~s Days Years 

11,375 $ $ $ $ 44,605 
1,000 1,000 5,950 10,550 65,004 
1,000 30,045 

50,195 1,875 
10 750 500 

$63,580 $1,750 $5,950 $ 10,550 $142,029 
20.90% 0.58% 1.96% 3.47% 46.69% 

6-10 

Years Total 

$ 7,072 $ 63,052 
83,504 

1,720 32,765 
24 

62,551 
1 

8,950 
52,070 

1,260 
$8,792 $ 304,177 

2.89% 100.00% 

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands. 

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully 
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by US Bank is invested nightly in fully collateralized U.S. Treasury 
Securities. 

Portfolio Composition 

0.41% 

10.77%/ 

■ US Government Agencies ■ Corporate Bonds (MTN) 

■ US Bank Trust Money Market ■ Investment Trusts (LAIF) 

■ U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * ■ U.S.Treasury Bill/Note 

5 

Municipal Bonds 

Investment Trusts (CAMP) 

■ Certificates of Deposit 

.46% 

Percent 

20.73% 
27.46% 
10.77% 
0.01% 

20.56% 
0.00% 
2.94% 

17.12% 
0.41% 

100.00% 



Note: 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Detail Report Of Investments 

APPENDIX 

This appendix has been prepared to comply with 

Government Code section 53646. 



>perating 

ssuer 

ocal Agency lnvestm 

irst American Govt. 

rs Bank 

-alifornia Asset Mgm 

rs Bank 

.merican Honda Finan 

hevron Corp. 

isa Inc. 

oyota Motor Credit 

xxon Mobil Corporal 

::>hn Deere Capital C 

erkshire Hathaway I 

rnited Parcel Servic 

rnited Parcel Servic 

i/almart, Inc. 

ank of NY Mellon Co 

lershey Company 

ommonwealth of Mass 

rs Bank 

licrosoft Corp. 

P Morgan 

ast Side Union High 

.A St Dept of Wt.r Re 

rs Bank, N.A. 

tate of Louisiana 

lashville Met Gov · 

ity of Phoenix /\Z. 

~sconsin Dept Trans 

let Life Glob Fundin 

ast Side Union High 

ederal National Mtg 

P Morgan 

oyota Motor Credit 

ederal Home Loan Ba 

ederal Home Loan Ba 

ederal Farm Credit 

rnited Health Group 

ank of America Corp 

let Govt Nashville & 

an Diego CA Unif Sc 

Trustee / Custodian 

LAIF 

USBGC 

USB 

CMP 

USB 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

UBOC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 

21,037,940 

22,106 

8,090,812 

490 

10,000 

500,000 

500,000 

400,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

600,000 

500,000 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

250,000 

500,000 

375,000 

1,000,000 

1,100,000 

500,000 

1,700,000 

250,000 

250,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

0.315 

0.002 

0.001 

0.050 

04/30/2022 

Purchase 
Date 

10/19/2018 

0.050 04/07/2022 

2.600 06/12/2018 

2.355 03/21/2018 

2.800 08/03/2018 

2.700 08/03/2018 

2.726 08/03/2018 

2.800 06/12/2018 

2.750 03/21/2018 

2.500 05/15/2018 

2.500 09/21/2018 

2.550 07/31/2019 

3.500 05/15/2018 

3.375 06/12/2018 

0.508 07/09/2020 

3.400 08/03/2018 

2.000 09/20/2018 

3.875 02/15/2019 

0.820 10/29/2020 

0.560 08/06/2020 

2.800 02/07/2020 

0.697 02/25/2021 

0.610 02/18/2021 

0.959 08/25/2020 

0.774 07/30/2020 

0.950 03/04/2022 

0. 940 10/29/2020 

0.650 12/21/2020 

0.825 12/22/2020 

0.700 01/21/2021 

0.500 02/25/2021 

1.483 02/28/2022 

0.800 03/09/2021 

1. 150 06/28/2021 

1.250 05/28/2021 

1.181 10/14/2021 

1.201 10/21/2021 

Purchased 

Price 

21,037,940 

22,106 

8,090,812 

490 

Maturity 
Date 

10,000 07/07/2022 

488,550 11/16/2022 

485,760 12/05/2022 

394,552 12/14/2022 

974,760 01/11/2023 

985,450 03/01/2023 

489,875 03/06/2023 

492,280 03/15/2023 

483,225 04/01/2023 

483, 120 04/01/2023 

507,870 04/11/2023 

501,265 04/28/2023 

503, 125 05/15/2023 

500,000 07/01/2023 

1,000,000 07/24/2023 

947,350 08/08/2023 

514,550 02/01/2024 

500,000 08/01/2024 

600,000 12/01/2024 

522,560 01/27/2025 

260,000 06/15/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

500,000 07/01/2025 

961 ,800 07/02/2025 

1,000,000 08/01/2025 

1,005,200 11/18/2025 

250,000 12/22/2025 

500,000 01/20/2026 

375,000 02/25/2026 

1,000,000 02/27/2026 

1,100,000 03/09/2026 

501,660 05/15/2026 

1,700,000 05/28/2026 

250,000 07/01/2026 

250,000 07/01/2026 

Days to 

MaturitX, 

67 

199 

218 

227 

255 

304 

309 

318 

335 

335 

345 

362 

379 

426 

449 

464 

641 

823 

945 

1,002 

1,141 

1,157 

1,157 

1,157 

1,158 

1,188 

1,297 

1,331 

1,360 

1,396 

1,398 

1,408 

1,475 

1,488 

1,522 

1,522 

Bond" 
Equiv 
Yield 

0.315 

0.002 

0.001 

0.050 

0.050 

3.157 

3.008 

3.135 

3.315 

3.068 

3.264 

3.086 

3.248 

3.308 

2.104 

3.443 

3.236 

0.507 

3.399 

3.172 

3.561 

0.878 

0.584 

1.846 

0.730 

0.629 

0.990 

0.787 

2.145 

0.992 

0.542 

0.825 

0.699 

0.500 

1.483 

0.800 

1.079 

1.250 

1.181 

1.201 

Market Value CUSIP 

21,037,940 SYS70000 

22,106 SYS70014 

8,090,812 SYS70050 

490 SYS70070 

10,000 SYS30329 

501 ,615 02665WCA7 

500,770 166764AB6 

401 ,860 92826CAC6 

1,002,320 89236TEL5 

1,002,760 30231GAR3 

502,565 24422ETG4 

502,075 084670BR8 

500,725 911312BK1 

500,725 911312BK1 

501,160 931142DH3 

505, 130 06406RAG2 

503,735 427866AZ1 

488,325 57582RF84 

1,008,180 90331HNV1 

996,750 594918BQ6 

506,905 46625HJT8 

475,890 275282PR6 

561,660 13067WRB0 

494,170 90331HMS9 

240,027 546486BV2 

461 ,895 592112UB0 

467,675 71884AF20 

462,060 977123X78 

923,200 59217GEJ4 

931 ,260 275282PS4 

923,490 3135GA4P3 

221,473 48128GY53 

442,795 89236THY 4 

341,753 3130AKXX9 

974,220 3130AQZV8 

1,020,217 3133EMSU7 

455,835 91324PEC2 

1,521,398 06048vvr..1131 

229,665 592098X77 

230,688 797356DF6 

Investment # 

70000 

70014 

70050 

70070 

30329 

26614 

26555 

26647 

26645 

26648 

26613 

26554 

26600 

26677 

26848 

26602 

26615 

27029 

26646 

26672 

26760 

27105 

27055 

26947 

27178 

27173 

27058 

27041 

27375 

27106 

27137 

27138 

27149 

27179 

27366 

27200 

27230 

27225 

27291 

27298 

Page 1 

Carrying Value 

21,037,940 

22,106 

8,090,812 

490 

10,000 

498,599 

498,201 

399,227 

996,051 

997,351 

498,188 

498,649 

496,848 

496,583 

502,012 

500,253 

500,659 

500,000 

1,000,000 

986,313 

505,132 

500,000 

600,000 

512,427 

260,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

963,618 

1,000,000 

1,003,758 

250,000 

500,000 

375,000 

1,000,000 

1,100,000 

501,374 

1,700,000 

250,000 

250,000 



Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

>perating 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
;suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
lassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 1.200 08/02/2021 503,610 07/16/2026 1,537 1.050 453,450 57629WDE7 27247 503,066 

-ounty of Bexar TX USBGC 100,000 1.272 09/23/2021 100,000 08/15/2026 1,567 1.272 90,967 088518NV3 27273 100,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.875 08/17/2021 500,000 08/17/2026 1,569 0.875 459,830 3130ANGX2 27252 500,000 

P Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 1.150 08/17/2021 1,000,000 08/17/2026 1,569 1.150 887,160 48128G4R8 27251 1,000,000 

ank of America Corp USBGC 750,000 1.250 08/26/2021 750,000 08/26/2026 1,578 1.250 665,798 06048WN22 27255 750,000 

aterpillar Financia USBGC 500,000 1.150 10/13/2021 498,165 09/14/2026 1,597 1.227 452,800 14913R2Q9 27288 498,370 

::ihn Deere Capital C USBGC 500,000 2.250 10/14/2021 524,355 09/14/2026 1,597 1.225 475,195 24422EVB2 27294 521,644 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 630,000 0.900 09/28/2021 630,000 09/28/2026 1,611 0.900 579,871 3130ANXS4 27276 630,000 

.eliance Standard Li USBGC 1,500,000 1.512 10/14/2021 1,491 ,180 09/28/2026 1,611 1.635 1,345,245 75951MQ1 27292 1,492,154 

aypal Holdings Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.650 10/14/2021 533,315 10/01/2026 1,614 1.260 478,920 70450YAD5 27293 529,642 

SMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 1,525,000 1.750 12/08/2021 1,537,993 10/25/2026 1,638 1.567 1,398,059 872898M9 27330 1,536,936 

ublic Storage USBGC 1,910,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,912,216 11/09/2026 1,653 1.475 1,746,256 74460DAG4 27336 1,912,037 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 50,000 0.800 12/29/2021 50,000 12/29/2026 1,703 1.509 47,012 3130AQER0 27342 50,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 3,000,000 1.000 01/28/2022 3,000,000 01/28/2027 1,733 1.691 2,856,210 3130AQN66 27364 3,000,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 64,311,348 0.987 $ 64,220,134 630 1.062 $ 62,403,092 $ 64,325,440 

,PP GHG Auction Acct 

ocal Agency lnvestm 862,539 0.315 862,539 1 0.315 862,539 SYS70045 70045 862,539 

Fund Total and Average $ 862,539 0.315 $ 862,539 1 0.315 $ 862,539 $ 862,539 

IPP Security Deposit Acct 

ocal Agency lnvestm 99,723 0.236 07/01/2021 99,723 1 0.236 99,723 SYS70048 70048 99,723 

Fund Total and Average $ 99,723 0.236 $ 99,723 1 0.236 $ 99,723 $ 99,723 

;CPA Balancing Account 

ocal Agency lnvestm LAIF 9,245,445 0.315 9,245,445 1 0.315 9,245,445 SYS70022 70022 9,245,445 

irst American Govt. USBGC 68,824 0.002 68,824 1 0.002 68,824 SYS70023 70023 68,824 

lome Depot Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.625 04/04/2018 494,290 06/01/2022 31 2.918 500,000 437076BG6 26572 499,886 

ublic Storage USBGC 500,000 2.370 04/04/2018 483,705 09/15/2022 137 3.161 500,345 74460DAB5 26573 498,636 

·isa Inc. USBGC 250,000 2.800 07/24/2018 246,975 12/14/2022 227 3.096 251,163 92826CAC6 26632 249,573 

,tel Corp USBGC 500,000 2.700 06/22/2018 492,300 12/15/2022 228 3.070 503,200 458140AM2 26625 498,931 

oyota Motor Credit USBGC 550,000 2.625 05/09/2018 536,294 01/10/2023 254 3.203 552,327 89233P7F7 26598 547,970 

isco Systems Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.600 06/22/2018 487,655 02/28/2023 303 3.170 500,370 17275RBE1 26624 497,825 

erkshire Hathaway I USBGC 500,000 2.750 05/09/2018 490,280 03/15/2023 318 3.185 502,075 084670BR8 26596 498,252 

1nited Parcel Servic USBGC 500,000 2.500 06/22/2018 484,780 04/01/2023 335 3.191 500,725 911312BK1 26627 497,078 

like Inc USBGC 500,000 2.250 05/09/2018 480,350 05/01/2023 365 3.108 500,020 654106AC7 26597 496,052 

imon Property Group USBGC 500,000 2.750 07/24/2018 484,725 06/01/2023 396 3.438 499,080 828807DD6 26631 496,590 

fizer Inc USBGC 500,000 3.000 06/22/2018 496,550 06/15/2023 410 3.150 501,490 717081DH3 26626 499,223 



Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

;CPA Balancing Account 
Bond" 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
;;suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturi!}'. Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
lemphis Center City USBGC 500,000 2.948 11/23/2020 550,395 04/01/2025 1,066 0.600 495,720 586145F74 27113 533,747 

tate of Wisconsin USBGC 400,000 0.650 03/17/2021 400,000 05/01/2025 1,096 0.649 371 ,280 97705MUK9 27202 400,000 

-alifornia St Hlth F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500,000 06/01/2025 1,127 0.952 463,160 13032UXM5 27110 500,000 

-ity of Baltimore USBGC 500,000 0.845 12/02/2020 500,000 07/01/2025 1,157 0.932 462,830 059231X39 27125 500,000 

lashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 02/18/2021 500,000 07/01/2025 1,157 0.610 461,895 592112UB0 27174 500,000 

ederal Farm Credit USBGC 2,045,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,045,000 09/29/2025 1,247 0.530 1,878,578 3133EMBJ0 27077 2,045,000 

ederal Farm Credit USBGC 2,050,000 0.530 09/29/2020 2,050,000 09/29/2025 1,247 0.530 1,886,287 3133EMBH4 27078 2,050,000 

pple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 1,379 0.699 456,650 037833E82 27168 500,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.520 02/12/2021 499,750 02/12/2026 1,383 0.530 453,125 3130AKWA0 27164 499,811 

P Morgan USBGC 1,000,000 0.500 02/17/2021 1,000,000 02/17/2026 1,388 0.500 881,750 46632FRV9 27171 1,000,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 125,000 0.500 02/25/2021 125,000 02/25/2026 1,396 0.500 113,918 3130AKXX9 27180 125,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 0.630 02/26/2021 1,000,000 02/26/2026 1,397 0.630 922,260 3130ALB94 27195 1,000,000 

ederal Farm Credit USBGC 1,650,000 0.800 03/09/2021 1,650,000 03/09/2026 1,408 0.800 1,530,326 3133EMSU7 27201 1,650,000 

ank of America Corp USBGC 500,000 1.200 06/28/2021 500,000 06/25/2026 1,516 1.199 442,015 06048V\1111164 27227 500,000 

lassMutual Global Fu USBGC 500,000 1.200 08/02/2021 503,610 07/16/2026 1,537 1.050 453,450 57629WDE7 27248 503,066 

ank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 1,578 1.250 44,387 06048WN22 27256 50,000 

SMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 200,000 1.750 12/08/2021 201,704 10/25/2026 1,638 1.567 183,352 872898AA9 27331 201 ,565 

ublic Storage USBGC 275,000 1.500 11/19/2021 274,095 11/09/2026 1,653 1.569 251,424 74460DAG4 27311 274,177 

ublic Storage USBGC 250,000 1.500 12/08/2021 250,290 11/09/2026 1,653 1.475 228,568 74460DAG4 27337 250,267 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 100,000 0.800 12/29/2021 100,000 12/29/2026 1,703 1.509 94,024 3130AQER0 27343 100,000 

:>hn Deere Capital C USBGC 525,000 1.700 01/14/2022 524,223 01/11/2027 1,716 1.731 482,995 24422EWA3 27362 524,269 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 300,000 1.000 01/28/2022 300,000 01/28/2027 1,733 1.691 285,621 3130AQN66 27365 300,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 3.000 04/29/2022 500,000 04/29/2027 1,824 4.219 496,140 3130ARR52 27399 500,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 29,084,269 1.041 $ 29,016,240 731 1.123 $ 27,964,819 $ 29,101,187 

ieneral Operating Reserve 

ocal Agency lnvestm LAIF 21 ,229,740 0.315 21 ,229,740 1 0.315 21,229,740 SYS70000 70002 21,229,740 

irst American Govt. USBGC 0 0.002 0 1 0.002 0 SYS70019 70019 0 

1S Bank USS 0 0.000 07/01/2021 0 1 0.000 0 SYS70051 70051 0 

alifornia Asset Mgm CMP 513 0.050 12/14/2018 513 1 0.050 513 SYS70071 70071 513 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 3,575,000 2.125 08/28/2017 3,634,560 06/10/2022 40 1.760 3,580,935 313379069 26467 3,576,349 

epsiCo Inc. USBGC 500,000 3.100 04/26/2018 500,310 07/17/2022 77 3.083 500,240 713448CX4 26580 500,015 

·isa Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.800 04/26/2018 492,600 12/14/2022 227 3.145 502,325 92826CAC6 26584 499,011 

1S Bank, N.A. USBGC 750,000 2.850 01/30/2019 741,900 01/23/2023 267 3.140 753,743 90331HNL3 26737 748,519 

ank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 500,000 2.950 04/26/2018 491 ,790 01/29/2023 273 3.325 502,495 06406RAE7 26575 498,716 

raxair Inc USBGC 500,000 2.700 04/26/2018 488,350 02/21/2023 296 3.225 501 ,005 74005PBF0 26581 498,053 

erkshire Hathaway I USBGC 500,000 2.750 04/26/2018 488,920 03/15/2023 318 3.243 502,075 0846708R8 26576 498,022 

1nited Parcel Servic USBGC 500,000 2.500 04/26/2018 483,135 04/01/2023 335 3.245 500,725 911312BK1 26583 496,865 

-hevron Corp. USBGC 750,000 2.566 01/30/2019 738,750 05/16/2023 380 2.939 745,778 166764BK5 26740 747,271 

rizona Board of Reg USBGC 1,785,000 2.011 04/17/2020 1,818,897 06/01/2023 396 1.387 1,776,914 040484VN4 26984 1,796,761 

hevron Corp. USBGC 500,000 3.191 02/07/2019 507,025 06/24/2023 419 2.847 502,300 166764AH3 26755 501 ,840 



ieneral Operating Reserve 

;suer 
✓almart, Inc. 

lontgomery Water Wor 

fizer Inc 

lonolulu City and Co 

itibank NA 

P Morgan 

1S Bank, N.A. 

P Morgan 

ast Side Union High 

lonolulu City and Co 

.alifornia State Uni 

ederal Home Loan Ba 

1S Bank, N.A. 

Ii W Grainger Inc. 

Ii W Grainger Inc. 

lemphis Center City 

ulsa County OK Ind. 

ity of Huntsville A 

loneywell lnternatio 

-aunty of Jasper IA 

recision Castparts 

P Morgan 

-ity of Baltimore 

flsconsin Dept Trans 

let Life Glob Fundin 

ast Side Union High 

ederal National Mtg 

ederal Agricultural 

ederal Farm Credit 

ederal Farm Credit 

ederal Home Loan Ba 

ederal Home Loan Mt 

ank of America Corp 

ederal Farm Credit 

iuardian Life 

P Morgan 

ederal National Mtg 

.pple Inc. 

P Morgan 

harles Schwab Corp 

ederal Home Loan Ba 

ederal Home Loan Ba 

Trustee / Custodian 
USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

USBGC 

Stated Value 
500,000 

2,145,000 

500,000 

1,770,000 

500,000 

500,000 

440,000 

1,000,000 

565,000 

1,500,000 

250,000 

1,820,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

515,000 

1,000,000 

420,000 

1,500,000 

750,000 

500,000 

500,000 

4,000,000 

815,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,720,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,520,000 

250,000 

500,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

630,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

Interest 
Rate 

3.400 

1.799 

3.200 

2.141 

3.650 

3.875 

3.375 

1.514 

0.820 

1.832 

0.685 

2.750 

2.800 

1.850 

1.850 

2.948 

1.500 

2.750 

1.350 

2.350 

3.250 

1.050 

0.845 

0.774 

0.950 

0.940 

0.600 

0.570 

0.530 

0.530 

0.520 

0.540 

0.650 

0.560 

0.875 

0.825 

0.640 

0.700 

0.500 

0.900 

0.790 

1.010 

04/30/2022 

Purchase 
Date 

02/07/2019 

04/17/2020 

01/30/2019 

04/17/2020 

02/07/2019 

02/07/2019 

10/31/2019 

05/27/2020 

10/29/2020 

04/13/2020 

09/17/2020 

03/25/2020 

02/07/2020 

04/30/2020 

05/21/2020 

11/23/2020 

05/26/2020 

11/06/2020 

06/03/2020 

06/11/2020 

06/25/2020 

06/23/2020 

12/02/2020 

07/30/2020 

03/04/2022 

10/29/2020 

08/18/2020 

09/17/2020 

09/29/2020 

09/29/2020 

09/29/2020 

10/27/2020 

11/25/2020 

12/01/2020 

05/05/2021 

12/22/2020 

12/30/2020 

02/17/2021 

02/17/2021 

04/30/2021 

03/25/2021 

03/30/2021 

Purchased 

Price 
510,960 

2,200,234 

506,250 

1,837,189 

507,490 

515,120 

462,862 

1,006,120 

565,000 

1,522,710 

250,000 

1,981,288 

522,560 

516,000 

514,500 

550,395 

1,016,450 

560,351 

1,023,560 

443,558 

1,667,985 

750,000 

500,000 

500,000 

3,847,200 

815,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,720,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,507,384 

250,000 

501,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

625,407 

997,500 

1,000,000 

Maturity 
Date 

06/26/2023 

09/01/2023 

09/15/2023 

10/01/2023 

01/23/2024 

02/01/2024 

02/05/2024 

06/01/2024 

08/01/2024 

08/01/2024 

11/01/2024 

12/13/2024 

01/27/2025 

02/15/2025 

02/15/2025 

04/01/2025 

04/01/2025 

05/01/2025 

06/01/2025 

06/01/2025 

06/15/2025 

06/23/2025 

07/01/2025 

07/01/2025 

07/02/2025 

08/01/2025 

08/18/2025 

09/17/2025 

09/29/2025 

09/29/2025 

09/29/2025 

10/27/2025 

11/25/2025 

12/01/2025 

12/10/2025 

12/22/2025 

12/30/2025 

02/08/2026 

02/17/2026 

03/11/2026 

03/16/2026 

03/30/2026 

Days to 

Maturit}'._ 
421 

488 

502 

518 

632 

641 

645 

762 

823 

823 

915 

957 

1,002 

1,021 

1,021 

1,066 

1,066 

1,096 

1,127 

1,127 

1,141 

1,149 

1,157 

1,157 

1,158 

1,188 

1,205 

1,235 

1,247 

1,247 

1,247 

1,275 

1,304 

1,310 

1,319 

1,331 

1,339 

1,379 

1,388 

1,410 

1,415 

1,429 

Bond" 
Equiv 
Yield 
2.864 

1.020 

2.908 

1.020 

3.319 

3.535 

2.093 

1.356 

0.820 

1.058 

0.665 

0.830 

1.846 

1.161 

1.217 

0.600 

1.038 

0.750 

0.866 

1.299 

1.033 

1.050 

0.845 

0.774 

2.145 

0.940 

0.600 

0.570 

0.530 

0.530 

0.520 

0.540 

0.798 

0.560 

1.060 

0.825 

0.599 

0.699 

0.500 

1.054 

0.841 

1.010 

Market Value CUSIP 
505,430 931142EK5 

2,127,518 613105KV6 

503,280 717081EN9 

1,753,645 4386705V9 

504,040 17325FAS7 

506,905 46625HJT8 

441,681 91159HHV5 

984,110 46647PBQ8 

537,756 275282PR6 

1,455,585 438687KT1 

234,463 13077DMK5 

1,815,250 3130A3GE8 

494,170 90331HMS9 

480,405 384802AE4 

480,405 384802AE4 

495,720 586145F74 

953,950 899559QD3 

511,586 447025A56 

946,430 438516CB0 

409,517 471376FJ7 

1,503,615 740189AM7 

686,070 48128GU40 

462,830 059231X39 

462,060 977123X78 

3,692,800 59217GEJ4 

758,977 275282PS4 

927,530 3136G4G72 

922,260 31422BV23 

1,840,280 3133EMBH4 

1,580,026 3133EMBJ0 

927,510 3130AKAZ9 

459,130 3134GW4Z6 

889,200 06048WK41 

459,140 3133EMJC7 

1,379,750 40139LBC6 

221,473 48128GY53 

455,990 3135G06Q1 

456,650 037833EB2 

881,750 46632FRV9 

571,278 808513BF1 

926,800 3130ALEL4 

933,600 3130AL TT1 

Investment # 
26758 

26985 

26738 

26983 

26756 

26757 

26906 

27007 

27107 

26980 

27072 

26962 

26951 

27000 

27005 

27114 

27006 

27112 

27008 

27011 

27017 

27024 

27126 

27042 

27376 

27108 

27056 

27071 

27079 

27080 

27081 

27104 

27122 

27124 

27223 

27139 

27141 

27169 

27172 

27220 

27203 

27213 

Carrying Value 
502,881 

2,166,839 

501,854 

1,797,545 

502,609 

505,310 

449,449 

1,003,179 

565,000 

1,511,883 

250,000 

1,909,478 

512,427 

509,312 

508,543 

533,747 

1,009,898 

545,328 

1,014,545 

434,608 

1,605,483 

750,000 

500,000 

500,000 

3,854,470 

815,000 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,720,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

1,510,098 

250,000 

500,733 

500,000 

1,000,000 

626,354 

998,053 

1,000,000 



~ S!~ 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

ieneral Operating Reserve 
Bond• 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
;suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturitl Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
•regon State Dept o USBGC 500,000 1.119 04/27/2021 500,000 04/01/2026 1,431 1.119 457,145 68607V2Q7 27216 500,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.625 04/21/2021 500,000 04/21/2026 1,451 1.084 470,320 3130AL.XR0 27215 500,000 

lnited Health Group USBGC 550,000 1.150 06/28/2021 551,826 05/15/2026 1,475 1.079 501,419 91324PEC2 27232 551,511 

ank of America Corp USBGC 1,108,000 1.250 05/28/2021 1,108,000 05/28/2026 1,488 1.250 991,594 06048WM31 27226 1,108,000 

ank of America Corp USBGC 1,250,000 1.200 06/28/2021 1,250,000 06/25/2026 1,516 1.199 1,105,038 06048WM64 27228 1,250,000 

tate University of USBGC 370,000 1.591 12/02/2021 370,000 07/01/2026 1,522 1.590 341,392 65000BGU6 27329 370,000 

lassMutual Global Fu USBGC 1,000,000 1.200 08/02/2021 1,007,220 07/16/2026 1,537 1.050 906,900 57629WDE7 27249 1,006,131 

lome Depot Inc. USBGC 415,000 2.125 04/12/2022 400,052 09/15/2026 1,598 3.000 393,814 437076BN1 27387 400,230 

:>hn Deere Capital C USBGC 100,000 1.300 10/18/2021 100,313 10/13/2026 1,626 1.235 91,268 24422EV\/\/6 27297 100,279 

SMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 850,000 1.750 12/08/2021 857,242 10/25/2026 1,638 1.567 779,246 872898AA9 27333 856,653 

ublic Storage USBGC 1,585,000 1.500 11/15/2021 1,585,745 11/09/2026 1,653 1.490 1 ,449, 118 7 4460DAG4 27308 1,585,676 

ublic Storage USBGC 365,000 1.500 11/19/2021 363,799 11/09/2026 1,653 1.569 333,709 74460DAG4 27312 363,908 

ublic Storage USBGC 1,064,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,065,234 11/09/2026 1,653 1.475 972,783 74460DAG4 27339 1,065,135 

P Morgan USBGC 1,200,000 1.500 11/30/2021 1,200,000 11/30/2026 1,674 1.500 1,124,292 48130UZH1 27313 1,200,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 150,000 0.800 12/29/2021 150,000 12/29/2026 1,703 1.509 141,036 3130AQER0 27345 150,000 

:>hn Deere Capital C USBGC 438,000 1.700 01/14/2022 437,352 01/11/2027 1,716 1.731 402,956 24422EWA3 27363 437,390 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 3.375 04/28/2022 500,000 01/28/2027 1,733 3.375 497,295 3130ARP62 27398 500,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 83,145,253 1.289 $ 83,757,346 763 1.122 $ 80,098,678 $ 83,401,214 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 177,503,132 1.134 $ 177,955,982 705 1.096 $ 171,428,851. $ 177,790,103 

lond Equlval?nt Yield to Maturity Is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
vestments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

1rrent Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 04/30/2022 

:allable Dates: 
v# 

Inv# Inv# 

3646 USB 6/23/2023 
27080 FFCB Anytime 27203 FHLB Quarterly 

3848 WMT 1/11/2023 
27081 FHLB Anytime 27213 FHLB Quarterly 

3906 USBANK 1/5/2024 
27104 FHLMC Annually starting 10/27/2022 27215 FHLB 4/21/2023 

:l947 USBANK Anytime starting 12/27/2024 
27110 CASMED Anytime 27216 ORSGEN Anytime 

,951 USBANK Anytime starting 12/27/2024 
27113 MEMGEN Anytime 27220 SCHW 2/11/2026 

3980 HON Anytime 
27114 MEMGEN Anytime 27225 BAC Semi-annually starting 05/28/2022 

:l983 HON Anytime 
27124 FFCB Anytime starting 12/1/2022 27226 BAC Semi-annually starting 05/28/2022 

,984 AZSHGR Anytime 
27125 BALGEN Anytime 27227 BAC Semi-annually starting 06/25/2022 

,001 JPM 6/1/2023 and then starting on 5/1/2024 
27126 BALGEN Anytime 27228 BAC Semi-annually starting 06/25/2022 

,011 JAS 6/1/2024 
27137 FNMA Annually starting 11/18/2022 27251 JPM Annually starting 8/17/2023 

,024 JPM Quarterly starting 6/23/2024 
27138 JPM Quarterly starting 12/22/2023 27252 FHLB Quarterly starting 8/17/2022 

7029 MAS Anytime 
27139 JPM Quarterly starting 12/22/2023 27255 BAC Semi-annually starting 08/26/2022 

,041 WISTRN Anytime 
27141 FNMA Quarterly 27256 BAC Semi-annually starting 08/26/2022 

7042 WISTRN Anytime 
27149 TOY 1/20/2025 and 7/20/2025 27276 FHLB Callable quarterly starting 9/28/2022 

7055 CASWTR Anytime 
27164 FHLB Anytime 27313 JPM Callable quarterly starting 11/30/2022 

,056 FNMA Quarterly starting 8/18/2022 
27168 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27329 NYSHGR Anytime 

ro58 PHOGEN Anytime 
27169 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27342 FHLB 12/29/2023 

ro11 FAMC Semi-annually 
27171 JPM Quarterly starting 2/17/2023 27343 FHLB 12/29/2023 

7072 CASHGR Anytime 
27172 JPM Quarterly starting 2/17/2023 27345 FHLB 12/29/2023 

7077 FFCB Anytime 
27178 LOUIS Anytime 27364 FHLB 7/28/2023 

7078 FFCB Anytime 
27195 FHLB Quarterly 27365 FHLB 7/28/2023 

,079 FFCB Anytime 
27200 FFCB Anytime starting 3/9/2023 27366 FHLB 2/27/2023 

27201 FFCB Anytime starting 3/9/2023 27398 FHLB Quarterly starting 07/28/2022 
,...., __ _ ..... _ _. _ _ _ ... _.....,.. __ n""l'll"ln,nnrv, 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

;eo 2012 Construction Fund 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
ssuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturit_y __ Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Car~Value 

1.s. Treasury USBT 912,000 0.175 01/05/2022 911,220 06/30/2022 60 0.177 910,960 912796R50 27354 911,734 

Fund Total and Average $ 912,000 0.175 $ 911,220 60 0.178 $ 910,960 $ 911,734 

;eo 2012A Debt Service 

1.S. Treasury USBT 246,000 0.409 02/28/2022 245,658 06/30/2022 60 0.416 245,720 912796R50 27367 245,832 

1.S. Treasury USBT 122,000 0.520 03/29/2022 121 ,836 06/30/2022 60 0.527 121,861 912796R50 27377 121 ,894 

Fund Total and Average $ 368,000 0.446 $ 367,494 60 0.453 $ 367,581 $ 367,726 

,eo 2016A Debt Service 

1.s. Treasury USBT 289,000 0.080 11/30/2021 288,873 06/16/2022 46 0.081 288,841 912796J42 27314 288,970 

1.S. Treasury USBT 289,000 0.200 12/30/2021 288,708 06/30/2022 60 0.202 288,671 912796R50 27351 288,904 

1.S. Treasury USBT 1,077,000 0.175 01/05/2022 1,076,079 06/30/2022 60 0.177 1,075,772 912796R50 27356 1,076,686 

1.S. Treasury USBT 580,000 0.410 02/28/2022 579,194 06/30/2022 60 0.416 579,339 912796R50 27368 579,604 

1.s. Treasury USBT 289,000 0.519 03/29/2022 288,612 06/30/2022 60 0.527 288,671 912796R50 27378 288,750 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBT 290,000 0.600 04/27/2022 289,686 07/01/2022 61 0.609 289,565 313385YU4 27389 289,705 

Fund Total and Average $ 2,814,000 0.295 $ 2,811,152 59 0.300 $ 2,810,859 $ 2,812,619 

,eothermal Special Reserve 

irst American Govt. USBGC 5,000 0.002 5,000 1 0.002 5,000 SYS70015 70015 5,000 

ederal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497,796 11/07/2025 1,286 0.460 1,372,948 3135G06G3 27167 1,497,081 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 0.498 $ 1,502,796 1282 0.458 $ 1,377,948 $ 1,502,081 

ieo Decommissioning Reserve 

ocal Agency lnvestm LAIF 419,809 0.315 419,809 1 0.315 419,809 SYS70027 70027 419,809 

irst American Govt. USBGC 135,500 0.002 135,500 1 0.002 135,500 SYS70034 70034 135,500 

1niversity of Califo USBGC 1,000,000 2.312 04/30/2020 1,024,800 05/15/2022 14 1.080 1,000,390 91412G2T1 27001 1,000,472 

/ells Fargo Bank USBGC 250,000 3.150 08/30/2018 250,000 08/30/2022 121 3.154 252,018 949763TL0A 30311 250,000 

ireat North Bank USBGC 250,000 3.050 08/31/2018 250,000 08/31/2022 122 3.051 251,945 39103QAF3A 30310 250,000 

•iscover Bank USBGC 250,000 3.150 09/06/2018 250,000 09/06/2022 128 3.152 252,140 254673TM8A 30313 250,000 

:Jhn Deere Capital C USBGC 750,000 2.800 03/15/2018 739,748 01/27/2023 271 3.104 752,348 24422ERT8 26550 748,443 

ank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 750,000 2.950 03/15/2018 740,610 01/29/2023 273 3.229 753,743 06406RAE7 26549 748,565 

-rook County School USBGC 355,000 1.563 05/07/2020 356,211 06/15/2023 410 1.450 351 ,297 227183DH0 27003 355,437 

olano County CCD USBGC 385,000 5.500 04/09/2020 434,938 08/01/2023 457 1.471 399,284 83412PCN0 26978 403,853 

nerbank USA USBGC 250,000 3.200 08/30/2018 250,000 08/30/2023 486 3.203 253,648 29278TCP3A 30309 250,000 



Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

,eo Decommissioning Reserve 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
,suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturitl Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
itibank NA USBGC 250,000 3.300 09/07/2018 250,000 09/07/2023 494 3.301 253,968 17312QS34A 30314 250,000 

acramento Suburban USBGC 330,000 3.480 04/09/2020 349,473 11/01/2024 915 1.846 331 ,957 78607QAY1 26977 340,674 

,J W Grainger Inc. USBGC 425,000 1.850 04/30/2020 438,600 02/15/2025 1,021 1.161 408,344 384802AE4 27002 432,916 

-alifornia St Hlth F USBGC 500,000 0.952 11/04/2020 500,000 06/01/2025 1,127 0.952 463,160 13032UXM5 27111 500,000 

louston Airport Sys USBGC 750,000 1.372 10/20/2020 750,000 07/01/2025 1,157 1.372 706,013 442349EM4 27102 750,000 

lashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 02/18/2021 500,000 07/01/2025 1,157 0.610 461,895 592112UB0 27175 500,000 

ast Side Union High USBGC 1,000,000 0.940 10/29/2020 1,000,000 08/01/2025 1,188 0.940 931,260 275282PS4 27109 1,000,000 

iuardian Life USBGC 505,000 0.875 05/05/2021 500,809 12/10/2025 1,319 1.060 458,404 40139LBC6 27224 501,710 

.pple Inc. USBGC 1,000,000 0.700 02/08/2021 1,000,000 02/08/2026 1,379 0.700 913,300 037833EB2 27162 1,000,000 

P Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 04/30/2026 1,460 1.200 447,500 48128G3G3 27218 500,000 

ank of America Corp USBGC 750,000 1.200 06/28/2021 750,000 06/25/2026 1,516 1.199 663,023 06048WM64 27229 750,000 

ank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 1,578 1.250 44,387 06048WN22 27258 50,000 

pple Inc. USBGC 1,895,000 2.050 01/12/2022 1,930,607 09/11/2026 1,594 1.629 1,795,475 037833DN7 27361 1,928,295 

aterpillar Financia USBGC 150,000 1.150 10/13/2021 149,450 09/14/2026 1,597 1.227 135,840 14913R2Q9 27289 149,511 

SMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 1,375,000 1.750 12/08/2021 1,386,715 10/25/2026 1,638 1.567 1,260,545 872898AA9 27334 1,385,762 

ublic Storage USBGC 765,000 1.500 11/15/2021 765,360 11/09/2026 1,653 1.490 699,417 74460DAG4 27309 765,326 

ublic Storage USBGC 1,722,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,723,998 11/09/2026 1,653 1.475 1,574,373 74460DAG4 27340 1,723,836 

lew York City Genera USBGC 585,000 2.040 04/30/2021 583,204 03/01/2030 2,861 2.078 506,066 64966QUX6 27219 583,408 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 1,000,000 1.000 02/10/2021 1,000,000 02/10/2031 3,207 1.360 862,480 3130AKX76 27163 1,000,000 

ederal Agricultural USBGC 972,000 1.460 02/18/2021 972,000 02/18/2031 3,215 1.460 854,038 31422XAU6 27177 972,000 

ederal Agricultural USBGC 600,000 1.460 07/30/2021 598,800 02/18/2031 3,215 1.482 527,184 31422XAU6 27246 598,895 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 2,000,000 1.740 07/29/2021 2,006,440 07/29/2031 3,376 1.704 1,749,200 3130AN7G9 27245 2,005,953 

larin Community Coll USBGC 500,000 1.710 09/14/2021 506,610 08/01/2031 3,379 1.565 425,515 56781RKZ9 27272 506,188 

aunty of Bexar TX USBGC 385,000 2.134 09/23/2021 385,000 08/15/2031 3,393 2.134 330,507 088518PA7 27274 385,000 

.aunty of Bexar TX USBGC 250,000 2.134 09/23/2021 250,000 08/15/2031 3,393 2.134 214,615 088518NH4 27275 250,000 

ederal Farm Credit USBGC 2,500,000 1.800 01/11/2022 2,445,000 01/05/2032 3,536 2.044 2,184,250 3133ENJZ4 27360 2,446,683 

Fund Total and Average $ 26,054,309 1.756 $ 26,143,682 1838 1.623 $ 24,024,838 $ 26,088,236 

,eo 2012A DSR Account 

1.s. Treasury USBT 1,622,000 0.080 11/30/2021 1,621,286 06/16/2022 46 0.081 1,621,108 912796J42 27319 1,621,834 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,622,000 0.080 $ 1,621,286 46 0.081 $ 1,621,108 $ 1,621,834 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 33,270,309 1.437 $ 33,357,630 1507 1.331 $ 31,113,294. $ 33,304,230 

lond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
vestments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

1rrent Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 04/30/2022 

allable Dates: 
{# Inv# Inv# Inv# 

;977 SCRWTR Anytime 27162 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 27218 JPM Annually starting 4/30/2023 27245 FHLB Anytime starting 7/9/2022 

·001 UNVHGR Anytime 27163 FHLB Quarterly 27219 NYC Anytime 27246 FAMC Semi-annually 

·111 CASMED Anytime 27177 FAMC Semi-annually 27229 BAC Semi-annually starting 6/25/2022 27258 BAC Semi-annually starting 8/26/2022 
?7~fln FFr.R AnvtilTIP ,:t:artinn 1 /F./?n?7 



Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

:ap Facilities 2019A Debt Svc 

Interest Purchase Purchased 

,suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price 

15 Bank Trust USBT 1,094 0.010 1,094 

I.S. Treasury USBT 423,000 0.045 08/27/2021 422,830 

I.S. Treasury USBT 421,000 0.040 09/28/2021 420,865 

I.S. Treasury USBT 421,000 0.090 11/30/2021 420,762 

1.S. Treasury USBT 422,000 0.150 12/29/2021 421,654 

I.S. Treasury USBT 921,000 0.540 02/28/2022 918,928 

1.S. Treasury USBT 450,000 0.660 03/29/2022 449,002 

1.S. Treasury USBT 422,000 0.789 04/27/2022 421,148 

Fund Total and Average $ 3,481,094 0.363 $ 3,476,283 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 3,481,094 0.363 $ 3,476,283 

lond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
vestments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

1rrent Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 04/30/2022 

Maturity 
Date 

07/14/2022 

07/14/2022 

07/14/2022 

07/14/2022 

07/28/2022 

07/28/2022 

07/28/2022 

Page 1 

Bond* 
Days to Equiv 

Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 

1 0.010 1,094 SYS79017 79017 1,094 

74 0.045 422,327 912796K57 27265 422,961 

74 0.040 420,331 912796K57 27282 420,965 

74 0.091 420,331 912796K57 27318 420,922 

74 0.152 421,329 912796K57 27346 421 ,870 

88 0.548 919,167 912796$59 27371 919,784 

88 0.670 449,105 912796S59 27381 449,274 

88 0.802 421,160 912796S59 27393 421,185 

81 0.369 $ 3,474,844 $ 3,478,055 

81 0.369 $ 3,474,844. $ 3,478,055 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

:apital Dev. Reserve Hydro 
Bond* 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
ssuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 

ocal Agency lnvestm LAIF 7,556,705 0.315 7,556,705 1 0.315 7,556,705 SYS70028 70028 7,556,705 

irst American Govt. USBGC 7,673 0.002 7,673 1 0.002 7,673 SYS70031 70031 7,673 

ublic Storage USBGC 500,000 2.370 03/14/2018 485,770 09/15/2022 137 3.051 500,345 74460DAB5 26546 498,824 

·isa Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.800 03/14/2018 494,470 12/14/2022 227 3.051 502,325 92826CAC6 26547 499,279 

oyota Motor Credit USBGC 500,000 2.700 06/13/2018 489,100 01/11/2023 255 3.215 501,160 89236TEL5 26619 498,346 

1nited Parcel Servic USBGC 500,000 2.500 06/13/2018 484,900 04/01/2023 335 3.182 500,725 911312BK1 26620 497,116 

olgate-Palmolive Co USBGC 550,000 2.100 08/09/2018 528,660 05/01/2023 365 2.985 548,543 19416QEC0 26652 545,486 

Paul Getty Trust USBGC 1,000,000 0.391 01/28/2021 1,000,000 01/01/2024 610 0.401 958,410 374288AB4 27161 1,000,000 

let Life Glob Fundin USBGC 209,000 0.700· 04/12/2022 199,867 04/05/2024 705 2.988 198,036 58989V2C7 27385 200,110 

let Life Glob Fundin USBGC 419,000 0.700 04/12/2022 400,690 04/05/2024 705 2.988 397,019 58989V2C7 27386 401,178 

lashville Met Gov USBGC 250,000 1.030 12/17/2020 250,000 08/01/2024 823 1.029 237,250 592090GB4 27134 250,000 

-aliforina Infra & E USBGC 100,000 0.645 12/17/2020 100,000 10/01/2024 884 0.683 94,429 13034AL57 27135 100,000 

i/almart, Inc. USBGC 500,000 2.650 02/07/2020 520,975 12/15/2024 959 1.744 496,190 931142DV2 26950 511 ,327 

ank of NY Mellon Co USBGC 545,000 1.600 04/30/2021 561,197 04/24/2025 1,089 0.839 517,031 06406RAN7 27221 557,120 

ederal Agricultural USBGC 500,000 0.675 05/19/2020 500,000 05/19/2025 1,114 0.675 466,480 31422BA26 27004 500,000 

lashville Met Gov USBGC 250,000 1.230 12/17/2020 250,000 08/01/2025 1,188 1.229 232,540 592090GC2 27133 250,000 

.ity of El Paso TX USBGC 500,000 4.346 12/07/2020 553,420 08/15/2025 1,202 1.950 509,325 283734TC5 27131 537,470 

-aliforina Infra & E USBGC 130,000 0.765 12/17/2020 130,000 10/01/2025 1,249 0.765 119,989 13034AL65 27132 130,000 

ank of America Corp USBGC 1,000,000 0.650 11/25/2020 1,000,000 11/25/2025 1,304 0.798 889,200 06048WK41 27121 1,000,000 

ederal National Mtg USBGC 500,000 0.650 12/17/2020 500,850 12/10/2025 1,319 0.615 461,060 3135G06J7 27136 500,616 

P Morgan USBGC 500,000 0.825 12/22/2020 500,000 12/22/2025 1,331 0.825 442,945 48128GY53 27140 500,000 

ederal National Mtg USBGC 500,000 0.640 01/06/2021 501,550 12/30/2025 1,339 0.576 455,990 3135G06Q1 27148 501,140 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.520 02/12/2021 499,750 02/12/2026 1,383 0.530 453,125 3130AKWA0 27165 499,811 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.500 02/25/2021 500,000 02/25/2026 1,396 0.500 455,670 3130AKXX9 27181 500,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.625 04/21/2021 500,000 04/21/2026 1,451 1.084 470,320 3130ALXR0 27214 500,000 

1nited Health Group USBGC 500,000 1.150 06/28/2021 501,660 05/15/2026 1,475 1.082 455,835 91324PEC2 27231 501,374 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.875 08/17/2021 500,000 08/17/2026 1,569 0.875 459,830 3130ANGX2 27253 500,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 1.050 08/24/2021 500,000 08/24/2026 1,576 0.967 460,175 3130ANFT2 27254 500,000 

ank of America Corp USBGC 50,000 1.250 08/26/2021 50,000 08/26/2026 1,578 1.250 44,387 06048WN22 27257 50,000 

SMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 200,000 1.750 12/08/2021 201,704 10/25/2026 1,638 1.567 183,352 872898AA9 27332 201,565 

ublic Storage USBGC 250,000 1.500 12/08/2021 250,290 11/09/2026 1,653 1.475 228,568 74460DAG4 27338 250,267 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBGC 500,000 0.800 12/29/2021 500,000 12/29/2026 1,703 1.509 470,120 3130AQER0 27344 500,000 

Fund Total and Average $ 21,017,378 0.970 $ 21,019,231 673 1.033 $ 20,274,752 $ 21,045,407 

lydro Initial Facilities 

1.S. Treasury USBT 4,240,000 0.175 01/05/2022 4,236,372 06/30/2022 60 0.177 4,235,166 912796R50 27355 4,238,763 

Fund Total and Average $ 4,240,000 0.175 $ 4,236,372 60 0.178 $ 4,235,166 $ 4,238,763 



Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

lydro Debt Service 
Bond" 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
;suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Car!l'.ing Value 

lydro Debt Service 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBT 102,000 0.600 04/27/2022 101,890 07/01/2022 61 0.608 101,847 313385YU4 27390 101,896 

Fund Total and Average _$ _ ___!02,000 0.600 $ 101,890 61 0.609 $ 101,847 $ 101,896 

lydro 2018A Debt Service 

1.S. Treasury USBT 1,146,000 0.080 11/30/2021 1,145,496 06/16/2022 46 0.081 1,145,370 912796J42 27316 1,145,883 

1.S. Treasury USBT 1,147,000 0.200 12/30/2021 1,145,840 06/30/2022 60 0.202 1,145,692 912796R50 27352 1,146,618 

1.S. Treasury USBT 3,638,000 0.175 01/05/2022 3,634,887 06/30/2022 60 0.177 3,633,853 912796R50 27358 3,636,939 

1.S. Treasury USBT 2,295,000 0.409 02/28/2022 2,291,811 06/30/2022 60 0.416 2,292,384 912796R50 27369 2,293,432 

1.S. Treasury USBT 1,147,000 0.519 03/29/2022 1,145,459 06/30/2022 60 0.527 1,145,692 912796R50 27379 1,146,006 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,147,000 0.599 04/27/2022 1,145,757 07/01/2022 61 0.608 1,145,280 313385YU4 27391 1,145,834 

Fund Total and Average $ 10,520,000 0.303 $ 10,509,250 59 0.307 $ 10,508,271 $ 10,514,712 

lydro 2019A Debt Service 

1.S. Treasury USBT 813,000 0.080 11/30/2021 812,642 06/16/2022 46 0.081 812,553 912796J42 27317 812,917 

1.S. Treasury USBT 815,000 0.200 12/30/2021 814,176 06/30/2022 60 0.202 814,071 912796R50 27353 814,728 

1.S. Treasury USBT 2,699,000 0.175 01/05/2022 2,696,691 06/30/2022 60 0.177 2,695,923 912796R50 27359 2,698,213 

1.S. Treasury USBT 1,629,000 0.410 02/28/2022 1,626,737 06/30/2022 60 0.416 1,627,143 912796R50 27370 1,627,887 

1.S. Treasury USBT 844,000 0.519 03/29/2022 842,866 06/30/2022 60 0.527 843,038 912796R50 27380 843,269 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBT 814,000 0.599 04/27/2022 813,118 07/01/2022 61 0.608 812,779 313385YU4 27392 813,172 

Fund Total and Average $ 7,614,000 0.301 $ 7,606,230 59 0.306 $ 7,605,507 $ 7,610,186 

lydro 2022A Debt Service 

1.S. Treasury USBT 27,000 0.544 04/28/2022 26,974 06/30/2022 60 0.553 26,969 912796R50 27397 26,975 

Fund Total and Average $ 27,000 0.545 $ 26,974 60 0,553 $ 26,969 $ 26,975 

lydro Special Reserve 

irst American Govt. USBGC 5,000 0.002 5,000 1 0.002 5,000 SYS70016 70016 5,000 

ederal National Mtg USBGC 1,495,000 0.500 02/16/2021 1,497,796 11/07/2025 1,286 0.460 1,372,948 3135G06G3 27166 1,497,081 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 0.498 $ 1,502,796 1282 0.458 $ 1,377,948 $ 1,502,081 

lydro 2012 DSRA 

1.S. Treasury USBT 1,875,000 1.750 04/27/2022 1,843,359 06/30/2024 791 2.551 1,834,575 912828628 27388 1,843,519 



lydro 2012 DSRA 

;suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,875,000 

GRAND TOTALS: $ 46,895,378 

Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

Interest Purchase Purchased 

Rate Date Price 

1.750 $ 1,843,359 

0.654 $ 46,846,102 

lond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
vesbnents with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

,rrent Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 04130/2022 

:'.;allable Dates: 

nv# 

!6950 WMT Anytime starting 10/15/2024 

!7004 FAMCA Semi-annually starting 5/19/2022 

!7131 ELPASO Callable annually starting 8/15/2023 

!7132 FFCB Anytime 

!7135 CASDEV Anytime 

!7136 FNMA Quarterly 

!7140 JPM Quarterly starting 12/22/2023 

!7161 JPGETY Anytime starting 10/1/2023 

!7165 FHLB Anytime 

!7214 FHLB 4/21/2023 

!7221 BK 3/24/2025 

!7253 FHLB Quarterly starting 8/17/2022 

!7254 FHLB Monthly 

!7257 BAC Semi-annually starting 8/26/2022 

!7344 FHLB 12/29/2023 

Boner 
Maturity Days to Equiv 

Date Maturit_l Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 

791 2.551 $ 1,834,575 $ 1,843,519 

403 0,715 $ 45,965,035. $ 46,883,539 



Page 1 
Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

.EC GHG Auction Acct 
Bond" 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
ssuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 

ocal Agency lnvestm 461,113 0.315 461,113 1 0.315 461,113 5Y570046 70046 461,113 

Fund Total and Average $ 461,113 0.315 $ 461,113 1 0.315 $ 461,113 $ 461,113 

.EC Issue #1 201 OB OS Fund 

15 Bank Trust U5B 640 0.010 640 1 0.010 640 5Y579004 79004 640 

1.5. Treasury USBT 3,548,000 0.080 12/01/2021 3,546,604 05/26/2022 25 0.081 3,547,219 912796Q36 27326 3,547,802 

1_5_ Treasury U5BT 130,000 0.080 12/29/2021 129,957 05/26/2022 25 0.081 129,971 912796Q36 27347 129,993 

1_5_ Treasury U5BT 260,000 0.310 02/28/2022 259,794 05/31/2022 30 0.314 259,930 912796V30 27372 259,933 

1.5. Treasury U5BT 129,000 0.309 03/29/2022 128,930 05/31/2022 30 0.314 128,965 912796V30 27382 128,967 

ederal Home Loan Ba U5BT 130,000 0.419 04/27/2022 129,947 06/01/2022 31 0.425 129,922 313385XN1 27394 129,953 

Fund Total and Average $ 4,197,640 0.112 $ 4,195,872 26 0.114 $ 4,196,647 $ 4,197,288 

.EC Issue #2 201 OB OS Fund 

15 Bank Trust U5B 499 0.010 499 1 0.010 499 5Y579012 79012 499 

1_ 5_ Treasury U5BT 4,165,000 0.080 12/01/2021 4,163,362 05/26/2022 25 0.081 4,164,084 912796Q36 27327 4,164,767 

1.5. Treasury U5BT 550,000 0.080 12/29/2021 549,819 05/26/2022 25 0.081 549,879 912796Q36 27348 549,969 

1.5. Treasury U5BT 1,100,000 0.309 02/28/2022 1,099,129 05/31/2022 30 0.314 1,099,703 912796V30 27373 1,099,716 

1.5. Treasury U5BT 549,000 0.309 03/29/2022 548,702 05/31/2022 30 0.314 548,852 912796V30 27383 548,858 

ederal Home Loan Ba U5BT 550,000 0.419 04/27/2022 549,775 06/01/2022 31 0.426 549,670 313385XN1 27395 549,801 

Fund Total and Average $ 6,914,499 0.162 $ 6,911,286 27 0.164 $ 6,912,687 $ 6,913,610 

.EC lssue#1 2017 A OS Fund 

1_5_ Treasury U5BT 3,659,000 0.080 12/01/2021 3,657,561 05/26/2022 25 0.081 3,658,195 912796036 27328 3,658,796 

1.5. Treasury U5BT 668,000 0.080 12/29/2021 667,780 05/26/2022 25 0.081 667,853 912796Q36 27349 667,963 

1_5_ Treasury USBT 1,334,000 0.309 02/28/2022 1,332,943 05/31/2022 30 0.314 1,333,640 912796V30 27374 1,333,655 

1.S. Treasury U5BT 674,000 0.309 03/29/2022 673,634 05/31/2022 30 0.314 673,818 912796V30 27384 673,826 

ederal Home Loan Ba U5BT 667,000 0.420 04/27/2022 666,728 06/01/2022 31 0.426 666,600 313385XN1 27396 666,759 

Fund Total and Average $ 7,002,000 0.179 $ 6,998,646 27 0.181 $ 7,000,106 $ 7,000,999 

.EC Issue #1 2010 OSR Fund 

15 Bank Trust U5B 18,650 0.010 18,650 1 0.010 18,650 5YS79005 79005 18,650 

1.s. Treasury USBT 63,000 0.080 12/29/2021 62,979 05/26/2022 25 0.081 62,986 912796Q36 27350 62,997 

ederal Home Loan Ba U5B 4,100,000 2.125 08/28/2017 4,168,306 06/10/2022 40 1.760 4,106,806 313379069 26463 4,101,547 

1.5. Treasury U5BT 509,000 0.035 07/23/2021 508,835 06/16/2022 46 0.036 508,720 912796J42 27244 508,977 



Northern California Power Agency 

Treasurer's Report 

04/30/2022 

.EC Issue #1 2010 DSR Fund 
Bond" 

Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv 
;suer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value 
ederal Farm Credit USBT 4,430,000 0.840 03/02/2021 4,430,000 03/02/2026 1,401 0.840 4,085,479 3133EMSK9 27199 4,430,000 

ederal Home Loan Ba USBT 150,000 0.875 08/27/2021 150,528 06/12/2026 1,503 0.799 137,948 3130AN4T4 27270 150,453 

Fund Total and Average $ 9,270,650 1.358 $ 9,339,298 714 1.195 $ 8,920,589 $ 9,272,624 

.EC lss#1 201 OB BABS Subs Resv 

1s Bank Trust USB 1,843 0.010 07/01/2021 1,843 1 0.010 1,843 SYS79006 79006 1,843 

1.S. Treasury USBT 2,369,000 0.080 11/30/2021 2,368,068 05/26/2022 25 0.081 2,368,479 912796Q36 27320 2,368,868 

Fund Total and Average $ 2,370,843 0.080 $ 2,369,911 25 0.081 $ 2,370,322 $ 2,370,711 

.EC Issue #2 2010B DSR BABS 

1S Bank Trust USB 1,295 0.010 1,295 1 0.010 1,295 SYS79013 79013 1,295 

1.S. Treasury USBT 1,142,000 0.080 11/30/2021 1,141 ,551 05/26/2022 25 0.081 1,141,749 912796Q36 27321 1,141 ,937 

Fund Total and Average $ 1,143,295 0.080 $ 1,142,846 25 0.081 $ 1,143,044 $ 1,143,232 

.EC O & M Reserve 

ocal Agency lnvestm 1,637,542 0.315 1,637,542 1 0.315 1,637,542 SYS70047 70047 1,637,542 

irst American Govt. USBGC 614,680 0.002 614,680 1 0.002 614,680 SYS70041 70041 614,680 

.aterpillar Financia USBGC 465,000 3.250 02/03/2020 496,569 12/01/2024 945 1.776 466,428 14912L6G1 26952 481 ,892 

lashville Met Gov USBGC 500,000 0.610 02/18/2021 500,000 07/01/2025 1,157 0.610 461,895 592112UB0 27176 500,000 

ederal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 07/30/2020 1,001,000 07/29/2025 1,185 0.579 928,680 3136G4D75 27047 1,000,649 

ederal National Mtg USBGC 1,000,000 0.600 08/18/2020 1,000,000 08/18/2025 1,205 0.600 927,530 3136G4G72 27057 1,000,000 

ederal Farm Credit USBGC 750,000 0.530 09/29/2020 750,000 09/29/2025 1,247 0.530 690,105 3133EMBH4 27083 750,000 

ederal Farm Credit USBGC 670,000 0.530 09/29/2020 670,000 09/29/2025 1,247 0.530 615,475 3133EMBJ0 27084 670,000 

pple Inc. USBGC 500,000 0.700 02/17/2021 500,000 02/08/2026 1,379 0.699 456,650 037833EB2 27170 500,000 

P Morgan USBGC 500,000 1.200 04/30/2021 500,000 04/30/2026 1,460 1.200 447,500 48128G3G3 27222 500,000 

lassMutual Global Fu USBGC 1,000,000 1.200 08/02/2021 1,007,220 07/16/2026 1,537 1.050 906,900 57629WDE7 27250 1,006,131 

ank of America Corp USBGC 100,000 1.250 08/26/2021 100,000 08/26/2026 1,578 1.250 88,773 06048WN22 27259 100,000 

.aterpillar Financia USBGC 500,000 1.150 10/13/2021 498,165 09/14/2026 1,597 1.227 452,800 14913R2Q9 27290 498,370 

SMC Arizona Corp. USBGC 850,000 1.750 12/08/2021 857,242 10/25/2026 1,638 1.567 779,246 872898AA9 27335 856,653 

ublic Storage USBGC 515,000 1.500 11/15/2021 515,242 11/09/2026 1,653 1.490 470,849 74460DAG4 27310 515,220 

ublic Storage USBGC 1,064,000 1.500 12/08/2021 1,065,234 11/09/2026 1,653 1.475 972,783 74460DAG4 27341 1,065,135 

Fund Total and Average $ 11 ,666,222 0.946 $ 11,712,894 1123 0.858 $ 10,917,836 $ 11,696,272 



~ '+.>,u.£a,~o~ U.OLO .. 'I.>, 1.>1,000 

lond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types. 
vestments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method. 

1rrent Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 04/30/2022 

;allable Dates: 

v# 

7047 FHLMC Quarterly starting 7/29/2022 

7057 FNMA Quarterly starting 8/18/2022 

7083 FFCB Anytime 

7084 FFCB Anytime 

7170 APPL Anytime starting 1/8/2026 

7199 FFCB Anytime 

7222 JPM Annually starting 4/30/2023 

7259 BAG Semi-annually starting 8/26/2022 

U.:Jal .. '+1,:1~~,Jl't'+. • "l.>1U.Ji:l,O't;:J 



PU6UC ,\G tN CY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: GeothermEx, Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year Consulting Services 
Agreement for Geothermal Reservoir Numerical Simulations; Applicable to the following: 
Geothermal Facility. 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Marc Pelletier~~ 

Acting Assistant General 
Manager 

Division: Generation Services 

Department: Geothermal 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members □ 

Alameda Municipal Power IZI 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs IZI 

City of Gridley IZI 

City of Healdsburg IZI 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Sole Source 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi IZI City of Shasta Lake 

City of Lompoc IZI City of Ukiah 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Roseville IZI Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Santa Clara IZI Other 

□ 

IZI 

IZI 

□ 

□ 

IZI 

If other, please specify Turlock 

SR: 165:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 22-56 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First 
Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement with GeothermEx, Inc. for geothermal 
reservoir numerical simulations, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved 
by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not-to-exceed amount from $225,000 to 
$1,000,000, for continued use at the Geothermal Facility. 

BACKGROUND: 

GeothermEx, Inc. is a leading expert in geothermal reservoir numerical modeling, based in 
Richmond, CA. While most reservoir modeling companies focus on oil and gas, GeothermEx, 
Inc. specializes in geothermal-specific modeling, making them unique to other vendors in the 
same general field. They perform consulting work world-wide on numerous geothermal assets 
(more than any other company in the world) and are experienced professionals in this subject 
matter. Thus, NCPA Staff recommends awarding this contract to GeothermEx under NCPA's 
sole source procurement justification specified in NCPA's Purchasing Manual. 

Geothermal reservoir numerical simulations services are required from time to time for the 
operation and maintenance of NCPA's Geothermal Facility. GeothermEx, Inc. is a provider of 
these services. NCPA entered into a five-year Consulting Services Agreement with GeothermEx, 
Inc. effective February 24, 2020, for an amount not to exceed $225,000, for use at the 
Geothermal Facility. NCPA Staff is focused on maintaining the output of the geothermal field and 
reducing the decline in generation that would otherwise occur. Thus, NCPA Staff is performing 
additional analysis, employing efficiency upgrades within the facility and exploring new 
technologies to increase steam generation from the field. NCPA Staff believes additional 
analysis by GeothermEx will allow NCPA Staff to better manage the geothermal field. 

NCPA will be working with GeothermEx, Inc. to upgrade to a new software platform. 
GeothermEx, Inc. will also continue to provide NCPA with ongoing modeling support which 
provides staff with critical geothermal reservoir data used in operational decision making. There 
are not enough funds remaining on the agreement for this and future work. NCPA now desires to 
enter into a First Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement to increase the not-to
exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 to ensure there are sufficient funds for the work 
detailed above, as well as through the remaining contract term. Because of the highly
specialized nature of this type of reservoir numerical modeling, NCPA does not have any 
agreements in place for similar services with additional vendors at this time. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement will be not to exceed $1,000,000 over the 
remainder of the contract term. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the 
agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

As described above, GeothermEx is in the judgement of NCPA Staff the world leader in 
geothermal field modeling and analysis. Thus, NCPA Staff requests the Commission approve 
this agreement as a sole source provider. 

SR: 165:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page 3 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This modeling activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in 
the physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On May 4, 2022 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above for 
Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

i~O!RD, ~ 
General Manager 

Attachments (3): 
• Resolution 22-56 
• Consulting Services Agreement with GeothermEx, Inc. 
• First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement with GeothermEx, Inc. 

SR: 165:22 



RESOLUTION 22-56 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE CONSUL TING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

GEOTHERMEX, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #165:22) 

WHEREAS, geothermal reservoir numerical simulations services are required from time to time for the operation 
and maintenance of NCPA's Geothermal Facility; and 

WHEREAS, GeothermEx, Inc. is a leading expert in geothermal reservoir numerical modeling, based in 
Richmond, CA While most reservoir modeling companies focus on oil and gas, GeothermEx, Inc. specializes in 
geothermal-specific modeling, making them unique to other vendors in the same general field. They perform consulting 
work world-wide on numerous geothermal assets (more than any other company in the world) and are experienced 
professionals in this subject matter; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA and GeothermEx, Inc entered into a Consulting Services Agreement effective February 20, 
2020, to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA Staff is focused on maintaining the output of the geothermal field and reducing the decline in 
generation that would otherwise occur. Thus, NCPA Staff is performing additional analysis, employing efficiency 
upgrades within the facility and exploring new technologies to increase steam generation from the field; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA will be working with GeothermEx, Inc. to upgrade to a new software platform. GeothermEx, 
Inc. will also continue to provide NCPA with ongoing modeling support which provides staff with critical geothermal 
reservoir data used in operational decision making. There are not enough funds remaining on the agreement for this and 
future work; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA now desires to enter into a First Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement to 
increase the not-to-exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 to ensure there are sufficient funds for current work, as 
well as through the remaining contract term; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California Environmental Quality Act. No 
environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement 
with GeothermEx, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, to increase the not
to-exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000, for continued use at the Geothermal Facility. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022 by the following vote on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

GEOTHERMEX, INC. 
(Single Task) 

This Consulting Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and GeothermEx1 Inc., a corporation 
with its office located at 3260 Blume Drive, Suite 220? Richmond, CA 94806, C'Consultann 
(together sometimes referred to as the 1'Parties") as of feb~ 2.4 , 2020 ("Effective Date1

') in 
Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the 
manner specified therein. 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than 
~ l l/ . 2025, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing 
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced 
to provide the Services set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel 
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to 
have Consultant perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a 
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be 
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not .. to-exceed cap on monetary 
cap on Requested Work and an related expenditures authorized by that 
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work. shall be 
completed. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED 1WO HUNDRED TWENY-FIVE THOUSAND dollars ($225,000) for the Services, 
which shall inc'lude all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in 
Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar 
amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely 
a fimit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-1O7 

Page 1 of 15 



2.1 Invoices. Consultant shaU submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Services performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services; 
• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work perfonned under 

the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and 

• At Agency's option, when the Consultantls Scope of Work identifies tasks, 
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries 
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each 
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, 
with supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments. based on invoices 
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant. 

2.3 Pavment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Authorization to Perfonn Services. The Consultant is not authorized to 
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this 
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant 
fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) 
day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final 
payment from Agency. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 2 of 15 



Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Services. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this 
Agreementt Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed befow for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and au persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant 
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability. including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodfly injury. death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability. All deductibles and self-insured retentions associated 
with Consultant's insurance coverage are for the account of the 
Consultant, and the Agency wlll have no liability for such deductibles or 
seff .. insured retentions. 

4.2.2 Automobile Llabilify. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), 
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident. All 
deductibles and self-insured retentions associated with Consultant's 
insurance coverage are for the account of the Consultant, and the Agency 
will have no liability for such deductibles or self-insured retentions. This 
insurance shalt provide contractua.l liability covering all motor vehicles and 
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as In combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 3 of 15 



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable 

4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1 ) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2 to the extent of liability assumed by Consultant 
under this Agreement, adding the Agency as an additional insured and 
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of ·any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums 
spectfied herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Consultant. 

4.4.4 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the 
payment of any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that 
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the 
Workers• Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4.5 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of 
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues 
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or 
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' 
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall appfy to any damages or claims for damages 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeotherrnEx, Inc. 
Revd 7/9/2019 Page4 of 15 



whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of 
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions 
by Consultant, its officers, officials, agents, and empfoyees, except as caused by 
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement 
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 27831 then 
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to controt Consultant only 
insofar as the results of Consultants Services and assignment of personnel 
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the 
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, 
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all 
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, 
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees 
Retirement System {PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any 
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee 
contributions for PERS benefits. 

Consultant shall indemnify. defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors. as well as for the 
.payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing the Services, 
including salaries and benefits of emproyees, agents and subcontractors of 
Consultant. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages. 
expense and liability of every kind! nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS..YEN-2019-107 

Page 5 of 15 



Consultant's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees. agents, or subcontractors. 

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shaU indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Consultant. 

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obHgation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A. without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency~ Consultant shatl 
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and 
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant 
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to 
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this 
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that 
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all 
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7 .2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that 
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all Ucenses, 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 6 of 15 



permits, qualifications, and approva1s of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant. 

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for 
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, 
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant 
· delivering to Agency any or an records or documents, as referenced in Section 
9.1 hereof. 

8.2 Amendments and Change Orders. 

8.2.1 The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
Parties. 

8.2.2 The Parties may agree to a change order, modifying the duration of the 
Agreement or the not-to-exceed compensation referenced ·in Section 2 hereof by 
a writing signed by the Consultant and the Contract Administrator. 

8.3 Survival. Alt obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upe>n Breach by Consultant. tf Consultant materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include! but not be limited to. the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans 1 specifications, drawings, reports! design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by 
Consultant; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the 
Services that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had 
completed the Services. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Revd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 7 of 15 



Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

9.1 Records Created as Part of Consultant's Perfonnan.ce. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studiesJ specifications, records. files, or any other documents or materialsf in 
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and afl 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under the Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential lnformation11
, as used 

herein. shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the R.eceiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was discl.osed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as confidential Information in accordance, with this section. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 8 of 15 



9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential 
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party1s Confidential Information in 
confident; and (b) shall 'lake all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying. transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclos;ng Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3. 1 Disclosure to employees, agents. consultants, contractors, 
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that 
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4 .. 3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to-the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including aH copies thereof) upon 
termination of this Agreement, if requested by Disclosing Party in writing. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of 
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of 
this Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its 
legal department files; and ( c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives 
where such copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party 
shall not disclose the Disclosing Party's Information to any person other 
than those of the Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, 
contractors and subcontractors who have a need to know ln connection 
with this Agreement. 

Section 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS~ 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS.VEN-2019-107 

Page 9of 15 



10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys) fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

10.2 .Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shalt not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Consultant in a 11confltct of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

10.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shaJI be administered by Joel 
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shatl act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 

Minh Pham 
Reservoir Engineering Manager 
3260 Blume Drive. Suite 220 
Richmond, CA 94806 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 10 of 15 



Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Jane E Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report._ first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. 

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations. or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

10.11.1 

10.11.2 

10.11.3 

10.11.4 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen ( 15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of th~ dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 

Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 11 of 15 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothennEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 



10.11.5 

10.11.6 

mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
afternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute 
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to 
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by 
Government Code §§ 900 et seq. 

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, and Consultant's Proposal (if any), the 
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto 
and the Consultant's Proposer, the Exhibits shall control. 

10.13 Countergarts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

10.15 No Third Party Beneflciarie~. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northam California Power Agency and GeothermEx. Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-1O7 

Page 12 of 15 



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Date 42, [ *{ 7-C> 

RANi~~. J~ager 

Approved as to Form: 

f. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GEOTHERMEX, INC. 

Date feb f2I~ . 2 020 

GS-VEN-2019-1O7 

Page 13 of 15 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

GeothermEx, Inc. (14Consultant") shall provide geothermal reservoir numerical simulations, as 
requested by Northern Califomia Power Agency (" Agency") at the Geothermal Facility. 

Services to include, but not limited to the following: 

• De-coupling of the pipeline network and reservoir simulator 
• Update the model, calibrating jt against operating data 
• Sensitivity study to determine the health and viability of the reservoir 

o Reducing injection at saturated sites 
o Increasing injection at superheated sites 
o Reducing the production rate to prolong the production lifetime 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEXi Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 14 of 15 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for alt tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount 
set forth in Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and/or compensation break down and 
an 8$timated amount of expenses is as follows: 

Principal Senior Geothermal Geothermal Administrative 
Geothermal Geothermal Consultant Technician Support 
Consultant Consultant 

Name Minh Pham Robert Stacey Morgan James Rene Moreno 

Roger Michelle Ames Morrow 

Henneberger Sullera 

Hourly 405 285 230 210 90 
Rate (USO) 

Pricing for services to be performed will be quoted at the time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the lntemat Revenue Service. 

Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 15of 15 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSUL TING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND GEOTHERMEX, INC. 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to Consulting Services Agreement is entered into by and 
between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and GeothermEx, Inc. ("Consultant") 
(collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of ________ , 2022. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Consulting Services Agreement dated effective 
February 24, 2020, (the "Agreement") for GeothermEx, Inc. to provide geothermal reservoir 
numerical simulations services at the Geothermal Facility; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a "NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $225,000 to a 
'NOT TO EXCEED amount of $1,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

Ill 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 2-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION 
dollars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and 
other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay 
that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures 
under this Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

2. Exhibit A- SCOPE OF SERVICES is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in 
the attached Exhibit A. 

3. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 1 of 3 



Date: -------

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc 

Template 6-8-18 

Date: _____ _ 

GEOTHERMEX, INC. 

ANN ROBERTSON-TAIT, President 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 2 of 3 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

GeothermEx, Inc. ("Consultant") shall provide geothermal reservoir numerical simulations, as 
requested by Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at the GeoOthermal Facility. 

Services to include, but not limited to the following: 

• Provide a New software platform 
o Create new model in a new software platform to improve understanding of the 

reservoir 
o Update the model, calibrating it against operating data 
o De-coupling of the pipeline network studies 
o Expand reservoir simulations 

• Consulting: Geophysical studies 
o Study to determine the health and viability of the reservoir 

■ Reducing injection at saturated sites 
■ Increasing injection at superheated sites 
■ Reducing the production rate to prolong the production lifetime 

o During normal operations provide assistance during well workover projects 

First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and GeothermEx, Inc 

Template 6-8-18 

GS-VEN-2019-107 

Page 3 of 3 



PUBUC AG ENC Y 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Kinectrics, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement for 
generator testing and assessment services; Applicable to the following: All Northern California 
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power Authority 
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: 

Division: 

Department: 

Marc Pelletier ~~ 

Acting Assistant General 
Manager 

Generation Services 

Hydroelectric 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ 

City of Gridley □ 

City of Healdsburg □ 

SR: 166:22 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

\3 



May 26, 2022 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 22-57 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi
Task Professional Services Agreement with Kinectrics, Inc. for generator testing and assessment 
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General 
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned 
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

BACKGROUND: 

Generator testing and assessment services are required from time to time for the operation and 
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and 
SCPPA Members. NCPA currently has an agreement in place with Kinectrics, Inc., which is 
expiring. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past for services such as quality control testing on 
stator bars used in the Hydro generator rewind project. NCPA has a good working relationship 
with the vendor and wishes to continue that relationship. NCPA desires to enter into this 
agreement so established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful 
bidder on future projects. NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with Ethos Energy, 
Andritz Hydro, and Sulzer Turbo Services. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years. 
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following 
NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 

SELECTION PROCESS: 

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time 
services are needed, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA 
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from qualified providers as required. 
Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the best overall value to NCPA. NCPA will issue 
purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is 
required. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On May 4, 2022 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above for 
Commission approval. 

On May 9, 2022 the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and approved 
the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

SR: 166:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page3 

Respectfully submitted, 

s~O:AR~n 
General Manager 

Attachments (2): 
• Resolution 22-57 
• Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Kinectrics, Inc. 

SR: 166:22 



RESOLUTION 22-57 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

KINECTRICS, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #166:22) 

WHEREAS, generator testing and assessment services are required from time to time for the operation 
and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA 
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, Kinectrics, Inc. is a provider of these services; and 

WHEREAS, the NCPA Commission has reviewed the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with 
Kinectrics, Inc. to provide such services as needed at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA 
Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement, 
with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed 
$1,000,000 over five years, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by 
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022 by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 

KINECTRICS AES INC. 

This Professional Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 ("Agency") and Kinectrics AES Inc., a corporation 
with its office located at 4117 Clipper Court, Fremont, CA 94538 ("Consultant") (together 
sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of _______ , 202_ ("Effective Date") in 
Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the 
manner specified therein. 

1.1 

1.2 

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five 
(5) years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is 
shorter. 

Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing 
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced 
to provide the Services set forth herein. 

Consultant warrants that the Services, excluding any as may be performed under 
the direction or supervision of the Agency, performed pursuant to this Agreement 
will be performed in a professional manner consistent with the standards of quality 
and care typical within the industry at the time of performance for similar work and 
will be performed by or under the supervision of a professional engineer pursuant 
to California Business and Professions Code Section 6700 et. seq. Such warranty 
will be effective for a period of one (1) year from the date of performance of the 
Service. Any such Services performed by Consultant which do not conform with 
Consultant above-stated warranty obligation will be re-performed by Consultant at 
Consultant' expense; or if re-performance is impracticable or impossible, 
Consultant will refund to Customer the price paid to Consultant for the non
conforming Services. The warranties and remedies set forth herein are exclusive, 
and no other warranty or remedy of any kind, whether statutory, written, oral, 
express, or implied, including without limitation warranties of performance, 
merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose, shall apply. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel 
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 1 of 22 



1.4 

1.5 

Section 2. 

2.1 

Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may 
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members. 

Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's 
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The 
Purchase Order sh.all identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested 
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services 
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the 
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar 
days from the date of the Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to 
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested 
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, be·gins to 
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven day period 
specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services 
on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) for the Services, which 
shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in 
Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. 
This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the 
Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this 
Agreement. 

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, or in accordance with Consultant's Quotation 
for work, or as specified in the Purchase Order, based on the cost for services 
performed and reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices 
shall contain the following information: 

■ The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
■ Services performed; 
■ The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services; 
■ At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 

the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder where work is 
performed on a Time & Materials basis only; and 

■ At Agency's option, when the Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, 
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries 
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each 
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, 
with supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction for 
the work performed on Time & Material basis only. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 2 of 22 



2.2 

2.3 

2.4 

2.5 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, or as otherwise 
agreed to, based on invoices received, for services satisfactorily performed, and 
for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days 
from the _receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the requirements above to 
pay Consultant. 

Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to 
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this 
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator. 

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant 
fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) 
day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final 
payment from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Services. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall 
maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant 
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident, or as 
prescribed under the relevant Workers Compensation plan. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 3 of 22 



4.2 

4.3 

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall be 
at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
( current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), 
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and 
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional 
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in 
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars 
($1,000,000) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the 
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall 
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such 
insurance shall be on a "claims-made" basis, subject to the following conditions: 
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of 
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after 
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage 
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion 
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with 
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase "extended reporting" coverage 
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested 
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 4 of 22 



4.4 All Policies Requirements. 

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with ( 1) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured 
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Consultant. 

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides 
services to Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members, 
Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and policy 
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific 
Agency member, SCPPA or Agency member for which the Services are 
to be performed. 

4.5 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of 
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues 
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or 
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' 
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners, 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev' d 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 5 of 22 



Section 6. 

6.1 

officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the 
extent that the claims arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of 
Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description to the extent that they 
arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly 
("Liabilities"). (See Cal. Civ Code Section 2782.8 limiting indemnity for design 
professionals including professional engineers.) Such obligations to defend, hold 
harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the extent that such 
Liabilities are caused by the negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct 
of the Agency. 

Notwithstanding the above, Consultant's total aggregate liability for damages 
arising from any cause or action whatsoever shall be limited to amounts 
recoverable pursuant to the policy limit amounts detailed in Section 4 above 
inclusive of any deductibles, as long as Consultant maintains in effect and 
applicability the insurance, including but not limited to the amounts, deductibles, 
and scope referenced herein. In no event shall Consultant at any time be liable to 
the Agency for any indirect, incidental or consequential damages which may be 
sustained by them, including but not limited to loss of revenue, profit, business 
reputation or opportunity whether such liability arises out of contract, tort, strict 
liability, warranty or other legal theory whether at law, in equity or otherwise. 

STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only 
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel 
pursuant to Section 1 ; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the 
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, 
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its 
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all 
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, 
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any 
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee 
contributions for PERS benefits. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing the Services, 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 6 of 22 



including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of 
Consultant. 

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit, 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Consultant's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Consultant agrees that for any US employees, it is responsible for the provision 
of group healthcare benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of 
the Affordable Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency 
under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by 
any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant. 

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and 
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant 
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to 
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this 
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that 
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all 
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the 
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 7 of 22 



Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7 .2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to· Agency that 
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant. 

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for 
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination, including 
the cost of any preapproved un-cancellable commitments incurred prior to the 
date of termination; Agency, however, may condition payment of such 
compensation upon Consultant delivering to Agency any or all records or 
documents, as referenced in Section 9. 1 hereof. 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by all the Parties. 

8.3 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement; . 

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by 
Consultant; and/or 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 8 of 22 



Section 9. 

9.1 

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the 
Services that are unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had 
completed the Services. 

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

Records Created as Part of Consultant's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that, 
unless approved . by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, Consultant will 
own the entire right, title and interest to its own background intellectual property 
and nothing in this Agreement is intended to diminish that ownership interest 
and/or transfer, grant or bestow any right, title or interest in the Agency or any 
other party, including any ownership or license interest therein. 

9.2 Consultant's Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under the Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, Agency shall not audit the cost 
or pricing components of any fixed price work as long as doing so does not 
violate state law. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 9 of 22 



where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, ( c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential 
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed . . Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, 
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that 
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 10 of 22 



Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

10.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Consultant in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

10. 7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by the Assistant 
General Manager, Generation Services, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 11 of 22 



10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 

Kinectrics, Inc. 
Attn: Jeff Lewis 
800 Kipling Avenue, Unit 2 
Toronto, Ontario M8Z 5G5 
Canada 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

Jane E. Luckhardt 
General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, for 
Engineering work the first page of a technical report, first page of design 
specifications, and each page of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed 
and signed by the licensed professional responsible for the report/design 
preparation. 

10.10 Integration: Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

10.11.1 

10.11.2 

10.11.3 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 12 of 22 



10.11.4 

10.11.5 

10.11.6 

by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen 
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute 
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to 
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by 
Government Code§§ 900 et seq. 

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal 
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Consultant's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or 
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this Section only "Member") 
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third 
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Services 
relating to such Member. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 13 of 22 



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

Date -----------

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager 

Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

KINECTRICS AES INC. 

Date ------------

SHAHROKH ZANGENEH, 
Chief Commercial Officer 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 14 of 22 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Kinectrics AES Inc. ("Consultant") shall provide the following services as requested by the 
Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members, including: 

1 Standard Generator Testing and Assessment; 

Perform limited visual inspection and off-line diagnostic testing of one generator stator winding, 
includes the following: 

11. Stator Winding Insulation Resistance and Polarization Index: 

Both single phase (A, 8, C) and three phase testing (ABC) are required for assessment of the 
condition of the insulation system at 5 kV. 

Testing is a requirement to ensure a minimum insulation condition prior to proceeding with 
diagnostic testing in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 43. Table 4 of this standard 
indicates the minimum recommended insulation resistance, in MO at 40°C, of the entire machine 
winding (ABC) of 100 MO as a prerequisite for further testing. 

Ill. Stator Winding Capacitance and Dissipation Factor (tan 6) Test: 

Typically single phase testing (A, 8, C) is required for assessment of the condition of the insulation 
system. 

Note: An advance Capacitance & Dissipation Factor measurements between phase to phase can 
also be performed to obtain additional information of the insulation condition. However, in order to 
perform this test, a higher capacity power supply may be required to energize the winding with 
additional cost. 

Tan 5 testing evaluates various factors that influence the performance of the overall electrical 
insulation. Bridge techniques will be employed to properly measure and assess the extent of 
pulseless and pseudo glow discharge activity. Testing is performed in accordance with the 
·requirements of IEEE 286 on each phase at up to rated line to neutral voltage. 

IV. Stator Winding Off-Line Partial Discharge Testing: 

Measurement of the partial discharge quantities 01Ec and OM, as well as PDEV and PDIV are 
required, in the single phase (A, B, C) configuration with coupling capacitors installed at both the 
line end and neutral end of the winding for simultaneous measurements. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 15 of 22 



Note: An advance PD measurements for additional cost can also be performed by connecting all 
three phases together so as to distinguish between the slot and end winding discharges; however 
in this case a higher capacity power supply is normally required due to high capacitance of the 
complete machine. 

Two different methods of measuring PD will be performed with instrumentation using different 
frequency ranges and sensitivities to different types of PD activity. Measurements of 01Ec will be 
performed first, followed by measurements of QM. 

Off-line partial discharge testing evaluates various factors that influence the performance of 
electrical insulation associated with electrical discharges near the Line End of the stator winding. 
Testing is normally performed in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 1434 and/or IEC 
60034-27-1. 

V. Stator Winding Electromagnetic (Corona or TVA) Test 

Single phase (A 8, C) testing is required. During testing of each phase, all slots containing a stator 
coil in either the top or bottom of the slot are scanned. The slots are divided into at least two 
sections, to allow differentiation of PD originating from each end of the core. 

It is recommended that an AC overvoltage voltage test in accordance with IEEE 62.2 7.1.5 of at 
least 1.10 to 1.25 times the rated line-to-neutral voltage of the machine is performed prior to 
performing a TVA probe test (for safety). This overvoltage test provides some assurance of the 
integrity of the winding being tested. 

VI. Stator Winding Ultrasonic Inspection and/or Corona Camera/Corona Scope Inspection of 
Winding Connection End 

Testing is used to identify locations of PD within the end arm region of a stator winding. A scan of 
the end arm region of the connection end of the stator is performed using the ultrasonic detector to 
identify locations of partial discharge. An audio scans can localize areas of partial discharge which 
are not within line of sight 

A corona scope and/or daylight corona camera, can be used to perform limited localization of PD in 
end winding region and requires direct line of sight. 

VII. Stator Winding Resistance 

Winding resistance testing can detect the presence of any high resistance joints, corrosion, or 
fractures of the conductors. The DC winding resistance of each phase (A 1, A2, 81, 82, C1, C2) is 
measured using a Kelvin bridge in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 16 of 22 



VI 11. Stator AC Overvoltage Withstand Test 

AC testing results in the highest stress levels on the insulation system within the slot section of the 
stator core. Acceptance test levels for new machines are 2E+1, while typical maintenance levels 
are 1.25 to 1.50E (E = Rated line to line voltage). Withstand testing provides some assurance that 
the winding insulation has a minimum level of electrical strength required to successfully operate 
for the expected design life or certain period of time. Testing is performed on each phase in 
accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2 on each phase for one minute, with the remaining 
phases grounded. Partial discharge measurements are performed at the withstand voltage level 
during the test. 

IX. Stator Winding DC Ramped Overvoltage Test 

DC testing results in the highest stress levels on the insulation system in the end arm region. 
Typical maintenance levels are 1.25 to 1.50E (E = Rated line to line voltage, ACX 1.7 = DC). 
Ramp testing provides some assurance that the winding insulation has a minimum level of 
electrical strength required for continued operation. Testing is performed in accordance with the 
requirements of IEEE 95 on each phase using a 2 KV/min ramping rate, with the remaining phases 
grounded. 

X. Stator Winding Limited Stator Winding Inspection 

Visual Inspection of the stator winding assembly in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2 

XI. Additional Generator Tests; 

1. Stator Slot Wedge Tightness 

The stator Slot Wedge Tightness of the machine will be checked, and areas of concern would be 
noted. Testing is performed in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2 

2. Stator Core Low Energy (EICID) Test 

The condition of the interlaminar resistance between stator punchings of the machine core is 
evaluated. Testing is performed in accordance with the requirements of IEEE 62.2 using a digital 
EICID test set and findings are recorded. 

3. Isolated Phase Bus Test 

Perform an AC Hipot of 27 kV for 1 minute (15 kV Class lso-Phase Bus), followed by measurement 
of Partial discharge activity at 10.5 kV. Testing is amenable to detecting cracked insulators, 
moisture, loose connections and mounting hardware, and foreign materials. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 17 of 22 



II. Failure Analysis and Other Miscellaneous Technical Assistance 

Perform document review for NCPA on an as requested basis. 

Ill. Qualification Testing of 13.SkV stator bars and coils in accordance with IEEE 1310, IEEE 
1043 and IEEE 1553. 

The following qualification testing consisting of Thermal Cycling Test (TCT) in accordance with IEEE 
1310 followed by Voltage Endurance Test (VET) in accordance with IEEE 1043 and 1553 is performed 
on newly manufactured stator bars and coils.: 

Note: In case of bars normally five bars are required to perform the qualification test and in case of 
coils normally three coils are required. 

THERMAL CYCLING TEST: 

The thermal cycling work to be performed on stator bars/coils consists of: 

1. Uncrating and performance of an incoming inspection of the stator bars/coils to ensure that no transit 
damage has occurred. 

2. Perform an initial diagnostic sub-cycle on each stator bar/coil consisting of 

81 Tap tests on the coils. 
fil Slot corona protection surface resistance measurement. 
g Capacitance, dissipation factor at 0.2, 0.4, 0.6, 0.8, 1.0 Un of rated line to line voltage. 
Ql Partial discharge measurements up to 8 kV or 13.8kV ac rms. 
~ Dimensional measurements in accordance with IEEE 1310 
El Surge testing (coils only): The initial surge testing of the tum insulation will be performed at 40 kV 

(3.5 p.u.), 1 00ns as per IEEE 522. The final surge testing will be performed on completion of 500 
cycles on thermal cycling. The final tum insulation will be performed at 75% i.e. 30kV on each coil. 

3. Performance of thermal cycling test on stator bars/coils as per the requirements of IEEE 1310-1996. 
Control bar/coil will be used to provide copper temperature measurements and hence to control the 
thermal cycling process. The thermal cycle profile will be 40°C-155°C-40°C with an average rate of 
increase/decrease as permitted by IEEE 1310-1996. The number of thermal cycles shall be 500. 

4. Perform a diagnostic sub-cycle after 100, 250 and 500 thermal cycles on each bar/coil that has been 
subjected to thermal cycling. The measurements to be performed as per clause 2 above. 

VOLTAGE ENDURANCE TEST: 
The voltage endurance test will be performed on bars/coils on successful completion of Thermal Cycling and 
surge testing in case of coils in accordance to IEEE 1043 and 1553. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 18 of 22 



The test conditions shall be as follows: 
• Bars/coils at 30kV (Schedule 'A') for 400 hours or (Schedule 'B') for 250 hours as per IEEE 1553. 

Temperature between 90 °C and 130°C (TBD). 

Pass/Fail Criteria: 

Surge Test (Coils Only): 

This is a pass or fail test with no failures permitted. 

The waveform from this test is to be compare with the original test to ensure no shorts have developed 
between turns. A waveshape resulting from any applied surge voltage on any coil that does not match the 
waveshape on the master coil is considered a fail. 

If a failure occurs, the entire lot of bars/coils will be rejected. 

The additional expense for dissection and failure analysis will be mutually discussed and agreed 
upon between Kinectrics and Agency. 

Thermal Cycling Test: 

During the thermal cycling process, the diagnostic testing of the bars/coils at the 100, 250 and 500 cycle 
mark will assist in determining how any one bar/coil is performing as the test is progressing and how any one 
bar/coil performed when the test is completed. Based on experience with these diagnostic tests, it will 
determine if the testing of any said bar/coil should continue through to the voltage endurance test or not. 
Utility and Vendor shall discuss, in detail, precisely what constitutes a failed thermal cycled bar/coil before 
testing begins. 

Voltage Endurance Testing: 

The bars/coils shall be subject to the acceptance criteria as outline in IEEE 1553, Section 5. 

Note 1: Failure of the insulation system anywhere on the bar/coil, including the semi-con I grading interface 
is not permitted, this will be considered a fail. 

Note 2: The area of the bar/coil that encompasses the semiconducting to grading tape interface shall not 
show any signs of physical erosion of the grading or semiconducting tape of any kind such as but not limited 
to, cracking, abrading, flaking, burn through, etc. The interface area shall be defined as the area where the 
grading tape overlaps the semi-conducting tape, plus up to 3.0 linear inches towards the end winding as 
followed along the grading tape surface. 

Physical erosion of this interface area shall be considered a failure for this bar/coil. Discoloration of this 
interface area is permitted. There are no exceptions to this qualifying point. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 19 of 22 



Dissections: Upon completion of the thermal cycling and post-TC testing, a minimum of one bar/coil per 
lab test shall be dissected and microscopically examined to determine the failure mechanism or to confirm 
the winding quality. Any delamination within the ground-wall insulation or de-bonding between the 
conductor strands and the ground-wall insulation and/or turn insulation as well as discoloration in the 
insulation structure shall result in rejection of the bars/coils. 

a. Delamination is defined as the separation of the ground-wall tape layers due to loss of bonding 
strength and/or impregnating compound. 

b. De-bonding is defined as the lack of adhesion between the layers in an insulation system due to 
improperly cured resins or lack of resin or a fracturing of the crystalline resin in the insulation 
matrix. 

c. Discoloration is defined as a change in the colour of the insulation structure from the normal 
translucent brown colour (securely bonded regions) to an opaque white colour (poorly bonded or 
delaminated regions). 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 20 of 22 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed $1,000,000 
subject to Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and 
an estimated amount of expenses is as follows: 

I. Standard Generator Testing and Assessment: $42,000 
II. Advance Generator Testing and Assessment: TBD 
Ill. Additional Generator Tests 

1. Wedge Test: $10,500 

2. ELCID Test: $12,500 

3. lso-Phase·Bus Test: $5,000 

Additional Day (Mon-Fri): $ 

Additional Day (Sat-Sun): $ 

6,500 

8,600 

IV. Technical Assistance and Document Review: 
1. Hourly Rate: $215/Hour 
2. Expenses: Expenses + 15% Handling Fee 

V. Qualification Testing of 13.BkV stator bars/coils:$ 60,000 (Does not include any 
failure analysis and/or repeat testing in case of any failure of the samples) 

NOTES: 
Pricing is valid to December 31, 2027 and is subject to a 3%/year escalation for following years. 
All prices listed are before applicable taxes. 

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested. 

Consultant may revise the hourly rates each year upon the giving of 30 days' advance written 
notice to NCPA. If the parties cannot agree to revised hourly rates, NCPA may terminate the 
Agreement. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 21 of 22 



EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

I, -----------------------------

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity 
and employment history of all employees of 

(Company name) 

for contract work at: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD. LODI. CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the 
above-named project. 

(Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ____ day of _____ , 20 __ . 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Kinectrics AES, Inc. 
Rev'd 7/9/2019 

GS-VEN-2022-028 

Page 22 of 22 



~UBLIC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Parker Landscape Development, Inc. - First Amendment to the Multi-Task General 
Services Agreement for continued use at NCPA all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, 
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Monty Hanks METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Chief Financial 
Officer/Assistant General NIA 
Manager 

Division: Administrative Services If other, please describe: 

Department: General Services 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members lZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

SR: 170:22 



Parker Landscape Development, Inc. First Amendment to 5 Year MTGSA 
May 26, 2022 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve Resolution 
22-59 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the 
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Parker Landscape Development, Inc. for 
professional commercial landscape services, tree care, and special projects increasing the not 
to exceed amount to $300,000. 

BACKGROUND: 
Parker Landscape Development, Inc is a commercial landscape company with over 40 years of 
experience in landscaping design, construction, and maintenance. Parker Landscaping is 
responsive and works well with the Agency in providing landscape services, maintenance 
recommendations, resolving issues, and water-saving recommendations. 

On April 3, 2018, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with 
Parker Landscape Development, for an amount not to exceed $200,000. During the agreement 
term, there were several unforeseen maintenance events, including; a break in the main 
irrigation line, irrigation repairs from the fence project, tree and curb removal for the electric 
vehicle charging stations, and irrigation line repair from the fiber cable installation. Due to these 
unplanned events, an increase to the contract is required for continued services through the 
remaining term of the agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Upon execution, the total not-to-exceed amount of the agreement will increase from $200,000 to 
$300,000 with no changes to the expiration date of April 3, 2023. No budget augmentation is 
necessary as the services are captured within the approved General Services budget for FY22 
& FY23. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 
On May 4, 2022, the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

On May 9, 2022, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee reviewed and approved 
the recommendation above for Commission approval. 

~~Y stmittih 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
Resolution 22-59 
First Amendment to the General Services Agreement between The Northern California 
Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 

SR: 170:22 



RESOLUTION 22-59 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH PARKER LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 

(reference Staff Report #170:22) 

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and Parker Landscape 
Development, Inc entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement effective April 
3, 2018, for professional commercial landscape services, tree care, and special projects; for use 
at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, Southern California Public 
Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, there were several unforeseen maintenance events, including; a break in the 
main irrigation line, irrigation repairs from the fence project, tree and curb removal for the electric 
vehicle charging stations, and irrigation line repair from the fiber cable installation; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the not to 
exceed amount of $200,000 to a not to exceed amount of $300,000 for continued services 
through the remaining term expiring April 3, 2023; and 

WHERAS, both parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect 
change in the physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 
21065 of the California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California 
Power Agency authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment 
to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Parker Landscape Development, Inc. for 
professional commercial landscape services, tree care, and special projects increasing the not to 
exceed amount to $300,000 for continued use at NCPA all facilities owned and/or operated by 
NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders will be issued 
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures. 



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022, by the 
following vote on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 22-59 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND PARKER LANDSCAPE 

DEVELOPMENT, INC. 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") to General Services Agreement is entered into by and 
between the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") and Parker Landscape Development, 
Inc. ("Contractor'') (collectively referred to as "the Parties") as of ________ , 2022. 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a General Services Agreement dated effective April 3, 
2018, (the "Agreement") for Contractor to provide professional commercial landscape services at 
any facilities owned or operated by Agency, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power 
Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA Members; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total 
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a "NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $200,000 to a 
'NOT TO EXCEED amount of $300,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing 
and signed by all the Parties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 2-Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows: 

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED THREE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND dollars ($300,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses 
and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay 
that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures 
under this Agreement. 

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged. 

2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

Date:______ Date: _____ _ 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PARKER LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT INC. 

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager RICK CORREA, Chief Operating Officer 

First Amendment to General Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2018-010 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Template 6-8-18 

Page 1 of 2 



Attest: 

Assistant Secretary of the Commission 

Approved as to Form: 

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel 

First Amendment to General Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2018-010 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 

Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 2 



MULTI-TASK 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND 
PARKER LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT, INC. 

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement ("Agreement') is made by and between the 
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 {"Agency") and Parker Landscape Development, 
Inc., a corporation with its office located at 6011 Franklin Boulevard, Sacramento. CA 95824 
("Contractor") (together sometimes referred to as the "Parties") as of ?\"2.-, k ?:> , 2018 
("Effective Date") in Roseville, California. 

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods 
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work"). 

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective 
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) 
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter. 

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner 
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing 
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to 
provide the Work set forth herein. 

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to 
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time 
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such 
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel. 

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may 
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southam 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA11

) or SCPPA members. 

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to 
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a 
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be 
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to .. exceed cap on monetary 
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that 
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be 
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the 
Agency's issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that 
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to 
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does 
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 



agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase 
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits. 

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT 
TO EXCEED two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) for the Work, which shall include all 
fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor's fee schedule, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee 
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency 
expenditures under this Agreement. 

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month 
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and 
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the 
following information: 

• The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
• Work performed; 
• The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work; 
• At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the 

applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the 
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a 
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with 
supporting documentation, to Agency's reasonable satisfaction; 

• At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under 
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and 
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder. 

Invoices shall be sent to: 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, California 95678 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com 

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices 
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable 
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice 
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor. 

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all 
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform 
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until 
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 2 of 21 



2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days 
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the 
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for 
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have 
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency. 

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at 
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform 
the Work. 

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this 
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of 
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for 
the period covered by this Agreement. 

4.1 Workers' Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall 
maintain Statutory· Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability 
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor 
with limits of not less than one million dollars {$1,000,000.00) per accident. 

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial 
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including 
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of 
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad 
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of 
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001 
( current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive 
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more 
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability 
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement 
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, 
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1 ), 
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The 
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with 
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This 
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and 
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general 
liability insurance. 

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth 
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies 
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomia Power Agency and Park.er Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 3 of 21 



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. NOT APPLICABLE. 

4.4 Pollution Insurance. NOT APPLICABLE 

4.5 All Policies Requirements. 

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with ( 1 ) a Certificate of 
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance 
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies 
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the 
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in 
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any 
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to 
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4. 

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums 
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Contractor. 

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs 
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to 
this Agreement, Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to 
provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy endorsements, as 
referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific Agency member, 
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed. 

4.6 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any 
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of 
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to 
effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be 
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed 
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors. 

4. 7 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring 
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work 
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are 
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this 
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the 
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent 
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation 
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern C&llfomia Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 4of 21 



Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and 
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from 
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification 
and hold harmless clause shall apply to . any damages or claims for damages 
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By 
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration. 

5.2 Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable 
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, 
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation}, judgments and causes of 
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions 
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by 
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement 
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then 
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency. 

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an 
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only 
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant 
to Section 1 ; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by 
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, 
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and 
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shatl not qualify for or 
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any 
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but 
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement 
System {PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to 
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for 
PERS benefits. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of 
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of 
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the 
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge 
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement 
is based upon Contractors estimated costs of providing the Work, including 
salaries and benefits of employees. agents and subcontractors of Contractor. 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit. 
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 5 of 21 



expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to 
Contractor's failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare 
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable 
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable 
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent, 
or subcontractor of Contractor. 

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor 
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any 
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or 
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever. 

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal 
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's 
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional 
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement 
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor 
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written 
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the 
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the 
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall 
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall 
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself 
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors 
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with 
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all 
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to 
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction. 

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the 
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute 
Exhibit C. 

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous 
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at 
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D. 

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or 
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types 
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall 
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance. 

Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 6of 21 



7 .1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this 
Agreement. 

7 .2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and 
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the 
work hereunder. 

7 .3 Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that 
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will 
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to practice their respective professions. 

7 .4 Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

7 .5 Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants 
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to 
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5. 

7 .6 Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per die~ wages for work of a 
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less 
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work 
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in 
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770 
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general 
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be 
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which 
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker 
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request. 
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the 
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the 
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any 
worker or any other third party with regard thereto. 

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding 
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on 
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time. 

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period, 
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of 
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under 
this Agreement. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northam California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 7 of 21 



Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 177 4 
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty 
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid 
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial 
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work 
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under 
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular, 
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. hi addition to the penalty and pursuant to 
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each 
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker 
by the Contractor. 

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 

8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause 
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor. 

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work 
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, 
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to 
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof). 

8.2 Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed 
by both of the Parties. 

8.3 Survivals All obligations arising prior t~ the termination of this Agreement and all 
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.4 Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of 
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings. reports, design documents, 
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by 
Contractor; and/or 

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work 
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would 
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the 
Work. 

Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page Bof 21 



9.1 Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data, 
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the 
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that, 
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other 
documents. 

9.2 Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all 
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or 
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement 
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from 
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement. 

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this 
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for 
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon 
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code 
Section 8546. 7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement 
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to 
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as 
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment 
under this Agreement. 

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure. 

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used 
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret 
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, 
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible 
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential, 
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall 
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party 
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, {b) was disclosed to 
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality 
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without 
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was 
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section. 

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this 
Agreement, either party may disclose (the "Disclosing Party") Confidential 
Information to the other party (the 11Receiving Party"). The Receiving 
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in 
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomia Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 9 of21 



unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such 
Confidential Information. · 

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following 
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall 
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any 
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. 
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation, 
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted 
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such 
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for 
such permitted disclosures: 

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know 
in connection with this Agreement. 

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or 
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and 

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the 
California Public Records Act. 

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination 
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall retum to Disclosing Party or 
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested 
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, 
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival 
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and {c) 
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are 
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the 
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the 
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and 
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement. 

Section 1 O. PROJECT SITE. 

10.1 Operations at the Proiect Site. Each Project site may include the power plant 
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, 
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner 
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if 
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced 
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons 
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a 
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools, 
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to 
Contractor's Work. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 10 of21 



10.2 Contractor's Equipment, Tools. Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of 
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, 
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be 
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost, 
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment, 
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without 
permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an 
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to 
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by 
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither 
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, 
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall 
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired 
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools, 
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project 
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and 
in good condition. 

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely 
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency 
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as 
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work. 

Section 11. WARRANTY. 

11.1 Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law 
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in 
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in 
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations 
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent 
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

11.2 Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency 
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be 
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required 
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor's failure to perform any 
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the 
term of this Agreement or the one ( 1) year period following completion of the 
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by 
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or 
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any 
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's 
satisfaction. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 11 of 21 



11.3 Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional 
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, 
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material 
used in the Work. 

Section 12. HEAL TH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, 
and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program 
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall 
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations 
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for 
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4. 

12.1 Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to 
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request. 

12.2 Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training 
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may 
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified 
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for 
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and 
material handling equipment. 

12.3 Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware 
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein. 

12.4 Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance 
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall 
be required to comply with the ·safety and health obligations as established in the 
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result 
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is 
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be 
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for 
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section 
12. 

12.5 Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety 
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the 
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and 
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested. 

12.6 Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of 
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall 
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of 
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental 
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site 
safety representative upon request. 

12.7 Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous 
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 12 of 21 



12.8 Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who 
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be 
subject to actions including removal from Work. 

12.9 Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the 
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for 
spill containment and clean--up, emergency contact information including 
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous 
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the 
Contractor. 

12.10 If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA 
member (collectively 11Member" solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to 
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency 
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof. 

Section 13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

13.1 Attorneys' Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees in 
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set 
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose. 

13.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested 
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California. 

13.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision 
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this 
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in 
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the 
validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision 
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or 
any other term of this Agreement. 

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose 
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of 
location, would place Contractor in a "conflict of interest," as that term is defined 
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section 
81000 et seq. 

Multi• Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern C81ifomia Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN•2018-010 

Page 13 of 21 



Contractor shall not employ any Agency official i·n the work performed pursuant 
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial 
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code 
Sections 1090 et seq. 

13. 7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Monty 
Hanks, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the 
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the 
representative. 

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to: 

Rick Correa 
Chief Operating Officer 
Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
6011 Franklin Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95824 

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to: 

Randy S. Howard 
General Manager 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

With a copy to: 

General Counsel 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the 
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page 
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed 
professional responsible for the report/design preparation. 

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached 
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations. representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated 
by reference herein. 

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that 
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and 
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following: 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 14 of 21 



13.11.1 

13.11.2 

13.11.3 

13.11 .. 4 

13.11.5 

13.11.6 

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive 
level representative to negotiate any dispute; 

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, 
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority. 

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith 
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement 
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, 
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through 
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute. 

The mediation process shall provide. for the selection within fifteen 
{15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as 
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be 
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the 
mediation. 

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any 
alternative dispute resolution process. 

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition 
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative 
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative 
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be 
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action 
specified by Government Code§§ 900 et seq. 

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal 
{if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the 
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits 
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order 
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control. 

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one 
agreement. 

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent 
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with 
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the 
drafting party shall not apply hereto. 

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of 
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. 
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or 
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only 11Member") 
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a thir:d 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 15 of 21 



party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to 
such Member. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency. 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PARKER LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT INC. 

Date 2J ·l"J · 1 Z 

ARD, General Manager RICK CORREA, Chief Operating Officer 

Attest: 

Approved as to Form: 

JI 

I 

Multl-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Califomla Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018--010 

Page 16of 21 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

PARKER LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT, INC., ("Contractor") shall perform the following services, 
not including work requiring bidding under the California Public Contract Code, as requested by the 
Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at all NCPA locations and Agency members, Southern 
California Public Power Authority ("SCPPA") or SCPPA members, including, without limitation: including but 
not limited to the following: 

Professional Commercial Landscape Services 

• Landscape Maintenance 
o Mowing 
o Edging 
o Blowing 
o Fertlllzing 
o Weed & Pest Control 
o Irrigation 
o Shrubs & Vines 
o Planter Beds 
o Ground Cover 
o Seasonal Plantings 
o System Checks 

• Tree Care 
o Pruning 
o Trimming 
o Staking 

• Special Projects 
o Aeration 
o Reseeding 
o Field Mowing 
o Renovations 
o Irrigation Installation 
o Pavers, Blocks, Rocks & Border Installation 
o 24/7/365 Emergency Services 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 17of 21 



EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set 
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated 
amount of expenses is as follows: 

• By proposal and purchase order on an annual basis for Landscape Maintenance 
• By proposal and purchase orders on a case by case basis for special projects 

Or 

• $36 per hour for general labor 
• $50 per hour for an irrigation technician 
• $85 per hour for emergency services during non-business hours 

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the 
time services are requested. 

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related 
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 18of21 



I, 

EXHIBITC 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors 

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title) 

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity 
and empl.oyment history of all employees of 

fit~ kandSUlpe, 0CV • \v,l-. 

(Company name) 

for contract work at: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI. CA 95242 

(Project name and location) 

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the 
above-named project. c1S) • 

1;t~ I nature of officer or agent) 

Dated this __ Jq_1"h ____ day of ~tlv(K\ ,20 1i 
THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 19of21 



""""'""NOT APPLICABLE""""'"" 

EXHIBIT D 

CERTIFICATION 

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors 

I, ----- --------------- ---------

(Name of person signing affidavitXTitle) 

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans 
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart I and has conducted employee background 
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to 
time, 

(Company name) 

for hazardous materials delivery to: 

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242 

i_ (Project name and location) 

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project. 

{Signature of officer or agent) 

Dated this ________ day of ________ , 20 _. 

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY 
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY 
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER. 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern Callfomia Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 20 of21 



EXHIBIT E 

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA] 
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND 

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT 
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT 

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that: 

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project 
Maintenance Labor Agreement ("Agreement" solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) 
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the 
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered 
Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further 
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a 
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be 
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all 
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto. 

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements 
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the 
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to 
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as 
if made by the undersigned. 

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this 
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, 
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or 
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work. 

DATED: .!? . Jq. I~ Name of Employer 

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between 
Northern California Power Agency and Parker Landscape Development, Inc. 
Rev'd 6/27/2017 

Pt-tl1'GV l..av,dscape De\/. . 
Cbvvniel lo M:caov 
(Authorized Officer & Title) 

v.~ 
011 .SOc,_,,CA 

(Address) ~82-1-

AS-VEN-2018-010 

Page 21 of 21 



\5 
PUA U C AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Review and Approve the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Investment 
Policy and Guidelines No. 200-100 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Monty Hanks 

Assistant General 
Manager/CFO 

Division: Administrative Services 

Department: Accounting & Finance 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ 

City of Gridley □ 

City of Healdsburg □ 

SR: 172:22 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake □ 

City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah □ 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC □ 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 



Review and Approve 2022 Investment Policy Updates 
May 26, 2022 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommending the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Commission approve Resolution 
22-61 authorizing revisions to NCPA's Investment Policy and Guidelines No. 200-100. 

BACKGROUND: 

Investment Policy 
NCPA sets forth its objectives, risk preference, authorized investments and other investment 
related priorities in its Investment Policy. The Investment Policy serves as a guide for setting 
and achieving investment goals, defines rules, and reduces exposure to liability and loss. While 
it has long been deemed good investment practice to have a written policy, it is considered a 
standard of best practice for government agencies to have a written policy and review it annually. 
The Agency's Investment Policy requires that the Treasurer-Controller shall annually submit to 
the Commission a statement of Investment Policy and any recommended changes. 

Staff has reviewed the Investment Policy against California Government Code, Sections 53600 
and 53635 et seq. and recommends including exclusion of OPEB Trust from policy applicability, 
portfolio rebalancing language, addition of portfolio benchmark section, inclusion of language for 
allowance of zero or negative interest accrual for securities issued or backed by the United States 
government during a period of negative market interest rates, addition of Attachment 3 (List of 
Permitted Investments), update of Attachment 4 to include applicable government code sections, 
reduction of maximum allowable investment in commercial paper from 40% to 25% of the portfolio, 
and addition of Supranational Obligations as an approved investment type with a maximum of 15% 
of the total portfolio and a maximum of 5% per issuer for International Bank for Reconstruction 
(IBRD), International Finance Corporation (IFC), and Inter-American Development Bank (IADB). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no direct dollar impact to this proposed policy. The resolution approves the Agency 
policy surrounding investments. The policy follows the California Government Code, Sections 
53600 and 53635 et seq. and in some cases is more restrictive so that the Agency can achieve 
investment goals, define rules, and reduce exposure to liability and loss. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical 
environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

SR: 171:22 



Review and Approve 2022 Investment Policy Updates 
May 26, 2022 
Page 3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

The revisions to NCPA's Investment Policy and Guidelines No. 200-100 were reviewed by the 
Finance Committee on May 10, 2022 and were unanimously recommended for Commission 
approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

3:jH~WA~~ 
General Manager 

Attachments: Resolution 22-61 
Investment Policy and Guidelines No. 200-100 

SR: 171:22 



RESOLUTION 22-61 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
REVIEW AND APPROVE INVESTMENT POLICY GUIDELINES 

(reference Staff Report #172:22) 

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Joint Powers Agreement 
specifies the laws regulating general law cities as being the law that applies to the Agency; 
and · 

WHEREAS, Chapter 4 of the California Government Code, Sections 53600 and 53635 
et seq. deals with the financial affairs of local government agencies, including cities; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA's Investment Policy and Guidelines No. 200-100 sets forth the 
objectives, risk preference, authorized investments and other investment related priorities 
that serves as a guide for setting and achieving investment goals, defining rules, and 
reducing exposure to liability and loss; and 

WHEREAS, staff has performed a review of policies related to the investment of 
NCPA funds and recommends making the following revisions: 1) exclude the Other Post 
Employment Benefit Trust (OPEB Trust) from policy applicability; 2) include portfolio 
rebalancing language in Investment Operations and Guidelines; 3) add portfolio benchmark 
section with 12-month moving average Constant Maturity Treasury (CMT) Index as 
benchmark; 4) add language allowing for zero or negative interest accrual for securities 
issued or backed by the United States government during a period of negative market 
interest rates (sunsets January 1, 2026 unless a subsequent bill amends Section 53601.6 of 
the Government Code); 5) add Attachment 3 (List of Permitted Investments) to supplement 
Attachment 4 (Table of Permitted Investments); update Attachment 4 to include applicable 
government code sections, reduce maximum allowable investment in commercial paper from 
40% to 25% of portfolio, and add Supranational Obligations as an approved investment type 
with a maximum of 15% of the total portfolio and a maximum of 5% per issuer for 
International Bank for Reconstruction (IBRD), International Finance Corporation (IFC), and 
Inter-American Development Bank (IADB); and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee approved staff's recommended revisions to the 
Investment Policy and Guidelines No. 200-100 at their meeting on May 10, 2022; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern 
California Power Agency adopts policy revisions including exclusion of OPES Trust from 
policy applicability, portfolio rebalancing language, adding portfolio benchmark section, 
adding allowance of zero or negative interest accrual for securities issued or backed by the 
United States government during a period of negative market interest rates, adding 
Attachment 3 (List of Permitted Investments), update of Attachment 4 to include applicable 
government code sections, reduced maximum allowable investment in commercial paper 
from 40% to 25% of portfolio, and addition of Supranational Obligations as an approved 



investment type with a maximum of 15% of the total portfolio and a maximum of 5% per 
issuer for the IBRD, IFC, IADB. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this_ day of ______ , 2022 by 
the following vote on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 22-61 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



SUBJECT: 

POLICIES & 
PROCEDURES 

MANUAL 

Investment Policy and 
Guidelines 

No. 200-100 

Owner: 
Accounting & Finance 

APPROVED: 

Effective: 9-1993 
Updated 05-2022 

RANDY S. HOWARD, GENERAL MANAGER 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

POLICY ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE .............................................................................................................. 2 

REFERENCE ............................................................................................................................... 2 

RESPONSIBILITY ........................................................................................................................ 2 

PRUDENCE, PERSONAL RESPONSIBLITY, AND ETHICS ...................................................... 3 

GENERAL OBJECTIVES ............................................................................................................ 3 

PORTFOLIO RISK MANAGEMENT ............................................................................................ 4 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT SECURITIES ................................................................................ 5 

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS ..................................................... 5 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY, INTERNAL CONTROL, AND ACCOUNTING ......................... 5 

SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION ............................................................................ 6 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................... 6 

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS GUIDELINES ............................................................................... 6 

PERFORMANCE BENCHMARK ................................................................................................. 7 

ATTACHMENT 1 - Glossary of Investment Terms ........................................................................... 9 

ATTACHMENT 2 - Investment Fund Objectives ............................................................................. 12 

ATTACHMENT 3 - List of Permitted Investments .......................................................................... 13 

ATTACHMENT 4 - Table of Permitted Investments ....................................................................... 17 

ATTACHMENT 5 -Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments ........................................ 19 

ATTACHMENT 6 - Credit Ratings Comparison .............................................................................. 20 



POLICY 
It is the policy of the Agency to secure, protect and manage the funds of Agency and invest 
surplus funds in a manner which will: 

• comply with applicable California state laws and bond indenture provisions; 
• ensure safety of the principal; 
• provide an appropriate level of liquidity so that money is available when reasonably expected 

to be required for payment of obligations; and, 
• attain a market yield with no undue risks taken to maximize income at the expense of safety, 

liquidity, or investment quality. 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish general guidelines for the management of cash and 
investments of the Agency. The policy pertains to all financial assets of the Agency and any 
other funds under the control of the Treasurer-Controller and concerns the deposit, investment, 
maintenance, and safekeeping of all such assets. 

Proceeds of debt issuance and other indentured funds shall be invested in accordance with the 
Agency's general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy; however, such monies are to 
be invested in accordance with permitted investment provisions of their specific bond 
indentures. See attachment 5. 

This Policy does not apply to any pension moneys, deferred compensation funds, or the Other 
Post Employment Benefit Trust. 

REFERENCE 
• California Government Code Section 53600 et seq. 
• Joint Powers Agreement, Article 11, Section 4.5 (as amended) 
• NCPA Resolution No. 12-72, Authorized Officers for Transactions with the State of California 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
• NCPA Resolution No. 83-103, Establishing the position of Treasurer-Controller 

RESPONSIBILITY 
The Treasurer-Controller is responsible for establishing proper safeguards, controls, and 
procedures to maintain Agency funds in a lawful, rational, and prudent manner. The Treasurer
Controller is responsible for the development of the overall investment policy as well as for the 
development and ongoing administration of the various portfolio strategies, tactics, performance 
monitoring and monthly reporting to the Commission. 

The Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for overseeing the 
development and implementation of investment policy review and approval of the portfolio 
investment strategies, and policy compliance. 

2 



PRUDENCE, PERSONAL RESPONSIBLITY, AND ETHICS 
Prudence: Management of Agency's investments is governed by the Prudent Investor Standard 
as set forth in California Government Code Section 53600.3: 

" ... all governing bodies of local agencies or persons authorized to make investment 
decisions on behalf of those local agencies investing public funds pursuant to this chapter 
are trustees and therefore fiduciaries subject to the prudent investor standard. When 
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public 
funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic 
conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like 
capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like 
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of 
the agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments 
as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law." 

Personal Responsibility: The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons responsible for 
managing Agency funds, acting in accordance with the Investment Policy and exercising due 
diligence, will be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or 
market price changes, provided appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments. 

Ethics: The Treasurer-Controller and other authorized persons involved in the investment 
process ( 1) will refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution 
of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment 
decisions and (2) shall not accept honoraria, gifts or gratuities from any advisor, broker, dealer, 
banker, or other person with whom the Agency conducts business, which has an aggregate 
value in excess of $50.00 in any 12-month period. 

GENERAL OBJECTIVES 
The overriding objectives of the investment program are to preserve principal, provide sufficient 
liquidity, and achieve a reasonable rate of return. The specific objectives for the program are 
ranked in order of importance: 

1. Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. 
Investments will be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 
capital. 

2. Liquidity. The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 

3. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio will be designed with the objective of 
attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles taking into 
account the investment risk constraints for safety and liquidity needs. 

3 



PORTFOLIO RISK MANAGEMENT 
Factors that can lead to an unexpected financial loss can be broadly grouped into the following 
categories; credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk. 

Mitigating credit risk in the portfolio: Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose 
some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its 
debt. Agency will mitigate credit risk by adopting the following strategies: 

1. Diversify the investment portfolio to mitigate losses due to failure of individual issues or 
issuers; 

2. Limit the amount of the total portfolio that may be invested in securities of a particular 
type and any single issuer. Authorized investment limitations under this policy are shown 
in Attachment 4; and, 

3. If securities owned by the Agency are downgraded by at least one Nationally Recognized 
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) to a level below the quality required by this 
Investment Policy, it will be the Agency's policy to review and document the credit 
situation and make a determination as to whether to sell or retain such securities in the 
portfolio. 
a. The Treasurer-Controller will use discretion in determining whether to sell or hold the 

security based on its maturity, the economic outlook for the issuer, and other relevant 
factors. 

b. If a decision is made to retain a downgraded security in the portfolio, its presence in 
the portfolio will be monitored and reported monthly to the governing board. 

Mitigating market risk in the portfolio: Market risk, also referred to as interest rate risk, is the risk 
that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in interest rates. The Agency recognizes 
that, over time, longer-term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns. On the other 
hand, longer-term portfolios have higher volatility when marked-to-market. The Agency will 
mitigate interest rate risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by 
making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow 
purposes. The Agency, therefore, shall adopt the following strategies to control and mitigate its 
exposure to market risk: 

1. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in 
short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements; 

2. The maximum time from investment to maturity of individual securities in the portfolio will 
be five years, except as otherwise stated in this policy. 

Mitigating liquidity risk in the portfolio: Liquidity risk is the inability to convert a security to cash 
on a given date prior to maturity. It refers to the inability to sell a security for its cost and 
therefore it may have to be sold at a loss. The Agency shall employ the following strategies to 
control and mitigate its exposure to liquidity risk: 

1. To the extent possible, match investment maturities with anticipated cash demands. 
2. Since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, maintain portfolios largely of 

securities with active secondary or resale markets. 
3. The Agency will maintain working capital reserves for budgeted operating expenditures in 

short-term investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements. 

4 



AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT SECURITIES 
All investments will be made in accordance with Sections 53600 et seq. of the Government 
Code of the State of California and as described within this Investment Policy. Authorized 
investments under this policy are listed in Attachment 3 and shown in Attachment 4. 

AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 
The Treasurer-Controller shall establish a list of approved brokers, dealers, banks and direct 
issuers of commercial paper to provide investment services to the Agency. The Agency shall 
conduct security transactions only with approved institutions and firms. 

To be eligible for approval all broker/dealer firms must qualify under SEC Rule 15C3-1 (Uniform 
Net Capital Rule), must be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) 
and must be licensed to do business in the State of California and institutions shall have one or 
more of the following attributes: 

• be recognized as a primary government dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve 
Bank; 

• be a regional broker/dealer headquartered in the State of California; or 
• be a national or state chartered bank which is a member of the FDIC; or 
• be a direct issuer of securities eligible for purchase by the Agency. 

Deposits will be made only in qualified public depositories within the state of California as 
established by State law. Deposits will be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation, or, to the extent the amount exceeds the insured maximum, will be collateralized in 
accordance with State law. 

A pool of qualified financial institutions and dealers will be maintained by the Treasurer
Controller using criteria based upon capitalization, credit worthiness, experience, reference 
checks and services offered. Selection of financial institutions and broker/dealers authorized to 
engage in transactions with the Agency will be at the sole discretion of the Agency. 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY, INTERNAL CONTROL, AND ACCOUNTING 
Authority to manage Agency's investment program is derived from the California Government 
Code Sections 53600 et seq. Management responsibility for the investment program is 
delegated to the Treasurer-Controller by Agency Commission Resolution No. 83-103. Pursuant 
to Government Code section 53607 such delegation may be granted for a period of one-year 
and must be renewed annually. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as 
provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established by the Treasurer
Controller or his/her designee. 

The Treasurer-Controller shall establish and maintain a system of internal controls, designed to: 
ensure adherence to this investment policy, the prevention and detection of errors and fraud, the 
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information. 

The Agency maintains its records on the basis of Plant/Program account groups, each of which 
may include one or more investment funds. All investment transactions shall be recorded in the 
various funds of the Agency in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as 
promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board. 

5 



SAFEKEEPING AND COLLATERALIZATION 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the 
Agency shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. Securities will be held in 
the name of the Agency by a third-party custodian designated by the Treasurer-Controller and 
evidenced by trade confirmations and safekeeping holdi_ngs report. 

Collateralization will be required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit and 
repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for 
all funds, a minimum collateralization level measured at specified times is required. 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
Monthly Reports: A monthly report will be provided to the Commission by the Treasurer
Controller. The report shall state compliance of the investment portfolio to the investment policy 
and a statement that the Agency has adequate cash flow and investment maturities to meet 
next month's cash requirements and such other information as may be required by State law. 

The report will disclose, at a minimum, the following information: 
1. An asset listing showing par value, cost adjusted for amortization of premiums and 

accretion of discounts and market value of each security, type of investment, issuer, and 
interest rate; 

2. The Treasurer-Controller's report shall also provide: 
a. an analysis of investment maturities; 
b. a summary of cash and investment activity; and, 
c. an analysis of interest rates/yields with a comparison to benchmark interest rates. 

Annually: The Treasurer-Controller shall annually submit to the Commission a statement of 
Investment Policy and any recommended changes to the policy. 

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS GUIDELINES 
The following general operating guidelines shall be used in performing all investment functions: 
• All investments will be made in the name of the Northern California Power Agency. 
• All investments will be made in compliance with the NCPA Investment Fund Objectives 

(Attachment 2) and the NCPA List and Table of Authorized Investments (Attachments 3 and 
4) unless otherwise required by bond indenture. 

• Investments or collateral for all outside trusteed accounts must be delivered to the trustee. 
• Investments or collateral for all accounts held by NCPA will be delivered to and held in the 

safekeeping of an authorized financial institution. 
• All investment transactions will be recorded in the accounts of the Agency in accordance 

with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as promulgated by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board. All accrued interest on purchased securities will be charged to 
the appropriate interest income account. 

• Funds deposited in banks or savings and loan associations must be held under a written 
contract between the Agency and the institution, which requires collateralization as 
prescribed by law and/or this investment policy. 

• Whenever practical Agency cash is to be consolidated and invested on a pooled concept 
basis. Interest earnings are allocated monthly according to monthly weighted average 
balance for each fund. 

6 



• Unless otherwise restricted, all holdings will be of sufficient size and held in issues which are 
actively traded to facilitate transactions at a minimum cost and accurate market valuation. 

• Passive management portfolio strategies are preferred for all operating projects or other 
Agency programs, unless otherwise prohibited or restricted. The Agency purchases 
investments with the intention to hold to maturity. When it is in the best interest of its 
members and participants, the Agency may rebalance the portfolio consistent with its 
Investment Policy and Plan. 

• When practicable, competitive bidding will be utilized for all investment and reinvestment 
activities not involving escrowed or other funds covered by a separate contract or 
agreement. 

PERFORMANCE BENCHMARK 
The investment portfolio will be designed to obtain a market rate of return during budgetary and 
economic cycles, taking into account the Agency's investment risk constraints and cash flow 
needs. The Finance Committee has elected to use the 12-month moving average Constant 
Maturity Treasury (CMT) Index for the performance standard of the portfolio's major funds with 
various maturities based on each fund's cash flow requirements. 

Prohibited investment vehicles and practices: 
1. Notwithstanding that any such investment is permitted under State Law, any investment 

not specifically described herein is prohibited, including, but not limited to derivatives, 
futures and options. 

2. In accordance with California Government Code Section 53601.6, investment in inverse 
floaters, range notes, or mortgage derived interest-only strips is prohibited. 

3. Investment in any security that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity is 
prohibited, with the exception of securities issued by, or backed by, the United States 
government that could result in zero- or negative-interest accrual if held to maturity, in the 
event of, and for the duration of, a period of negative market interest rates* 1. 

4. Trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating, whether on the future direction of 
interest rates or otherwise, is prohibited. 

5. Purchasing or selling securities on margin is prohibited. 
6. The use of reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending or any other form of 

borrowing or leverage is prohibited. 
7. The purchase of foreign currency denominated securities is prohibited . 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 1 - Glossary of Investment Terms 
Attachment 2 - Investment Fund Objectives 
Attachment 3 - List of Permitted Investments 
Attachment 4 - Table of Permitted Investments 
Attachment 5 - Table of Bond Indenture Permitted Investments 
Attachment 6 - Credit Rating Comparison 

1 This provision sunsets on or after January 1, 2026, unless a subsequent bill amends Section 53601.6 of the Government 

Code. 

7 



VERSION HISTORY 

No. Explanation Date Author 

Added portfolio rebalancing, performance benchmark, 05/22 SA 
and zero or negative interest accrual during periods of 
negative interest rates language. Added attachment 

9 
for List of Permitted Investments, updated Table of 
Permitted Investments to included applicable 
government section codes, revise investment titles, 
reduce maximum investment in commercial paper, 
and updated ratinq requirement and other lanquaqe. 
Increased maximum percentage of portfolio limit for 2/21 SA 
municipal bonds to 30%. Added Attachment 3 footnote 

8 defining parameters for Agency purchase of members' 
municipal bonds and updated Attachment 4 footnote 
to specify 2019 Capital Facilities Indenture. 
Revisions to permitted investments; update note on 2/20 SA 

7 Credit Ratings Comparison attachment to reflect 
minimum rating category of A. 
Minor language clean-up; updates to the Permitted 8/17 MH 

6 Investments; and changes to the Investment Fund 
Objectives 
Revised a resolution reference 11/16 SA 

5 Updated maximum investment permitted by LAIF 
Added Authorized Financial Institution 

4 Annual review, no changes 11/15 SA 
3 Annual review, no chanqes 11/14 KWW 

Combined prior policies 200-97 and 200-98; updated 
to include more information on allowable investments, 

2 delegations, authorized financial institutions, and 11/13 KWW 
operations practices, Includes expanded attachments 
and glossary. 

1 Updated 9/95 DBL 
0 Original Policy 9/93 DBL 

8 



ATTACHMENT 1 
GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT TERMS 

Agencies - Shorthand market terminology for any obligation issued by a government sponsored 
enterprise (GSE), or a federally related institution. Most obligations of GSEs are not 
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Examples are: 
• FFCB. The Federal Farm Credit Bank System provides credit and liquidity in the agricultural 

industry. FFCB issues discount notes and bonds. 
• FHLB. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides credit and liquidity in the housing market. 

FHLB issues discount notes and bonds. 
• FHLMC. Like FHLB, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation provides credit and 

liquidity in the housing market. FHLMC, also called "Freddie Mac" issues discount notes, 
bonds and mortgage pass-through securities. 

• FNMA. Like FHLB and Freddie Mac, the Federal National Mortgage Association was 
established to provide credit and liquidity in the housing market. FNMA, also known as 
"Fannie Mae," issues discount notes, bonds and mortgage pass- through securities. 

Certain GSE obligations are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the US government. An 
example is: 
• GNMA. The Government National Mortgage Association, known as "Ginnie Mae," issues 

mortgage pass-through securities. 
Callable - A callable security gives the issuer the option to call it from the investor prior to its 
maturity. The main cause of a call is a decline in interest rates. If interest rates decline since an 
issuer issues securities, it will likely call its current securities and reissue them at a lower rate of 
interest. Callable securities have reinvestment risk as the investor may receive its principal back 
when interest rates are lower than when the investment was initially made. 
Certificate of Deposit (CD) -A time depositwith a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate. 
Large denomination CDs may be marketable. 
Collateral - Securities or cash pledged by a borrower to secure repayment of a loan or 
repurchase agreement. Also, securities pledged by a financial institution to secure deposits of 
public monies. 
Commercial paper - Short-term unsecured debt of corporations. 
Coupon - The rate of return at which interest is paid on a bond. 
Current yield - The annual income from an investment divided by the current market value. 
Since the mathematical calculation relies on the current market value rather than the investor's 
cost, current yield is unrelated to the actual return the investor will earn if the security is held to 
maturity. 
Dealer - A dealer acts as a principal in security transactions, selling securities from and buying 
securities for his own position 
Delivery vs. payment (DVP) - A securities industry procedure whereby payment for a security 
must be made at the time the security is delivered to the purchaser's agent. 
Demand Deposit - Sometimes referred to as a sight or on call deposit, can be withdrawn at 
any time (on demand) without notice or penalty; e.g., deposits into checking or savings 
accounts. 
Derivative - Any security that has principal and/or interest payments which are subject to 
uncertainty (but not for reasons of default or credit risk) as to timing and/or amount, or any 
security which represents a component of another security which has been separated from 

9 



other components ("Stripped" coupons and principal). A derivative is also defined as a financial 
instrument the value of which is totally or partially derived from the value of another instrument, 
interest rate or index. 
Discount - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the 
cost is below par. Some short-term securities, such as T-bills and banker's acceptances, are 
known as discount securities. They sell at a discount from par, and return the par value to the 
investor at maturity without additional interest. Other securities, which have fixed coupons, trade 
at a discount when the coupon rate is lower than the current market rate for securities of that 
maturity and/or quality. 
Diversification - Dividing investment funds among a variety of investments to avoid excessive 
exposure to any one source of risk. 
Duration - The weighted average time to maturity of a bond where the weights are the present 
values of the future cash flows. Duration measures the price sensitivity of a bond to changes in 
interest rates. (See modified duration). 
Federal funds rate - The rate of interest charged by banks for short-term loans to other banks. 
The Federal Reserve Bank through open-market operations establishes it. 
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) - A self-regulatory organization for 
brokerage firms doing business in the United States. FINRA operates under the supervision of 
the SEC. The organization's objectives are to protect investors and ensure market integrity. 
Liquidity - refers to the requirement that some portion of cash assets be invested in securities 
readily convertible into cash without loss of capital. 
Make whole call - A type of call provision on a bond allowing the issuer to pay off remaining 
debt early. The issuer has to make a lump sum payment derived from a formula based on the 
net present value (NPV) of future coupon payments that will not be paid because of the call. 
Investors will be compensated, or "made whole." 
Market value - The price at which a security can be traded. 
Mark to market - The process of posting current market values for securities in a portfolio. 
Maturity - The final date upon which the principal of a security becomes due and payable. 
Money market - The market in which short term debt instruments (T-Bills, discount notes, 
commercial paper and banker's acceptances) are issued and traded. 
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NSRSO) - Is a credit rating agency 
(CRA) that issues credit ratings that the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 
permits other financial firms to use for certain regulatory purposes. The largest NSROs are 
Moody's, Standard and Poor's and Fitch. 
Portfolio Re-Optimization - Refers to the process wherein investment broker(s) re-evaluate a 
given dedicated investment portfolio using sophisticated computer programs based on the 
updated program or project estimated cash flows. This is usually done to increase or protect the 
portfolio's overall rate of return as a result of changing liability amounts or dates, changing 
market or credit risk condition, or a change in investment policy restrictions, etc. 
Portfolio Strategy - Determining investment practices to best achieve the investors' primary 
goals. Strategies may be either passive or active. Passive strategies include: buy and hold, 
which includes the laddering of maturities; and bullet structure, which is designed to invest to a 
particular date or portfolio horizon; and benchmarking, which is done to mirror a particular 
segment of the market. Active strategies employ additional risk to take advantage of conditions 
in the fixed income markets that change as economic and financial conditions change. 

10 



Premium - The difference between the par value of a bond and the cost of the bond, when the 
cost is above par. 
Primary Dealer - a firm that buys government securities directly from a government, with the 
intention of reselling them to others, thus acting as a market maker of government securities. 
The government may regulate the behavior and numbers of its primary dealers and impose 
conditions of entry. 
Repurchase agreement {RP, Repo) - Short term purchases of securities with a simultaneous 
agreement to sell the securities back at a higher price. From the seller's point of view, the same 
transaction is a reverse repurchase agreement. 
Risk - refers to the degree of probability of incurring a monetary loss as a result of investing in a 
particular security. Three general kinds of investment risks are: 

• Credit Risk - risk that an issuer of a security cannot meet its obligations. 
• Market Risk - risk from fluctuations in the market prices for individual securities over a 

period of time. 
• Liquidity Risk- risk of an inability to sell a security at its fair market value. 

Safety - refers to the varying degrees and types of risks associated with different types of 
investment securities and individual issues. Safety is a matter of degree, not an absolute. 
Safekeeping -A service to bank customers whereby securities are held by the bank (as 
custodian) in the customer's name. 
Total rate of return - A measure of a portfolio's performance over time. It is the internal rate of 
return, which equates the beginning value of the portfolio with the ending value; it includes 
interest earnings, realized and unrealized gains, and losses in the portfolio. 
U.S. Treasury obligations - Securities issued by the U.S. Treasury and backed by the full faith 
and credit of the United States. Treasuries are considered to have no credit risk, and are the 
benchmark for interest rates on all other securities in the US and overseas. The Treasury issues 
both discounted securities and fixed coupon notes and bonds. 
Treasury bills - All securities issued with initial maturities of one year or less are issued as 
discounted instruments, and are called Treasury bills. The Treasury currently issues three- and 
six-month T-bills at regular weekly auctions. It also issues "cash management" bills as needed 
to smooth out cash flows. 
Treasury notes -All securities issued with initial maturities of two to ten years are called 
Treasury notes, and pay interest semi-annually. 
Treasury bonds - All securities issued with initial maturities greater than ten years are called 
Treasury bonds. Like Treasury notes, they pay interest semi-annually. 
Uniform Net Capital Rule - An SEC rule that requires broker-dealers to maintain sufficient 
liquidity to protect securities customers, counterparties, and creditors. Broker-dealers must 
maintain net capital (net worth adjusted by certain deductions for illiquid assets and reserves 
against possible market losses on securities positions) such that the liabilities incurred by the 
broker-dealer (aggregate indebtedness) do not exceed certain specified levels. 
Volatility - The rate at which security prices change with changes in general economic 
conditions or the general level of interest rates. 
Yield to Maturity - The annualized internal rate of return on an investment which equates the 
expected cash flows from the investment to its cost. 

11 



ATTACHMENT 2 
INVESTMENT FUND OBJECTIVES 

Primary 
Investment 

Fund Type Objective 
Bond Financed Project Funds: 2 

Construction Fund (Geo) C 
Construction Revolving Acct (LEC) A 
Debt Service Fund C 
Debt Service Reserve B,D 
Reserve Fund B,C,D 
Rebate Fund C 
O&M Reserve (LEC) A,B,D 
Revenue Fund A,B,C 

Additional Operating Funds: 
Operating Account A,C 
General Operating Reserve A,B,C 
SCPA Balancing Account A,B 
Capital Development Account (Hvdro) A,C 
Decommissioning Account (Geo) C,D 

Notes: 
A. Provide liquidity 
B. Provide reserves against uncertain liabilities 
C. Match prescribed cash flow 
D. Maximize long-term return on investment 

Maximum 
Term of 

Investment 1 

1 year 
90 days 
1 year 

15 years 
5 years 
5 years 
5 years 
1 year 

5 years 
5 years 
5 years 
5 years 
10 years 

1 Investments shall mature not later than such times as shall be necessary to provide monies 
when reasonably expected to be needed for payments to be made from such fund. 

2 Proceeds of debt issuance and other funds held under a bond indenture shall be invested in 
accordance with the Agency's general investment philosophy as set forth in this policy; 
however, such moneys are to be invested in accordance with permitted investment 
provisions of their specific bond indentures. 

12 



ATTACHMENT 3 
LIST OF PERMITTED INVESTMENTS 

The California Government Code (Sections 53600 et seq.) governs investment of Agency funds. 
The following investments are authorized: 

1. U.S. Treasury Obligations (e.g. Treasury notes, bonds and bills) Securities that are backed 
by the full faith and credit of the United States 

a) There is no limit on purchase of these securities. 
b) All purchased securities must have an explicit or a de facto backing of the full faith 

and credit of the U.S. Government. 
c) Securities will not exceed 15 years maturity in accordance with Attachment 2 of this 

po-licy 

2. U.S. Federal Agency Obligations - Obligations issued by the Federal Government agencies 
(e.g. Federal National Mortgage Association). 

a) There is no limit on purchase of these securities except for: Callable and Multi-step-up 
securities provided that: 

i) The potential call dates are known at the time of purchase 
ii) The interest rates at which they "step-up" are known at the time of purchase 
iii) The entire face value of the security is redeemed at the call date 

b) Securities will not exceed 15 years maturity in accordance with Attachment 2 of this 
policy. 

3. Municipal Bonds including California State, California Local Government Agencies, 
and other United States State Bonds 

a) Having at time of investment a minimum Category A (A-/Aa3) rating as provided by a 
nationally recognized rating service. 

b) May not exceed 30 percent of the par value of the portfolio. 
c) Investments include: 

i) Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of the State of California 
and bonds, notes, warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness of any local 
agency within California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues 
from a revenue producing property owned, controlled, or operated by the state 
or local agency or by a department, board, agency, or authority of the state or 
local agency. 

ii) Registered treasury notes or bond of any of the 49 United States in addition to 
the State of California, including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from 
a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated by a state or by a 
department, board, agency or authority of any of the other 49 United States, in 
addition to the State of California. 

13 



d) Securities will not exceed 10 years maturity in accordance with Attachment 2 of this 
policy. 

4. Certificates of Deposit (CD) - A debt instrument issued by a bank for a specified period of 
time at a specified rate of interest. Purchase of CD's are limited to: 

a) May not exceed 20 percent of the par value of the portfolio. 
b) No more than 5 percent of the par value of the portfolio in collateralized CDs in any 

institution. 
c) Purchase collateralized deposits only from federally insured banks that are rated by a 

nationally recognized rating service. 
d) For non-rated banks, deposit should be limited to amounts federally insured (FDIC). 

5. Bankers Acceptances' - Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by 
commercial banks. Purchase of bankers' acceptances are limited to: 

a) No more than 40 percent of the par value of the portfolio. 
b) Not to exceed 180 days maturity. 
c) No more than 5 percent of the par value of the portfolio with any one institution. 
d) Having at time of investment a minimum Category A (A-/Aa3) rating as provided by a 

nationally recognized rating service. 

6. Commercial Paper - Short-term unsecured obligations issued by banks, corporations, and 
other borrowers. Purchases of commercial paper are limited to: 

a) Having highest letter or numerical rating as provided for by a nationally recognized 
rating service. 

b) No more than 25 percent of the par value of the portfolio. 
c) Not to exceed 270 days maturity. 

7. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) - A State of California managed investment pool 
may be used up to the maximum permitted by California State Law. 

8. California Asset Management Program (CAMP) - A California Joint Powers Authority 
("JPA'') managed investment pool may be used up to the maximum permitted by California 
State Law. 

9. Repurchase Agreements (REPO) - A contractual agreement between a seller and a buyer, 
usually of U.S. government securities, whereby the seller agrees to repurchase the securities 
at an agreed upon price and, usually, at a stated time. Purchases of REPO's must: 

a) Not to exceed 1 year. 
b) Market value of securities that underlay a repurchase agreement shall be valued at 

102 percent or greater of the funds borrowed against those securities. 

10. Mutual Funds and Money Market Funds - consisting of investment vehicles permitted 
under Sections 53601 and 53635 of the California Government Code. To be eligible for 
Agency investments, mutual funds shall have the following: 

14 



a) The highest rating provided by not less than two of the three largest NRSROs. 
b) An investment advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission for 

not less than five years having investment experience in the underlying securities and 
with assets under management in excess of $500 million. 

Money Market Funds must meet either 1 or 2 above. A thorough analysis of the portfolio is 
required prior to investing, and on a continual basis. Analysis shall include creditworthiness, 
size, safety, ease of investment liquidation, frequency of earnings distributions, frequency of 
account statements, and investment portfolio strategy. Securities owned in mutual funds 
and investment pools will not count towards maximum percentages of other categories. 

a) Maximum Holdings = 20% of portfolio dollars 
b) Maximum per Fund = 5% of portfolio dollars 

11. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (NCD) issued by nationally or state chartered banks 
and state or federal savings institutions. Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit: 

a) May not exceed 30 percent of the par value of the portfolio. 
b) No more than 5 percent of the par value of the portfolio in any one institution. 
c) If below FDIC limit, no credit rating is required. 
d) If above FDIC limit, a minimum Category A (A-/Aa3) rating as provided by a nationally 

recognized rating service is required. 

12. Medium-Term Corporate Notes - Issued by corporation organized and operating within the 
United States or by depository institutions licensed by the United States or any state and 
operating with the United States. 

a) Not to exceed 5 years maturity. 
b) Having at time of investment a minimum Category A (A-/Aa3) rating as provided by a 

nationally recognized rating service. 
c) No more than 30 percent of the par value of the portfolio. 
d) No more than 5 percent of the par value may be invested in securities of any single 

issuer, other than the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentality. 
e) If securities owned by the Agency are downgraded by a nationally recognized rating 

service to a level below A- or Aa3, it shall be the Agency's policy to review the credit 
situation and determine whether to sell or retain such securities in the portfolio. The 
Agency shall be required to include information about the downgraded investment in 
the monthly Treasurer's Report until such time that the investment matures or the 
Agency sells it. 

13. Supranational Organizations Securities - Supranational organizations refer to the 
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD), International Finance 
Corporation (IFC) and Inter-American Development Bank (IADB). 

a) Securities will not exceed 5 years maturity. 
b) No more than 15 percent of the par value of the portfolio. 
c) No more than 5 percent of the par value with any one institution. 

15 



d) Securities eligible for investment shall have a minimum rating of AA or Aa2 from a 
nationally recognized rating service. 

e) Limited to United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated 
obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by IBRD, IFC, and IADB. 

Attachment 1 provides a more detailed description of the investment vehicles and security and 
liquidity features. Most of the Agency's short-term investments will be in securities which pay 
principal upon maturity, while long-term investments may be in securities that periodically repay 
principal, as well as interest. Most of the Agency's investments will be at a fixed rate. However, 
some of the investments may be at a variable rate, so long as that rate changes on specified 
dates in predetermined increments. 

16 



ATTACHMENT 4 
TABLE OF PERMITTED INVESTMENTS 

Concentration limits and credit criteria apply at time of purchase. The following represent the 
maximum maturities for and maximum percentage or dollar amounts that may be invested in 
specific investment types: 

Maximum Minimum Rating Maximum Other Gov't Code 
Type of Investment %of 

Portfolio 
Requirement Maturity Restrictions Sections 

US Treasury Obligations 100% None 5 Years2 None 
53601(b) 

U.S. Agency 
100% None 5 Years2 None 

53601 (f) 
Obligations 

Local Agency 
Up to max 
permitted None N/A None 16429.1 

Investment Fund (LAIF) by Code 

Medium-term Corporate 
By a NRSRO; 

No more than 53601(k) 
Notes 

30% Category A or its equivalent 5 years 
5% per issuer 

or better* 
California Asset 

53601(p) 
Management Program 100% None N/A None 

(CAMP) 
(Non-negotiable 

20% None 5 years No more than 
53630 et seq. 

Certificates of Deposit) 5% per issuer 
No rating for amount< FDIC 

Negotiable Certificates 
30% 

insurance; By a NRSRO; 
5 years No more than 53601 (i) 

of Deposit Category A for amounts > 5% per issuer 
than FDIC insurance 

By a NRSRO; Long-term of 
No more than 53601 (g) Bankers' Acceptances 40% Category A or short-term of A- 180 days 

1 or better 5% per issuer 

Assets 

Commercial Paper 25% 
By a NRSRO; Highest letter 

270 days >$500MM 
53601 (h)(2)(c) and number rating No more than 

5% per issuer 
Registered 

Mutual Funds and 
with SEC; 

Money Market Mutual 20% 
By a NRSRO; Highest rating 

5 years Assets> 53601 (I) and 

Funds 
by minimum of two $500MM; No 53601.6(b) 

more than 5% 
per fund 

Collateral of 

Repurchase 
at least 102% 

100% None 1 year of market 536010) Agreements 
value 

required 

Municipal Bonds1 30% 
By a NRSRO; Category A or 

5 Years2 No more than 53601 (a)(c)(d) 
its equivalent or better 5% per issuer (e) 

Supranational 
15% 

"AA" rating category or its 
5 Years No more than 

53601(q) Obligations equivalent or better 5% per issuer 

• Includes any rating modifiers such as"+"/"-" or numbers to include equivalent ratings from NRSRO 
1 An investment in a municipal bond may include a bond or other debt security of the Agency's local agency 

members; provided, absent an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that the exclusion from gross 

17 



income of interest on the municipal bond will not be adversely affected for federal income tax purposes, the 
following criteria are met: 

a. The municipal bond has not been issued by or on behalf of Agency; and 
b. Any local agency members who are either the issuer of the municipal bond or are beneficiaries (e.g., a 

conduit borrower) of the proceeds of the municipal bond do not have greater than forty.;.nine percent 
voting power with respect to any action of Agency. 

2 The Maximum Maturity for U.S. Treasury and Federal Agency obligations and Municipal Bonds is five years for 
all funds with the exception of the following: 

a. Debt Service Reserve funds in accordance with respective bond covenants restrictions and Attachment 
2 of this policy. 

b. The Geo Decommissioning Fund in accordance with Attachment 2 of this policy. 

18 



ATTACHMENT 5 
TABLE OF BOND INDENTURE PERMITTED INVESTMENTS 

Project Geo/Hydro 2 Cap Facilities/LEC 3 

Debt Debt 
Debt Service Debt Service 

Service Reserve All Service Reserve 
Securities 1 Acct. Acct. Other Acct. Acct. 

Direct obligations of the United Stated of America. X X X X X 

Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are 
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X X X 

America. 

Bonds issued or guaranteed by federal Agencies, which are not 
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of X X X X X 

America. 

New Housing Authority bonds or notes of public agencies or 
municipalities secured by a pledge of annual contributions to be X X X 

paid by the United States or agency thereof. 

Direct and general obligations of the State of California or X X 
political subdivision rated A or higher. 

General obligation of any state rated A2 or higher. 

Time deposits, FDIC insured or collateralized. X 

Repurchase aqreements, insured or collateralized. X 

Money Market Funds rated AAAm G or AAAM or better. 

Commercial Paper rated P-1 or A 1 +. 

UD dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds or 
bankers' acceptances with ratings of A-1, A-1 + or P-1. 

Prefunded municipal obligations rated highest rating category 
bv S&P or Moodv's, based on an irrevocable escrow. 

Investment Agreements & GICS, supported by opinion of X X 
counsel. 

California LAIF. 

Shares in a California common law trust which invests 
exclusively in investment permitted under CA Code section 
56635. 

Any other form of investment. 

1 Investment types are detailed in each project bond Indenture of Trust. Generally, investment securities 
include those listed above, if and to the extent the same are legal for investment of Agency funds. The 
securities, as listed above, are summarized and may have additional limitations as to specific issuers, 
ratings, term of investment, or other requirements. 

2 The Geothermal Project bond indenture dated November 1, 1983 and the Hydroelectric Project bond 
indenture dated March 1, 1985 have the same definition for investment securities. 

3 The Capital Facilities Project bond indenture dated December 1, 2019, the Lodi Energy Center Issues 
One and Two, dated June 1, 2010 have the same definition for investment securities. 

19 

All 
Other 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 



Description 

Prime: 
Extremely Strong 

High Grade: 
Very Strong 

Upper Medium 
Grade: 

Strong 

Lower Medium 
Grade: 

Adequate 

Non-investment 
Grade speculative: 

Vulnerable 

ATTACHMENT 6 
CREDIT RATINGS COMPARISON 

Standard 
Moody's & Poors 

Long- Short- Long- Short-
term term term term 

Aaa AAA 

Aa1 AA+ A-1+ 
Aa2 P-1 AA 
Aa3 AA-

A1 A+ A-1 
A2 A 
A3 A-

P-2 A-2 
Baa1 BBB+ 
Baa2 P-3 BBB A-3 
Baa3 BBB-

Ba1 BB+ 
Not 

Ba2 Prime BB B 
Ba2 BB-

Fitch 
Long- Short-
term term 

AAA 

AA+ F1+ 
AA 
AA-

A+ F1 
A 
A-

F2 
BBB+ 
BBB F3 
BBB-

BB+ 

BB B 
BB-

Credit ratings are opinions about credit risk published by a rating agency. They express 
opinions about the ability and willingness of an issuer, such as a corporation, state or city 
government, to meet its financial obligations in accordance with the terms of those obligations. 
Credit ratings are also opinions about the credit quality of an issue, such as a bond or other debt 
obligation, and the relative likelihood that it may default. 

The Agency shall not invest in any security rated less than rating category A or its equivalent. 

Attachment 6 



PU8UC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Temporary Lodi Energy Center (LEC) Scheduling and Dispatch Operations and 
Economic Criteria; Applicable to the following: Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) LEC 
Facility 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: 

Division: 

Marc Pelletier \V\\l, \ 
Acting Assistant General 
Manager 

Generation Services 

Department: Combustion Turbines 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members □ 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
~ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs IZI 

City of Gridley IZI 

City of Healdsburg ~ 

SR: 173:22 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi IZI City of Shasta Lake □ 

City of Lompoc IZI City of Ukiah IZI 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC ~ 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland □ 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Santa Clara IZI Other □ 

If other, please specify CDWR, City of Azusa, 

Modesto Irrigation District, 
and PWRPA 



May 26, 2022 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 22-62 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to implement the 
temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines described in Staff Report No. 173:22, as such may 
be adjusted as needed to achieve the objective of the strategy, until the unit gear can be 
replaced and full repairs are completed. 

BACKGROUND: 

LEC Staff performed unit equipment inspections during their planned major maintenance outage 
during the period of March 2022 through May of 2022. During that outage, LEC Staff performed 
an inspection of the gearbox that connects the high-pressure steam turbine to the generator and 
discovered a broken tooth on the gear. Consistent with LEC Staff protocol with Siemens 
equipment, LEC Staff sent a request for a disposition to Siemens engineering department. In 
response to such disposition, Siemens indicated that the ideal recommendation would be to 
replace the damaged gear. However, due to long lead times, LEC Staff is unable to immediately 
obtain the replacement gear at this time. LEC Staff consulted with the gearbox manufacturer, 
Flender, regarding the best solution under the circumstances. Flender recommended LEC 
continue operating the gear, but at less than full capacity, resulting in the unit being de-rated by 
25%. However, Flender stated that they cannot guarantee gearbox integrity even at this de-rated 
unit capacity. 

Due to the damaged unit gear, there are mechanical risks associated with operating the unit, but 
such risks may be mitigated by operating the unit consistent with the manufacturer's 
recommendation, or operating the unit at a de-rated operating level of 225 MW. Operating the 
unit at the recommended level also creates other financial risks associated with the guaranteed 
loss of revenue should LEC strictly operate in accordance with the recommendations from 
Flender. Both of these forms of risk are mutually exclusive. In order to mitigate the overall risk to 
LEC Project Participants, there must be a balan·ce between the option of a full de-rate and the 
desire to run the unit without restrictions. 

Operationally, NCPA was unable to perceive or detect any problems with the gearbox prior to the 
inspection that revealed the broken tooth. It is unknown when it broke and how long the unit was 
operating this way. The manufacturer states that it will not be able to ship replacement parts until 
January 5, 2023. LEC Staff notes the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) has 
warned of a shortfall in energy supplies available to California this summer and fall 
(Memorandum; Briefing on 2022 Summer Loads and Resources Assessment Results; Neil 
Millar, Vice President, Infrastructure & Operation Planning; May 5, 2022). Due to the extreme 
lead times associated with receipt of the replacement gear, and due to the projected tight energy 
supply conditions forecasted during the summer of 2022, LEC Staff recommends a strategy that 
will attempt to maintain the operational integrity of the unit based on the gearbox manufacturer's 
recommendations, but will also strive to enable market dispatch of the full unit capacity during a 
limited number of hours (up to 400 hours) to support grid reliability. The objective of this strategy 
involves temporarily operating the unit at the de-rated capacity (225 MW) during a majority of 
operating hours, but bidding the full unit capacity into the CAISO markets to enable the unit to be 
dispatched at full unit capacity during a limited number of hours (up to 400 hours) to support grid 
reliability. LEC Staff will perform additional enhanced vibration monitoring and analysis of the 
gearbox while this temporary operating strategy is in place to help detect changes in the gear 
that may signal imminent unit failure. LEC Staff notes and requests LEC Project Participant 

SR: 173:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page 3 

acknowledgment that this strategy does deviate from the recommendations of the manufacturer, 
and therefore may increase the risk of unit damage or an ext~nded unit outage. 

Temporary Scheduling and Bidding Guidelines 
In order to implement a strategy focused on operating the unit consistent with the manufacturer's 
recommendations for a majority of operating hours, but to also enable market dispatch of the full 
unit capacity during a limited number of hours (up to 400 hours) to support grid reliability, LEC 
Staff recommends adopting temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines to augment the 
Scheduling and Dispatch Operations and Economic Criteria set forth in the Lodi Energy Center 
Project Management and Operations Agreement Schedule 1.00 (PMOA Schedule 1 ). Such 
temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines will authorize LEC Staff to bid the unit into the 
CAISO day-ahead and real-time market as follows: LEC Staff will bid the unit capacity up to 225 
MW based on the guidelines set forth in PMOA Schedule 1, and LEC Staff will bid the 
incremental unit capacity from 225 MW up to the units full capacity1 to include an additional cost 
adder to account for the use-limited nature of the targeted number of hours operating at this 
higher output level (up to 400 hours), including accounting for opportunity costs as a component 
of the bid rate. The objective of the temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines described 
herein is to preserve the integrity of the unit, but to also enable the unit to be dispatched to full 
load for a limited number of hours to support grid reliability. 

It is important to note that due to various bidding requirements and market-based factors, 
including, but not limited to the unit's potential exposure to market power mitigation and CAISO 
exceptional dispatch, NCPA Staff may be required to adjust the temporary scheduling and 
bidding guidelines described herein to achieve the objective of the strategy as directed by the 
LEC Project Participants. 

INSURANCE: 

In regards to the insurance risk, NCPA Staff met separately with LEC's property insurer, FM 
Global, to review the current situation relative to reinstalling the compromised gearbox and the 
potential chance of the unit running above the manufacturer's recommended de-rate output. FM 
Global confirmed it would still be considered a covered loss should the gearbox fail and cause 
damage. However, the LEC Project Participants would be responsible for paying any loss up to 
the policy deductible of $2.5 million prior to any claim losses paid by FM Global. FM Global 
engineers have estimated the following: 

• Routine Loss (high frequency; low severity)- further damage to the gears occurs but the 
event develops slowly and is quickly detected by operators and safety systems (steam 
sensing/vibration), immediately tripping the unit. Little to no damages beyond the gear box 
occurs. Loss of gearbox is estimated at about $1 M with a replacement time estimated at 90-180 
days. 
• Probable Loss (moderate frequency; moderate severity)- further damage to the gears 
occurs but the event is quick. Operators and safety systems trip the unit but damage to shaft, 
adjacent piping, and equipment occurs. Shaft stays connected to the generator load and the 
steam turbine does not overspeed. Estimated loss $3M with replacement and repairs estimated 
at 180 days - 365 days. 
• Maximum Loss (low frequency; high severity)- major damage to gear set occurs quickly. 
Damage results in gearbox decoupling from the generator. Operators and safety devices fail to 

1 Adjusted for ambient temperature de-rates. 

SR: 173:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page4 

act and the steam turbine goes into an overspeed condition, resulting in major damage. 
Estimated loss $7M with replacement time of 365 - 545 days. 

Notes about the above estimates: LEC Project Participants did not purchase the Time 
Element coverage. The estimates above only reflect the property damage costs to repair 
and replace the equipment. There will be additional costs borne by the participants for lost 
revenue and replacement capacity. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The fiscal impact of implementing the temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines described 
herein is unknown due to various market conditions, but LEC Staff believe implementing the 
temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines will provide LEC Staff key tools that can be used to 
preserve and/or maximize unit production value, while balancing unit operations to achieve the 
objectives of the strategy until the unit can be repaired. The fiscal impact of implementing the 
temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines will be further discussed with the Project Participant 
Committee (PPC) during the period of time the strategy is in place, and the strategy may be 
refined based on further direction received from the PPC. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

The California Energy Commission has completed a California Environmental Quality Act 
equivalent process and permitted the construction and operation of LEC. This 
recommendation does not modify the environmental attributes of the facility nor affect its 
ability to meet its permitted conditions. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On May 13, 2022, the LEC PPC reviewed and approved the temporary scheduling and bidding 
guidelines described herein, and recommended that the NCPA Commission direct LEC Staff to 
implement the temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines described herein, as such may be 
adjusted as needed to achieve the objective of the strategy, until the gear can be replaced and 
full repairs are completed. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~'>lb 
RANDY S. HOWARD 
General Manager 

Attachments (1 ): 
• Resolution 22-62 

SR: 173:22 



RESOLUTION 22-62 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING THE TEMPORARY LODI ENERGY CENTER (LEC) SCHEDULING AND DISPATCH 

OPERATIONS AND ECONOMIC CRITERIA 

(reference Staff Report #173:22) 

WHEREAS, LEC Staff performed unit equipment inspections during their planned major maintenance 
outage during the period of March 2022 through May of 2022; and 

WHEREAS, during the outage, LEC Staff performed an inspection of the gearbox that connects the high
pressure steam turbine to the generator and discovered a broken tooth on the gear; and 

WHEREAS, Siemens recommended replacing the damaged gear, however due to long lead times, LEC 
Staff is unable to immediately obtain the replacement gear at this time; and 

WHEREAS, the gearbox manufacturer, Flender, recommended LEC continue operating the gear, but at less 
than full capacity, resulting in the unit being de-rated by 25%; and 

WHEREAS, due to the extreme lead times associated with receipt of the replacement gear, and due to the 
projected tight energy supply conditions forecasted during the summer of 2022, LEC Staff recommends a strategy 
that will attempt to maintain the operation integrity of the unit based on the gearbox manufacturer's 
recommendations, but will also strive to enable market dispatch of the full unit capacity during a limited number of 
hours to support grid reliability; and 

WHEREAS, the Lodi Energy Center Project Participants approved of this at the May 13, 2022 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the California Energy Commission has completed a California Environmental Quality Act 
equivalent process and permitted the construction and operation of LEC. This recommendation does not 
modify the environmental attributes of the facility nor affect its ability to meet its permitted conditions; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to implement the temporary scheduling and bidding guidelines 
described in Staff Report No. 173:22, as such may be adjusted as needed to achieve the objective of the strategy, 
until the unit gear can be replaced and full repairs are completed. 

roll call: 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022, by the following vote on 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



17 
PUBUC AGfNCV 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Approval of Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) 2022 Renewable 
Energy Credit (REC) Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Tony Zimmer )~ METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Assistant General Manager NIA 

Division: Power Management If other, please describe: 

Department: Power Management 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members □ City of Lodi ~ City of Shasta Lake □ 

Alameda Municipal Power ~ City of Lompoc ~ City of Ukiah ~ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC ~ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs ~ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland IZI 

City of Gridley ~ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD □ 

City of Healdsburg ~ City of Santa Clara □ Other □ 

If other, please specify 

SR: 175:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission of the NCPA adopt and approve the WAPA 2022 
REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738, and authorize the General M~nager of 
NCPA to execute the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738, on behalf 
of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter 
of Agreement approved by NCPA's General Counsel. 

BACKGROUND: 

NCPA Members are subject to a variety of environmental mandates that require the use of 
RECs to demonstrate compliance with the state's legislative mandate and goal that a significant 
portion of retail sales be served by renewable energy resources. 

The NCPA Members are preference power customers of WAPA, and purchase a percentage 
share of the Base Resource product, which consists of various products including the energy, 
capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the hydroelectric facilities that make up the 
Central Valley Project (CVP). 

DISCUSSION: 

Pursuant to the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738, WAPA has 
established a program to distribute RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power 
customers. Certain NCPA Members who have assigned their Base Resource percentage to 
NCPA have requested NCPA to enter into the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 
22-SNR-02738 on their behalf1, in order for NCPA to receive RECs from WAPA. 

The WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 specifies the terms and 
conditions under which RECs are transferred from WAPA to preference power customers. The 
WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 has a term of one (1) year, 
expiring July 31, 2023; applies to RECs produced by CVP facilities in 2022; and, allows either 
party to terminate the agreement upon a 30-day prior written notice. RECs received pursuant to 
the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 are nontransferable, except 
NCPA may transfer RECs to Members it represents under the agreement. WAPA does not 
warrant or represent that the RECs provided from the CVP will satisfy any federal or state 
renewable energy mandates. 

A draft of the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 is attached to this 
staff report for your reference. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Costs associated with entering into the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-
SNR-02738 are estimated to be less than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be 
allocated according to Base Resource percentages of the represented Members. NCPA's 
administrative costs for development and administration of the agreement will be allocated to 

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Ukiah, and the Port of Oakland and 
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative. 

SR: 175:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page 3 

Members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described the NCPA 
annual budget. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On May 4, 2022 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above 
for Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

i~:w:!' 
General Manager 

Attachments (2): 
• Resolution 22-64 
• WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 

SR: 175:22 



RESOLUTION 22-64 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVAL OF WAPA 2022 REC PROGRAM LETTER OF AGREEMENT 22-SNR-02738 

(reference Staff Report #175:22) 

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Members are subject to a variety of 
environmental mandates that require the use of Renewable Energy Credits (RE Cs) to demonstrate compliance 
with the state's legislative mandate and goal that a significant portion of retail sales be served by renewable 
energy resources; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA Members are preference power customers of Western Area Power Administration 
(WAPA), and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource product, which consists of various products 
including the energy, capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the hydroelectric facilities that make 
up the Central Valley Project (CVP); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738, WAPA 
has established a program to distribute RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers, and 
certain NCPA Members who have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested NCPA 
to enter into the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 on their behalf, in order for 
NCPA to receive RECs from WAPA; and 

WHEREAS, the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 specifies the terms 
and conditions under which RECs are transferred from WAPA to preference power customers, including 
specifying that RECs received pursuant to the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 
are nontransferable, except NCPA may transfer RECs to Members it represents under the agreement; and 

WHEREAS, costs associated with entering into the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-
SNR-02738 are estimated to be less than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated 
according to Base Resource percentages of the represented Members, and NCPA's administrative costs for 
development and administration of the agreement will be allocated to Members in accordance with approved 
cost allocation methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
adopt and approve the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738, and authorize 
the General Manager of NCPA to execute the WAPA 2022 REC Program Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-
02738, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the WAPA 2022 REC 
Program Letter of Agreement approved by NCPA's General Counsel. 

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Ukiah, and the Port of Oakland and Plumas-Sierra Rural 
Electric Cooperative. 



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022, by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 22-64 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



Sent via E-Mail 

Mr. Randy Howard 
General Manager 

Department of Energy 
Western Area Power Administration 

Sierra Nevada Region 
114 Parkshore Drive 

Folsom, CA 95630-4710 

Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 

Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

Dear Mr. Howard: 

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is a customer of Western Area Power 
Administration's (WAPA) Sierra Nevada Region (SNR) and has executed Base 
Resource Contract 04-SNR-00782 with WAPA. Some of SN R's customers have 
requested that SNR make the renewable energy certificates (RECs) that may be 
associated with SN R's hydropower generation available to them to assist in meeting 
their renewable requirements. Although SNR is willing to initiate a 2022 REC program, 
SNR does not warrant or represent that the RECs it provides under this program will 
satisfy any Federal or State renewable portfolio standards. 

This Letter of Agreement (LOA) provides the terms and conditions under which SN R will 
apportion RECs to participants in the 2022 REC Program in association with power 
generated in 2022. 

1. Participation in SNR's REC Program: 

1.1 In order to receive an apportionment of RECs from SNR's REC Program, 
NCPA must be a Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System 
(WREGIS) Account Holder. SNR will not create or apportion RECs for NCPA 
until its WREGIS Account Holder status has been verified. 

1.2 A project use customer may participate in SNR's REC Program by providing 
written notice to SNR at least sixty (60) days prior to the first day of the first 
month that such customer desires to begin participation. 

1.3 All RECs provided under this LOA shall be from the vintages January 2022 
through December 2022. 



Letter of Agreement 22-SN R-02738 

1.4 For the purposes of participating in SNR's REC Program under this LOA, 
NCPA shall include the following members and the base resource percentages 
they have assigned to NCPA: 

1.4.1 Alameda Municipal Power 
1.4.2 Biggs, City of 
1.4.3 Gridley, City of 
1.4.4 Healdsburg, City of 
1.4.5 Lodi, City of 
1.4.6 Lompoc, City of 
1.4.7 Oakland, Port of 
1.4.8 Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative 
1.4.9 Ukiah, City of 

2. Definitions: 

2.1 "CVP RECs" shall mean the RECs that may be associated with the 
megawatthours from Central Valley Project (CVP) hydropower generation. 

2.2 "Stampede RECs" shall mean the RECs that may be associated with the 
megawatthours from the Washoe Project hydropower generation. 

2.3 "Unclaimed RECs" shall mean the RECs that may be associated with SNR's 
hydropower generation from Lewiston, Nimbus and Stampede that are not 
being claimed by other preference or project use customers. 

3. Apportionment of RECs: 

SNR will apportion the RECs in a three-step process. Calculation of apportionments 
will be completed as fallows: 

3.1 CVP RECs: 

3.1.1 SNR will calculate the percentage contribution from each unit/project 
registered with WREGIS to the amount of Base Resource generated 
each month. 

3.1.2 SNR will then calculate the amount of Base Resource NCPA received 
each month based on the sum of power scheduled to NCPA from its 
Base Resource percentage and its contribution to or allocation from the 
Hourly Exchange Program. 

2 



Letter of Agreement 22-SN R-02738 

3.1.3 Finally, SNR will apply NCPA's actual month's Base Resource 
percentage as determined in Subsection 3.1.2 above to the CVP RECs 
associated with that month's Base Resource from each unit/project as 
determined in Paragraph 3.1.1 to determine NCPA's apportionment of 
CVP RECs for each month in calendar year 2022. 

3.2 Unclaimed RECs: 

3.2.1 After performing step 3.1.2, SNR will normalize the participants' Base 
Resource percentages for Unclaimed RECs by dividing each 
participant's Base Resource percentage by the total of all participants' 
Base Resource percentages. 

3.2.2 SNR will then apply NCPA's normalized Base Resource percentage to 
the total Unclaimed RECs for each month in 2022 to determine NCPA's 
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs. 

3.2.3 NCPA acknowledges that its normalized percentage, used for the 
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs, may change during the term of this 
LOA depending on the number of participants. 

3.3 Stampede RECs: 

Stampede RECs will be held in WREGIS until SNR can determine the annual 
amount of RECs due to Truckee Donner Public Utility District (TDPUD) and City 
of Fallon (Fallon) before allocating the Stampede RECs to others. Once SNR 
has determined the percentage of the Stampede RE Cs to be provided to 
TDPUD and Fallon due to their contributions to the Washoe Project, the 
remaining Stampede RECs will be apportioned to the participants pursuant to 
the procedures provided in Subsections 3.1 and 3.2 above. 

3.4 SNR will transfer NCPA's CVP and Unclaimed RECs apportionments through 
WREGIS after the RECs have been created by WREGIS. 

3.5 SNR will transfer Stampede RECs apportionments through WREGIS after the 
TDPUD and Fallon percentage has been determined and the Stampede RECs 
have been created by WREGIS. 

4. Nontransferable: 

NCPA hereby acknowledges and agrees that RECs associated with SNR power are 
neither transferable nor available for resale by NCPA. 

5. Compensation to SNR: 

5.1 SNR's costs to administer the REC Program will be paid by those participants 
receiving an apportionment of SNR's RECs through WREGIS. Each 

3 



Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 

participant's costs will be determined based on the participant's pro rata share 
of RECs. SN R's costs will include, but are not limited to, the following: 
5.1.1 SN R's costs to join WREG IS as an account holder; 
5.1.2 SN R's costs for WREGIS to create RECs; 
5.1.3 SN R's costs for transferring RECs from its WREGIS account to 

participant's WREGIS account; 
5.1.4 Any other costs SNR may incur for its participation in WREGIS to 

operate this program; and 
5.1.5 Any other costs SN R may incur from a third-party due to providing 

services hereunder. 

5.2 These costs will be provided as a line item on NCPA's monthly electric service 
bill. 

6. General Power Contract Provisions: 

The General Power Contract Provisions dated September 1, 2007, are 
attached hereto and are hereby made a part of this LOA the same as if they 
had been expressly set forth herein. 

7.1 This LOA must be signed by NCPA on or before July 1, 2022, in order 
for NCPA to participate in SN R's 2022 REC Program. 

7.2 This LOA shall become effective on July 1, 2022, and shall terminate on 
July 31, 2023; provided that either NCPA or SNR may terminate this 
LOA upon thirty (30) days advance written notice. All obligations created 
under this LOA while in effect shall remain until satisfied. 

8. The Parties agree that this LOA may be executed by handwritten signature or 
digitally signed via DocuSign or other agreeable electronic signature application. An 
electronic or digital signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be 
considered valid and acceptable. 

9. This LOA may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution and 
delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall have 
the same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the 
same instrument. Any signature page of this LOA may be detached by any 
counterpart of this LOA without impairing the legal effect of any signatures thereon 
and may be attached to another counterpart of this LOA identical in form hereto, by 
having attached to it one or more signature pages. 

4 



Letter of Agreement 22-SNR-02738 

If you agree with terms and conditions of this LOA, please sign and date the LOA via 
DocuSign. Once NCPA has signed the LOA, DocuSign will send the executed LOA to 
all the parties. If you have any questions, please contact Ms. Sandee Peebles at 
(916) 353-4454 or peebles@wapa.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Arun K. Sethi 
Vice President of Power Marketing 
for Sierra Nevada Region 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

By: ______________ _ 
Name: 

Title: ---------------
Address: -------------
Date: ---------------

5 



PUBllC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Admission of the City of Shasta Lake as a Participant in the Power Management 
and Administrative Services Agreement 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: 
/!~ ,/" 

Tony Zimmer 1/ ~ METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Assistant General Manager NIA 

Division: Power Management If other, please describe: 

Department: Power Management 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZI City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 176:22 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



May 26, 2022 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution 22-65 approving an amendment to Schedule 1 of the Power Management and 
Administrative Services Agreement (PMASA) to include the City of Shasta Lake as a Participant 
to the PMASA, upon the City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to 
the PMASA. 

BACKGROUND: 

Pursuant to Section 7.1 of the PMASA, as such may be amended from time to time, subsequent 
to the initial effective date of the PMASA, a Member of NCPA who is not a Participant to the 
PMASA shall become a Participant by executing the PMASA, and such Member will become a 
Participant effective on the date of its delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the 
PMASA. The City of Shasta Lake has expressed its desire to become a Participant to the 
PMASA, and the City of Shasta Lake will become a Participant to the PMASA upon its delivery 
to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the PMASA. 

Upon the City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the PMASA, 
Schedule 1 of the PMASA (List of Participants) will need to be amended to include the City of 
Shasta Lake as a Participant1

. Pursuant to Section 11.6.2 of the PMASA, any amendments to 
the PMASA Schedules, including Schedule 1 of the PMASA, shall take effect after being 
approved by the Commission in a manner consistent with the voting procedures set forth in 
Section 5.4 of the PMASA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Work associated with development of an amendment to Schedule 1 of the PMASA was 
undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management budget categories, and costs associated 
with this effort are allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as 
described in the NCPA annual budget. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

n spectfully submitted, 

l~~A~~ 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
Resolution 22-65 

1 The current Participants to the PMASA are the following Members: Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, 
Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Roseville, Santa Clara, Redding, and Ukiah, and Port of Oakland, 
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative, and the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District. 

SR: 176:22 



RESOLUTION 22-65 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING ADMISSION OF THE CITY OF SHASTA LAKE AS A PARICIPANT IN THE 

POWER MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(reference Staff Report #176:22) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 7.1 of the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement 
(PMASA), as such may be amended from time to time, subsequent to the initial effective date of the PMASA, a 
Member of NCPA who is not a Participant to the PMASA shall become a Participant by executing the PMASA, 
and such Member will become a Participant effective on the date of its delivery to NCPA of an executed 
counterpart to the PMASA; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Shasta Lake has expressed its desire to become a Participant to the PMASA, 
and the City of Shasta Lake will become a Participant to the PMASA upon its delivery to NCPA of an executed 
counterpart to the PMASA; and 

WHEREAS, upon the City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the 
PMASA, Schedule 1 of the PMASA (List of Participants) will need to be amended to include the City of Shasta 
Lake as a Participant1; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11.6.2 of the PMASA, any amendments to the PMASA Schedules, 
including Schedule 1 of the PMASA, shall take effect after being approved by the Commission in a manner 
consistent with the voting procedures set forth in Section 5.4 of the PMASA; and 

WHEREAS, work associated with development of an amendment to Schedule 1 of the PMASA was 
undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management budget categories, and costs associated with this effort 
are allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual 
budget; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
adopts and approves an amendment to Schedule 1 of the PMASA to include the City of Shasta Lake as a 
Participant to the PMASA, upon the City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the 
PMASA. 

1 The current Participants to the PMASA are the following Members: Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, 
Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Roseville, Santa Clara, Redding, and Ukiah, and Port of Oakland, 
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative, and the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District. 



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022, by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 22-65 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



PUBllC AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: Admission of the City of Shasta Lake as a Participant in the Amended and 
Restated Facilities Agreement 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 

FROM: Tony Zimmer / ~ 

Assistant General Manager 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

NIA 

Division: Power Management If other, please describe: 

Department: Power Management 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZJ City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

Alameda Municipal Power □ City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Gridley □ City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Healdsburg □ City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

SR: 177:22 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



May 26, 2022 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution 22-66 approving an amendment to Schedule 1 of the Amended and Restated 
Facilities Agreement (FA) to include the City of Shasta Lake as a Participant to the FA, upon the 
City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the FA. 

BACKGROUND: 

Pursuant to Section 15.1 of the FA, as such may be amended from time to time, subsequent to 
the initial effective date of the FA, a Member of NCPA who is not a Participant to the FA shall 
become a Participant by executing the FA, and such Member will become a Participant effective 
on the date of its delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the FA. The City of Shasta 
Lake has expressed its desire to become a Participant to the FA, and the City of Shasta Lake 
will become a Participant to the FA upon its delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the 
FA. 

Upon the City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the FA, 
Schedule 1 of the FA (List of Participants) will need to be amended to include the City of Shasta 
Lake as a Participant1. Pursuant to Section 18.7.2 of the FA, any amendments to the FA 
Schedules, including Schedule 1 of the FA, shall take effect after being approved by the 
Commission in a manner consistent with the voting procedures set forth in Section 3.6 of the 
FA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Work associated with development of an amendment to Schedule 1 of the FA was undertaken 
pursuant to approved Power Management budget categories, and costs associated with this 
effort are allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in 
the NCPA annual budget. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the 
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

i~}~WA~ 
General Manager 

Attachments: 
Resolution 22-66 

1 The current Participants to the FA are the following Members: Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, 
Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Roseville, Santa Clara, Redding, and Ukiah, and Port of Oakland, 
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative, and the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District. The 
Turlock Irrigation District is also a Participant to the FA. 

SR: 177:22 



RESOLUTION 22-66 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING ADMISSION OF THE CITY OF SHASTA LAKE AS A PARICIPANT IN THE 

AMENDED AND RESTATED FACILITIES AGREEMENT 

(reference Staff Report #177:22) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 15.1 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement (FA), as such 
may be amended from time to time, subsequent to the initial effective date of the FA, a Member of NCPA who 
is not a Participant to the FA shall become a Participant by executing the FA, and such Member will become a 
Participant effective on the date of its delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the FA; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Shasta Lake has expressed its desire to become a Participant to the FA, and 
the City of Shasta Lake will become a Participant to the FA upon its delivery to NCPA of an executed 
counterpart to the FA; and 

WHEREAS, upon the City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the FA, 
Schedule 1 of the FA (List of Participants) will need to be amended to include the City of Shasta Lake as a 
Participant1; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 18. 7.2 of the FA, any amendments to the FA Schedules, including 
Schedule 1 of the FA, shall take effect after being approved by the Commission in a manner consistent with 
the voting procedures set forth in Section 3.6 of the FA; and 

WHEREAS, work associated with development of an amendment to Schedule 1 of the FA was 
undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management budget categories, and costs associated with this effort 
are allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual 
budget; and 

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the 
physical environment and is therefore, not a "project" for purposes of Section 21065 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
adopts and approves an amendment to Schedule 1 of the FA to include the City of Shasta Lake as a 
Participant to the FA, upon the City of Shasta Lake's delivery to NCPA of an executed counterpart to the FA. 

1 The current Participants to the FA are the following Members: Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, 
Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Roseville, Santa Clara, Redding, and Ukiah, and Port of Oakland, Plumas-Sierra 
Rural Electric Cooperative, and the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District. The Turlock Irrigation 
District is also a Participant to the FA. 



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022, by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

NCPA Resolution 22-66 

Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: 

-2-

CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



, ?USll C AGENCY 

CPA 

Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: NCPA 2022 Wildfire Mitigation Plan Assessment Report and Revisions; 
Applicable to the following: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities 

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action 

FROM: 

Division: 

Marc Pelletier \J\( 
Acting Assistant General 
Manager 

Generation Services 

Department: Generation Services 

IMPACTED MEMBERS: 

All Members IZl 

Alameda Municipal Power □ 

San Francisco Bay Area 
□ Rapid Transit 

City of Biggs □ 

City of Gridley □ 

City of Healdsburg □ 

SR: 167:22 

METHOD OF SELECTION: 

Select a method. 

If other, please describe: 

City of Lodi □ City of Shasta Lake 

City of Lompoc □ City of Ukiah 

City of Palo Alto □ Plumas-Sierra REC 

City of Redding □ Port of Oakland 

City of Roseville □ Truckee Donner PUD 

City of Santa Clara □ Other 

If other, please specify 

2.0 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 



May 26, 2022 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 22-58 for the NCPA 2022 Wildfire Mitigation Plan, with updated revisions 
based on the qualified independent evaluators recommendations. 

BACKGROUND: 

Public Utilities Code, Division 4.1, Chapter 6 Wildfire Mitigation, Code 8387 requires electric 
utilities to assess the risk of catastrophic wildfire posed by a utility's overhead electrical lines and 
equipment. In response to this requirement, NCPA created its Wildfire Mitigation Plan, to reduce 
the risk of NCPA facilities igniting wildfire, including identifying preventative maintenance 
procedures and practices. The NCPA Wildfire Mitigation Plan was approved in the December 5, 
2019 Commission Meeting. 

NCPA contracted with Dudek, a qualified independent evaluator with experience in assessing the 
safe operation of electrical infrastructure, to complete the annual review and assess the 
comprehensiveness of the Wildfire Mitigation Plan. The independent evaluator issued a report 
(attached as an appendix to the Wildfire Mitigation Plan) stating that NCPA's Wildfire Mitigation 
Plan appropriately addressed all elements required under CPUC Section 8387 (b) (2). The 
independent evaluation and report were completed April 14 2022. 

NCPA is now seeking Commission approval of the NCPA 2022 Wildfire Mitigation Plan, to 
include the recommendations provided by the qualified independent evaluator, revise the Wildfire 
Mitigation Plan from Version 1.2 to 1.3 to reflect recommendations, and post the Wildfire 
Mitigation Plan 1.3 to NCPA Website. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Any expenses associated with the preventative maintenance procedures and practices included 
in the plan are already covered in previously approved Plant budgets. The plan also includes 
investigation of potential risk reduction measures that, if implemented, may require additional 
budget dollars. Those amounts are not known or established at this time. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

Work associated with this Project is categorically exempt under Class 1, 3, 4, and 11 Exemptions 
under CEQA guidelines 15301(b), 15303, 15304, and 15311 and is therefore categorically 
exempt from CEQA. Class 1 is the "existing facilities" exemption, which includes the repair, 
maintenance, or minor alteration of existing public structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, 
involving negligible or no expansion of use. Class 3 is installation of small new equipment and 
facilities in small structures; Class 4 is minor alterations in the condition of the land; and, Class 
11 is construction or placement of minor structures accessory to existing facilities. All necessary 
Federal, State and County notifications will be made before commencing the work. 

A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, for this 
class of work and was filed in Lake and Sonoma Counties, and in Alpine, Calaveras, San 
Joaquin, and Tuolumne Counties. 

SR: 167:22 



May 26, 2022 
Page 3 

COMMITTEE REVIEW: 

On May 4, 2022 the Facilities Committee reviewed and endorsed the recommendation above for 
Commission approval. 

Respectfully submitted, 

i~:ow~:, 
General Manager 

Attachments (2): 
• Resolution 22-58 
• Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 1.3 

SR: 167:22 



RESOLUTION 22-58 

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 
APPROVING THE NCPA 2022 WILDFIRE MITIGATION PLAN ASSESSMENT REPORT AND 

REVISIONS 

(reference Staff Report #167:22) 

WHEREAS, Public Utilities Code, Division 4.1, Chapter 6 Wildfire Mitigation Code 8387 requires electric 
utilities to assess the risk of catastrophic wildfire posed by a utility's overhead electrical lines and equipment; and 

WHEREAS, NCPA's Wildfire Mitigation Plan was approved by the NCPA Commission at its December 5, 
2019 meeting (SR: 233:19; Reso: 19-100); and 

WHEREAS, as required in Section 8 of the Wildfire Mitigation Plan, NCPA hired an outside consultant to 
review and assess the comprehensiveness of this Wildfire Mitigation Plan, including recommended updates to the 
plan; and 

WHEREAS, work associated with this Project is categorically exempt under Class 1, 3, 4, and 11 
Exemptions under CEQA guidelines 15301 (b), 15303, 15304, and 15311 and is therefore categorically exempt from 
CEQA. Class 1 is the "existing facilities" exemption, which includes the repair, maintenance, or minor alteration of 
existing public structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, involving negligible or no expansion of use. Class 3 is 
installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures; Class 4 is minor alterations in the condition of 
the land; and, Class 11 is construction or placement of minor structures accessory to existing facilities. All necessary 
Federal, State and County notifications will be made before commencing the work. A Notice of Exemption was 
approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, for this class of work and was filed in Lake and 
Sonoma Counties, and in Alpine, Calaveras, San Joaquin, and Tuolumne Counties; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency 
approves the NCPA 2022 Wildfire Mitigation Plan with updated revisions based on the qualified independent 
evaluators recommendations. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this __ day of ______ , 2022, by the following vote 
on roll call: 

Alameda 
San Francisco BART 
Biggs 
Gridley 
Healdsburg 
Lodi 
Lompoc 
Palo Alto 
Port of Oakland 
Redding 
Roseville 
Santa Clara 
Shasta Lake 
Truckee Donner 
Ukiah 
Plumas-Sierra 

DAVID HAGELE 
CHAIR 

Vote Abstained Absent 

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT 
ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 
POWER AGENCY 
WILDFIRE MITIGATION 
PLAN 2022 

VERSION 1.3 

VERSION HISTORY 

Version 1.0 - NCPA Commission approved on December 5, 2019 per Resolution 19-100 

Version 1.1 - NCPA Commission approved on May 29, 2020 per Resolution 20-43. This WMP 
includes the qualified Independent Evaluators (IE} report in Appendix 2. 

Version 1.2 - NCPA Commission approved on May 27, 2021 per Resolution 21-56. This WMP 
includes the qualified Independent Evaluators (IE} report in Appendix 3 

Version 1.3 - NCPA Commission approved on May XX, 2022 per Resolution 22-XX. This WMP 
includes the qualified Independent Evaluators {IE} report in Appendix 4. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................... 5 

1 . Overview ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 

l .A. Policy Statement ............................................................................................................................... 6 

l .B. Purpose of the Wildfire Mitigation Plan ........................................................................................ 6 

l .B. l. Coordination with Local Agencies ........................................................................................... 7 

1.C. Organization of the Wildfire Mitigation Plan ............................................................................... 9 

2. Goals .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

2.A. Minimizing Sources of Ignition ...................................................................................................... 10 

2.B. Resiliency of the Electric Grid ....................................................................................................... 1 O 

2.C. Identifying Unnecessary or Ineffective Actions ........................................................................ 1 O 

3. Roles and Responsibilities ....................................................................................................................... 11 

3.A. Utility Governance Structure ........................................................................................................ 11 

3.B. Wildfire prevention organizational responsibilities .................................................................... 12 

3.C. Wildfire Response, Communication, and Recovery ................................................................ 12 

3.D. Coordination with Water Utilities/Department ......................................................................... 13 

3.E. Coordination With Communication Infrastructure Providers ................................................. 14 

3.F. Mutual Aid Agreements ................................................................................................................ 14 

4. Wildfire Risks and Drivers ......................................................................................................................... 15 

4.A. Risks Associated With Topographic and Climatological Factors .......................................... 15 

4.B. Risks related to design, operation, and MAINTENANCE ......................................................... 17 

4.C. Changes to CPUC Fire Threat Map ............................................................................................. 17 

4.C. l. Map Comparisons and Updates ............................................................................................. 18 

4.C.2. Fire Zone Review Process .......................................................................................................... 19 

5. Wildfire Preventative Strategies ............................................................................................................ 20 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 2 



5.A. Preventative Strategies and Programs ....................................................................................... 20 

5.B. Potential Climate Change Effects .............................................................................................. 21 

5.C. Potential Climate Change Risk Management lmpacts ...................... .................................... 22 

5.D. Tree Mortality ................................................................................................................................... 22 

5.E. Vegetation Management ............................................................................................................ 23 

5.F. Inspections ....................................................................................................................................... 24 

5.G. Fire Prevention, Safety, Emergency Response training ........................................................... 25 

5.H. Reclosing Policy .............................................................................................................................. 25 

5.1. De-energization .............................................................................................................................. 26 

5.J. l. Impacts to Public Safety ........................................................................................................... 26 

5.J.2. Customer Notification Protocols .............................................................................................. 26 

6. Left Blank ................................................................................................................................................... 27 

7. Restoration of Service ............................................................................................................................. 28 

7.A. Metrics and Assumptions for Measuring Plan Performance .................................................. 28 

Metric l : Fire Ignitions .............................................................................................................................. 28 

Metric 2: Wires Down ............................................................................................................................... 28 

Metric 3: FALL IN HAZARD TREES IGNITIONS ......................................................................................... 28 

7.B. Impact of Metrics on Plan ............................................................................................................. 29 

7 .C. Monitoring and Auditing the Plan ............................................................................................... 29 

7.D. Identifying and Correcting Deficiencies in the Plan ................................................................ 29 

7.E. Monitoring the Effectiveness of Inspections .............................................................................. 29 

8. Independent Auditor .............................................................................................................................. 31 

APPENDIX l - FIRE RISK ASSESSMENT MAPS ................................................................................................. 32 

APPENDIX 2 - INDEPENDENT EVALUATOR REPORT 2020 ........................................................................... 34 

APPENDIX 3- INDEPENDENT EVALUATOR REPORT 2021 ........................................................................... 37 

APPENDIX 4 - INDEPENDENT EVALUATOR REPORT 2022 ........................................................................... 61 

Revision History ................................................................................................................................................. 80 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 3 



ATTACHMENT A- PUC 8387 (B) REQUIREMENTS TABLE .............................................................................. 81 

A TT AC HM ENT B - WSAB RECOMMENDED ELEMENTS TABLE ..................................................................... 83 

A TT AC HM ENT C - WILDFIRE RISK ELEMENTS AND CONTROLS .................................................................. 85 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page4 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Northern California Power Agency (NCP A) has prepared the following Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
(WMP) in accordance with California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) regulation 8387 (SB 901 ). 
NCPA is a Joint Powers Agency, which owns and operates several electrical generation facilities 
to support its members' generation needs. 

The objective of this WMP is to reduce the risk of wildfires that could be ignited or propagated by 
NCPA electrical equipment or facilities in high fire threat locations. The plan describes the range 
of activities that NCP A is taking to mitigate the threat of power line-ignited wildfires, including its 
current programs, policies, and procedures as well as future plans to decrease risk and improve 
resiliency. The plan has prioritized the prevention of elements that create a wildfire event: 1 ) fuel, 
or geographic conditions represented by the California Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection (CAL FIRE) and the CPUC risk maps, and 2) ignition, represented by facilities subject to 
creating a fire. The facility types of highest interest are open wire power lines (transmission and 
distribution) that are near heavy vegetation or forest. 

NCPA has no retail customers. As such, this report focuses exclusively on NCPA electrical facilities 
with minimal discussion regarding customer communication typical of other utility WMPs. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 5 



1. OVERVIEW 

1.A. POLICY STATEMENT 

The Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), a California Joint Action Agency, has an 
overarching goal to provide safe, reliable, and economic electric service to its public power 
members and associate members. To meet this goal, NCPA constructs, maintains, and operates 
its equipment in a manner that minimizes the risk of wildfire ignition and propagation caused by 
NCP A-owned and -operated electric utility equipment (generation, generation tie-lines, and 
distribution). 

1.B. PURPOSE OF THE WILDFIRE MITIGATION PLAN 

The objective of this Wildfire Mitigation Plan (WMP) is to reduce the risk of wildfires that could be 
ignited or propagated by NCP A electrical equipment or facilities in high fire threat locations. 

NCP A is a Joint Powers Agency, which owns and operates etectrical generation facilities. The 
scope of this plan applies to the Geothermal Facility and the Hydro Facility that are located in 
two different Geographical areas. These two facilities contain electrical equipment in high fire 
threat locations. The Geothermal Plant is located around the Geyser territory in Lake County 
and the Hydro Electric Facility is located in the North Fork Stanislaus River watershed. 

The plan describes the range of activities that NCPA is taking to mitigate the threat of power 
line-ignited wildfires, including its current programs, policies, and procedures as well as future 
plans to decrease risk and improve resiliency. This plan is subject to direct supervision by the 
NCP A Commission and is implemented by the NCP A General Manager. This plan complies with 
the requirements of Public Utilities Code section 8387 (origin SB-901) for publicly owned electric 
utilities to prepare a wildfire mitigation plan by January 1, 2020, and to review and update it 
annually thereafter. 

Historically, NCP A has continuously improved its practices to minimize wildfire risks. This includes: 

• A transmission line vegetation management program that is compliant with North 
American Electric Reliability Corporation Standard FAC-003 and CAL FIRE regulations 

• Compliance with CAL FIRE and California Public Utilities Commission regulations and 
guidance for overhead distribution and transmission lines 

• CAL FIRE emergency response plans 
• · Power management/dispatch response procedures 
• Periodic equipment inspections and safe work practices 
• Workforce training 

This WMP is in response to the requirements of California Senate Bill 901 (SB-901 ). It supersedes a 
prior plan drafted and approved prior to SB-901, specifically pursuant to Public Utilities Code, 
Division 4.1, Chapter 6 Wildfire Mitigation (effective January 1, 2017). 

In 2019, NCPA initiated the development of this current WMP. NCPA hired POWER Engineers 
(POWER) to evaluate NCPA's electrical facilities, processes, and documentation based on the 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 6 



design, configuration, operations, maintenance, and condition of NCP A facilities in relation to 
their potential to initiate a wildfire event. The evaluation included consideration of NCPA system 
descriptions, record design/construction documents, typical facilities layouts, basic fire 
protection system features, data sheets, inspection practices and procedures, baseline 
vegetation conditions, potential climate change effects, vegetation management practices, 
fire threat and hazard maps, and other documentation. 

The investigation also included limited on-site surveys for better understanding of the general 
design, configuration, and condition of NCPA equipment and the surrounding environment for 
identification of associated risks. 

POWER then prepared a wildfire mitigation report with prioritized recommendations for potential 
improvement. The analysis and recommendations of that report formed the basis for 
development of site-specific implementation plans with action items scheduled on the basis of 
risk and cost. These plans provide guidance for NCPA to identify, correct, remediate, or employ 
new or better methods to be prepared for, reduce, and eliminate the risk of wildfires in and 
around NCPA facilities. In 2019, this WMP was presented at the NCPA Commission Meeting, a 
public meeting, and is posted on NCP A's public website domain. 

In 2020, per Section 8 of this WMP, NCPA hired an outside consultant, Dudek, to review, assess 
the comprehensiveness, and provide recommendations to this plan. Subsequently, NCP A 
elected to modify its Draft WMP that incorporated Dudek's recommended modifications. The 
Revised WMP (version 1.1) was provided to Dudek on April 29, 2020. Dudek reviewed the Revised 
W MP and determined that it appropriately addressed all elements required under CPUC Section 
8387(b)(2}. In 2020, this WMP was presented at the NCPA commission meeting, a public 
meeting, and is posted on NCPA's public website domain. 

11.B. l. COORDINATION WITH LOCAL AGENCIES 

NCP A's local coordination efforts related to wildfire mitigation include regular meetings for its 
Emergency Action Plan process. For example, the NCPA Hydroelectric facility hosts an annual 
face-to-face meeting with local emergency management agencies including: the U.S. Forest 
Service; CAL FIRE; sheriff departments for Calaveras, Tuolumne, and Alpine Counties; California 
Highway Patrol; California Department of Parks and Recreation (Calaveras Big Trees State Park); 
and others. In addition, a separate annual meeting is held with the U.S. Forest Service, since 
many NCP A Hydroelectric facilities are located on U.S. Forest Service lands. Wildfire mitigation is 
one of the agenda items that is always explicitly discussed. 

The NCPA Hydroelectric and Geothermal facilities also coordinate vegetation management 
activities with CAL FIRE and routinely utilize CAL FIRE (in cooperation with California Department 
of Corrections Conservation Fire Camp labor) for vegetation management and wildfire 
mitigation around the facilities. Additionally, NCPA Geothermal facility staff meet annually with 
Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), Calpine (operator of other geothermal facilities at the Geysers), 
CAL FIRE, the Bureau of Land Management, and Lake County Sanitation District. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 7 



Board (WSAB) developed template for review of POU W MPs 

Utility Name: Northern California Power Agency 

Size: <1.5 square miles (39 miles x 200 feet ground clearance) 

Yes - Generation, Yes - Transmission (Only a generator tie line), Yes 
Assets: - Distribution (Only for NCPA Utilities') 

Number of Customers: Zero Customers. Wholesale provider to PGE Electrical Grid. 

Customer Classes: Zero Customers. Wholesale provider to PGE Electrical Grid. 

No - Urban, Yes - Wildland Urban Interface, Yes - Rural/Forest, No -
Location Topography: Rural/Desert, No - Rural/ Agricultural 

Percent Territory in CPUC High 
Fire Threat Maps: Yes - Includes Maps, 46% in Tier 2, 26% in Tier 3 

CAL Fire Frap Map Fire Threat 
Zones: Yes - Includes Maps, 28.5% Extreme, 11% Very High, 10% in High 

Existing Grid Hardening 
Measures Yes - Describes hardened & non-hardened infrastructure 

Utility Fire Threat Risk Level: No - Hi, No - Low, Yes - Mixed 
Impact by another utility's 
PSPS? Yes - Impacted by PGE PSPS 
Mitigates impact of another 
utility's PSPS? No - NCPA is a wholesaler of power feeding into PGE electrical grid. 

Expects to initiate its own PSPS? No - NCPA is a wholesaler of power feeding into PGE electrical grid. 

Prevailing wind directions and 
speeds by season? No - In Maps, Yes - Includes description in Section 4.A. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Pages 



l .C. ORGANIZATION OF THE WILDFIRE MITIGATION PLAN 

This WMP includes the following elements: 

• Objectives of the plan 
• Roles and responsibilities for carrying out the plan 
• Identification of key wildfire risks and risk drivers 
• Description of wildfire prevention, mitigation, and response strategies and programs 
• Metrics for evaluating the performance of the plan and identifying areas for 

improvement 
• Review and validation of the plan 
• Timelines 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 9 



2. GOALS 

2.A. MINIMIZING SOURCES OF IGNITION 

The primary goal of this WMP is to minimize the probability that NCPA's transmission and 
distribution system may be the origin or contributing source for the ignition of a fire. NCPA's 
priorities include facility improvement projects (i.e. see section 5A) as well as continued and 
improved inspection, maintenance, and vegetation management practices. NCP A has 
evaluated and will continue to evaluate and implement prudent and cost-effective 
improvements (i.e. see section 5A) to its physical assets, operations, and training that can help to 
meet this objective. 

2.B. RESILIENCY OF THE ELECTRIC GRID 

The secondary goal of this WMP is to improve the resiliency of the electric grid. As part of the 
development of this plan, NCP A has assessed and will continue to assess new industry practices 
and technologies that will reduce the likelihood of an interruption (frequency) in service and 
improve the restoration (duration) of service. For example, section 5.A includes a 230kv 
Insulation improvement project that increased the electrical transmission resiliency for the NCP A 
Hydro Electric Facility. 

2.C. IDENTIFYING UNNECESSARY OR INEFFECTIVE ACTIONS 

The final goal for this W MP is to measure the effectiveness of specific wildfire mitigation 
strategies. Where a particular action, program component, or protocol is determined to be 
unnecessary or ineffective, NCPA will assess whether a modification or replacement is merited. 
This plan will also help determine if more cost-effective measures would produce the same or 
improved results. 

NCPA's current and planned wildfire risk mitigation activities will be formally reviewed annually 
according to this WMP regarding the effectiveness of ongoing practices, investigation of new 
technologies, and changing climate and ground conditions to continually prioritize the highest 
value activities for fire risk mitigation. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 10 



3. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.A. UTILITY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

NCPA is governed by a Commission that maintains several committees, including an Executive 
Committee, a Nominating Committee, a Legal Committee, a Legislative & Regulatory Affairs 
Committee, a Facilities Committee, and a Finance Committee. The Executive Committee 
includes a Chair, Vice Chair, and seven at-large representatives. 

Among its approximately 160 employees, NCP A has an internal management team, including a 
General Manager; an Assistant General Manager for Legislative & Regulatory Affairs; an Assistant 
General Manager for Power Management; an Assistant General Manager for Generation 
Services; an Assistant General Manager for Finance & Administrative Services; a General 
Counsel; and an Executive Assistant & Assistant Secretary to the Commission. 

NCPA 
Commission 

--------------------------- ------, 

* 

~ln.11.Ung 
Committee 

I 
Executive 
Committee 

I 
I I 

Ex ___ ..,__ A lsta I General Manager B 
...... u... 

85 

n - __ ICom_mls_sJilln __ - - - - - - • --Ge-n-era-1 C-011-n-sel_ - - - - Legal Commhtee (Assistant 5ecretE11YI secretary) 

I 

Generation ierilcH. 
Asslstanl General 

Menapr 

Lodi Energy C•nter 
Project Panlclpantl 

Committee 

I 
I 

Legislative& 
RegulatOIJ Affairs 
Assistant General 

Ma■-aer 

Legislative & 
ReguJato,y Afllllrs 

Committee 

I 
Power Management 
AHIStant General 

Manager 

Facilities Committee 

I 
Adm.ln.latratlve 

Services 
Ae1i1tant 6-neral 

Mllnager/ 
Chief ~mancial Officer 

I 

Finance Committee 

I 

Treaeurer..C:ontroller 

*The red box above indicates the responsible department of the North Fork Stanislaus 
Hydroelectric Project (Hydro) and Geyser's Geothermal (Geo) Projects. NCPA Plant managers 
are responsible for executing the WMP and serve under the Generation Services Assistant 
General Manager. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 11 



3.B. WILDFIRE PREVENTION ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

NCP A is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each of its public 
power utility members. The Commission is responsible for the general management of the affairs, 
property, and business of the Agency. Under the direction of the General Manager, the staff of 
the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative, operating and planning services 
for the Agency. This establishes all funding and is applied to all wildfire funding mechanisms in 
this plan (i.e., 3.B., 3.C., 5.A., 5.F, 5.G, 5.H). 

NCPA's organizational responsibilities with respect to wildfire mitigation correspond to its two 
main facility locations that reside in high fire threat areas: The North Fork Stanislaus Hydroelectric 
Project (Hydro) and Geyser's Geothermal (Geo) Projects. Hydro and Geothermal plant 
managers have responsibility for operations at each respective generating facility. The plant 
supervisors at each location are responsible for the workforce training and execution of all 
policies and procedures related to fire risks, equipment design, maintenance, inspection, 
vegetation management, and operations for all activities at their facilities. 

Revisions to the NCP A Wildfire Mitigation Plan are presented to the NCP A Facilities Committee 
for review and comment, before being routed for final approval to the NCPA Commission. The 
NCP A Wildfire Mitigation Plan is available for public review on the NCP A website (Policy ➔ 
Reports ➔ Wildfire Mitigation Plan). Achieved versions of NCPA's Wildfire Mitigation Plan are also 
available in this location. 

The NCPA Dispatch Center in Roseville, under the direction of the Assistant General Manager for 
Power Management, has jurisdictional and operational responsibilities for the generator tie lines, 
including procedures for Operating Instructions and Emergency Assistance (NCPA-PM-108) and 
Emergency Operating Guidelines for the Collierville-Bellota 230 kV Lines (NCPA-PM-201 ). 

Under the direction of the Assistant General Manager for Generation Services, the plant 
managers are responsible for implementation and execution of the W MP with respect to their 
facilities (see notes in Section 3A, Governance Structure Diagram). In coordination with the 
NCP A Dispatch Center, the plant managers coordinate activities with internal and external 
entities necessary to operate and react to wildfire activity. 

Additionally, all NCP A employees are responsible for: 

• Performing good housekeeping practices 
• Maintaining their work areas free of potentially flammable materials 
• Participating in fire prevention and suppression training as required 

3.C. WILDFIRE RESPONSE, COMMUNICATION, AND RECOVERY 

The objective of crisis management is to provide direction for rapid performance of hazard 
assessment, prioritization, notification, and applicable actions. NCPA has evaluated potential 
hazards in the work environment and surrounding areas and has worked with local authorities to 
develop emergency response plans for each facility that address mitigation of hazards and 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 12 



effective response. The goals are to protect personnel, the public, the environment, and the 
assets of NCP A. 

NCP A utilizes a number of resources to communicate emergency or hazardous conditions to 
personnel (including non-NCP A personnel) at geothermal plants, powerhouses, and associated 
facilities and locations. These resources include two-way radio communications equipment, cell 
phones, satellite phones, telephone landlines, email, and the Internet. 

The agency maintains separate emergency response plans, due to different geographic 
locations, for Geothermal and Hydro generation projects. The plans provide guidance and 
emergency resources for: fire events, unplanned, sudden or non-sudden hazardous 
materials/waste releases, air emissions exceedances, natural or manmade disasters 
(earthquakes, floods, bomb threats, or suspected terrorist or sabotage events, etc.), or 
emergency hazards. 

Any accident or incident requiring emergency response and support from external agencies 
shall be reported to the appropriate NCPA plant supervisor. The type and severity of the event(s) 
shall determine the appropriate response and course of action. 

The NCP A Dispatch Center is the main point of contact for PG&E on any public safety power 
shutoff (PSPS) notification affecting any of NCPA's or members' generation and member loads. 
NCPA does not have a defined service territory however the NCPA Dispatch Center's 
responsibility is to pass along relevant PG&E PSPS notification to affected members based on 
phone messages or emails received from PG&E through its Everbridge mass notification system. 
The NCP A Dispatch Center will also follow up on the Everbridge PSPS notifications with 
information on any planed power shutoff events based on PG&E's PSPS websites or direct PG&E 
communication where current and real-time information is available. 

NCPA provides wholesale power to City's and utilities, typically known as NCPA members, only 
via the utility grid. Since NCP A does not have retail customers, no customer notification 
protocols are in place. 

3.0. COORDINATION WITH WATER UTILITIES/DEPARTMENT 

The power from the NCP A generation facilities is delivered to the California Independent System 
Operator (CAISO) grid. Unlike a typical public utility, NCPA does not have a defined service 
territory nor does NCP A deliver or provide power directly to any water utilities. However, the 
NCPA Hydroelectric Project does transport and deliver water owned by two (2) water utilities 
through infrastructure (dams and tunnels) operated by NCPA. One of those entities, the 
Calaveras County Water District (CCWD) owns the hydro facilities that NCPA operates to deliver 
this water. The Utica Water and Power Authority (UWP A) also receives some of their water 
through the same facilities. It is important to note that neither curtailment of NCP A generation 
facilities nor de-energization of the NCP A powerlines has any impact on the abilities of CCWD or 
UWPA to obtain water. NCPA routinely communicates and coordinates with CCWD and UWP A, 
and both entities are included on communication flow charts for the relevant emergency plans, 
such as the Emergency Response Plans. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 13 



3.E. COORDINATION WITH COMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE 

PROVIDERS 

NCP A does not provide power directly to any communication infrastructure providers and 
therefore does not routinely coordinate or communicate with communication infrastructure 
providers related to wildfire mitigation or power outages. 

3.F. MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS 

NCP A members are uniquely and ideally qualified to assist with the emergency replacement of 
poles and wires that are necessary to return electric distribution and communication facilities to 
normal operating condition. However, mutual aid agreements have also long been utilized by 
publicly owned utilities during times of need. These agreements are usually formed and 
exercised among neighboring utilities as proximity allows for quick response and less travel 
expenses. Additionally, mutual aid agreements that have a broader geographical reach, 
allowing for the provision of aid from utilities across the state or nation, can provide better 
protection from large regional events that may result in neighboring utilities having to respond to 
the some emergency events. NCPA is a member of the California Utilities Emergency 
Association, which plays a key role in ensuring communications between utilities during 
emergencies and maintains a mutual aid agreement for its members. As a member of the 
American Public Power Association (APPA), NCPA and its members can also authorize APPA 
mutual aid agreements. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 14 



4. WILDFIRE RISKS AND DRIVERS 

NCPA electrical infrastructure consists of the following facilities that are in Moderate to Very High 
CAL FIRE Hazard Severity Zones (2009) and/or Tier 2/3 CPUC Fire Threat Zones (2018). See 
Appendix 1. 

Cal Fire Hazard Severity Zone (2009) CPUC Fire Threat Zone 
NCPA Project NCPA Facility (2018) 

Moderate High Very High Tier2 Tier 3 

Collierville Powerhouse 
11523 Camp 9 Rd., Murphys, - - X X -
CA 

North Fork New Spicer Meadows 
Stanislaus - - X - -
Hydroelectric 

Powerhouse 38.393735, -

Project McKay's Point - - X - X 
(Hydro) Diversion Dam 

McKay's 17kV Service Line - - 600 ft. - 600 ft. 

Beaver Creek X X - - -
38°14'02.94" N 120°16'43.50" W 
Collierville-Bellota 230kV Gen- 10 miles 11 miles 15 miles 25 miles -
Tie Line 
Plant 1, 

X X Middletown, CA - - -

Geysers 
Plant 2, 

X X Middletown, CA - - -
Geothermal 

230 kV Gen-Tie Line 2.5 miles 2.5 miles (Geo) - - -
Effluent Pump System 
and 21 kV Service line - - 3 miles - 3 miles 

Steam Field and 
8 miles 8 miles Delivery (includes 

- - -

NCP A is also a 6.13% co-tenant of the Castle Rock Junction-Lakeville 230 kV Transmission Line in 
the Geysers area. This line is located in a Tier 3 CPUC Fire Threat Zone and is operated and 
maintained by PG&E; it is included within the scope of the PG&E Wildfire Mitigation Plan. 

There are no new wildfire risks associated with design and construction of new assets. NCP A is 
currently Operating and Maintaining original generating facilities. No new construction is 
planned in the immediate future. 

4.A. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH TOPOGRAPHIC AND CLIMATOLOGICAL 

FACTORS 

Multiple wildfire risk drivers have been identified from recent wildfires. These include drought 
conditions, vegetation type and density, weather conditions {high winds and climate change), 
and local topographic features {terrain). Vegetation and climate conditions are discussed in 
section 5. 

Primary risk drivers are weather and climate. Weather and climate include extended drought 
periods, changing weather patterns, and high winds. These weather and climate factors affect 
vegetation conditions, including vegetation health, type and density. Stressed vegetation is 
prone to disease, insect infestations, and increased mortality rates. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 15 



Physical conditions, such as terrain and high winds, affect fire risks. These factors influence fire 
movement and direction, and control migration rates. Generally, fires move upslope without 
strong winds, while high winds (i.e. Diablo winds} rapidly drive fires primarily in the same direction 
as the wind. Topographic features, such as steep canyons, create localized conditions that 
affect fire movement and rate of speed. 

Several of the risk drivers are interrelated: 

• Extended drought: Extended drought periods result in multiple stress factors for 
vegetation: dry trees and brush, higher susceptibility to disease and insects, easier 
ignition, faster burn rate, etc. 

• Vegetation type: Fire risk is partially dependent upon vegetation type. Some vegetation 
burns quickly (e.g. dry grass), while other types burn hotter (e.g. hardwood trees such as 
oak}. Each vegetation type presents its own unique challenges for vegetation 
management and control. 

• Vegetation density: Vegetation density directly affects wildfire hazards. Dense 
vegetation generally represents the highest hazard level, while sparse vegetation density 
is substantially lower risk. Vegetation density is often associated with weather conditions, 
local micro-climates, and vegetation type. 

• Weather: Weather conditions include precipitation, humidity, storms, and winds. Each 
factor affects wildfire risks. Lightning strikes associated with thunderstorms or dry lightning 
are a natural cause of wildfires. 

• High winds: High winds drive wildfires. They also down trees and sometimes down power 
lines. In turn, downed power lines are potential ignition sources and the documented 
cause of some major wildfires in California. 

• Prevailing Winds: NCP A monitors prevailing winds directions and speeds, differentiated 
by season, along with average weather conditions by season using NCPA real-time 
observations noting disturbing local weather. Live data is used with the fire maps 
located in Appendix 1. PG&E's Weather Awareness website is a resource for real-time 
conditions: ,k: ... ,, www.~..Je.com/en US, safe,y/emerqency-1,-,,eparcd 1P5<-InatJr~. L 

aste.ILwildfir~- s-weatr rma_p_J2a@~WT.mc i6-Var·ty wea1_rer. This information is 
used in communication and aids to analyze wildfire situations. In addition, prevailing 
wind patterns and their effect on transmission conductors due to cyclic loading are 
taken into account during annual Transmission asset inspections conducted in 
accordance with NCPA's NERC FAC-003 compliance procedure GM-305. 

• Terrain: Topographic features and terrain affect wildfire migration and area-specific risks. 
Fires generally burn uphill, especially within steep canyons. Wind-driven upslope and up
canyon fires spread rapidly and represent increased fire hazards. 

• Changing weather patterns (climate change): Climate change alters vegetation habitat, 
causing species migration. It may result in increased or decreased precipitation, 
precipitation type changes (e.g. more rain than snow}, higher maximum temperatures, 
extended heatwaves, more frequent drought. In turn, these changes may cause 
increased tree mortality, increased stressed vegetation, greater susceptibility to disease 
or insect infestation. 

• Communities at risk: Communities located in high-hazard zones are most at risk of 
wildfires. Communities at Risk are designated places and are unchanging. The risk level 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 16 



around these communities may change from year to year based on overall weather 
conditions, as well as during the year, changing from the wet season through the dry 
summer and fall. 

• fire frequency: Over history, the frequency of wildfires affects wildfire risks. Vegetation 
changes are directly associated with wildfires. In addition to consuming existing 
vegetation, the new landscape is open to different vegetation types, both native and 
invasive. With native vegetation, a natural cycle occurs with different species 
dominating the environment and evolving over an extended timeframe. Since different 
vegetation types represent varied fire hazards, the risk level also evolves over time in 
conjunction with vegetation changes. 

Wildfires have occurred in the general region of NCPA's hydro and geothermal facilities, 
however NCP A facilities have not been associated with any ignition source. The 201 7 Tubbs and 
2019 Kincade Fires affected areas nearby, and immediately adjacent to the geothermal 
facilities. The 2015 Valley Fire destroyed much of the 21 kV Service Line for the Effluent Pump 
System. Risks specific to NCPA's generation facilities are tied to both residual fuel load {snags) 
from previous fires and potential soil instability caused by previous damage to area vegetation. 
These hazards are addressed by enhanced inspection techniques described in Section 5.F 

4.8. RISKS RELATED TO DESIGN, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE 

Risks and risk drivers related to design, construction, operation and maintenance that could 
create fire ignition sources are listed below. The methodology for identifying, monitoring, 
analyzing, planning, evaluating safety-wide risks are defined in NCPA's Preventative Strategies 
and Programs in Section 5.A. These risks include: 

• Equipment/structure/facilities: Inherent risk of facilities, primarily open wire transmission 
and distribution ignition events 

• Object to wire or equipment contact: Trees, birds, balloons, downed conductors, 
lightning strikes, or high wind events resulting in contact of equipment 

• Wire to wire contact: Wires touching one another, and dropping molten metal to the 
ground 

• Vehicle operations: Maintenance, inspection or vegetation clearing crew vehicles 
causing fires {i.e. catalytic converters contacting dry brush) 

• Vegetation clearing: Chain saws and other mechanized equipment use 
• Hot Work: Welding or other activity that could cause ignition in the area of work 

4.C. CHANGES TO CPUC FIRE THREAT MAP 

A key concern for NCPA is the historical risk of wildfires in the vicinity of the agency's facilities, 
particularly within potential fire hazard zones. Both CAL FIRE and the CPUC have developed 
maps to identify potential fire hazard zones, published in 2007 and 2018, respectively. NCPA has 
reviewed current CAL FIRE hazard severity zone and CPUC fire-threat maps with respect to 
agency facilities, as shown in Appendix 1 . These maps have not been adjusted since the noted 
publication dates nor have any local agencies imposed any expansions to the maps. There has 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 17 



been no new information, or identified changes to the environment, to warrant an expansion of 
the high-fire threat district. 

CPUC Fire Threat Maps are static, based on data available at the time they were created. As 
noted below, wildfire risks evolve over time in response to the risk drivers listed above. In section 
5, annual tree mortality data illustrates a migration of tree mortality, with the risk area expanding 
from year to year. NCPA will review available data and adjust fire threat hazard zones when 
applicable to NCP A facilities. 

14.C.1. MAP COMPARISONS AND UPDATES 

Currently published wildfire hazard maps from CAL FIRE and the CPUC show different boundaries 
for the risk areas delineated. They also use different terminology for hazard zones. Several factors 
could account for these boundary differences between agency maps: publication dates, study 
methodology, vegetation changes over time, recent wildfires, and potential climate change 
effects. The zones delineated by the CAL FIRE and CPUC maps are discussed below. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 18 



CAL FIRE CALIFORNIA FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONE MAP 

CAL FIRE generated and published Fire Hazard Severity Zone Maps for the entire state of 
California in 2007, including separate maps for each county. These maps delineate three hazard 
zone levels: moderate, high, and very high. The figures in Appendix 1 illustrate these fire hazard 
severity zones. There has been no new information or changes to the environment identified to 
warrant an expansion of the high-fire threat district. 

CPUC FIRE-THREAT MAPS 

The CPUC has developed and published Fire-Threat Maps. These 2018 maps include Tier 2 
(elevated fire risk) and Tier 3 (extreme fire risk) zones. Additionally, the CPUC uses a Tier 1 (zero to 
moderate fire risk) category, which includes a High Hazard Zone (HHZ) designation based on a 
2018 U.S. Forest Service-CAL FIRE joint map of tree mortality HHZs. This Tier 1 information addresses 
the hazard areas with large expanses of dead trees and associated fire risks. 

, 4.C.2. FIRE ZONE REVIEW PROCESS 

The existing fire zone review process, set forth by regulatory agencies such as CAL FIRE and 
CPUC, is an important tool for reducing wildfire risks and hazards. Preparing and executing 
adequate vegetation management plans is a critical component of this process. The current fire 
zone process incorporates lessons learned from past major wildfire events, with each new 
occurrence adding knowledge and forming the basis for improving the process. 

Since differences exist between currently published CAL FIRE and CPUC wildfire hazard zone 
maps, NCP A uses the most conservative approach to vegetation management and asset 
protection, assuming the highest risk factor from the combined datasets. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 19 



5. WILDFIRE PREVENTATIVE STRATEGIES 

5.A. PREVENTATIVE STRATEGIES AND PROGRAMS 

NCPA's strategies to reduce wildfire risk include continuous evaluation and improvement of its 
programs and procedures: including NCP A's ( l) facility maintenance program, (2) emergency 
operating procedures , (3) vegetation management programs, and (4) asset documentation 
programs. These programs include all details such as goals, objective or percentage, monitor 
ongoing work, accomplishments, internal and external audits, and detailed reports. There are 
no constraints such as budgets, availability of equipment, knowledge to effectively deploy, or 
qualified personnel to install and monitor effectively. 

(1) Facility Maintenance Program: NCPA has a robust preventive maintenance program to 
maintain the safe and reliable operation of its transmission and distribution lines. Given the 
growing risk of wildfires, opportunities for improvement have been identified and will be 
explored as part of each facility's improvement plan. Additionally, NCPA utilizes risk factors 
as identified in Section 4.B. during improvement plan evaluations. Improvements, such as 
listed below, may be implemented based on workable solutions and relative priorities: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

The Collierville-Bellota (CB) 230 kV Gen-Tie Line: In 2020 NCPA made improvements on its 
longest transmission line. More than half of the line is within a Tier 2 fire threat zone. NCPA 
prioritized the safe and reliable operation of the line. The line is over 30 years old, and a 
thorough review of the line and its attendant facilities was recently undertaken. A list of 
improvements included upgrading insulators, hardware, and conductor damping. These 
major improvements were completed in 2020. This project was considered a major 
capital improvement and prioritized for wildfire prevention. Avian deterrents and anti
nesting cones were also added in 2020. 
McKay's Point 17 kV Overhead Line: This three-span distribution line is in a Tier 3 fire threat 
zone. This short line is maintained and is monitored consistently. Due to its location and 
danger tree threat NCP A is seeking a contractor and appropriate hardening 
improvements. Original improvements were targeted in 2021 but due to contractor 
issues NCPA is now estimating a 2023 execution. 
Geothermal 230 kV Gen-Tie Transmission Line: This nine-span line connects with PG&E's 
230 kV system. The line is characterized by long dead-ended spans and thick vegetation, 
which has been cleared to a 300-foot width across the right of way following CAL FIRE 
recommendations. The line is consistently inspected and maintained. 
Geothermal Effluent Pump System 21 kV Line: This 6-mile distribution line is in a Tier 3 fire 
threat zone. This line was largely rebuilt following damage caused by the 2017 Valley Fire. 
The wood pole line has construction framing typical to distribution construction. In 
addition to typical maintenance and monitoring of the pole line and down guy structural 
and foundational health, NCP A works with Cal Fire and Calpine to coordinate 
vegetation removal and clearance work, in excess of the requirements for rural 
distribution circuits. 

(2) Emergency Operating Procedures: NCPA uses emergency operating procedures to safely 
react to wildfire fire events and help guide employees. In addition to annual evaluation of 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 20 



procedure training effectiveness, NCP A improves its operational awareness and ability to 
respond to fire events by ensuring that Hydro and Geothermal plant personnel performing 
work adjacent to NCP A line facilities are able to continuously communicate with plant 
operations personnel for coordination of emergency response to wildfires. 

(3) Vegetation Management Program: NCPA has developed and implemented a Transmission 
Vegetation Management Program (TVMP) to establish the vegetation maintenance 
requirements for each facility to achieve reliability of its generation interconnection system. 
The NCPA document, Generation Services Common Procedure GS-305: Transmission 
Vegetation Management Program, defines NCPA procedures for vegetation management. 
The full description of this program is described in Section 5.E. 

(4) Asset documentation: NCPA has current facility documentation including geographically 
referenced facility locations (appendix 1) and current facility drawings, materials lists, and 
design criteria. This documentation has been coordinated with adjacent asset owners (PG&E 
and Calpine) to ensure completeness of maintenance actions and track design features 
(lightning arrestors) that minimize risks of the lines causing an ignition. 

NCPA directly participated in the development of the CPUC's Fire-Threat Map,1 which 
designates a High Fire-Threat District. In the map development process, NCPA served as a 
territory lead, and worked with utility staff and local fire and government officials to identify the 
areas of NCP A's service territory that are at an elevated or extreme risk of power line-ignited 
wildfire. NCPA has incorporated the High Fire-Threat District into its construction, inspection, 
maintenance, repair, and clearance practices, where applicable. 

A key concern for NCPA is the historical risk of wildfires in the vicinity of the agency's facilities, 
particularly within potential fire hazard zones. Both CAL FIRE and the CPUC have developed 
maps to identify potential fire hazard zones, published in 2007 and 2018, respectively. NCP A has 
reviewed current CAL FIRE hazard severity zone and CPUC fire-threat maps with respect to 
agency facilities, as shown in Appendix 1 . 

NCPA reviewed facilities and determined the hazard zones where these facilities are located. 
These facilities and their locations are described in section 4. 

The CPUC defines a High Fire-Threat District consisting of three areas: 

• Tier 1 High Hazard Zones on the U.S. Forest Servic~-California Department of Forestry and 
Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) joint map of Tree Mortality High Hazard Zones 

• Tier 2 of the CPUC Fire-Threat Map where there is an elevated risk for utility-associated 
wildfires 

• Tier 3 of the CPUC Fire-Threat Map where there is an extreme risk for utility-associated 
wildfires 

NCPA facilities in relation to CPUC and CAL FIRE threat maps are shown in Appendix 1 of this 
report. 

5.B. POTENTIAL CLIMATE CHANGE EFFECTS 

1 Adopted by CPUC Decision 17-12-024. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 21 



Climate change has affected vegetation in many ways. Droughts are longer and more severe. 
Large storm events are more common and intense. Summers are hotter and may include more 
thunderstorms. These climate change factors affect vegetation and the associated wildfire risks: 

• Vegetation adapts, with plant migration into different areas 
• Vegetation dries out during droughts, presenting increased fire danger 
• Stressed vegetation is more susceptible to insect infestations, damaging trees, or 

accelerating mortality 
• Thunderstorms present lighting strike risks along with strong wind events 

Extended periods of intense rainfall also typically increase landslide risks. In turn, landslides could 
damage or topple structures, limit access, or create safety hazards by damaging roads, or 
cause localized tree mortality by severing root systems. Note that heavy rainfall is not the only 
landslide trigger mechanism, but it is the one most closely associated with climate change. 

5.C. POTENTIAL CLIMATE CHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT IMPACTS 

Climate change has affected the risks associated with wildfires, especially in fire hazard zones. 
Frequent, severe and larger wildfires, and the related impacts to the POU lines, equipment and 
operations result in impacts to vegetation and increased wildfire risks. Some of the specific 
climate change impacts that affect wildfire risks include: 

• Tree and underbrush growth rates 
• Vegetation type changes 
• Vegetation migration from existing habitats 
• Stress and disease contributing to higher tree mortality 

As potential impacts shift over time, fire hazard management practices will evolve and adapt to 
changing risk management requirements. 

5.D. TREE MORTALITY 

It is estimated that over l 00 million trees in California died from drought-related stress between 
2012 and 2017. The extended drought period left millions of acres of forestland highly susceptible 
to insect attacks. Drought stress is aggravated in forests with too many trees competing for 
limited water resources. 

In 2015, California established the Tree Mortality Task Force (https://frap.fire.ca.gov/frap
projects/tree-mortality /). This task force was established to identify and map tree mortality areas 
with the greatest potential for causing harm to people and property. The High Hazard Zones 
were prioritized for tree removal. 

Dead, dying, and diseased trees represent potential wildfire risks for NCP A. Trees adjacent to 
power line right-of-way represent a hazard due to falling branches or potential toppling. This 
threat increases substantially with tall snags or trees with dead tops. Dead or highly stressed trees 
are also an easily ignitable fuel source. They ignite quicker and generally burn faster than 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 22 



healthy trees. NCPA's internal Transmission Vegetation Management Program specifies tree and 
snag clearances. 

5.E. VEGETATION MANAGEMENT 

NCPA has developed and implemented a Transmission Vegetation Management Program 
(TVMP} to establish the vegetation maintenance requirements for each facility to achieve 
reliability of its generation interconnection system. The NCPA document, Generation Services 
Common Procedure GS-305: Transmission Vegetation Management Program, defines NCPA 
procedures for vegetation management. NCPA's TVMP is the plan for all types of vegetation 
associated with utility infrastructure, from the ground to the sky, which includes vegetation 
above and below electrical lines. 

NCP A meets or exceeds the minimum industry standard vegetation management practices. For 
transmission-level facilities, NCPA complies with NERC FAC-003-4. For both transmission and 
distribution-level facilities, NCPA meets: (1} Public Resources Code section 4292; (2) Public 
Resources Code section 4293; (3) General Order 95 Rule 35; and (4) General Order 95 Appendix 
E Guidelines to Rule 35. 

The TVMP enhances reliability by preventing outages from vegetation located within or 
adjacent to the power line right-of-way, by maintaining required clearances between power 
lines and vegetation within or adjacent to the right-of-way, by reporting vegetation-related 
outages of the system to WECC, and by documenting the process for an annual vegetation 
work plan. The program satisfies the requirements for vegetation management specified in NERC 
FAC-003-4, which requires a Generator Owner to have documented maintenance strategies, 
procedures, processes, or specifications to prevent the encroachment of vegetation into the 
Minimum Vegetation Clearance Distance of applicable lines as specified in requirement R3. 

NCPA uses a combination of its own staff (manager, supervisor or competent designee) and the 
retention of qualified consultants (such as scientific experts in ecology, fire ecology, fire 
behavior, geology, and meteorology) with experience in line design, line construction, NERC 
Standards compliance, and vegetation management to develop and maintain the TVMP. 

The TVMP specifies technical requirements for staff and contractors to comply with or verify 
compliance with Cal/OSHA standards and NCPA Electrical Safety Procedure GS-103 ensures 
Cal/Osha and Minimum Approach Distances {MAD). 

The objectives of the TVMP are to: 

• Adhere to the Power Line Fire Prevention Field Guide published by CAL FIRE in November 
2008 and used by California utilities for the care and maintenance of trees, shrubs, and 
other woody plants when pruning vegetation near electric facilities. 

• Maintain defined clearance distances between the generation interconnection facilities 
and all trees, brush, and other vegetation that could grow too close to electrical facilities 
including conductors, poles, and guy wires. Since the clearances specified in the Power 
Line Fire Prevention Field Guide are more stringent than the MVCD described in FAC-003-
4, NCPA adheres to the CAL FIRE field guide. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 23 



• Where appropriate and necessary, develop site-specific, environmentally sensitive, cost
effective and socially responsible solutions to vegetation control near the NCPA 
generation interconnection facilities. Document the process for the annual vegetation 
work plan for applicable power lines. 

• Maintain public and worker safety, maintain compliance with NERC standards and other 
regulatory and legal requirements, provide reliable electric service that allows for 
operational flexibility, and promote environmental stewardship and habitat 
enhancement. 

• Potential improvements to its programs include increasing the frequency and scope of 
aerial lidar surveys on its transmission and distribution facilities, and a continued emphasis 
on identification and timely removal of danger and hazard trees that threaten overhead 
transmission and distribution lines. NCPA's asset management system allows potential 
improvement to be evaluated as observations and comments are made when work 
orders for maintenance items are executed. 

5.F. INSPECTIONS 

NCP A performs annual inspections of its transmission and distribution facilities in accordance with 
General Order 95 and General Order 165. The following additional inspections have been 
performed on the CB 230 kV line: 

• Lidar vegetation flights 
• Corona scans of insulators 
• Infrared 11 hot-spot" inspections of conductor, conductor splices, and dead-end 

hardware. 
• In addition to its annual ground-based inspection, NCPA may augment inspections with 

aerial drone and/or helicopter surveys. 

These inspections are documented and issued by NCPA's computerized maintenance 
management system (CMMS), and records of those inspections are maintained. 

Strategic improvements to the inspection program include increasing the frequency and scope 
of inspections, increasing the use of drone-based visual inspections, consideration of new 
technology, improving the inspection methodology approach, and consideration of fire threat 
zones in the inspection programs. NCPA's asset management system also allows these 
improvements to be evaluated as observations and comments are made when work orders for 
maintenance items are executed. 

The TVMP also establishes requirements for the type and schedule of right-of-way vegetation 
inspections. Specific hazards addressed in the TVMP include identification of encroachment into 
the Clearance area (section 6.3.7), and additional inspection activities to identify deadfall and 
brush in the ROW that could provide fuel for wildfire spread (section 6.3.9). The TVMP also 
provides explicit direction to treat emergent conditions of a potential hazard as an immediate 
mitigation priority without any intentional delay (section 6.4.4), including addressing extent of 
condition. 

Section 4.B. of this WMP outlines the unique risks NCPA inspects for. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 24 



5.G. FIRE PREVENTION, SAFETY, EMERGENCY RESPONSE TRAINING 

NCP A has implemented work rules and complementary training programs for its workforce to 
help reduce the likelihood of the ignition of wildfires. 

Trainings for employees to cover fire hazards and NCPA's Fire Prevention Plan consists of fire 
extinguisher training, fire prevention training, hazardous materials handling training, and 
emergency response training. These trainings are conducted by an outside vendor and/or 
NCP A supervisors or environmental health and safety specialists. 

NCP A employees also receive training on emergency response plans when the employee is 
assigned initially to the job, when the plan changes, and when the employee's responsibilities or 
designated actions under the plans change. 

Each facility manager is responsible for conducting site-specific training to ensure that the 
purpose and function of NCPA safety procedures are understood by employees and that 
knowledge and skills required for safe operation are acquired by employees. Refresher training is 
performed and documented on an annual basis, and retraining is conducted when: 

• An annual audit reveals there are deviations from or inadequacies in the employee's 
knowledge of the procedure or changes in the regulations 

• A new or revised control method of a system or piece of equipment 

The following procedures provide additional guidance for employee training specific to the 
areas described in these NCP A documents: 

• Generation Services Common Procedure GS-101: Lock Out Tag Out Try Procedure 
• Generation Services Common Procedure GS-103: Electrical Safety Procedure 
• Generation Services Common Procedure GS-107: Proper Handling of Hazardous Waste 
• Generation Services Common Procedure GS-111 : Hot Work Procedure 
• Generation Services Common Procedure GS-115: Welding Safety Procedure 
• Generation Services Common Procedure GS-126: Fire Protection and Prevention Plan 
• Power Management Common Procedure PM-108: Operating Instructions and 

Emergency Assistance 
• Power Management Common Procedure PM-201: Emergency Operating Guidelines, 

Collierville Power House Bellota-Collierville 230kV Lines 

5.H. RECLOSING POLICY 

NCP A does not own or use automatic reclosers on its 230 kV within the scope defined in Section 
4 of this WMP. This is a typical approach for utility operations in rugged and remote terrain, for 
both personnel and fire hazard safety reasons. In the event of a planned or emergency line trip, 
close coordination with NCPA generation services and dispatch as well as with PG&E's grid 
control center is mandatory, and lines are only re-energized after extensive line patrol visual 
confirmation. If the lines are tripped due to a forecasted or imminent wildfire or if a wildfire is 
believed to be caused by downed lines, close coordination with CAL FIRE's onsite representative 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 25 



and control center are required before NCP A's generation services attempts to energize the 
line. 

5.1. DE-ENERGIZATION 

In the event of active fire situations in the vicinity of the CB 230 kV transmission line, NCPA may 
be directed by CAL FIRE to de-energize the line's two circuits for firefighter and/or aircraft 
protection. The on-call Hydro Supervisor will coordinate Hydro personnel response to any 
wildland fires in and around the CB 230 kV transmission lines and contact on-site CAL FIRE 
personnel if necessary. If CAL FIRE requests de-energizing both of the 230 kV lines, the NCPA 
Dispatch Center will shut down both Collierville units before de-energizing these lines. NCP A is 
currently able to de-energize both circuits of the CB 230 kV line via SCADA and other 
procedures within 20 minutes. 

The Collierville 480 V AC station service is designed to automatically transfer to the offsite PG&E 
17 kV source. If the 17 kV source is not available, the 480 V AC standby diesel generator will start 
and provide station service power. The NCP A Dispatch Center will notify Generation Services 
Hydro staff of any issues with the 17 kV source or if the diesel generator is in operation. The NCP A 
Dispatch Center will notify the CAISO and work with PG&E's Grid Control Center to de-energize 
both 230 kV lines. 

NCPA's Geothermal plant manager relies on PG&E to determine de-energization. NCPA's Hydro 
plant manager has the authority to preemptively shut off power due to fire-threat conditions; 
however, this option will only be used in extraordinary circumstances. NCP A will make a case-by
case decision to shut off power. 

NCP A also maintains transmission line trip procedures to significantly reduce fire risk, including 
requiring patrols prior to restoring transmission lines. Requiring patrols during high fire risk scenarios 
is typical and recommended of California utilities. 

I 5.J.1. IMPACTS TO PUBLIC SAFETY 

NCP A has no retail customers, ahd de-energizing agency facilities will not directly affect retail 
customers, who will be notified by their specific utility providers of PSPS. 

ls.J.2. CUSTOMER NOTIFICATION PROTOCOLS 

NCP A provides wholesale power to Cities and utilities, typically known as NCP A members, only 
via the utility grid. Since NCP A does not have retail customers, no customer notification 
protocols are in place. However, NCP A is the primary point of contact between PG&E PSPS and 
its member utilities. Formal procedures are currently in place, NCP A-PM-50 l, to notify NCPA 
member utilities of de-energization activities. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 26 



6. LEFT BLANK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 27 



7. RESTORATION OF SERVICE 

After a de-energization event, NCPA will restore service in coordination with PG&E's restoration 
efforts. NCPA will follow PM-201 and Geothermal Facilities Maintenance Procedure (GEO-646) 
which specifically address restoration for Hydro and Geothermal facilities respectively. These 
procedures contain the steps that must be taken to restore such as inspecting, repairing, testing, 
and finally restoring. 

7.A. METRICS AND ASSUMPTIONS FOR MEASURING PLAN 
PERFORMANCE 

NCP A will track two metrics to measure the performance of this Wildfire Mitigation Plan Metrics 
are evaluated yearly: (1) number of fire ignitions; and (2) number of NCPA wires down. 

I METRIC 1: FIRE IGNITIONS 

NCP A will track fire ignitions in their territory as follows: 

• Self-ignited or human-caused 
• An NCP A facility failure was associated with the fire 
• An NCP A electrical facility wire-to-wire contact was associated with the fire 
• The ignition was a result of an extreme weather event 

2020 Metric Summary: GEO -0 ignitions, Hydro -0 ignitions 

2021 Metric Summary: GEO - 0 ignitions, Hydro - 0 ignitions 

I METRIC 2: WIRES DOWN 

The second metric is the number of NCPA distribution and transmission wires downed. A wire 
down event includes any instance where an electric transmission or primary distribution 
conductor falls to the ground or on to a foreign object. NCP A will divide the wires down metric 
between wires down inside and outside of High Fire Threat Districts. All wires down events will be 
documented. 

2020 Metric Summary: GEO - O Wire Down, Hydro - O Wire Down 

2021 Metric Summary: GEO - 0 Wire Down, Hydro - O Wire Down 

j METRIC 3: FALL IN HAZARD TREES IGNITIONS 

NCP A has added a metric that measures an element that could lead to a wildfire ignition: 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 28 



• Fall in trees {trees of height sufficient to represent a contact hazard to the Distribution 
Line if destabilized due to soil instability at the tree base) without adequate clearance to 
the ROW in areas previously affected by fire. 

2022 Metric Summary: GEO - 1 O Locations, O Fall Ins; Hydro - 2 Locations, 0 Fall Ins. 

7.B. IMPACT OF METRICS ON PLAN 

NCP A anticipates that tracking these metrics will help with identification of which lines are most 
susceptible to unexpected outages, time-of-year risks, as well as fire threat district risks. From this, 
NCP A will identify lines that are disproportionately impacted and will then evaluate potential 
improvements to the plan. 

2020,2021 and 2022 WMP Impact Due to Metrics - The metrics above show zero incidents and 
indicate success. No WMP changes due to metrics. 

7.C. MONITORING AND AUDITING THE PLAN 

This W MP is presented to the NCP A Commission on an annual basis along with metrics and a 
summary of updates. Additionally, a qualified independent evaluator will present a report on this 
plan to the NCPA Commission. See section 8. 

7.0. IDENTIFYING AND CORRECTING DEFICIENCIES IN THE PLAN 

NCP A may correct deficiencies and implement plan improvements as needed. Some of these 
activities are defined in Section 2C. See section l B, 4th paragraph identifying this WMP is in 
response to SB90l and superseding previous versions. Improvements will be documented in the 
annual report to the NCPA Commission. 

7.E. MONITORING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INSPECTIONS 

Line inspections for NCPA fall into two categories: 

l. Line patrol and evaluation of line facilities on a structure-by-structure basis. This is either 
ground or aerial {drone or helicopter) based. 

2. Vegetation monitoring and evaluation, either ground-based on a structure-by-structure 
and span-by-span basis or by lidar aerial methods. 

Measuring the effectiveness of these inspections can be performed by review by independent 
professionals of the inspection documentation and analysis in the case of the lidar vegetation 
inspection. A second method would include ride-alongs with inspection personnel to review their 
methodology and reporting. Lastly, an independent review of similar facilities can be performed 
and compared and reviewed with inspection personnel. NCP A currently conducts ride-alongs 
with both Cal-Fire staff and internal NCPA staff. Additional objectives are stated in Section 2C 
above. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version l.3 Page 29 



Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 30 



8. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 

In 2019, NCPA anticipated that the CPUC would provide a list of qualified independent 
evaluators. In lieu of such a list, NCP A drew from a list it compiled following a Request for 
Qualifications issued in June 2019. The selection was based on competitive bid. 

In 2020, NCPA competitively bid and contracted with a qualified independent evaluator, 
Dudek, with experience in assessing the safe operation of electrical infrastructure to review and 
assess the comprehensiveness of this WMP. The independent evaluator issued a report {that is 
attached as an appendix to this report) and posted to the NCPA website. The independent 
evaluation and report were completed April 30th 2020. 

In 2021, NCPA competitively bid and contracted with a qualified independent evaluator, 
Dudek, to review this WMP using the recommendations provided by the Wildfire Safety Advisory 
Board's (WSAB) "Guidance Advisory Opinion for the 2021 Wildfire Mitigation Plans of Electric 
Publicly Owned Utilities and Cooperatives" published and approved December 9, 2020. Per the 
WSAB, "The guidance document should be viewed as offering an efficient way to meet the 
WMP requirements in Public Utilities Code Section 8387(b)(2), not as adding to the statutory 
requirements." 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 31 



APPENDIX 1 - FIRE RISK ASSESSMENT MAPS 

1 _____ , __ ,. ... ,i 
~ j .ll! 

j~1.-1 ~ ~ ~~~"'<ill . .::ei '! 

Hz i 
~ 
j 

~,-,~A~~-~ I ~+~ 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

lit 

. -, 
I I ' -~ 

D 

Page 32 



l a. 
! . / 

r @ . 1. i , 

·I I J 

' ' . . 
. ' . 

. .,y 
C'ff;.NOOJ ~O<J Vl'IIV 

.u,mo~ l)J,N)V~VMlVS 

? 

• • 
• 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

g 
~:J 

.. ~i ~· 
i Jp I! 'i_i:

0 
ti ~ r1h i3 (' ~ .~ -~i 1~ & ih-tpi 

~ Ji z 
h a 

,; N 
:l: 'S 
j 

t m " .!i 

"h ~ fr ~ ~i j rJ 
"Q 

Ii 11 .! ' "' J:l <I .. 

ii 
i I 
~+~ ~ J;, 

~ 
jl: 

a ' 

i s 
i;:: 

~ 
j 
i' 

I 
j, i = 

I I j ' 
!!. 
ii: 

Page 33 



APPENDIX 2 - INDEPENDENT EVALUATOR REPORT 2020 

Aprll 30., 202() 

Mr. Jeremy La"w"Son 
North em California Power Agency 

851 Commerce Drive 
Rosevll le, CA 95878 

~ EYsluarmn ofNarlhfltn Calffbmla Powal" A.11MDY Wlldffr8 ~ and MA1gatlon PiBll 

Dear Mr. La"w"Son: 

12108.02 

Dudek conducted an evaluation of the City of Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

(WMP), as required under California Public Utilities Code (CPUC) Section 8387(b). CPUC Section 8387(b), as 
modified by Sen.ate BIii (SB) 9()1, and the Administrative Law Judge's Ruling issued on January .17, 2019 in CPUC 

Docket No. R.18-1().007 Q\U Ruling), applies to publicly-owned electric utilities .and requires preparation of a WIidfire 
Mitigation Pl.an before January 1, :2020. CPUC Section 8387(e) requires that an independent evaluator review and 

assess the comprehensiveness of a publicly-owned utillty'sWMPand Issue a summary report. 

Dudek, as an independent plan evaluator, conducted .an Initial review of NCPA's Draft WMP (version 1.0). On April 
21, 2020, Dudek provided a summary matrix with recommendations for Draft WMP modifications. The focus of 
the evaluation was to determine whether the Draft WMP addressed all required elements under CPUC Section 
838 7(b)(2) (lnclud ed In Attachment A). The following sum ma rlzes the rec om mended clarifications/mod lflcatlons 

id entlfl ed d urlng the Initial revl ew of the Draft WMP (versl on 1.0), by required element: 

• .8387(b)(A): Provl de clarlflcatlon and d eta II regs rd Ing plan Im plementatlon responslblllt,V. 

• 8387(b)(E): Identify previous plan m etrlcs, as ava Ila ble. 

• 8387(b)(L): Provide details regarding risk drivers, risk Impacts, and how NCPA will identify, monitor, 
analyze, plantevaluate and respond to risks. 

• .83.87(b)(N)(I): Clarify monitoring efforts associated with WMP Implementation .and clearly identify 

performance monitoring details in the plan. Clarify plan auditing and review procedures. 

• .83.87(b)(N)(il): Provide clarification .and detail regarding plan implementation, review, and plan deficiency 

eorreetion responsibility. 

• .83.87(b)(N)(III): Clarify line/equipment Inspection responsibility, tlmetrames, work plan .approach, and 

target I nspectl on goals, and performance m etrlcs. 

Subsequently, NCPA elected to modify Its Draft WMP that Incorporated Duclek's recommended modifications. The 
Revised WMP (version 1.1) was provided to Dudek on April 29, 2020. Dudek reviewed the Revised WMP and 

d eterm lned that It appropriately addressed all elements required under CPU C Section .8387(b)(:'2). 

DUDEI< 1 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108,02 
Aprll2020 

Page 34 



Mr. Jeremy Lawson 
SuQieet: Evaluetion r:,f Northern California Power Ageney Wildfire Prevention Mitigation Plan 

Should you have any Questions or reQuire additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at (530) 
883-4850. 

Sincerely, 

Scott Eckardt, RPF 
Project Manager 

Atr.: A. Requlred WMPEfemem:s under PUGSectJon 8387lh) 
cc-: Mfcheef Huff, Dudek 

~son Neuman, Dudek 

DUDEK 2 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

1.2108.02 
Aprll2020 

Page 35 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 
PUC '8871b)(2) 
lectton 

A 

B 
C 

D 

E 

F 

G 

H 
I 

J 

J(ij 

J(ii) 

K 

L 
M 
N 

N(i) 
N(il) 

N(IIO 

DUDEK 

DelodptJan 

An accounting of the responsibfllties of the persons responsible for executing the plan. 
The objectives of the WIidfire mitigation plan. 
Description of the preventative strategies and programs to be adopted by the publicly owned electric 
utility or electrical cooperative to minimize the risk of its electrical lines and equipment causing 
catastrophic wildfires, indudingconsideration of dynamfcclimate change risks. 
A description of the metrics the local publicly owned electric utility or electrical cooperative plans to 
use to evaluate the Wildfire mitigation plan·s performance and the assumptions made that underlie 
the use of those metrics. 
A discussion of how the application of previously identified metrics to previous wildfire mitigation 
plan performances has informed the wildfire mitigation plan. 
Protocols for disabling reclosers and de-energizing portions of the electrical distribution system that 
consider the associated impacts on public safety, as well as protocols related to mitigating the public 
safefy impacts of those protocols, including impacts on critical first responders and on health and 
communication infrastructure 
Appropriate and feasible procedures for notifying a customer who may be impacted by the de-
energizing of electric lines. The procedures shall consider the need to notify, as a priority, cri'tica I first 
responders, health care facilities, and operators of telecommunications infrastructure. 
Plans for vegetation management 
Plans for inspections of the local publicly owned electric utili1¥'s or electrical cooperative·s electrical 
infrastructure. 
A list that identifies, describes, and prioritizes all wildfire risk$, and drivers for those risks, throughout 
the local publicly owned electric utility's or electrical cooperative· s service territory. The list shall 
include, but not be limited to, both of the following: 
Risks and risk drivers associated with design, construction. operations, and maintenance of the local 
publicly owned electric utiley or electrical cooperative's equipment and facilities. 
Partlcular risks and risk drivers associated with topographic and climatological ris:K factors 
throughout the different parts of the local publicly owned utility's or electrical cooperative' s service 
territory. 
Identification of any geographic area in the local publicly owned electric utility's or electrical 
cooperative's service territory that is a higher wildfire threat than is currently identified in a 
commission fire threat map, and identification of where the commission should expand the high fire 
threat district based on new information or changes to the environment. 
A methodology for identifying and presenting enterprise-wide safety risk and wildfire-related risk. 
A statement of how the local publicly owned electric utility will restore service after a wildfire. 
A description of the processes and procedures the local publicly owned electric utility or electrical 
cooperative shall use to do all of the following: 
Monitor and audit the wildfire mitigation plan. 
Identify any deficiencies in the wildfire mitiga'tion plan or its implementation, and correct those 
deficiencies. 
Monitor and audit the effectiveness of electrical line and equipment inspections, including 
inspections performed by contractors, that are carried out under the plan. and other applicable 
statutes, or commission rules. 

A·1 
12108.02 
Apr112020 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 36 



APPENDIX 3 - INDEPENDENT EVALUATOR REPORT 2021 

May 3, 2021 

Mr. Jeremy Lawson 
Northern California Power Agency 
651 Commerce Drive 
Roseville, CA 95678 

Subject: Independent Evaluation Report of Northern ca1ifomia Power Agency's Wildfire Mitigation Plan Ver. 1.2 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) contracted. with Dudek to engage in an independent evaluation of tts 
Wildfire Mitigation Plan (WMP). This independent evaluation report (Report) describes the technical review and 
evaluation of the WMP prepared by Dudek, performed in April 2021 and completed on April 26, 2021. 

Dudek conducted an evaluation of NCPA's WMP, as required under C81ifornia. Public Utilities Code (PUC) 
§8387(b). PUC §8387(b), as modified by Senate Bill (SB) 901, and the Administrative Law Judge's Ruling issued on 
January 17, 2019 in California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) Docket No. R.18-10-007 (AU Ruling), applies to local 
publicly owned electric utilities and required preparation of a WMP before January 1, 2020, and revising/updating the 
WMP in 2020 and annually thereafter, 

The WMP requirements are codified In PUC §8387(b)(2) for local publicly owned electrlc utlllties (POUs}, PUC 
§8387(c) requires that an independent evaluator review and assess the comprehensiveness of a POU's WMP and 
issue a summary report. 

Dudek conducted an initial review of NCPA's WMP (version 1.2) and provided recommendations for 
clarifications/modifications on April 8, 2021. The focus of the evaluation was to determine whether the WMP 
included all elements required under PUC §8387(b)(2) (listed in Attachment A). The following summarizes the 
recommended clarifications/modifications identified during the initial review, by required element. Required 
elements not identified below were determined to satisfactorily meet code requirements in the WMP. 

• 8387(b)(2)(A): While the organizational structure, responsible department and responsible position are 
identified, it is not clear what the responsible position's responsibilities are for executing the WMP. 

• 8387(b)(2)(C): Add description of programs. Reference is made to the line maintenance program. No 
definitive description is provided for the proposed programs. 

• 8387(b)(2)(E): Include discussion of application of previous metrics. No reference is included regarding 
the impacts on the WMP from past metrics. 

• 8387(b)(2}(F): Enhance section to clarify role as wholesaler vs. retailer. Reclosers are not employed. 
Impacts to Public Safety is addressedi any impacts would be addressed by providers of Public Safety 
Power Shutoffs (PSPS). MY de-energization is coordinated with CAL Fl RE and PG&E. 

DUDEK 1 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 37 



Independent Evaluation Report of Northern Csllfornia Power Agency's Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

• 8387(b)(2)(G): Enhance section to clarify role as wholesaler vs. retailer. As a wholesale provider NCPA ha.Iii 
no retail customers; any impacts would be addressed by providers of PSPS. 

• 8387(b)(2)(J): Add list of risks and risk drivers related to design, construction, operation and 
maintenance; they currently are not addressed. 

• 8387(b)(2)(K): Not addressed. Rather than referring solely to the High Fire-Threat District, include 
description of the local geography, any specific areas of concern and identification of any changes to be 
made. 

• 8387(b)(2)(M): Needs clarification and details. Statement is very limited with no details, only that 
restoration will occur in coordination with PG&E and General Order (G0)•646 procedures. The section 
should be enhanced to include details on PG&Es restoration efforts and the G0-646 procedure. 

• 8387(b)(2)(N): The section should be enhanced to include details on how the monitoring will occur 
throughout the year. It is not clear how deficiencies are identified. Clarifica1ion is needed whether or not 
the proposed effectiveness inspection methods are actually taking place, and if so, by whom. 

Following updates to all of the above, the WMP was found to meet all the requirements of PUC §8387(b)(.2). 

In addition, though not required to do so, NCPA requested Dudek to conduct an evaluation of the WMP for 
compliance with the Wildfire Safety Adviso,y Board 2020 WMP guidance recommendations. Following updates, 
the WMP was found to meet all the recommendations of the Guidance Advisory Opinion for 2021 WMPs (See 
Attachment B for Compliance Matrix). 

II. WILDFIRE MITIGATION PLAN REQUIREMENlS 

A. Senate BIil 901 

Per Senate Bill (SB) 901, all Publicly Owned Utilities (POUs) are required to adopt.a Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
(WMP), which shall be reviewed by an independent third.party evaluator. SB 901 requires the governing board to 
determine whether any portion of the geographical area where the utility's overhead electrical lines and 
equipment are located has a significant risk of catastrophic wildfire resulting from those electrical lines and 
equipment The bill directs electrical utilities to annually prepare WMPs that include several mitigation and 
response elements in each utility's strategies, protocols, and programs. Each electric utility is to prepare and 
adopt a comprehensive WMPbeforeJanuary 1, 2020. The requirements for POUs are presented in PUC §8387. 
In addition, the WMP shall be reviewed by an approved, independent, third-party evaluator to review and assess 
the comprehensiveness of, and the POU's compliance with, this Plan. 

B. AB 1054 & AB 111 

Per Assembly Bill (AB) 1054, POUs must annually submit a WMP to the caufomia Wildfire Safety Advisory Board, 
which will review the WMP and provide recommendations on mitigating wildfire risk. AB 1054 contains similar 
WMP requirements to SB 901 but allows WMPs of a three-year, rather than one.year duration. 

AB 111 establishes the Wildfire Safety Division within the Public Utilities Commission. 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 38 



Independent Evaluation Report of Northern catffornia Power Agency's Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

C; Northern C8l1fomla Power Agency WMP Requirements 

PUC §8387(b)(.2) lists the statutory requirements for WMPs. These are the specific elements that the 
independent evaluator must review in order to make rts determination for this report. The specific elements that 
must be addressed In NCPA's WMP are included rn Table A (see Attachment A) and are summarized here for 
reference. 

• The responsibilities of persons responsible for executing the plan. 
• The objectives of the wildfire mitigation plan. 
• The preventive strategies and programs to be adopted to minimize the risk of its electrical lines and 

equipment causing catastrophic wildfires. 
• The metrics to use to evaluate the wildfire mitigation plan's performance. 
• How the application of previously Identified metrics has Informed the wHdflre mitigation plan. 
• Protocols for disabling reclosers and deenergizing portions of the electrical distribution system that 

consider the associated impacts. 
• Procedures for notifying a customer who may be Impacted by the deenergrzrng of electrical lines. 

Plans for vegetation management. 
• Plans for inspections of the electrical infrastructure. 
• Description of all wildfire risks, and drivers for those risks, throughout the service territory, including 

design, construction, operation, and maintenance of equipment and facilities, and topographic and 
climatological risk factors. 

• Identification of any geographic area in the service territory that is a higher wildfire threat than is 
identified in a commission fire threat map. 

• Identification of enterpriSe-widesafety risk and wildfire-related risks. 
• How the service wfll be restored after a wildfire. 
• The processes and procedures used to monitor and audit the implementation of the wildfire mitigation 

plan, identify any deficiencies, and the effectiveness of electrical line and equipment [nspections. 

111. DESCR!PTfON OF NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY 

NCPA Is a Joint Powers Agency, which owns and operates electrical generation facilities. NCPA is governed by a 
Commission comprised of one representative for each of Its pubHc power utility members. 

The WMP applies to a geothermal facilfty and a hydro facility that are located in two different geographical areas. 
These two facilities contain electrical equipment in high fire threat locations. The geothermal plant is located 
around the Geyser territory in Utka County and the Hydro Electric Facility is located in the North Fork Stanislaus 
River watershed (Calaveras County). 

NCPA electrical infrastr"ucture consists of facilities that are in Moderate to Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones 
(CAL FIRE) and/or Tier 2/3 CPUC Fire Threat Zones. 

NCPA has taken appropriate actions to help prevent and respond to the increasing risk of devastating wildfires by 
following all applicable design, construction, operation, and maintenance requirements that reduce safety risks 
associated with its electric system. 

DUDEK 3 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108,04 
May2021 

Page 39 



Independent Evaluation Report of Northern Csllfornia Power Agency's WIidfire Mitigation Plan 

IV. INDEPENDENT EVALUATION 

A Independent Evaluator Requirement 

PUC §8387' requires each POU to •·contract with a qualified Independent evaluator with experience in assessing 
the safe operation of electrical infrastructure to review and assess the comprehensiveness of its wildfire 
mitigation plan." Additionally, the independent evaluator"s assessment of the comprehensiveness of the POU's 
WMP must be issued in a report that is both posted to the POU's website and presented at a public meeting of the 
POU's governing board. 

B. Dudek's Qualifications 

According to PUC §8387(c), the qualified independent evaluator that performs the assessment of NCPA's WMP 
must have "experience in assessing the safe operation of electrical infrastructure to review and assess the 
comprehensiveness of its wildfire mitigation plan." NCPA has determined that Dudek is the independent 
evaluator who adequately understands the local conditions and fire risks of the service area. 

C. Evaluation Methodology 

Dudek evaluated the comprehensiveness the NCPA WMP on the following measures: 

• Statutory ComQHance: Dudek ensured that each required element specified in PUC §8387 is either 
addressed in NCPA's WMP or that NCPA has sufficiently described why that element is not applicable due 
to NCPA's size, geography, system or other relevant factor. 

• Industry Comparison: Dudek is familiar with existing industry practices and has reviewed the local POU 
WMPs previously filed with the CPUC. Dudek has compared NCPA's WMP against existing practices and 
any comparable actions planned by the POUs. 

The NCPA WMP uses the following metrics to measure performance of its wildfire mltigatron measures: (1) 
number of fire Ignitions, and (2) wires down events. Dudek has determined that these are appropriate metrics for 
this WMP. Dudek wlll continue to monitor the metrics selected rn the CPUC's current Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
rulemaking for utilities (per R.18-10-007) and determine if any additional metrics are applicable to POUs and 
should be incorporated into future WMPs. 

V. EVALUATION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY WILDFIRE MITIGATION PLAN 

A. Minimizing Wildfire Risks 

PUC §8387(a) requires the following: Each local publicly owned electric utility and electrical cooperative shall 
construct, maintain, and operate its electrical lines and equipment in a manner that will minimize the risk of 
wildfire posed by those electrical lines and equipment. 

The WMP describes the safety-related measures that NCPA follows to reduce its risk of causing wildfires. Dudek 
has determined that NCPA complies with this standard due to the construction of NCPA's equipment and 
resources. 

DUDEK 4 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 40 



Independent Evaluation Report of Northern Callfornfa Power Agency's Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

B. Evaluation of WMP Elements 

Dudek found that NCPA's WMP meets the statutory requirements of comprehensiveness per PUC §8387. The 
review of the WM P's elements is summarized relative to the application of the WMP. The table in Attachment A 
lists each required element for NCPA's WMP and provides Dudek's assessment of the comprehensiveness of that 
element within the WMP. 

Below is a brief summary of WMP elements as required by PUC §8387, including restating sections of the WMP 
where applicable. 

8387(b)(2)(A): Responsibilities of Persons Responsible for Executing the Plan. 
Under the direction of the Assistant General Manager for Generation Services, the plant managers are 
responsible for implementation and execution of the WMP with respect to th.eir facilities. 

8387(b)(2)(B): Objectives of the Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

The objective of the WMP Is to reduce the risk of wildfires that could be Ignited or propagated by NCPA 

electrical equipment or facilities in high fire threat locatfons. 

8387(b)(2)(C): Prevention Strategies and Programs 
NCPA's strategies to reduce wildfire risk include continuous evaluation and improvement of its programs 
and procedures: including NCPA's (1) facility mafntenance program, (2) emergency operating procedures, 
(3) vegetation management programs, and (4) asset documentation programs. These programs include 
all details such as goals, objective or percentage, monitor ongoing work., accomplishments, internal and 
external audits, and detailed reports. 

8387(b)(2)(D): Metrics and Assumptions for Measuring WMP Performance 
The NCPA WMP uses two metrics to measure performance of its wildfire mitigation measures: (1) number 
of fire Ignitions, and (2) wires down events. Dudek has determined that these are appropriate metrics for 
thisWMP. 

8387(b)(2)(E): Impact of Previous Metrics on WMP 

The metrics show zero incidents and Indicate success; no WMP changes due to metrics. 

8387(b)(2)(F): Reclosing Protocols 
NCPA does not own or use automatic reclosers on its 230 kV within the scope defined in this WM P. 

8387(b)(2)(G): De-energization Notification Procedures 

In the event of active fire situations, NCPA may be directed by CAL FIRE to de-energize the lines for 

firefighter and/or aircraft protection. If CAL FIRE requests de-energizing both of the lines, the NCPA 

Dispatch Center will shut down units before de--energiting these lines. 

8387(b)(2)(H): Vegetation Management 

NCPA has developed and implemented a Transmission Vegetation Management Program (TVMP) to 

establish the vegetation maintenance requirements for each facilltyto achieve reliability of its generation 

interconnection system. The NCPA document defines procedures for vegetation management. NCPA's 

DUDEK. 5 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 41 



Independent Evaluation Report of Northern California Power Agency's Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

TVMP is the plan for all types of vegetation associated with utility infrastructure, from the ground to the 

sky, which includes vegetation above and below electrical lines. 

8387(b)(2)(1}: Inspections 
NCPA performs annual inspections of its transmission and distribution facilities in accordance with 
General Order 95 and General Order 165. In addition to its annual ground-based inspection, NCPA may 
augment inspections with aerial drone and/or helicopter surveys. 

8387(b)(2)(J)(i): Risks and Risk Drivers Associated with Design and Construction Standards 
Risks and risk drivers related to design, construction, operation and maintenance include 
equipmenVstructure/facilities, object to wire or equipment contact, wire to wire oontact, vehicle 
operations, vegetation clearing, and hot work. 

8387(b)(2)(J)(li): Risks and Risk Drivers Associated with Topographic and Climatological Risk Factors 
RlskS and risk drivers related to Topographic and Climatologrcal Risk Factors rnclude extended drought, 
vegetatfon type, vegetation density, weather, high winds, prevailing winds, terrain, changing weather 
patterns and communities at risk. 

8387(b(2))(K): Geographical Area of Higher Wildfire Threat 
To identify the areas of NCPA's service territory that are atan elevated or extreme risk of power line
ignited wildfire, NCPA has incorporated the High Fire-Threat District into its constructiol'l, inspection, 
maintenance, repair, and clearance practices, where applicable. 

8387(b)(2){L): Enterprise--wide Safety Risks 
NCPA regularly evaluates enterprise safety risks, which include severe operating conditions and 
contingencies. NCPA also performs regular analysis of risks to improve the ability to manage the risks 
effectively. 

8387(b)(2)(M): Restoratfon of Service 
After a de-energization event, NCPA will restore service in coordination with PG&E's restoration efforts. 
NCPAwill follow PM-201 and Geothermal Facilities Maintenance Procedure (GE0-646) which specifically 
address restoration for Hydro and Geothermal facilities respectively. 

8387(b)(2)(N)(i): Monitoring and Auditing WMP lmplemel'\tation 
The WMP is presented to the NCPA Commission on an annual basis along with metrics and a summary of 
updates. 

8387(b)(2)(N)(ii): Identifying and correcting WMP deficiencies 
NCPA may correct deficiencies and implement plan improvements as needed. Improvements will be 
documented in the annual report to the NCPA Commission. 

8387(b)(2)(N)([ii): Monitoring and Auditing the effectiveness of in.,;pections 
NCPA uses General Orders 95 and 165 as guides to inspect its electric supply system. 

CONCLUSION 

Dudek concludes that the Northern caHfomia Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan comprehensively addresses 
all of the applicable statutorily required elements for a Publicly Owned Utilities' WMP as specified in California 

DUDEK 6 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 42 



Independent Evaluation Repott of Northern California Power Agency's Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

Public Utilities Code Section 8387, and has been updated to include modifications from the previous year's WMP. 
Dudek further finds that NCPA has taken reasonable actions to minimize the risk that its lines or equipment will 

cause a wildfire. 

Prepared by, 

Douglas V. Nickles, RPF 
Fire Protection Specialist 

Att.: A. WMP Required clement Compliance Matrix under PUC Section 8381 
B. Wildfire Safety Advisory Board 2020 Guidancs Reoommendations compliance Matrix 

cc: Scott Eckardt, Dudek 

DUDEK 7 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 43 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WMP Required tleme11t per PUCSec NCPAWMP IE'1A.11eume11t of WMP based on 
8387(bJ(2) section PUC Sec. 8387 Requlremerrts 

(Al: An accounting of the responsibifitie~ sec. 3.A Utility Needs clarification of resPonsibilities. 
of persons responsible for executing the Governance While the organizational structure, 
plan. Structure. tes.ponsible department and 

Generation responsible position are identified, it 
Servites As.51$tant is not clear what the responsible 
General Manager. position's responsibilities are for 

executing the WMP. 

(B): The objectives of the wi!dfire Executive Summary Meets requirements. 
mitigation plan. and Sec. 1.B. 

Purpose of the 
WMP. 2. Goals. 

(C): A di!scription of the preventive Sec.SA Add description or programs. 
strategies and programs to be adopted Preventative Reference i5 made to the line 
ov the local publicly owned electric Strategies and maintenance program. No definitive 
utility or electrical cooperative to ProSrams. sec. s.c. description is provided for the 
minimize the risk of its electrical lines l)otential Climate proposed programs. 
and equipment causing catal.trophic Change Effects. 
wildfires, including consideration of Sec. S.D. Potential 
dynamic climate change risks. Climate Change 

Risk Management 
Impacts. 

(D): A description of the metrics the Sec. 7.A. Metrics Meets requirement:.. 
local publicly owned electrlc utlllty or and Assumptions 
electrical cooperative plans to use to for Measuring Plan 
evaluate the wildfire mitigation plan's Performance. 
performance and the assumptions that 
underlie the use of those metrics. 

DUDEK A,.1 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Respon1lble Party Revisions 

NCPA - complete. Added 
"and responsible for 
executing the WM!)" 

NA 

NCPA • Complete. Revised 
NCM's Ill facility 
maintenance program, (2l 
emergency operating 
procedurel., (3) vegetation 
management prol!rams, and 
{4) a»et docurnentation 
programs. 

NA 

IE"s 2nd Assessment 
ofWMP 

Meets requirements 
as modified. 

Meets 
requirements. 

Meets requirements 
as modified. 

Meets 
requirements. 

.12108.04. 

Mey202.1 

Page 44 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WMft Required Element per PUCSec NCPAWMP IE'I Assenment of WMP based on 
8387{bJ(a) Sedion PUC sec. 8387 Requlrament:s 

(E): A di$CuSSion of how the apphcation sec. 7.B. Impact of Include discussion or application of 
of previously Identified metrics to Metrics on Plan. previous metrics. No reference Is 
previous wildfire mitigation plan induded regatding the impact:!. on 
perf'Ormances has Informed the wildfire the WMP from past metrics. 
mitigation plan. 
(F): Protocols for dis.iblinf! reclose,s and sec. 5.1. Reclosing Enhance section to darify role as 
deenergizing portions of the electrical Policy. Sec. 5.J. De- wholesaler vs. retc1iler. Reclosers are 
distribution system th.it cons.Ider tl'le Energization. Sec. not employed. Impacts to Public 
associated impacts on public: .safety, as 5,J.l. Impacts to Safety 1s addressed; any impacts 
well as protocols related to mitigating Public Safety. would be addressed by providers of 
the public safety impacts of those PSPS. Any de-energi"'tion 1s 
protocols. indudi11g impacts on critical coordinated with cal Fire and PG&E. 
first responders and on health and 
communication infrastructure. 

(G): Appropriate and feasible Sec, S.J.2. Enhance section to clarify ro.le as 
procedures for notifying a customer Customer wholesaler vs. retailer. As a 
who may be Impacted by the Notlflcatlon whole.sale provider NCPA has no 
deenersizing of electrical lines. The Protocols. retail customers; any Impacts would 
procedures shall direct notification to all be addressed by providers of PSPS. 
public safety offices, critical first 
responders, health care facilities, and 
operators of tetecommunic:at.ions 
infrastructure with premises within the 
footprint of potential deenergization for 
a Riven event. 
(H): Plans for vegetation management. sec. 5.P. Meets requirements. 

Vesetation 
ManaHement. 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responslble Party Revflfons 

NCPA. complete. Added 
"2020 WMP Impact Due to 
Metrics" along with 
establishing metric 
summaries to review. 
NCPA - Complete. Changed 
"employ" to "own." 

!I/CPA· Complete. Added 
wholesaler vs retailer 
clarification. 

NA 

IE's Znd Assessment 
ofWMP 

Meets requirements 
as modified. 

Meets requirements 
as modified. 

Meets requirements 
as modified, 

Meets 
requirements. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 45 



Attachment A 

Required WMPE/ements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WMP Required Element per PUCSec NCPAWMP IE's Asaessrnent of WMP based on 
BS17lb){Z) Sed:ion PUC Sec. 8a87 hqulremant:s 

(I): Plans for inspections of the local se,.s.G. Meets. requirements. 
publicly owned electric utility's or Inspections. 
electrical cooperative's electrical 
Infrastructure. 
(J): A list that identifies, describes, and Sec. 4. Wildfire Add list of risks and risk drivers 
prioritizes all wildfire risks, and drivers Risks and Drivers. related to design, construction, 
for those risks, throughout the local Se~ 4.A. Risks operation and maintenance; they 
publicly owned electric. utility's or Associated with currentlv are not addressed. 
electrical cooperative'» service territory. Topographical and 
The list shall include, but not be limited Cllmatologlcal 
to, both of the following: (i) Rliks and Factors. 
risk drivers associated with design, 
construction, operation,. and 
maintenance of the local publicly owned 
electric utility's or electrical 
cooperative'sequipment and facilities. 
(ii) Particular risks and risk drivers 
associated with topographic and 
cllmatologlcal risk fa,tors throushout 
the different parts of the local publicly 
owned electric utility's or electrlcal 
cooperatlve's service territory. 

DU DE K B-3 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Rupcmslbfe Party Revisions 

NA 

NCPA • Complete. Clarified 
4. 8. are Risks .ind risk drivers 
related to design, 
construction, operation and 
malntenance that could 
create fire ignition sourcei.. 

11!'.'s Jnd Assessment 
ofWMP 

Meets 
requirements. 

Meets requirements 
as modified .. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 46 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 838 7(b) 

WMP Required Element per PUCSec NCPAWMP IE'1 Aumrnant of WMP bllHd on 
83S7(b)(Zt Section PUCS.C. 1387 Requtrtmens:s 

(K): Identification of anv geographic area Not addressed. Rather than referring 
in the local publicly owned electric solely to the High Fire-Threat District, 
utility's or electrical cooperative's include description of the local 
service territory that is a higher wildfire geography, any specific areas of 
threat than iJ identified in a commission c;o,icern and ldentiflc.11tion of any 
fire threat n-.ap, and identifiQtlor, of changes to be made. 
where the commission should e>1pand a 
high-fire threat dis.trk:t based on new 
information or dianges to the 
environment. 

(LJ: A methodology for identifying and Sec.4.B. Meets requirement&. 
presenting enterprise-wide safetv risk Er,terprise-wide 
and wildfire-related risk. Safetv Risks. 

{M): A statement of how the local Sec. 7. Restoration Needs clarification and details. 
publitly owned electric utility or of Service. Statement ,is very limited with no 
electrical cooperative will restore details, only that restoration will 
service after a wildfire. occur in toordination with PG&E and 

G0-646 procedures. The section 
should be enhanced to include details 
Ol'I PG&l:s restori'ltiOC'I efforts and the 
G0-646 procedure. 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Raponslble Party Revlsfont 

NCPA - complete. Addressed 
in 4.c. ''NCPA has reviewed 
currMt CAL FIRE haZcJrd 
severity zo.ne and CPUC fire-
threat maps with respect to 
agency facilities, as shown In 
Appendix 1. These maps have 
not been adjusted si!ICe the 
noted publication dates nor 
have any local agencies 
imposed any expansions to 
the maps." 
IIIA 

NCPA • complete. Revised 
thi:. plan to intlude the 
statement NCPA will follow 
f'M-201 and Geothermal 
Facilities Mair,tenance 
Procedure IG0-646) 
specifically ;iddress 
restoration for Hydro and 
Geothermal facilities 
respe{.'.tively. These 
procedures col'ltain the steps 
that must be taken to restore 
such as inspecting, repairing, 
testing, and finally restoring. 

IE's 211d ASHSSment 
ofWMP 

Meets requirements 
as modifJed. 

Meets 
requirements. 

Meets requirements 
il$modified. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 47 



At1.act11nentA 
Reql)ired WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WMP Required Element per PUCS.C NCPAWMP IE's AsMSrnent of WMP _,ued on 
8817{11,tZ) Sedion PUC Sc U87 Requlmnenrs 

(N): A description of the processes and sec. 7.c. The section should be enhanced to 
procedures the local publicly owned Monitoring and Include details on how the 
electric utility or electrical cooperative Auditing the Plan. monitoring will occur throughout the 
shall use to do all of the folfowlng: (IJ Sec. 7.D. year. It Is not dear how deficiencies. 
Monitor and audit the Implementation Identifying and are Identified. Clarification Is rteeded 
of the wildfire mitigation plan. [ii) Correcting whether or not the proposed 
Identify any deficiencies in the wildfire Deficiencies in the effectiveness inspection methods are 
mitigation plan or Its Implementation, Plan. Sec. 7.E. actually taking place, and If so, by 
and correct those deficiencies. jiii) Monitoring the whom. 
Monitor and audit the effectiveness of Effectiveneu of 
etectrieal line and equipment lnspectiOnS. 
Inspections, Including Inspections 
performed by contractOl's, that are 
carried out under the plan, other 
applicable statutes, or c;ommission rules. 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Raponllble Party Revisions 

NCPA • complete. Added 
yearly metrics summary 
including impact to the pllll'l 
from the metrics summary. 

tE's 2nd Asstl!llment 
ofWJIIII' 

Meets requirements 
as modifJed. 

1.2108.04 
May2021 

Page 48 



Attachment B 
Recommended WMP elements per WSAB 2020 Guidance Advisory Opinion 

WSAI zozo WMPGuldance NCPAWMP IE's Jnltlal Assessment of WMP 
Recommendations section based on WSAB Guidance 

Recommelldat&Pl'I$ 
1. Ptan Structure- risk profile 
a) The WMP and Independent NA Reports are displayed on POU 
Evaluator Reports should be website. 
prominently displayed and easilv 
located on the POU websites. 

b) li1dude an index or table that shows Not included. Include the statute compliat'lce 
where each section of the statute is spreadsheet de...eloped by Dudek 
addre5sed in the WM!>. asAppendh1. 

cl Include context-setting lnfonnation Not Included. Prepare the requested context• 
at the beginning of each POU plan setting information and include ir-
about each POU's risk profile in Section 1. 
accordance with the statutory 
requirements Public Utilities Code 
Section 8387(bl(2) 

DUDEK B-1 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responsit,le Party - revlliona 

NCPA - Complete. 
http://www.ncpa.com/blddln 
11-opportunitieNnd-public-
notifications/environmental-
documents/ 
Dudek 

NCPA · Complete. Added 
"NCPA is a Joint Powers 
Agency, which owns and 
operates electrical 
generation. The scope of this 
plan applies the Geothermal 
Facility and the Hydro Facility 
that are located in two 
different geological areas. 
These two facUlties c.ontaln 
electrical equipment in high 
fire threat locations. The 
Geothermal Plant is located 
around the Geyser territory 
In Lake County and the Hydro 
Electric Facility is located in 
around North Fork 
St;mislaus." 

IE's 2nd Aaeament of 
WMP 

Meet5WSAB 
recommendatior.. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May :20.21 

Page 49 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(1:>J 

WSA8202G WMP Guidance NCPA\VMP Its lntialAIHlsment of WMP 
Racommtndations section based onWSAB Guidance 

~ffl41ndd0fll 
d) Apply the Board developed Not included. Prepare the reo,uested template 
template for review of POU WM Ps and include In Section 1 lattadied 

below). 
2. Plan Structute - approval pr(l(;ess 
a) Provide a paragraph describing the Not il'lcluded. Prepare the requested paragraph 
public review proces.s of the plan and and include in Section 1. 
how it Is approved, if required 

bl tnciude add.itional data on Not included. Prepare the requested additiooal 
O\Onitoring and auditing and how that data regarding how the 
information is presented information is presented and 

Include In Section 7 .c. 

DUDEK B-2 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Raspomtble Pa,t:y ~ra,afam 

NCPA. Complete created 
new table section 1. 

NCPA. Completed. Added to 
the purpose of the plan to 
help fill in the overall story. 
Very ending paragraph to the 
apper,ding process. " In 2.020, 
This WMP was presented and 
recorded at a public Brown 
Att Meeting and is posted on 
a public website domain ... " 
NCPA. Complete. Revised to 
"This WMP is presented to 
the NCPA Commission on an 
annual bai ls along with 
metrics and a summary of 
updates." 

ll'dnd Auesamut of 

WW 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetliWSAB 
recommendation. 

Mee'"..:;WSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May 202J. 

Page 50 



AttachmentA 

Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b} 

WSAB 2020 WMP Guidance NCPAWMP IE's fn~I Assessment of WMP 
Recommendations section bued on WSAI Guidance 

Recomn,endatlOl'II 
c) Provide a brief explanation on each Not Included. Prepare the requested explanation 
funding mechanism to be used to for each wildfire mitigation funding 
perform wildfire mitigation mechanism and Include in the 

respective section (i.e., 3.8 .. 3.C., 
5.A., S.F, 5.G, S.H). 

a. ?Ian Stf'IACl:11,e - itldePer'ldei11 twl'lluatfans 
a) IEs should perform a robust N.A Dudek to perform the requested 
evaluatlon of the contents and evaluation. 
st1bstanc;1:1 of the POUs WMP 
b) tnclt1de evaluations of how each NA Dudek to perfom, the requested 
POU compares to the IE's assessment evaluation. 
of Industry standards 

4. Plan structure - Utility gfouplngs 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responsible Party • revltlons 

NCPA - Complete •. The 
following statement applies 
to all funding authority 
"NCPA is go11erned by a 
Commi.ssion comprised of 
one representative for each 
member. The Commission fs 
responsible for the general 
management of the affairs, 
property, and 1,usiness of the 
Agency. Under the direction 
of the General Manager, the 
staff of the Agency Is 
respom;lble for providing 
various admini&trative, 
operating and planning 
services for the Agency. This 
establishes all funding and is 
applied to all wildfire funding 
mechanisms in this plan (i.e., 
3.B., 3.C., SA., S.F, S.G, S.H)." 

Dudek 

Dudek 

IE's 2nd Assessment of 
WMP 

Meets WSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 51 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WSA8 2020 WMP Guidance NOAWMP IE's lnltlal Autnllftlnt of WMP 
RMomfflendltfonl Ndlon b.vad onWSAB Guidance 

~mm.ndatlons 
a) 2021 POU WMPs and/or updates WMP to be updated In accordance 
should be based on the guidelines with the recommended guidelines. 

bl The industry should create a revised NA NA 
template that reflects the learnings 
from.the 2020 initial effort. 

S. Customer !mpitct5- - PSPS shutoffs 
a) Utilities should provide the conte11t- Sec. SJ.2. The context-settir.glnformation 
setting information Customer should be enhanr.ed in this sec.tion 

Notification to reference customer impacts as 
Protocols well as customer notification (re-

emphHlze role u wholesaler vs. 
retail provider!. Consider adding a 
separate Customer Impacts 
section. 

bl Include a detailed protocol to Sec. SJ.2. See S.a) abo11e. 
address these concerns to understand Customer 
the strategic direction and Notification 
effectiveneu of each POU Protocols 

6. Customer impacts-communication plans 

DUDEK 84 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responslbfl Party •NIVlllcn 

NCPA- Complete. This 
evaluation serves as a WMP 
updated based on Dudek's 
and WSA~ n!commendations. 
NA 

NCPA- Complete. Relt'ised as 
"NCPA provides wholesale 
power to City's and utilities 
typically known as NCPA 
members. Since NCPA doe:; 
not have retail custom~. 
like commercial or private 
residences, no customer 
notification protocols are in 
place." 
NCPA- Complf!\e, Revised as 
"NCPA provides wholesale 
power to City's and utilities 
typicaUy known as NCPA 
members. Since NCPA does 
not have retail customers, 
like commercial or private 
residences, no customer 
notification protocols are in 
place." 

IE's 2nd Auessment of 
WMP 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

NA 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04. 
May2021 

Page 52 



Attacrnnent A 
RflQUired WMP Elements under PUC Section 83B7(b) 

WiAB 2028WMPCiuldance NC,AWMP IE'1 lntial Assessment of WMP 
Rtcommendattom NCtfon bUld onWIMGutdlnce 

Rac;omm.qdatlCll'II 
a) De.scribe the specific. methods, Sec. SJ.2. The communication infonnatlon 
content, and timing used to Customer should be enhanced In this. section 
communicate with customers Notification to reflect the context-setting 

Protocols infonnation requested as noted 
abo11e in S.a). 

b) ?roYide an evaluation of whether Sec. SJ.2. See S.a) above. 
the current method of emergenc;v Customer 
communication appears sufficient and, Notification 
if not, what can be done to improve it, Protocols 
especially protocols for notifying 
customers, essential i;ervic:e providers, 
and other critical facilities of IOU or 
self-triggered PSPS event5 

7. 'Fhe Grid - hardening 
a) Provide Information on existing an(! Sec. 2.B. Enhance this section to provide 
planned svstem upgrades Resiliency of specific examples of upgrades as 

the Electric Grid requested. 

b) Provide details of each utility's Sec. 2.A. Enhance this section to provide 
system hardening and grid design Minimizing details of programs as requested. 
programs described in the WMP filing Sources or 

Ignition 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

ltesponstble Party - revlafDtll 

NCPA - complete. Revised as 
"NCPA provides wholesale 
power to City's and utllltles 
tvpically known as NCPA 
members. Sin<:e NCPA does 
not have retail c1,1stomers, 
like commercial or private 
residences, no customer 
notification protocols are in 
place." 
NCPA & Dudek· Complete. 
"Complete. Revised as 
"NCPA provides wholesale 
power to City's and utilities 
typically known as NCPA 
members. Since NCPA does 
not have retail customers, 
like commercial or private 
reslden<:es, no customer 
notification protocols are in 
place." 

NCPA • Complete. NCPA Is a 
relatively smaller utility with 
a small ass.et oount. The list 
is updated and on 5.A. (1) 
NCPA • Complete. Organized 
prograrns and procedures 
S.A. 

IE's 2nd AllelSlllent of 
WMP 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommends1tiPn. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May20:21 

Page 53 



Attachment A 

Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 83B7(b) 

WSA8 2020 WMP Guidance NCPAWMP iE's Initial Auessment of WMP 
Recomm.andatlQns HCtton bastd on WSA8 Guidara 

Recomm•ndatlont 
cl indicate the goals of the program& Sec. 2Goals Enhance this section to show nexus 
and the risk any particular pr~ram is between soals, programs and 
de:.igned to mitigate mitigation as requested. 

d) Provide the approach to PSPS Sec. 3.C. The PSJ>S Information shouid be 
mitigation and prevention Wildfire enhanced to reference mitigation 

Response and and prevention as requested (re-
Recovery; Sec. emphasize role as wholesaler vs. 
SJ.1. Impacts retail provider). Consider adding a 
to Public Safety; separate "PSPS" section. 
Sec. SJ.2. 
customer 
Notification 
Protocols 

e) Identify any supply shortages NA identifv .ir.y supp.Iv shortages as 
requested. See 7.d) above. 

8. The Grfd - inspections 
a) De.scribe the unique risks a utility is Sec.5.G. Enhance this section to describe 
Inspecting for, such as insect, wildfire Inspections the unique risks as requested. 
incursion, wood split, woodpeckers, 
purposeful Insulator destructio!'I, 
termites, etc., to be included in the 
WMP 
b) Describe whether and how system Sec. 5.G. Enhance this section to describe 
inspections lead to system Inspections the resulting system improvements 
improvements as requested. 

DUDEK 8,.6 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

ftesponslbfe Party-revfllons 

NCPA • Ccmplete. Revised 
and organized pr~rams and 
prcx:edure in Sec:tlon 5. 

NCPA • Complete. Added 
NCPA's wholesaler 
information to first paragraph 
for clarification. 

NCPA- complete. Updates to 
Include 11 110 supply shortages" 
in rdation to PSPS. 

NCPA - Complete. Added 
"Section 4.B. of this WMP 
outlines the unique risks 
NCPA Inspects for. II 

NCPA • Ccmplete. Added 
"NCPA's asset management 
system also allows these 
improvements to be 
evaluated as observations 
and comments are made 
when work orders for 

IE's 2nd Assessm'11t of 
WMP 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommeridatiol'I. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 54 



Attac-hment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WSAB 2020 WMP Guidance NC¥AWMP IE's Initial Assessment of WMP 
Recommendations section bued on WSA8 Guidanct 

Rec:omrn•ndatlorw 

9. The Grid ... risks 
a) Consider different options for Se<:. 4 Wildfire Enhance this section to descobe 
surfacing, for further consideration Risks and the different options cor,.sldered as 
and remediation, previously Drivers requested. 
unidentified risks that could lead to 
catastrophic wildfires 

10. Risk assessment- COl'lsttuttion 
a) State the particular wildfire risks Not included. Include risks associated with design 
associated with system design and Wildfire risks and construction as requested. 
coostruction such as topography and are identified in 
:location near a HITD of another utility Sec. 4.A., but 

there isno 
reference to 
design and 
construction. 

DUDEK 8-7 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responsible Party -revisions 

maintenance ltel'Tl5 are 
executed." 

NCPA - Updated Se<:tion S.A. 
(1l to add "NCPA's aggressive 
app(oach to reduce 
transmission tle-llne risk by 
completely upgradins 
Insulators on this asset, 
NCPA's longest line, of 40 
Miles. This project was 
considered a major cost in 
capital and prioritized for 
wildfire prevention." 

NCPA- Complete. Added 
"There are no 11ew wildfire 
risks a550Ciated to design and 
construction of new assets. 
NCPA is currently Operating 
and Maintain original 
senerating facilities. No new 
construction in the 
immediate future." 

IE's 2nd A!sessment of 
WMP 

Meets WSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 55 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WSAB ZOZO WMP Guidance NCPAWMI> IE's Initial Assutment of WMP 
bcommcndatiOns section based on WSAB Guidance 

Rtcommemlatlonl 
bl Provide information about G.O. 95 Not includi!d. Include information about exempt 
exempt assets, and possible updates to assets and updates as requested, 
G.O. 95, that could facilitate more possibly In Sec. 2. B. 
resilient utility transl'l'!ission and 
distribution assets 

11. Risk aSiessment - sltuationJI awareneu 
a) Include context setting Information Se<:. 4.A. Risks Enhance this section. with conteld: 
in the WMPs including information Associated with setting Information as requested, 
about the prevailing wind directions Topographical Including the detailed wind 
and speeds, differentiated by season, and information. 
along with average weather conditions Cllmatologlcal 
by season Factors. 

DUDEK S,8 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responsible Party • NIYlstons 

NCPA- Complete. Leave as 
stated in Section 5.E .. "NCPA 
meets: (1) Public Resources 
Code section 4292: 12) Public 
Resources Code section 4293; 
(3l General Order 95 Rule 35; 
and (4) General Order95 
Appendix E Guidelines to Rule 
3S." 

NCPA • Complete. "Prevailing 
Winds: Using live data, NCPA 
monitors prevalilng winds 
directions and speeds, 
differentiated by season, 
along with average weather 
conditions by season using 
NCl>A real•time observations 
noting disturbing local 
weather. Live data is used 
with the fire maps located in 
Appendh1 l. PG&E's Weather 
Awareness website Is a 
resource for real-time 
condltfom,: 
https://www.pge.com/en_US 
/safety/emergency-
preparedness/natural-
disaster/wildnres/psps-
weather-

1£'s 2nd Assessment of 

WMP 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

1.2108.04 
May2021 

Page 56 



AttacnmentA 
Reauired WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WSA8 2020 WMP Guidance NCPAWMP IE's fnltlal Assessment of WMP 
Rtcommfll'ldatlons section based on WSA8 Guidance 

Recommendations 

b) Ir.dude information on how and Sec. 5.A. Enhance this section witli 
wliy situational awareness technology Preventati11e informotion on teclinologv 
is 1nsta'lled, and where on the system Strategies ,md installation as requested. 

?rograms. 

c) Provide insight into decisions that Sec. S.A. See 11.c) above. 
are made not to install situational Preventative 
awarenesr. tecllnology Stratesies and 

ProRrams. 
d) Are there constraints such as Sec. 5.A. Enhance this section to address the 
budgets, availabllity of equipment, Preventative c:onstraintr. listed as requested. 
knowledge to erfectively deploy, or Strategies and 
qualified personnel to Install and Programs. 
monitor effectively? 

e) Provide information about whether Sec. S.A. Enhance this section to provide 
this modeling data ls received from or Preventative information regarding modeling 

data as requested. 

8-9 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responsible Party• revisions 

map.pap?WT.mc_ld=Vanlty 
_weather" 

NCPA - Complete. Added for 
darity. "This information is 
used in communication and 
aids to analyze wildfire 
situations." 
NCPA 

NCPA • Complete. Added to 
5.A. "There are no constraints 
such as budgets, availilbility 
of equipment, knowledge to 
effectively deploy, or 
qu.ilified personnel to install 
and monitor effectively." 
NCPA • Complete. Data 
source is shared and comes 
from PGE. 

IE's 2nd Astessment of 

WW 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 57 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b} 

WSA820JOWMP Guidance NCPAWMP IE's Initial Assessment of WMP 
ltecommendatlons section bated on WSA8 Guidance 

Racom,nendftl,ons 
shared with other agencies, utilities, or Strategies and 
fire professionals Programs, 

12. Vegetation Management - utility requlremenl!'s 

a) Describe treatment plans for all Sec. S.F. Enhance this section to describe 
types of vegetation associated with Vegetation the treatment plans as requested 
utility infrastructure, from the around Management (reference is made to the TVMP • 
to the sky, which Includes vesetatlon provide details). 
above and below.electrical lines 

13. veaetetion management - personnel qualifications 

a) List the qualifications of any e11perts Sec. 5.F. Enhance this section to list the 
relied UPOn. such as sclentlfic experts Vegetation qualifications as requested. 
in ecology, fire ecology, fire behavior, Management 
geology, and meteorology 

DUDEK B-!O 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Responsible Party• revlllons 

NCPA- Addedtlarity that 
section 5.E. Is "NCPA's plan 
for all types of vegetation 
associated with utlllty 
infrastructure, from the 
ground to the sky, which 
includes vegetation above 
and below electrical lines. " 

NCPA - Complete added to 
sectlor, 5.E. "NCPA 1,1.!;es a 
combination of Its own staff 
(manager, supervisor or 
competent designee) and the 
retention of qualified 
consultants (sudl as scientific 
e111i,ert!i in ecology, fire 
ecologv, fire behilvior, 
geology, .ind meteorolQgy) 
with experience in line 
de$lgn, line construction, 
N ERC Standards compliance, 
and vegetation m--:inagement 
to develop and maintain the 
TVMP." 

IE's 2nd Assessment of 
WMP 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 58 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC Section 8387(b) 

WSAB 2020 WMP Guidance NCPAWMP IE's lnltlal Assenment of WMP 
Recommendations section based on WSAB Guidance 

Racoltlmtn«.tiQnl 
bl Specify the level of expertise of the Sec. 5.F. Enhance this section to specify the 
POU staff that manages the Vegetation level of eKpertiseas requested. 
contractor.s performlns vegetation Management 
management 

c) Describe measures taken to ensure Sec. 5.F. Enhance t.hii section to describe 
that POU staff and oontractors comply Veeetation the measures as requested. 
with or verify compliance with Management 
cal/OSHA standards on Minimum 
Approach Distances (MADI 

14. Vegetation rnanaaement • lnnovatlen 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Re.tponslble Party -revisions 

NCPA. Complete. "NCPA 
uses a combination of its own 
staff (manager, supervisor or 
competent designee) and the 
retention of qualified 
consultants (su<:h as .scientific 
expert5 in ecology, fire 
eeology, fire behavior, 
B@ology, and meteorology) 
with experience in line 
desl&n, line construction, 
NERC Standards eompliance, 
and vegetation manasement 
to develop and maintain the 
TVMP." 
NCPA - Complete. The TVMP 
specifies techn~J 
requirements for staff and 
contractors to complv with or 
verify compliance with 
cal/OSHA standards and 
NCPA Electrh::al Safety 
Procedure GS-103 ensures 
Cal/Osha and Minimum 
Approach Distances (MAD}. 

IE'dnd Assessment of 

WMP 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12101l04 
May2021 

Page 59 



Attachment A 
Required WMP Elements under PUC SecUon 8387(1>) 

WSAB 2020WMP Guldanct NCPAWMP IE's lnltlal Assessment of WMP 
Recommendations section based on WSAB Guk:lanc• 

RICOfflmendatlons 
a} Describe whether the POU has Sec. 5.F. Enhance this section to describe 
considered innovative and alternative Vegetation the approaches considered as 
approaches to vegetation Management requested. 
management suc:h as, but not limited 
to, requiring property owners to 
manage vegetation a certain distance 
from structurei; or utility lines, and 
pilot prosrams in home hardening 

DUOE:K B-12 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

blponslbll Party-rtvllfDN 

NCPA- No Innovative ideas to 
note. 

IE's 2nd Assessment of 
WMP 

MeetsWSAB 
recommendation. 

12108.04 
May2021 

Page 60 



APPENDIX 4 - INDEPENDENT EVALUATOR REPORT 2022 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 61 



DU 

'I 

April: 14, 2022 

Mr. Jeremy Lawson 

Northern Dalifornia Power Apncy 

661 Commerce Drive 

Roseville, CA 95678 

1.2.108.07 

SUlgecl:· lndependeintEvBllation Rq,ortof Nordtem Califomia Power~s. 2022 Wildfire Miligelion Plalt 

1 lntrod uction 

The Northern California p.ower Agency (NCPA) contracted wittt Dudek to engage in an independent evaluation of 
its Wildfire Mittption P~1:m (WMP). This inde1Pendent evaluation report (Report) desc.fibes the technical re\liew and 
ewiuat~on of tile WMP prepared by Dudek, performed ijn Febn.1ary through April2022, andl completed on Apri'I 14. 
:2022. 

Dudek conducted en evaluation of NCPA':S WMP, as requ.iredl undler Celifornia Pu.olie Utl.lities Code {PUC} 
§8387{b). PUC §8387{b), es modified b}' Ser!lflte Bill (SB) 901, and the Administrau.-e La\\! Judge:s Ruling issued on 
January .17, 2019 in CeUfcmia Public Utilities Commission (OPUC} [locket No. R.18-10-007 (AU Ru1ing), applies to 
pubricl)" awned electric utilities and required preparation of a: WMP .before January 1, 2020. and re\!'.aingtupctating the 
WMP in 2020,flnd ennuallythereefter. 

The WMP requirements are todlified ti'\ PUC §8387(b)(2) for klca:I publicly awned electric utilities (POUs). PUC 
§8367(c) requires that an tnde:pende:nt ewi1Uil!lltor· r,e\<iew ancl ll!Sess 1he: comprehensiveness of a POU'.s WMP and 
issue a summary report 

Duelek conducted an lnltiaf review of NCPA's WMP (version 1.3) Elilld provided recommendations for 
clerificationsjmoclifications on Mardi 3, 2022. The focus of the evalu:ation, was to determine: v,nether the WM? 
included all elements required under PLC §8387(b}(:2) (listed in Attachment A}. The evaluation determined that 
the NCPA's 2022 Wildfire M itig&,tion Plan does rnclude all the PUC §8387(b)(2) requirements. 

In addition to evaluating the elements required by the Public Utiltty Codie, Dudek evaluated the WMP for 
compliance wit.ti th.e• Wmifire Safet)' Advisory Board (WSA'BJ Publicty 011med Utilities (POt:sJ WMP 1.utdance 
recommendations and to address any deficiencies in the WSAB re'iie-w of the 2022 WMP that w,ss publ'ished on 
their website. Dudek worked NCPA staff ·to revise the WMP to meet the recommendations of the Gu~dance 
Advisory Opinion for 2022 WMPs that .are relevant to the NCPA's seNice territory(See Attacl\ment B for 
Compliance Matrix). This Included more detailed expl8natkl:ns of the wildfire risks in the utlllty's :servJce territory 
and the wildfire prevention programs that are designed to address these risks. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 62 



2 Wildfire Mitigation Pl.an Re,quirements 

A. Senate Bill 901 

Per Senate BUI (SB} 901. all Publicly Oi.vned Utilities are requ:ired to .adopt a Wilclfire Mitilietion Plan (WMP), which 
shall be reviewed by an independent third-party evaluator. SB 901 requires the goveming ooarcl to determine 
whether any portion of the geoiraphicat area where· the utili'cy's overheael electrical lines and eq;ulpment are 
located has a sia;nificant risk of catastrophic wUdfrre resulting from those e:lectr•cal lines and equipment. The bill 
directs electrical utilities ito annually prepare WMPs that include several mitigation and response elements in 
eaeh utility's sttategies, protocols, and prog-r.ams... Each electric utmtyisto prepare aind .adopt a comprehensive 
WMP before January 1. 2020. The requirements for POUs are presented :in PUC §8387. In addition~ the WMP 
shacl1 be reviewed by an approved, independent, third-tJart;yeveluatorto reviev, and assess the 
comprehensiveness or. and the POU"s compliance witht this Plan. 

B. AB 1054 & AB 111 

Per Assemb~• Bill (AB)< 10541 POLis must annually submit a WMP to the Cafifomfa Wildfire Safety Advisory Board, 
whith will review the WMP and provide recommendations oA mitigating wrldfir:e risk . .AB 1054 contains similar 
WM:P reqlf.lir:ements to SB 901 but allows WMPs of a three-year, rather than one-yeell" duration. 
AB-1U establishes the Wildfire Safety DMsion within the PulbU: Uti:lrues Commtssron. 

C. Northern California Power Agency WMP Requirements 

PUC §8387 (ll)t2) Im the statutoi:y requirements for WMPs. These are ttie speeffic elements that the 
independem evaluator must review to make its determinaticm for this report Ttte spe,eifie elements that must be 
addressed in NCPA's WMP are: inciueled in Table A. ,(see Attachment Al etnd are summarized here forr reference. 

• T.he responsibilities of per.sons respoRSible for: executing tile plan. 
• The objectives of the wildfire mitigation plan. 
• The preventiVe strategies and programs to be adoflled to minimiZe the risk of its e&ectrtcel lines and 

equipment causing catastrophic wildfires. 
• The metrics to use to e't'Bluate the wildfire mitigation pren•s performance. 
• How the a!P13Utation of previously i:dentifi.ed metrics. has informed the wildfire mitig~tion plan. 
• Protocols for disabling reclosers and deene,rgizing portions of the e.1ectrical d:istr'jbution :system that 

consider the associated im1paets. 
• Procedures for notifying a ciJstomer who may be impacted by the deenergizing of electncet~ lines. 
• Plans for vegetation manetgemen,t. 
• Plans for inspections of the electrical infrsstrucru1re. 
• Descript.icm of wildfire risks,. and d:rillers for those risks. th:ro;ughout the senrfce territory, 
• Identification of a,ny geog,aphic area in the service termorythat is a higtlerwildfire threat than is 

cdentifred in a commission fire threat map. 
• ldentfficat.ion of enterprise-wide safety risk and wildfire-related risks. 
• How the service will be restored after a wildfire. 
• The processes and procedures used ·to monitor- and au:diit the implementation of the wildfire• miitlSSti~n 

p!ftn, identify any deficie:ncres, end the. effectiveness of el~ctrical line ,andl eqtJipmem inspections. 

:DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12106.07 
NJR!t2022 2 

Page 63 



3 Description of the Northern California Power Agency 

NCPA is a Joint Powers Agency, which owns tmd operates el'ectrieal generation facilities. N CPA is governeel by a 
Commissiol\ com prised cf one represen.tati..,,e for each of its public power utility meml:>ers. 

The WM? applies to the NCPA's geothermal facility and a hydro facility plus transmission and distribution f,ines" 
These two fa,cilities contain electrical equipment in h:igh fire ttireM locations and power lines that traverse high 
fire threat areas. Tile 1.eothermal facili1¥ is located around the Geyser territory in Lake Courn;y and ,consists offive 
geothermal factuties spread over 30 square miles. The Hydro Bect:ric facitlty ts in the No;rth f'Ork. Stanislaus River 
watershed (Celaveras County} and consists of eight generator/water diYersion stations and an, otfi:ce 1ocated 
along the mer. Tihere are approXimately 40- mu.es of powe.r fines between tile generatfon facilities and their tie-in 
points \Vith PG&E transmission wires. NCPA etectrieel infrastructure consists of facilities that are in Moderate to 
\!'eifl/ High Fire :Hazard Severl(Y .Zones (CAL FIRE) and/or Tier 2/3 CPUC Are Threat Zones. 

NC:PA has take,n appropriate actions to !help prevent and respond to the incr.Hsing risk of devastating \\!il6fires by 
following all applicabte design, construction, operation~ e:ncl maintenance requirements that reduce safety risks 
associated with its etectric system. 

4 Independent Evaluation 

A. Independent Evaluator Requirement 

PUC §8387 requires each POU to "contract with a qualified independent evaluator with &IJ"e1rence :in essessinl 
the safe operation of electrleat lnfrastructu re to review and assess the comprehensiveness of Its wllclfire 
mi1tigation plan." Additional\". the independent evaluator's assessmem of the comprehens1veness of the POU's 
WMP mus.t be issued ~n a report that is bot.ti posted to the POU's website and presented at a p.ulllic meeting of the 
P.OU1s governing board. 

B. Dudek's Qua!ifioat,ons 

According to PUC §8387(c), the q11alified ijndependent evaluator that performs the assessment of NCPA•s WMP 
must lhilllve Gexperience rn assessing the safe operation 01· electrieat infrastructure to reviav .and assess the 
comprehensiveness of its wildfire mitigation plan. • NCPA has detennined that Dudek is the independent 
evaluator who adequately understands the local condruons and· fire riiskS of the :service area .. 

C. Evaluation Met hodology 

Dudek e\lalu:sted the comprehensiveness of the NCPA:s 2022 WMP on the ·fo!klwing measures: 

• Statutorvcomplianoe: Dudek ensured that each r,eqlJlired e·lement specified in PUC §8387 is either 
addressed in NOP.A's WMP or that NCPA h,as sufficiently described why that e1ement is not applicable due 
to, NCPA's siZe·, geography, system, or other relevant·factor. 

• fulfillment •Of Wildfire Safctv AcMsorv Boimil G:uidance: Dudek reviewed WSAB guidance publications fo, 
P\lb'.licly owned Utilities for reoommenmitions that w-ere relevant to ·the NDPA's WMP and then compared 
the Boarcl1s recommendation to 'dle C(lntent of the Vt.IMP. 

K 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.Dl 
ti.PRI.L2022 l 

Page 64 



• lndustrv Comparison: While the NCPA differs from many nearby utilities in that they• provide power to 
other utUity agencies and not consumers, they do use simUar equi.pme,nt ancl operational proced1.nes as 
nearby POUs that .serve consumers. Dudek compared the eilements of the NCPA's WMP, t.~eir operations, 
and tile equipment to those· used by .c>f other. agencies to m in1imize wildfire rgnmon end spread. Where 
the,re was no other agencyts) to compa:re to (e.1., geothermal plants), Dudek used industry standardsL 

D. Metrics 

The NCPA's Wi[dfire Mitipt.ion Plan uses the followiing metrics to measure performance of its wildfir,e mitig&ticn 
measures: (1) number of fire r,gnitions. and (2} wires down e\,.ents. Dudek has determined! thin these. are 
a pp,ropriate metrlcs for this \\'MP and that the· \l!ISAB has concluded that these two metriics. are generally 
acceptable metrics for a WMP .. 
Ouclek recommemlecl that the NCPA consider aelcltng a new metric or revising one of the current metr.cs to 
int,ecrate a metric that shows the actions NCPA is taking in their se!l'Vice territory to reduce witdfire ignition risk. 
:NCPA staff acted on Dudek's recommendation. evaluating. their a.inent operations and their service t.erritozy for 
other useful ineliuttors of wildfire risk,. fire weakened trees and slopes .are hazard to KCPA1s transmJssion wires 
where they pass through fire .sears. NCPA rs incorporating a third metrlc: into their WMP that measures fsU in 
trees, trees of height suff1cient to r·e:present a oo:ntact ihazard to the Distribution Line if destabili:zed due to :soil 
instabiJi~r at the tree base. 

5 Evaluation of the Northern Cal ifomia Power Agency 
Wildfire Mitigation Pian 

A. M1nlmtzing Wild,fire Risks 

PUC: §8387(a) requires the foUowing: "Each local pub1icly owned electric utilrt;v and electriica I cooperative s:haU 
constn.tctr maintain, and operate· its electti:cal fines 11nd equipme:nt in a manner that will minimize the risk of 
wildfire p-osed by those electrical lines end equipment ... 
The WMP describes the safety-related measures that NCPA follows to reduce its risk of ca~sing wildfir,e.s. Du:dek 
has determined that NCPA cornpUes wlh this standard througtl the design of its :system an.di the <:onstructfon of 
its equipment and resources. 

B. Evaluation of WMP Elements 

Dudek fou•nd that NC:PA's VLIMP meets the statuto,y requirements of comprehensiveness per PUC §8387. The 
review of the WMP's elements is summarized relative to the application of the WM P. The table in Attachment .A 
lists each required element for NCPA's WMP and p:rovides Dudek's aissessment of the corn prehensi\•ene:ss of: that 
element within the WMP. 

Bekr,v is a summary of the WMP elements eis required by PUC §8387, including restating sections of the WMP 
where applicable. 

DUD K 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

,2109 OJ 
/..PR!i 2022 

Page 65 



8387(b}(2){A):. :Responsibilities of Persons Responsible for Executing the Pian. 

Under 111.e diremon af1he Assi91Bnt General Manager for Genera1iDn Sefvices. the plant. l'IIMIIIIB 811! 

A!SpOIISible far lmpJem.enladan and eBCUlion af 111e MIPwilh ,espea to 1beirfacillies..111e NOPA 
displt.cb eentefin Rmevile has respansibilJi'farthe:~tiein bes. 

8387{b)(2)(B): ObjectliYes of the 'Wildfire Mitigation Plan 

The· alJjeclnes aftbe MtP are ta: lllinimize lbe ~1.bat. NCIWs~ is die· mWn or anribuling 
.!DRl!fara wMlirefldii'III. -.pmvellle r:esilencyofthee1ec:lric9fd. specilicalyto leduceltle llll!IIIOOd 
af an inb!mlplian af selYice and 1111 impnn,emmt in Ille it:SIDialion al serviz afta aa inlmuplion. and ID 
impnNe 1he -~af dleirwildfire PIBllelDlft :ili-......S t.¥·modifying arreplacing elll!menlsal1lhei" 
wldfire pm,enliDIIPftJIPmlldratare ineffeclive 

8387{b)(2)(0): Prevention suate&ies and Programs 

NIJIN!i. S1JBb!:11ies 1D reducewikfi"e mk nclde all'DlUDIB evalilalion wt inlplm!ement af ils progr,ams 
anl prooedull5: indlldingNCPA's tl)faclilrt"DWJinlmll1lce pmfJllm. (2)~CipeiillaC~ 
(3J ·vegebdion 1118~~ and (4) anet documentalian PfDIPiDS,. lhe5le pmgi'alM incl&de 
an del'aissuch as~~ CH percenrage. rnanmmqpn&wodl:. amnnplimn11e1111S. intend and 
memal audils.-and derailed repod!L Add~ pn:igrams; suchascoordiudion wn CAL flREand 
wldlire ~:1nlhingforNCPASlllff complemenltheif mrete~ ~.AnachmentC 
In 1be¥A&> rm1b11ns a 1Bblewhiil describes idedilied risk4rivelswllrin NCPAsenice·ll!lritaly and 
pm,entalivE:Sbat ges iDplemented byllle UliB;r .. Tbl!: 1Bllle .ird.ldes CGD1RJls NCPA has implli!rnentEd ID• 
address eadl ri!aor liskdmer·lilled. 

8387(b)(2)(O): Metrics and Assumptions for Measuring WMP Performance 

The NGPA WMP us.es twD mmii::sm measure pemlllll8nceaf ils wldlue ~ measures: (1) number 
affile~and (2)·Nies do'Ml•aalS. Dudek hasdetemined1118tflll!Se are,-P,pmp1iatemeb'icsfor 
th&WMP_ 

8387{b)(2)(1EJ: Impact of Previous Metrics on WMP 

lhe. mt!lrics showZl!ID incilenlsand inliicltesuccess; no WMP matlleS due ID mebics.. 

8S87(~)(2)(F}: Rectosinl Protocols 

NCN. does not awn or use autamadc lll!dclseel. an its 230 kV within the scope· delnedl in Ibis WMP: Dis 
1s a 1,WPlcal lnclumysrandlrd fardlslriludon an111nlnSlldss1tn wares m RQfll!d· and Jelldetmain. 

8387(b)(2)(G): De-energizaticm Notification Procedures 

In 1be event al aclilfe fire situatilns. NCPA may be directed by CAL RREID deeneqfj.lelhe lines for 
fiRfigtlleran4'arama1tpmb!.Clian. NCPA~ iiillll:atW pnaduresdepend anwllidl lines 
andfacliliesme beng~. lf11te ..... facililiesand23DW Ines 811! ~ then MJIA 
pel5lffll1el wll wmk 11111b CAL. FIRE and tberd~ ·cemer in~ to nadl'fffleflgldeis. NCPA ftH:IIDy 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.01 
JI L202:? 

Page 66 



91Bff, PG&E, and r«:PA.IIM!lllbels. Judie geadlermal fiH:ililies relies an PG&Et.o rnalledle deb!rminalioo 
whedlerdlese flldlides aad lbeir' Ines are to be detikidl,ed. NIP.A dispatch would mmm.unicate PG&E 
cirection ID Nrm~ and NIPAmembers.. 

8387(b:)(2)(:H): Veietat ion Management. 

NCPAhasde\idoped and implelnmled aTIBDSRlission Yegetaliu.l MBllillltlDmlPlugmnl (NMP)tD 
es1ablish1he~ maintenance ~formch facililytfl amietelelitbillyof ils.fleilBBl'ion 
inraml■Et1ians.i,sll'em. 1he Nm\documentdefines pmcedunsfol ~ f1l1lft8lelllel NCPA's 
lVMP isdle plan for al~ af l4-:bllicm &S!ilDCilled MIii Ulifilr inl'rmlll'ICIIIR. frrm 1he ground 1Ddle 
-,, Mllcll ffludes11cpatlanaboveanl tlelowelll!all:allnes. 

8387{b)(2)(1): Inspections 

NCPA pe11mmsannua1 inspm:ians afiilstnllllSnimion and disbibulian facililies. in aooamance wilh General 
Older 95 and General Oilier 165. fidlanm:I hlspeajon5 me pelfamed aa Ille~ 230 kV 
line induding lidm ueget8tiDn 1liJ!lds. corona scans af insulalms. 'infmred inspections of lines. and 
equipment. In addtion to ils annual 9DUnd-based inspemall, NCPA may auenent. inspediallS wilh aerial 

dmn.eand/or beliccJpler sunre,s. 

8387{b)(2)U)U): Risks and Risk Drillers Associated with Design and Construction Standards 

Risks and - dliilels llelated to~ mnsbUClion~ operalian. and IINlinlEnal.ice include 
equipment/SIIIH:bl~ aljel:t.1D wirearequipmenl·~ wiretowbe~ vehicle 
opennions. lllfS'. Rlion clelninf. and llat wark. A1lacllment.Cin1be WMP canlllins a tllble Vlhidl dE!scdbes 
idenlifiecl risk dmft9s widlin NIPAsenil:e tmmtyancl ~ ~es implemer;Ud llttlle udily. 
1he list indudes rilkdlM!ISand risllsn!fatedtodesi§land .CIJIIS1JUC:liDaSfandllnls. 

8387(b)(2)(J)(il): RiSks aM Rlsk Drivers Associated ·wmh Topographic and Climatologtcat RiSk factors 

Risks and riskdrimsrelatedtD T~and~ Risk F8dal5 indude edelldeddmuf&bt. 
vegebllian'lfpe. ~dellsiW. Wll!i81her:, tddl winds. prevailng,wilds:. taraill,.·c:hlingiftgweadler 
paaerns andmmnurities 111. risk. ~at risk is a design and mnslluJClicJII Slllndllnl and it is 
1m1111mended1hfll it is IIIIJV'edta 1hatsemun.. Tile plml ~ prevaiingwind palb!rnS in 1heseavice 
tenibllyand 1111!!! impactthe winds have an the c:onducb:B.. Also din-ed a 1he impact that pll!WllB 
llulefires in 1heitse1Vice1eflilmy have an risksassaciated wilh 1llp09aphi:and c:1imatak,p:al fllctaa 
AmldnnentC intbe WMPamllllinsa 1Bble wtdcb describes IIIE:rdled tisk dl1veB wnm r«:PA.senice 
1mi11Hyand ~SIIBb!lf,ies.implemenlml bylherdl;y..lllelisl indudes riskdrivelsand ri5lls 
relaled ID .... phicfadms.wil.'hin NCPNs senil:etemlllly. 

8387(b(2))(:K): Geographical Area of Higher Wildfire Threat 

To idenlilf lhe areasaf NIJIA's!!ll!IVice tmlmythat ase atan elevated or ememe risliE af power lne
ia,11:m ~ NCPA has incolparab!d theH'°' fire-lluelllt District inlD a mmtnlelian. inspedion.. 
~ repes, and c:leSlance prBClic:es. where applicable. 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12108.07 
Affsll. 2022 

Page 67 



6 

8387(b'.)(2)(l): Enterprise-wide Safety Risks 

NCPAIE9da,weva1uatrs enteQnise ~ ri5IB.. w11m include sevaeapend:inecondilions and 
COlllingencies.. NCPAalm petbms ,regular 111111'9saf rislB to improve the ..,.,tu manage these risks 
effec:litlely_ 

8387(b)(2){M): Restoration of Service 

After a de-elteQlz'alian··ew911, l'CPAvdl resrare senice in corxdinalian wn ·PG&Fs IISIDnl1ioft effods. 
NCPAwtlfalow Pll:201 and Geolllemml Fac:iilies Mamnance Ploczdure (GBMM&} whidlspe.cifica..,. 
addtess resbJnllian, for Hjdro and Geolhenna1 faciitie sespedilely. 

8387(b)(2)(N)(O: Moni:torinl and .Auditing WMP Implementation 

lhe'WMP is presented 1D11le NOPA Commission an an annual basis alone willt 1be mebk:s and a 
Sllllllll81Jaf updaas. 

8387(b)(2)(N:)(ii): ldent~ne and cc,rrectini WMP defieiencies 

NCPArnaycorred deficiendes and implement plan impnwemen1S as needl!d. lmpruvll!llllell1wi11 be 
d'ocumented illhunnual repmtlD 1lle NDPACrc· - HL 

8387(b)(2){N)(iii}: Monitoring an.di Aud!iting the effectiveness of inspections 

NCPJ\1.1915 GmeralOnleel 95and l65 as1Uide51Dinspectils•ele.clril::~·~ 1be eller.'INeness 
af gmund iin5'pecliDm is1;nil:altf monmred by~ a lonti pelfonned llyNCPASIB'lf and CM. ARE Slll8ff 
·!db mpecoon PEBJ1nel. lndepelldent pmfessimnals are COllblli&Cmm reviiew lidlllf data and adler 
lilspealDn .,- lhatismlecled retllllletJ-

Wildfi re Safety Advisory Board Recommendations 

Tbe Wildfire Safety AcMsory Board produces guidance documents for pubNcty ovmetl utilities annualty. These 
documents des.<:ribe elements th8t should l::le revised or expanded in future WMPs to better organize tbe plan, 
clarify where PUC required informat ion can be found, Bnd to provide a more comprehensh,•e deseription of the 
utillt¥s wi1dfir-e prevention, programs. Dudek reviewed the WSAB most recent guidance document and compar,e.d 
contents o.f the NCPA's 2022 WMP to each recommended element. 

1. PIIH'I 9lnlclure. Staflin&, and Evalu8limns 

A. Context Setting Information: The W'SAB recommended that ?OU's use an upfront table that contains 
in.formation about the util~• in,ctuding: number ,of customers, the size O·f its service area.s, the serv,ice ar,ea 
with in a high fire threat area,. asset mix, and more. The intent was to provAde a reviewer ,of the, 1plan 1111th a 
plain and accessible summe iy of the utility. Ttle 'W'SAB proV\idedl .a tem1P!&te for this tabte in 2021. NCPA's 
WIIPuses1be\\'SABtemplllle and bas1heCIIIDplelm1111ble in·lhe:Ovetvn:se.dicJn afdlev •plaa. 

B. General WMP Objectives: Many POJLJ's use two general objectives; 1. Minimizing sou1roes of ignition and 
2. lmpr,ovinel the resmency· ofthe grid. These .are valid objectives b·ut the WSAB believes thet t:hey may lead 

ou:oE.K 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

'12,0l:1,07 
APR1l 202" 

Page 68 



to Umited approach by a u!tilrf~,r to wi1dfire prevention. Ttie WSA'B reeomme1Mls that POLi's take a broader 
approach to thefr objectives and CClnslder objectives that mltigete other risks associatecl with wildfire such 
as mtnimizing wildfir-e sp:read. NCPA's WMP objel:lives includelhese two~ objectives; INNN!ver" 1hs' 
WP does describe wildfire PR""f.lllion pn>lranlS1hllt. go beyiand mnimtzinl new idftilians and hantenmg 
dlei:' equipment against wildlire. :fair exam~ ·llleir vegelBlm ~ PIQPm TINP .ill$peCIS and 
~sudace ~ near1bE!ir ll!!Bl!ISas well as trees neulleir SIQWel: lines.. 

C. Staff Responsibi1itfes and Approval Protocols: The: VtlSAB requested that future WMPS include add itionail 
context information regarding the public input a ml approval processes for the WMP of each POU. lheVIIMP 
contains a desaiptitln in die Dllelview sec:liDn Gf die NCPNs WMP appr,uval pmt!le!IB dlat begills wilh a 
presenlBtiDn of 1be WMP1D 111e NGA\ facililies QxmnheefDl'mnKllflll. Iba, is murm for finel appn'NIII 
1111he· NIJIA.Cmmnmiaa. public raeelinlland r«:PAClllllllis!lim meelinl. Past \VMP's me available on the 
NCPA. websile. 

D .. Metric Developmem &ncl E.valustlon: Many POU':s ruse two baste metncs; .1. New Ignitions ancl 2. Wires 
down. These are valid metrrcs but the WSAB recomme:nds that POU's consider addinf or replacing these 
metrics with ones th&t better apply to their seNioe ter1itory and metrics that show progress towa:rds an 
outecme as opposed to a metrcc that shows the outcome. Tile WMP contains the 1Ml-basic meDil:s,. and 
these. are R!levent rnebimtD 1lle NCA\"s asselS.. NCPA. is evaluMin,I addinl! a third mebic ta evafu8le the 
elfel:INelle!llafdleirplan in redllcingtherilk pmed ta1beirWRS by~weakenedtrees...aslapes. 1he 
t,DIAdaes11aek1beirtwocunent mebicsandtbe n!Sllllsare pulllished ntbeWMP. 

2. Grid Desi9lr 9jslml Hardellift& Opelations wt lnspeclimB 

A. In 2021 the WSAB requestect POUs answer several questions al:lout ttteir system design and 
construction. The questions: 1. Are there design or ,construction issues related to the utiU:'l;y's spedfic 
topography or geographic location that the Board should be aware of? 2.Hmv win the uti'li't;y address risks 
associated with feciJities requiring power that abut a Tier 2 ~r Tier 3 HFTD? 3.How does the utn~• assess 
its. risks associated \Vttb system des£gn and construetio:n? 4Jn what areas does the util~ consider going 
above and beyond G.O .. 95 or other General Order standards related to desijgn and construction'? CIIBpm-
5 Sel:tioft A af lie WMP pmvides. teneraf• ovaview 1D 1be!le four qlll!Slians.: fillawed by a des:lipliun of 
Sl!UIE!IIII emmple ...,,...1115 ,NCPA bas incofporab!d an111E!ir 1l'8nllllis!Sio aMI leHl!fatian a!ilSll!!l!!L 

B. TheWSAB obseNed that the many POU \NMPs state that they meet or exceed the CPCCGO 95 SUlndards 
for their inspections. The W'S.AB ,comment is that the WMPs clo not state if the POU are meeting the mrnimum 
standards of GO 95 or exceeding it where circumsmnces mem: It. Th,e WSAB is recommending, that WMPs 
incl:ude a descnptlon -of whether their Inspection programs go beyond tile GO 9·5 stanclarcts. why they Clo, 
and how they do. The NCPA'3 WMP does nut use die SIB1emen1. "meet ar eJClleell'1' and the plan does 
describe Ille inspeaians. it pelfilmls.an it5 assets 1bat ea:eed 1he requirelBen1s al GO 95 including bow 
1he'/ eDZed Ille SIBndan:I.. TIE nmans IDr Ille lnspe.dians mat i,:t beyond Ille· CPtJC SIIUldltrds me 
summarized in the \WiillP wilh refaences to Ille NIPA documents or pokies wil:h. more detaled 
Bqllallllliam 

C. The WSAB ·would like POtls to include in their WMPs a description .cf the new ideas or enhanoec protocols 
the utility is ,considering in the design, bu ilding. and maintaining t heir s:y'Stem to mitigate t he wiltffire ris.k in 
the future. The WMP includes deiaipmns al 1be ~ impmveraerllS 1D NIPA 8!B!l9 (~ 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

1210~.07 
.6PRtL2022 

Page 69 



7 

equipment en tbE!ir power lines), and enbancemmls they aae m&kinl! to their inspeclion process 1JJ 
aflllBClnl1iequencyarflle scapeal inspectionsarwbele111eyme illcxNponllng new tecbnques..sucll as 
usingUI\Vs. 

The WSAB requested that POUs describe their vegetation management practices and evaluate their impact 
on reducing wildfire related rlS!k as well as the ecofogica:I impacts of the treatment options chosen. 1lle 
NCPJ\'s\WtlP~•ageneraldesaipliarlofthein1qtebllion n:mnagement.pn:eamand 1tft:taacesliB' 
1VMR.·111e 1VMPmnlains a dE!IBled desuipliun afthe utililly's~ plBdices includi,gwhat1MNS of 
·~ areb'e8fed. where they~ and how oftm.. De WIAPalm desal>e!I lmwtla~ 
EWlllgelllent smndan:ls exceell the GD 95 and Nhir:11 Sblnllald Ibey use as lllell- l,Uidelnes. for dN!ifr' 
etllwllzd·W!getldion ma1~pmgnn (CAI.FIRE~ Linefft~ 17"aeld Guide). 

Comparison of Industry Standards to the Operations and 
Equipment in use by the Northern California Power Agency 

Dudek compared operational procedures and equipment used by the NCPA to mitil'3te wildfire risk. in their service 
terrttoiy \'Uith mitigation measures in approved Wildfire Mitigation Plans from a similar utilities and eilectricail industry 
standtmls. 

Avian Deterrents 

The NCPA tias instaHed avian deterrents and anti-nesting cones on its: 230 kV Colnerville~Belb ta line, a 4~miie
long transmission tine that traverses remote and mountainous tenain .. Lerge birds are a common hazard ·for power 
lin.e poles and towers. i.nstalling these devjces on the towers aio~ this line prevents, large birds from usillg t he: 
towers as perches .and nesting .sites. This is a typrcal industry practice and a CALFIRE recommended pmctiiee to 
prevent equipment failure end wildfire igniti,ons due to, electrocuted birds or the accumulation of bird droppings en 
electrical equipment. 

lnsula.tor Repla,cement 

The NCPA lhas upgraded the insu lato:rs on its 230 kV CollieNUle-BeUota tine. a 40-mile-f-n:ng transmission lrn.e that 
traverses remote and rno1.mtainous terrain. The line is over 30 :y-ears old~ and the insulators were replaced as pan 
of a larger prr,ogfl'em to rm prove the safet;y encl reltabilit',?t' of the Hne. This is a typical industry pr,a.ctice and replaciing 
aging insulators reduces the 1risk: of equipment failure:, flastt-ov.er or .arcing, or elecmcal cunent discharging into the 
~oundl through the pole. 

Conductor Damping 

The NCPA has instaDecl mass dampers •On it:S 230 k\l' ColUerv.iile-Beltota line, a 40-mile-to.ng transmission line that 
traverses remote and moumsinoi.15 terrain. CcnduCUJII" damping is a typfcel industl)• practice to minimt'ze wear or 
com:Juctor fatigue near ttle hardware attachments. While this upgrade is not speci!fic to preventing wildfire ign[tion 
it does reduce the risk of conductor 011 equipment fa ilure, an event which could ignite ii wildfire .. 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

12106.07 
,'J."lR11 202~ 

Page 70 



Disabling Redosing Operations 

The NCPA does flOt use automatic recrosers on. its 230kV traASmission li:ne ,due to its location in nigged and remote 
terrain. This iSI a t)pical industry practice for both life safe,· and fire hazard reascms:. lin place of .e:n automatic 
reclosers1 NCPA ooordine:tes re-energr.mtion of a tripped Une wJtkt ttleir disp.etcti ,omce in Roseville, NCPA generation 
services, and PG&E. Lines are not re-energized until the)• have been visually inspected. 

DU:DEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

1210B.Ol 
.NJR1l2022 10 

Page 71 



8 Condusion 

Dudek concludes t h:et tbe Northern CeUfomia Power .l\gency Wildfire MitiPtioll Plan comprehensively addresses 
all the applicable statutorily required etements for a Publicly Owned Utilities' WMP as specified in Caliifomia Public 
Uti1ities Code Section 8387. Dudek finds that NCPA has taken reasonable actions to minimize the risk that its 
lines or equipment will came a \Vildfire. finally, Dudek finds tlhat the NCPA hes revJewed the e:uidance 
documentation provided by the WSAB end is incorpour,ting recommended improvements to their WMP and their 
wildfire prevention programs. 

Sincerely, 

Jeremy <Cavm 
Fire Protection Planner/Urban Forest.1'' Specialist 

DUDEK 12108.07 
i'!..PRIL:202:c' 11 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 72 



Attachment A: CPUC 8387(b)(2) Requirement Chart 

2022 WMP Requiired Element per PUC Sec 
8387fb],[2) 

2022. 

2021 N(PA WMP 
secti,on 

IE's. 
AJ'.se-.ssment 

ofWMP 
ba:secf on PUC 

Sec. 8387 

Requfremems 
{A): AIHlco:JCI Ntin,g of the respDRSibfflities af persons 
m,ansillle far a:eaiting the plan. 

:sec. 3..A utility Governance Acceptahle 
:strmure. Generation 
Serwces AsSi!tu.t Gen~ra1 
Mmaigef. 

{~~: The abiectives af tl!e• wikffire mitigation p,!an. exeartivE! summa.ry and sec. Acaptalble 

(C}: A description of the prewnlive str:ate,gies am 
prog,ams to be adopted by the bcaf publiay awned 
ii!lectric utili'l:y 01!' .. 11c1:rical coo~rati11e to mmimim 
the risk of its electrical tines and equipment causing 
catastrophic wiri:ffi:res., induding consideration, Clf 
ctirnami dhnne dlanie fJSb. 

{D}~ A description of the metrics the local pblicl\1· 
owned gctfic utility or 2lectri-cal cooperative pfans to 
~ t.:i evaluate the wildfire mitiptianplan's 
pemlfflll'illlCe and the assum_ptions tflat mu:iell'.lie ·dla 
ll.6e e1' those mmics. 
{£): A discl.lWOll -of howh• appti'cation of preuiously 
identified meb'IICstO prevfolB Mlclflre mitipticn, ,plan 
:pmorma.ooes has informed tM wldfire- mitigation 
p1i.11.. 

DUDEK 

1.B. Purpose of the WMIP. 2. 
Golfs. 
sec. SJ\. Prevenr.ative 
:strategies: and Pro.grams. 
Sec. s..c. Potential Cfimate 
Change Effects. sec. 5.D. 
Potamial Cfimata Cl!anp 
Risk: ManagemeM tmpacts. 

sec. 7.A. Metrics and 
Assumptions for Measumic 
Plan P«forrmna,_ 

sec. 7.B. Impact ,of Metrics 
on Plan. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Aca!ptahle. 
:sectiQn!I 
prcNidlesa 
comprehensiw 
oveniiewofthe 
cftfferent wildfire 
pravmtim 
pracrams. 

Acceptable. 
consider 
5ll!ledmg a new 
mellil:tttat 
measuresan 
element 1ha.t 
mufd lead to a 
wiFdl'ire igniticm# 
sudl as trees 
wilhoot 
adequate 
dear:atm!,ar 
equipment 
maffitnctimm; 
detscl!!!fl. 

Respom;ible Party 
Revisions; 

section SA. Ar.y 
changes or updates to 
the maintemnce 
p.rojects and programs? 
Moved &om 2021 to 
.2023 due to PGE ... 
sectiDn SF. Any aari:al 
drone or helicopter 
swveys wrth natirc? 
Getherma1 Drone. 
NCP.A works with ·C.:I 
Fire to mana,ge and 
p'.hiase maimttm.&e 
work to ttle liM. 
NCPA Upditi!: !Metrics 
mlect u~ to date. 
Good perfor,milnte. 

NCP-Ahas 
implemented 
rianmd inspedicm 
processes f.ar i1J 
dismbuth::in lines that 
indude idtld:ffication 
of hazard ·trees that 
alttlGl.t&b outside of the 
nomial radim ofVNIP 
deilFUII. stiU mai, 
represent a fall in 
hatard to wilidfire 
i,gnition if m,pled, 
NCPA has added tbis 
mttrii: to both die 
WMP and to the \IMP, 

12100.07 
t>.PR1L 2022 

Page 73 



2022' WMP iReQrnin•d flement .per PIK Seir. 
8387(bl(2) 

(!!'): PnKocol's for disabling~ and deenerp,f r,ig 
p>rtiom of tha 1lactrlcal distribution system dm 
consider ho assaciated impacts on pubtic safety; as 
well as protocof.i related ta mitiptinc tile public 
safety impacts of those prGtocols, includi'1g imp&ru 
on ;critical ·first res?(lnder:s ind on hea1th and 
communicati:on im'rastn.ldure. 
{G}~ Apprcpiate n fsslble procedures: fo.r notrfyinc 
a cw.tamar wtto may bi, impacted by the deanergizing 
of eiectri.cal lines. The procedures shall d:irect 
,notification ta all public s1fetv offices, amt first 
:responders, health care facilities, and aperaticn of 
te1eoommulli'Gtfoo£ infrastructure with premises 
'Mthir1; the footprirrt of potential de-energi~atioo fora 
given eYe:ITl't 
{'ff}: Plansforvegetationmanagement. 

{I): •~ans far inspections of the local pubficl'f oWMdl 
eiiectric utility's or electncat cooperatiw-•s etectrial 
infrastructwe. 

DUDEK 

2022, 

2022 N(PA WMP 

seuron 

:sec. s.1. Reclasrng Policy. 
:Sec. 5.J. Dil-£nerg~ation. 
:Sec. 5.U. lmpiil..'15 to Pull['IC 
safety. 

sec. 5.J.2. customer 
Notiiiation Pra'tOOOl5. 

sec. 5.F. vegetation 
MilnillEfllenl. 

:Sec. 5.G. !nspec.tians. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

IE':s 
A:ss;essment 

o,fWMP 

ba:seclon PUC 

Sec~ 8387 
Requirements. 
Aeeeptahle 

settioo 5c .. A.ny 
changes or 
~a'!:es:tothe 
Generation 
:servkti 
common 
Procedure GS-

305? Link. 
AtteptalJle, 1he 
WMfl,d'oesa 
podjlbat· 

~ 
pnea1,.,. 
Mgmt,The 
1YMP,an 
provides mml o;f 
the, required 
delaifs Im· meet 
tl'li551!diams; 
requirements I 
consider adding 
elements af'lhe 
lVMP'IDthe 
WMP 
~e.lhe 
WMPdOHa 
goodjabof 
desaibil':lg 
general 
inspection 
process, Details. 
regarding the 
typesof 

Responsible Party 
Revis.ions 

NCFIA :addedithe 
fo'll0wing to :section !!.I":: 
"'Specific t'iazards 
acfd'ressed in the TVMP 
lnclude idefllfficatian O'! 
ff. oarhm.ent:inta,'!!he 
Clear,ance area (sedion 
,u,. 7), and additional 
i~icn activities to 
identify deadfall and 
'brush in the ROWthat: 
could provide fuel fer 
wildfir. spread (section 
u.91. nte NMP a".so 
:prawks exgi;flcit 
direction to· treat! 
emer:gent conditions cf 
a. potutia'I har.ard as an 
lmmediate mitigation 
priarib,,' {secti.t1n 6.4 .. 4], 
including addressing 
extentafroru!lition" 

12108.0/ 
APR!l 2022 13 

Page 74 



2022 WMP Required Element per PUC Sec 
8387(bl{2) 

{I}.: A liit1hlt identffil!5, d~ and priarimes all 
wildfire rim, and drivl!B for those risks, tttrougl!1out 
the local ptibticlv owned electric utili'ty's or eledricae 
coopRrative•:s: ~Nice territOliy. lbe fis.t ma l inch.da, 
but not be limited to, both of the 'folto-Mn;: © Risks 
and risk drivers auociiil:ed with design. coostf'lldion, 
operation, and nwntenanm cf thl!! local pub"idy 
owMd electric utility's or electru:al oooperative,"s 
eqliipmimt and fad'llties. (iii Partla.Jlar Mils .and risk 
drivers associated with topogJaphic and 
dimabllogical risk factors tl!irnughout the cflffer,em 
parts of the local publicly awned electric: utiflty':S <':Ir 
erectrical cooperatlw's servke tenitory. 

(.IK}: ldentfflcaliDn af any,geopapihlc area i:n the local 
publicly awned electric ~Jb(s or elearical 
cooparative1':s: sen,,ice tBrritaf)! 111st is a higher' wildfire 
thrat thim is ldentiW ln I cammmiaffll firetfw,et: 
map, and idntificatian of wf'tel\e the c.ommiision 
sfloukl expand ai h11;h-fire tl!!ifft d:"Jitrict based an r,.ew 
1nformilltian or thiii1'185 m tliie environ.ment. 
{ll: A mettladolqy far idemil'yiJtg and ipresemil'lg 
erwterprise wide :5ilfety risk aruli v{ldfirHeZated risk. 

{M~: A statemet1't of how the local publidr owned 
electric utility or eJec:trical cooperative will restore 
-,,a after :a \Wldfire. 

DUDEK 

2022 

20.22 NCPA WMP 
sectro11 

sec. 4. ¥.tildfire Risks .illlld 
Driwers.. sec. -4.A. lfl!isks 
Associated with 
T~phical and 
Climatolcgitil~ Fattars:. 

sec. 4:C. changes to Clue 
Fire 'Threat Map 

:sec. 4.B. E~Wprise-wide 
samyRisks. 

sec. 7. RestcratiO"Bof.Siervice. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

IE's 

As~sment 
atWMP 

baiSed ooPUC 

Siec:. 8:38.] 

_!l_~q_uiu~men l~ 

inspettians 
parfmmad :and 
whentlle\'are 
perfmmed 
wauf.dbe 
bl!neficiaL 
Acuptable. lhe 
'IIIIMPdoesa 
podjabaf 
describill,G 
pne,:al risks to 
the service 
tenitmry balll 
dimate,amll 
terrain as wll as 
operaoonal and 
equipment. The, 
rists:$petffic:ID 
INCPA !il!Mm 
territmy are fflJt 
described and 'it 
would be 
bl!lnefkia.ltoadd 
somertatA 
speaicrisk 
driln!rs 

AeceptaJlle. 
consider 
cnatinga 
sedlianin'lhe 
WMP1hal: 
mtledslllie 
enter,prisewide 
safety efemenls 
de!icribed 
throughm.lt llhe 
plan • 
.Aca!ptllble 

Responsible Party 
Revi<;ijons 

NCPA. has added to 
:Section ti.A:· "'Rim 
specific to NCPA's 
gen~n facilities 
iill"4! tied to both 
residual fuel ktad 
(snags) fmm prev4DU5 
fires and potefltial safJ 
inslilbility caused by 
!lffl!!,liaus~to 
area vegetation. These 
hazards seaddressed 
byenbanced 
inspection tedmiqum: 
dascribed in section 
S.F"'. 

Abthment Chas !been 
added to prowid'e ;an 
ind'eli: of risks. and their 
a550dated cantirols 
ewlualions within tile 
ss:tiam of the WMP, 

12108.07 
t\PRft 2022 14 

Page 75 



2022 WMP RequT,red Element per PUC Sec 

8387(□][2) 

{N~: A dt!miptian ohhe processes and ~ 
the lccal pulll'."icly owned actric utility or electrical 
cooperative shall me to do 111 cf the fo1lawin1: r~ 
Manitar and audit 1he impfement:ation. of the wlh:ffire 
mittplii!m plan. (B> identify any defldendes ·1n die 
wildfire mitipticn plan or its implemen11:ation, and 
colTIKt these deficiencies. ~mt Manitar and audit tile 
etfett1¥enes5 c1' efetti'lcal line al\dl equipment 
inspections, im:ludinc impecti'o.M periormed bv 
contractors, 1t!at are c.rried out llmder the pfanr other 
1P,!!lt'lcab\le statutes:, or commission rtiles. 

DUD K 

2022, 

102.1 '1:JCPA WMP 
section 

Sec. 7.C. Mon•lng and 
Allld~ting the Plan. Sec. 7.D. 
ldentifyini: andl correc.tin,i 
De~es in the Plan. sec.. 
7.E. MO:r.!l'tal'in,g tbe 
Effectivef!lf!5s cf 1ns1pe:c.tians. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

IE'S 

Assess1nent 
ofWMP 

bc1,sed' on PUC 

Sec. 8387 
Requirements 

R-esponsible !Party 
Revisions 

,upda,,ted: HCPA 
currem:ty camdwct:5 ride~ 
~ with both cal
Fire mff and i11'11Ef'naf 
NCPAstaff. 

'l210!HT7 
APRJL2022 

15 

Page 76 



U K 

Attachment B: WSAB Guidance Recommendations Chart 

2022 
WSAB 2022 WMP Guidance 20.22 NCPA WMP fE's ~nitial Asse,,ment of 

Recommendations s-e,rtion WMP based on WSAB Responsible Party rev1-siom; !E's 2nd Assessment of 
Guicl'-ance Recmnrnendatiom; WMP' 

di& BDild reclll'l1Fne!IIIM u~ of anu,Pf.ront 
1empli1HD!ltaining keif illformaf;on about a 
utility's saNiicearea, including size, number et 

cwsmmers, ,vpe afa&Wmers, basic 
itOpOlrlllfflll' IWI weatller am, asset mbc. (in 

termsaf ll!lde~ versus a....rl\eadlinesJ, 
and imlTK'llon with Hip I'll• Tlnlt Dinrlce 

IHl'lD] and Pulllit• safety PoWel' Sltutoffs 
(PSPS). 

Ai~ iwx that showed whall!! each of the 
:IUNIO,V 111quhm1nts Wll'II llddlUNd in the 
WMP 

11w WSAB is fflCOlll'qln1 P®'SUo mllHlillll 
thtirWMP'al;iedivestot1te11brc.----
11pprcldl bl\'Ond the titPic:al mlui2i111 
sources of iP11tian and iffl9.1'0Virc re1iflfflt'I' of 
tht&rid. 

•Describe the ~lion manapment 
prlCtiru iffld ,1Y11u111 their impact on 
muclng wll~• relltld riff, aswell utht 
KOlogi:canimpaa: ofthettR!mentoptions 
chosen 

section lf. 

Section!! 

Fult,' oomplltld. 

Add Inda tltiJ to WMP In 
IIJlllltl!dloClltiOn 

:The NCIP'A's ducribas the typical 
objedillti of mimr.rJ:ifllg ig_n!tions 

Ind impraviq r•l~oltb&&rid 
lnthelrWMP. 

The WMP jll'Ollides I general 
OWNiew,oftMNCP~S p-ogam. 

Tliledatails t4:il WSA5is lookqicf 
are found in. the 1VMP p~n. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

nJ• 

SH At:lffllnt.A CDmplate 

SHAttldl."l'lll1ti8 compllte 

C0mplffl! 

Page 77 



2022 
WSf\H 20n WMI' GuiddT}( e• 20n HCPA WMP rr·, [nitiaf A.rn'."smierit of 

Rrrnmm<'nrtmion, ~~nion WMP b,1~Prrl on WSJlJB Respomible P,nty- revi<,ions IE's 2:otl Assessment of 

Gt:1id,mce Rernmme11dations WMP 

lnfarmrltlan lllolllt thJ ll'ISIIHati, ol'fflllllH 
01' situ1t1Gn1I ■warmus tachl'lqHto Tiwr9 ls:no dascripllon lntha WMP 
blttar undffltlnd \Wdfirt rilk llrivlrs, about the lnstallaticn or ust 
p.trtlcularlyttrroup, coll1borltlv.1c.tMtll:S Nt'.I. iitual:lanal i'Wiranass tachnolOff in 
1nd:mareddatti. NICPA's serAa! territar,. 

1nformltlan1bourfaaTlt!utllatwowl not be 
di NI~ subject to tt,e protocals of the CPU e's 

The WM? d0ti ootspecifically G.0.9Slluetothircoostr11ctionpriatothe 
G.O. fim: bl!il'II adoplled. identify ficilitiu that a,e Mt subjea 

sactians to6085. NCPAappinwildfire 
preventiol'l:st~ to.afl their 
mminlli&fl1i'r1thrutareu 

The WSAB wauld also like information about 
1nv clrcumst1ncu Wllff• the G,0, 95 

NCPA11~ manaaemMt mndard:sare natfollowell, andwhat 
replamnhlffl.and wtiv. propam follcws ·the lttimr CAL FIil! 

Sections 1liidelln11 for \111Bt111an 
m.inti111nt1 llion1the interconMCII 

NI\WQQII pn;,r.il>tiDn facill'!iK. 

Alia thlra duipcr construction issues 
Sol@n-4 CllllClinU lffll!'II related tau.. utility's specific topQ&raJihy or 

llll'll"PliliC laati>:m thltt!le l!Oird n:iuld me NIA a.itMIWdriskclriwlF'il'lfUnUiut 
aware of? no 11)1Cfflc.·t1rl'l1n or loc1ti11n il:lues 

are disc:uued, 

11DL¥will dM! utility adlll'fis ri>lb :asiOCllltld 
wlth facilitiu requirilw power that~ aT'iar NIA Not1pecificallylddrmedfl'llth11 
2.i0rTl■r:! ltl'TD1 WMP 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

See A.tt!dlment II 

SH AEtacllment II 

SH Attadlment II 

See Attlchment 8 

:5el Al'lldl.:1Mnte 

~plete 

CO~plete 

complna 

complete 

comp1-. 

12 08.t, 
M,Al;,:,H:>c1Z1 

Page 78 



2022 
wstm 2021 WMP Ciurdance 2022 N(PJ\ WMP IE's tnitiill Assessment of 

Rrcornme111datiom ~c>ctimi WMP b.ised on Ws.A8 Respon~ible Par[¥ reviisions; IE's 2nd /'\so;cssmenr of 
Guidame Recommem:latiom WMP 

HoW does th&! Ullfity aSiiSS its risks :maaal'.id 
with system d11ipund COMtructior.1 ThlWMP hu I pnn tMl\'IIWof 

Slcti):~, 41.S haw N'.CPA IIIIIUll'teJ Its mets tluld 
011 the id!anrifiltd wildli~ risk drril!"f.. 

In whit 11\lllcl dDls !:ha il.llility OO"Midll' go!l'4 
11!1 tM FH11ityMlinmiance PJ'Oll'lffl al:lo\lQand bl>jlond cto. 11!5 or adler Genarill 

order sttnclln:ls rll!ted ta desip an.d Slcticm.S of section 5th■ WMP du:ribs11ii.l 

canstrudion? uperldu11ndercon1ld1ratian ton 
tie-in and transmission 

WM' MMriCS fflllollll'HOll!ldl?~lhlt ii 
llllpful far pl'QIIUS ~ mlt II upacte, 
and v.ti.n, not mNlina: thl matrh: aui.s 111111 WMP Ustltl'II basic fflltrlcs of 
teraion far improvement. MW igflitians il'lll wires dawm. T1!Qse 

m&tria are appropriate ta NCPA's: 

sectioo7 
seN'ice territofy. !I: is recommended 
th1t NCP,lt, chaase I new m,emc:Cf 
r111laee CM cf the exifflnc metrics 
tlm mows:thl! utility's progress 
wward r1ducingwildlffJ1 risk. 

thaWSAI! r.quut«lthiit WMPS Include a 
small ar,,ount of additionill context 

TIie WMP irldudu ll short informal on regilrllh11g public lnputand 
app,ovill pn,t11Sses fllr eaoch utiuty. de;uiplion of who applOYl!S the !Plan 

sectiool andthatdllpla:!11·15.openforpubllc 
review; A description afthe:11Pllf0Yal 
proeus Is n011 lnch1cltd i'nthls WMP. 

DUDEK 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

Sll!Mllctllrlentl complett. 

SH..utldlmlntl eam11I•• 

5eeA:ticbmentl tCompllltl, 

see Attachment ti complete 

I Oi 

Page 79 



REVISION HISTORY 

Version 1.0 - NCPA Commission approved on December 5, 2019 per Resolution 19-100 

Version 1.1 - NCPA Commission approved on May 29, 2020 per Resolution 20-43. This WMP 
includes the qualified Independent Evaluators {IE) report in Appendix 2. 

Version 1.2 -NCPA Commission approved on May 27, 2021 per Resolution 21-56. This WMP 
includes the qualified Independent Evaluators {IE} report in Appendix 3. 

Version 1.3 - NCPA Commission approved on Moy XX, 2022 per Resolution 22-XX. This WMP 
includes the qualified Independent Evaluators {IE) report in Appendix 4. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 80 



ATTACHMENT A - PUC 8387 (B) REQUIREMENTS TABLE 

Attachment A: Index of Required Element Location in WMP 

----------- - - ---- - ---------- -------------------

2022 WMP Required Element per PUC Sec 8387(b)(2) 

(A): An accounting of the responsibilities of persons responsible for 

executing the plan. 

(B): The objectives of the wildfire mitigation plan. 

(C): A description of the preventive strategies and programs to be 

adopted by the local publicly owned electric utility or electrical 

cooperative to minimize the risk of its electrical lines and equipment 

causing catastrophic wildfires, including consideration of dynamic 

climate change risks. 

(D): A description of the metrics the local publicly owned electric 

utility or electrical cooperative plans to use to evaluate the wildfire 
mitigation plan's performance and the assumptions that underlie the 

use of those metrics. 

(E): A discussion of how the application of previously identified 

metrics to previous wildfire mitigation plan performances has 

informed the wildfire mitigation plan. 

(F): Protocols for disabling reclosers and deenergizing portions of the 

electrical distribution system that consider the associated impacts on 

public safety, as well as protocols related to mitigating the public 
safety impacts of those protocols, including impacts on critical first 

responders and on health and communication infrastructure. 

(G): Appropriate and feasible procedures for notifying a customer 

who may be impacted by the deenergizing of electrical lines. The 

procedures shall direct notification to all public safety offices, critical 

first responders, health care facilities, and operators of 

telecommunications infrastructure with premises within the footprint 

of potential deenergization for a given event. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

2022 NCPA WMP section 

3.B., 3.C. 

1.B. 

5.A., 5.B., 5.C. 

7.A. 

7.B. 

N/A- NCPA does not own or use 

automatic reclosers on its 230 kV lines 

(S.H.) 

5.J.2. 

Page 81 



(H): Plans for vegetation management. 

(I): Plans for inspections of the local publicly owned electric utility's or 

electrical cooperative's electrical infrastructure. 

(J): A list that identifies, describes, and prioritizes all wildfire risks, 

and drivers for those risks, throughout the local publicly owned 

electric utility's or electrical cooperative's service territory. The list 

shall include, but not be limited to, both of the following: (i) Risks and 

risk drivers associated with design, construction, operation, and 

maintenance of the local publicly owned electric utility's or electrical 

cooperative's equipment and facilities. (ii) Particular risks and risk 

drivers associated with topographic and climatological risk factors 

throughout the different parts of the local publicly owned electric 

utility's or electrical cooperative's service territory. 

(K): Identification of any geographic area in the local publicly owned 

electric utility's or electrical cooperative's service territory that is a 

higher wildfire threat than is identified in a commission fire threat 

map, and identification of where the commission should expand a 

high-fire threat district based on new information or changes to the 

environment. 

(L): A methodology for identifying and presenting enterprise wide 
safety risk and wildfire-related risk. 

(M): A statement of how the local publicly owned electric utility or 

electrical cooperative will restore service after a wildfire. 

(N): A description of the processes and procedures the local publicly 

owned electric utility or electrical cooperative shall use to do all of the 

following: (i) Monitor and audit the implementation of the wildfire 

mitigation plan. (ii) Identify any deficiencies in the wildfire mitigation 

plan or its implementation and correct those deficiencies. (iii) Monitor 

and audit the effectiveness of electrical line and equipment 

inspections, including inspections performed by contractors, that are 

carried out under the plan, other applicable statutes, or commission 

rules. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

5.E. 

7.E. 

(J): 4 

(i): 4.8. 

(ii): 4.A. 

N/A-At this time, NCPA does not 

identify any needed changes to the 

current boundaries as identified in 

current maps included in Appendix 1-

Fire Risk Assessment Maps. 

4.B. 

7. 

(i): 7.C. 

(ii): 7.D. 

(iii): 7.E 

Page 82 



ATTACHMENT B - WSAB RECOMMENDED ELEMENTS TABLE 

Table 2: Index of WSAB Recommended Element Location in WMP 

--~- - ---------- - ----------- - - - - ----------

2022 WSAB Recommended Elements 2022 NCPA WMP section 

(A): The WSAB has requested that public owned utilities include a 

table that describes each of the PUC requirements and where each 

requirement can be found in the WMP. This table should be 

incorporated into the WMP as Attachment A. 

(B):The WSAB has requested that publicly-owned utilities re-evaluate 

their general WMP objectives to take on a broader approach that goes 

beyond minimizing ignitions. It is recommended that NCPA re

evaluate their objectives for the following strategies: objectives that 

minimize the risk of fire spread or intensity and objectives that allow 

NCPA to restore services/return to full capacity after a wildfire 

spreads impacts their assets. 

The table describing how each of the 

PUC requirements have been 

addressed by NCPA's WMP has been 

added as Attachment A 

NCPA has evaluated and updated its 

strategies in section 5.A. of the WMP 

to address methods of minimizing the 

risk of fire spread. The strategies for 

restoration of services contained in 

section 5.H. of the WMP have been 

evaluated and will not be revised at 

this time based on the minimal impact 

to customers related to potentially 

delayed restoration of service. 

(C): The WSAB has requested that future WM P's contain a description A paragraph describing NCPA's public 

of the public input and approval process for the WMP. It is document accessibility, review and 

recommended that NCPA add a small paragraph describing the approval process, and method for 

utility's public approval process for their plan and where the WMP is incorporation of public comments into 

posted for review by the public. the WMP plan has been added to 

section 3.8. of the WMP. 

(D): The board has recommended that public owned utilities re

evaluate their metrics to determine if they are useful for informing 

them on the effectiveness of the plan. It is recommended that NCPA 

consider adding a new metric or replacing an existing metric with a 

performance-based metric like equipment inspections or trees 

trimmed as well as another leading metric such as number of 

vegetation contacts with wires discovered or equipment faults 

detected. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

NCPA has considered the 

recommendation to consider adding a 

new metric or replacing an existing 

metric with a performance-based 

metric. A residual risk is related to the 

potential for soil instability in areas 

previously affected by wildfire to 

result in a "fall in" by trees of sufficient 

height to contact Distribution lines. 

Section 7.A. has been updated to add 

this new metric. 

Page 83 



(E): The WSAB recommends that the Independent Evaluators report 

contain a comparison of the utility's operations and equipment to 

relevant industry standards. It is requested that NCPA provide a list 

of specific operational practices and equipment that NCPA employs 

to reduce the risk of wildfire within the service territory. 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 

NCPA has addressed specific 

equipment and operational practices 

to reduce the risk of wildfire within 

the service territory in section 5.A.of 

theWMP. 

Page 84 



ATTACHMENT C - WILDFIRE RISK ELEMENTS AND CONTROLS 

Table 3 - Index of Wildfire Risks and Controls Evaluations within the WMP 

Northern California Power Agency Wildfire Mitigation Plan 
Version 1.3 Page 85 



<Z 
Cl) 0 
vl :::i 
-· :'.j"' 
0 Cl) ::::, ..., 
__,::::, 

w () 
g 

.,, 
0 
(0 
CD 
co 
0,. 

0 ..., 
::::, 
o· 
-u 
0 
~ 
~ 
► (0 
Cl) 
::::, 
() 
-< 
~ 
0: -~-
s 
:::::;.: co· 
9. o· 
::::, 
-u 
0 
::::, 

Identify and Asiess V#ildm, EYent Bemenh fife! 

ree confect or downed conducio!' 
uri~:wfnd centeedevenis 

Ceod ·Mbs ot 1rees oon-tocfnQ 
O:-Sjp;bu1!0n rnes __ ____ _ X 

lncreasedvee mcrta 'fV X 
Trees encl'OOCh:ng on f .olhove> d'rtonces 
to T~onsmlslion faO:-fe; 
Fa~,;, ir~-i-e.uF.riotom-ands-::iesor 
irun_k !~:urecs 

Fuses er conduct= droppi.ng r,o ten Meta. 

l:JnfuM,;y f,e ctep~ni f~pons_se X 

Undet~ct~_d e:quipnent dairage o_, ta: Jres 

UnCOOl"<in91ed w·:df.we •esporne .X 

Staffunow~eorw.df-e""St:_«•e.sµonse .x 

Extended f.meframe fOI' li'e event •ecovery 
Extended-drought ccnd:i:Ons; . . 
Undelbl'Um do.rrage from f.res; 
V-eg~at'.on slrelS er $pec'.es Changes X 

t:ghten·rig :srlt~ 

Veh:c.es_operof.ng '.ll drl:'_~etatlon a-eas 

Veget'?f;on_~ &<>r'ng Or:>!?'?ficns 

Hot Wort 

Unde~cted 1!&1iSk<:hange X 

P>'c•e<:fve dev'ce de;ayed c~ng 

X 

De(gn and -nain1"o'n IY.sl!'bufon ond Trcnsm'ss'::m foc~r e-1 n 
OCC(V·donce_ with PG&E oppioved p-octices to,, w .d,ond r~e 

Conlrok &afuateConlrob (WMP Section 
3.C. w ,dfi'e Response. 
· Communicclfon -and 
Re<:OVe!V ond 5.A.! 4) Asset p!'event'.on. Oe-e~ foc':ties when needed dl.l"ng h'gh 

w·nd/red f,agcond'ilons. 
tdenffy andremovedeod ond dy'ng free-1 O""mbs."-OMOl'eo 

PG_~E. Greenbook Dei'-~n Standords._fub :c SOfe1Y Powe, Sh~ (f'! ~ ~~~"!~ .!1· 

~djocen) to { nes. _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ ____ _ _ TVMP anc:Hower ~ ~ Prevenf:on Fe'd Gu:de {PLFPFG! 

idefrtlfy and-~-de-od ond dy'ng toe-es rot" oreo a*cent to "r'TVMP ond PLFPFG 
· tdent'fy and remove enct00eting !Yeas. De--energize fae..:t'~ upcn TVMP ond ~ncy Ope!Ot'ng Gude,nes. eo,-eiv,-;e" POVl.-et 

~-E. Veg&tof_'.ori Mor,ogement 
5.D. Tree Morta;'ly 

_ X_ -CAL FlK~request._ _ __ H:)~ Be o1a-C<f?':ervC:e2JO_tV l'nes ;P~101! 5.1. ~n~ofon 
5'.B. Potenf.a· Cnate Change 
Effee1s 

X 

x_ _ 

X 

X 

X 

Routine 'mpe-cfons <J_nd non--"Out:ne 'nc ·denta obse-vat'on. _ 

Use of non--expu'ron iype fuses ·n H:gh F.re R~ Areas !HfRA~ 
irot-ecfon ofT•ansn(s;'on ond Dnli'bJ'.fon_c··c1fJs :n accodance 
vr.h des;.in uanda,d., pot,c ·ng of ·nes P"'!Jl'fo •e-ene,g1zofoo. 

El"!egency Acron f".on fEAPl T"O:n;ng ond COO-d:not'on w'1h 'oco: 
ogeric·es_ 

Ro.Jf.ne '.nspeciiom and oon-1'Cvf.ne '.nc'dento: obseNofon 
PeMnne t-oin:ng and natif.caf,onf() o·.potcti cente, for 
:cocranated •e;ponse. 

Ferwnnei :t-oufngond_ seosono: owo•eness reM'nders. 

Leverage odd'l~no '.ne pe=nne ond resou,ces va 1'1.utuo o:d 
a~eeme_nts. _ 

K@1'ne :nspeet:on, ond nOll"1'0ut'ne 'nc:dento, obw.'vot'-on. 

Awa-en- ond •esporue. 

AwO'en~_ orn::t pe,:oa·c pe=nne. irc,'n'ng. 

· Aw~ess_and ~le ~~ne tro_ n:ri~. 

Aworenass and pe-'::i-d':: personne, 1ro;n;ng. 

P-eroct:: -ev'ewof &el"!k eot&gO'"es. 
Annua-rev'.ew of proiectlve equlpr-ent c~i1Jnr·on and ~ ''lg 
re-cords. Peif,ocf.c jeve,y ~ ye~ v~of ::-n of p-otec'lve device 
<l~~ngf"WIAWNERC PRC--005 

PLFPFG. Secfons 12-19. 

PG8.E G~eenbock Des:gn Standards, PSPS. PM-201 & GE0-646 
Annual tatietop EAP rev:e\'VS \'Ith USFS. CAL FIRE. CHP. Co,p;ne, 
BLM. L.ACOSAN. Ca:ove,as. Tuo:vmrwt & Aip:ne County She!''ffs. CA 
DeJ>!. _of Portes & Recreotcn 

R~u·Ql' potr<:;; of D"mbut ,on ~MS. NERC FAC--003 fnspecfiom 'n 
accordance wth {IAW1 NCPA P"(>Cedl.l'e GM--305 
EAP t-o'n'ng for o fe·d personni. Fac::-1y ipe::.'fc Emeroenc.:y 
Ji'~po~_P.oni {ERP) 

EAP 1!'o:n·ng fon,·,re:d pe-5'0nne ._ Month), safety meef.ng; 
Mutudi o d ogteemen-is W'fh rr>emce,, uf--f ecs . Co"fom!o Uf"tles 
Err.e-gency A~mn {CUM.Al and An-er.con P1Jb~,c Powetr 
Assoc'o'f-on •APPAi_ fa- D:rn-butic>n asseh, WAPA ogr-nt ·fer 
ma:_ntenance ond ,apo;, of_T'ran-lm'1S.or1 a»e+s 

Roul'ne pa1"<: s of Ow.ouron •nes. NEJi'C FAC--003 inspect:Ons ·n 
occordo_~ w'th llAWi NCPA ~edl..l'e G _M...JOS 

EAP COO'Cfnafon wlh CAL FfREfo!' W:-dfre ·gn'tion_ 

Monthly p an• safefy ~'illQS_ 

TV~~~ aMFl:~f'fG 

3.C. Wdf-e Response. -
C<lm"'lunlcot·on ond 
Recove:y; 5.A.i41 Asrel 
doc-umenfafon; 5.H. Ji'ecioser 
Po•cy and 7. R~i~a!'on of 
Service. 

1.8. l. cooro:noron w:th Loco: 

'.AQenc'_~ .. .. - -- -. 
5Ai I) foc·-,v- ,_.a,ntenance 
f'rog-ol"' and 5..A.{2} 
Ef'le'gen.;y Operat;ng 
P<oced~; 
Coml>lUn'<:ai:on and -- 
Reccve,y 
5.G. F.J!& Prevenfcn, Sofefy_
E~ncy R$pome rro'n·ng 

~.F. ~utuoJ J(.d Agreer--en~ 

5.C. Potenfa.C'.moieChonge 
-R:st Mana~ement P-ocfce,. 
5.8. Pctenfo' C'"Mate Change 
E!fect~ 
3.B. W'dfre Prevenfon 
Otgonizo'f:)nol Responsib":"f-es 
5.A.iJ) Vegerofcn · · -- -
Management Pl'Og!'Om 
5~G. ~e f'~vem~,Sofety, 

GS-I· I {H:,t WO!'lc Procedu,e} ::md_~S:116 jWe'd:ng Safety P~edut ~ency Respcn~ Tro'n(ng 
2.C. ldent'fy·ng Unnecessary a 
lnelfecflve .Action.s; 4.C. 
Changes ,o CPUC F,e Th•eat 

Annual -ev'ew of W-df<'-e Monogemerrt P,an inc:.:d·ng Fve Hoz-ad Mop ond 7.C. Mon'tor'ngond 
.zon~c:al(fc~t'oos '. ~_d'._''ng the ~•~n: 

5.A.(11 Foc~-ty Ma:ntenance 
NCP~_ G.M04 Pl'C1eci'on s~;~ M1:fn!enan~ and_ Te-st;n,; P"Ogan P-~'?m 



Commission Staff Report 

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 26, 2022 

SUBJECT: CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 21-22 

AGENDA CATEGORY:     Closed Session 

FROM: Jane Luckhardt METHOD OF SELECTION: 

 General Counsel N/A 

Division: Executive Services  

Department: Legal  

 
 
21. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) - Existing Litigation, two (2) cases: 
 

A. Case Name: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville, and 
City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C. 
 

B. Case Name: In Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and Electric Company: United 
States District Court, Northern District of California, Case No. 22-cv-02833-HSG. 
 

 

22. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) – Anticipated Litigation – one (1) case.  
 

 

 

21 & 22   
 


	Draft_Minutes_042822
	Item_3_Support_Services_Program_Status_Report
	Item_5_FAC_Comm_Meeting_Minutes_050422
	Item_10_Financial_Report_APR_30_2022
	Item_11_Treasurer's_Report_Month_Ended_APR_30_2022
	Item_12_GeothermEX_Inc._First_Amendment_Five_Yr._MTCSA
	Item_13_Kinectrics_Inc._Five_Yr._MTPSA
	Item_14_Parker_Landscape_Development_Inc._First_Amendment_Five_Tr._MTGSA
	Item_15_NCPA_Investment_Policy_and_Guidelines_No 200-100
	Item_16_Temp_LEC_Scheduling_and_Dispatch_Op_and_Econ_Criteria
	Item_17_WAPA_2022_Renewable_Energy_Credit_Program_LOA_22-SNR-02738
	Item_18_City_of_Shasta_Lake_Participant_Admission_PM_&_AS_Services_Agrmnt
	Item_19_City_of_Shasta_Lake_Participant_Admission_Amended_and_Restated_Fac_Agrmnt
	Item_20_NCPA_2022_Wildfire_Mitigation_Plan_Assessment_Report
	Items_21_22_Closed Session_Placeholder
	Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) - Existing Litigation, two (2) cases:


